UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY
1500 PENNSYLVANIA AVENUE, NW
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20220

Dear Ladies and Gentlemen:;

The company set forth on the signature page hereto (the “Company”’) intends to issue in a
private placement the number of shares of a series of its preferred stock set forth on Schedule A
hereto (the “Preferred Shares’) and a warrant to purchase the number of shares of a series of its
preferred stock set forth on Schedule A hereto (the “Warrans” and, together with the Preferred
Shares, the “Purchased Securities’”) and the United States Department of the Treasury (the
“Investor”) intends to purchase from the Company the Purchased Securities.

The purpose of this letter agreement is to confirm the terms and conditions of the
purchase by the Investor of the Purchased Securities. Except to the extent supplemented or
superseded by the terms set forth herein or in the Schedules hereto, the provisions contained in
the Securities Purchase Agreement — Standard Terms attached hereto as Exhibit A (the
“Securities Purchase Agreement’) are incorporated by reference herein. Terms that are defined
in the Securities Purchase Agreement are used in this letter agreement as so defined. In the event
of any inconsistency between this letter agreement and the Securities Purchase Agreement, the
terms of this letter agreement shall govern.

Each of the Company and the Investor hereby confirms its agreement with the other party
with respect to the issuance by the Company of the Purchased Securities and the purchase by the
Investor of the Purchased Securities pursuant to this letter agreement and the Securities Purchase
Agreement on the terms specified on Schedule A hereto.

This letter agreement (including the Schedules hereto), the Securities Purchase
Agreement (including the Annexes thereto), the Disclosure Schedules and the Warrant constitute
the entire agreement, and supersede all other prior agreements, understandings, representations
and warranties, both written and oral, between the parties, with respect to the subject matter
hereof. This letter agreement constitutes the “Letter Agreement” referred to in the Securities
Purchase Agreement.

This letter agreement may be executed in any number of separate counterparts, each such
counterpart being deemed to be an original instrument, and all such counterparts will together
constitute the same agreement. Executed signature pages to this letter agreement may be
delivered by facsimile and such facsimiles will be deemed as sufficient as if actual signature
pages had been delivered.
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In witness whereof, this letter agreement has been duly executed and delivered by the
duly authorized representatives of the parties hereto as of the date written below.

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE

TREASURY
By:
Name:
Title:

COMPANY: GrandSouth Bancorporation

Byzgﬁ&gwr“

Name: Ronald K. Earnest
Title;: President

Date: J;MMG—P? 7, 20409
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In witness whereof, this letter agreement has been duly executed and delivered by the
duly authorized representatives of the parties hereto as of the date written below,

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE
TREASURY

o P

Name: Neel Kashkari
Title:  Interim Assistant Secretary
For Financial Stability
COMPANY:: GrandSouth Bancorporation
—

By: m»\/_ﬂk &f\

Name; Ronald K. Eamnest
Title: President

Date: _Javuary 7, 2009
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EXHIBIT A
(Non-Exchange-Traded QFls, excluding S Corps
and Mutual Organizations)

SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT
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SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT - STANDARD TERMS
Recitals:

WHEREAS, the United States Department of the Treasury (the “Investor”) may from
time to time agree to purchase shares of preferred stock and warrants from eligible financial
institutions which elect to participate in the Troubled Asset Relief Program Capital Purchase
Program (“CPP”);

WHEREAS, an eligible financial institution electing to participate in the CPP and issue
securities to the Investor (referred to herein as the “Company”) shall enter into a letter agreement
(the “Letter Agreement”) with the Investor which incorporates this Securities Purchase
Agreement — Standard Terms;

WHEREAS, the Company agrees to expand the flow of credit to U.S. consumers and
businesses on competitive terms to promote the sustained growth and vitality of the U.S.
economy;

WHEREAS, the Company agrees to work diligently, under existing programs, to modify
the terms of residential mortgages as appropriate to strengthen the health of the U.S. housing
market;

WHEREAS, the Company intends to issue in a private placement the number of shares of
the series of its Preferred Stock (“Preferred Stock™) set forth on Schedule A to the Letter
Agreement (the “Preferred Shares”) and a warrant to purchase the number of shares of the series
of its Preferred Stock (“Warrant Preferred Stock”) set forth on Schedule A to the Letter
Agreement (the “Warrant” and, together with the Preferred Shares, the “Purchased Securities™)
and the Investor intends to purchase (the “Purchase”) from the Company the Purchased
Securities; and

WHEREAS, the Purchase will be governed by this Securities Purchase Agreement —
Standard Terms and the Letter Agreement, including the schedules thereto (the “Schedules”),
specifying additional terms of the Purchase. This Securities Purchase Agreement — Standard
Terms (including the Annexes hereto) and the Letter Agreement (including the Schedules
thereto) are together referred to as this “Agreement”. All references in this Securities Purchase
Agreement — Standard Terms to “Schedules” are to the Schedules attached to the Letter
Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, and of the representations,
warranties, covenants and agreements set forth herein, the parties agree as follows:

Article |
Purchase; Closing

1.1  Purchase. On the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in this Agreement,
the Company agrees to sell to the Investor, and the Investor agrees to purchase from the
Company, at the Closing (as hereinafter defined), the Purchased Securities for the price set forth
on Schedule A (the “Purchase Price”).
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1.2 Closing.

@) On the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in this Agreement, the closing
of the Purchase (the “Closing”) will take place at the location specified in Schedule A, at the
time and on the date set forth in Schedule A or as soon as practicable thereafter, or at such other
place, time and date as shall be agreed between the Company and the Investor. The time and date
on which the Closing occurs is referred to in this Agreement as the “Closing Date”.

(b) Subject to the fulfillment or waiver of the conditions to the Closing in this Section
1.2, at the Closing the Company will deliver the Preferred Shares and the Warrant, in each case
as evidenced by one or more certificates dated the Closing Date and bearing appropriate legends
as hereinafter provided for, in exchange for payment in full of the Purchase Price by wire
transfer of immediately available United States funds to a bank account designated by the
Company on Schedule A.

(c) The respective obligations of each of the Investor and the Company to
consummate the Purchase are subject to the fulfillment (or waiver by the Investor and the
Company, as applicable) prior to the Closing of the conditions that (i) any approvals or
authorizations of all United States and other governmental, regulatory or judicial authorities
(collectively, “Governmental Entities”) required for the consummation of the Purchase shall
have been obtained or made in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to each party and shall
be in full force and effect and all waiting periods required by United States and other applicable
law, if any, shall have expired and (ii) no provision of any applicable United States or other law
and no judgment, injunction, order or decree of any Governmental Entity shall prohibit the
purchase and sale of the Purchased Securities as contemplated by this Agreement.

(d) The obligation of the Investor to consummate the Purchase is also subject to the
fulfillment (or waiver by the Investor) at or prior to the Closing of each of the following
conditions:

Q) (A) the representations and warranties of the Company set forth in (x)
Section 2.2(g) of this Agreement shall be true and correct in all respects as though made
on and as of the Closing Date, (y) Sections 2.2(a) through (f) shall be true and correct in
all material respects as though made on and as of the Closing Date (other than
representations and warranties that by their terms speak as of another date, which
representations and warranties shall be true and correct in all material respects as of such
other date) and (z) Sections 2.2(h) through (v) (disregarding all qualifications or
limitations set forth in such representations and warranties as to “materiality”, “Company
Material Adverse Effect” and words of similar import) shall be true and correct as though
made on and as of the Closing Date (other than representations and warranties that by
their terms speak as of another date, which representations and warranties shall be true
and correct as of such other date), except to the extent that the failure of such
representations and warranties referred to in this Section 1.2(d)(i)(A)(z) to be so true and
correct, individually or in the aggregate, does not have and would not reasonably be
expected to have a Company Material Adverse Effect and (B) the Company shall have
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performed in all material respects all obligations required to be performed by it under this
Agreement at or prior to the Closing;

(i) the Investor shall have received a certificate signed on behalf of the
Company by a senior executive officer certifying to the effect that the conditions set forth
in Section 1.2(d)(i) have been satisfied;

(iii)  the Company shall have duly adopted and filed with the Secretary of State
of its jurisdiction of organization or other applicable Governmental Entity the
amendments to its certificate or articles of incorporation, articles of association, or similar
organizational document (“Charter”) in substantially the forms attached hereto as Annex
A and Annex B (the “Certificates of Designations”) and such filing shall have been
accepted;

(iv)  (A) the Company shall have effected such changes to its compensation,
bonus, incentive and other benefit plans, arrangements and agreements (including golden
parachute, severance and employment agreements) (collectively, “Benefit Plans™) with
respect to its Senior Executive Officers (and to the extent necessary for such changes to
be legally enforceable, each of its Senior Executive Officers shall have duly consented in
writing to such changes), as may be necessary, during the period that the Investor owns
any debt or equity securities of the Company acquired pursuant to this Agreement or the
Warrant, in order to comply with Section 111(b) of the Emergency Economic
Stabilization Act of 2008 (“EESA”) as implemented by guidance or regulation thereunder
that has been issued and is in effect as of the Closing Date, and (B) the Investor shall
have received a certificate signed on behalf of the Company by a senior executive officer
certifying to the effect that the condition set forth in Section 1.2(d)(iv)(A) has been
satisfied,;

(v) each of the Company’s Senior Executive Officers shall have delivered to
the Investor a written waiver in the form attached hereto as Annex C releasing the
Investor from any claims that such Senior Executive Officers may otherwise have as a
result of the issuance, on or prior to the Closing Date, of any regulations which require
the modification of, and the agreement of the Company hereunder to modify, the terms of
any Benefit Plans with respect to its Senior Executive Officers to eliminate any
provisions of such Benefit Plans that would not be in compliance with the requirements
of Section 111(b) of the EESA as implemented by guidance or regulation thereunder that
has been issued and is in effect as of the Closing Date;

(vi)  the Company shall have delivered to the Investor a written opinion from
counsel to the Company (which may be internal counsel), addressed to the Investor and
dated as of the Closing Date, in substantially the form attached hereto as Annex D;

(vii)  the Company shall have delivered certificates in proper form or, with the
prior consent of the Investor, evidence of shares in book-entry form, evidencing the
Preferred Shares to Investor or its designee(s); and

-3-
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(viit) the Company shall have duly executed the Warrant in substantially the
form attached hereto as Annex E and delivered such executed Warrant to the Investor or
its designee(s).

1.3 Interpretation. When a reference is made in this Agreement to “Recitals,”
“Articles,” “Sections,” or “Annexes” such reference shall be to a Recital, Article or Section of,
or Annex to, this Securities Purchase Agreement — Standard Terms, and a reference to
“Schedules” shall be to a Schedule to the Letter Agreement, in each case, unless otherwise
indicated. The terms defined in the singular have a comparable meaning when used in the plural,
and vice versa. References to “herein”, “hereof”, “hereunder” and the like refer to this
Agreement as a whole and not to any particular section or provision, unless the context requires
otherwise. The table of contents and headings contained in this Agreement are for reference
purposes only and are not part of this Agreement. Whenever the words “include,” "includes” or
“including” are used in this Agreement, they shall be deemed followed by the words “without
limitation.” No rule of construction against the draftsperson shall be applied in connection with
the interpretation or enforcement of this Agreement, as this Agreement is the product of
negotiation between sophisticated parties advised by counsel. All references to “$” or “dollars”
mean the lawful currency of the United States of America. Except as expressly stated in this
Agreement, all references to any statute, rule or regulation are to the statute, rule or regulation as
amended, modified, supplemented or replaced from time to time (and, in the case of statutes,
include any rules and regulations promulgated under the statute) and to any section of any
statute, rule or regulation include any successor to the section. References to a “business day”
shall mean any day except Saturday, Sunday and any day on which banking institutions in the
State of New York generally are authorized or required by law or other governmental actions to
close.

Article 11
Representations and Warranties

2.1 Disclosure.

@ On or prior to the Signing Date, the Company delivered to the Investor a schedule
(“Disclosure Schedule”) setting forth, among other things, items the disclosure of which is
necessary or appropriate either in response to an express disclosure requirement contained in a
provision hereof or as an exception to one or more representations or warranties contained in
Section 2.2,

(b) “Company Material Adverse Effect” means a material adverse effect on (i) the
business, results of operation or financial condition of the Company and its consolidated
subsidiaries taken as a whole; provided, however, that Company Material Adverse Effect shall
not be deemed to include the effects of (A) changes after the date of the Letter Agreement (the
“Signing Date”) in general business, economic or market conditions (including changes
generally in prevailing interest rates, credit availability and liquidity, currency exchange rates
and price levels or trading volumes in the United States or foreign securities or credit markets),
or any outbreak or escalation of hostilities, declared or undeclared acts of war or terrorism, in
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each case generally affecting the industries in which the Company and its subsidiaries operate,
(B) changes or proposed changes after the Signing Date in generally accepted accounting
principles in the United States (“GAAP”) or regulatory accounting requirements, or authoritative
interpretations thereof, or (C) changes or proposed changes after the Signing Date in securities,
banking and other laws of general applicability or related policies or interpretations of
Governmental Entities (in the case of each of these clauses (A), (B) and (C), other than changes
or occurrences to the extent that such changes or occurrences have or would reasonably be
expected to have a materially disproportionate adverse effect on the Company and its
consolidated subsidiaries taken as a whole relative to comparable U.S. banking or financial
services organizations); or (ii) the ability of the Company to consummate the Purchase and other
transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the Warrant and perform its obligations
hereunder or thereunder on a timely basis.

(c) “Previously Disclosed” means information set forth on the Disclosure Schedule,
provided, however, that disclosure in any section of such Disclosure Schedule shall apply only to
the indicated section of this Agreement except to the extent that it is reasonably apparent from
the face of such disclosure that such disclosure is relevant to another section of this Agreement.

2.2 Representations and Warranties of the Company. Except as Previously Disclosed,
the Company represents and warrants to the Investor that as of the Signing Date and as of the
Closing Date (or such other date specified herein):

@) Organization, Authority and Significant Subsidiaries. The Company has been
duly incorporated and is validly existing and in good standing under the laws of its jurisdiction of
organization, with the necessary power and authority to own its properties and conduct its
business in all material respects as currently conducted, and except as has not, individually or in
the aggregate, had and would not reasonably be expected to have a Company Material Adverse
Effect, has been duly qualified as a foreign corporation for the transaction of business and is in
good standing under the laws of each other jurisdiction in which it owns or leases properties or
conducts any business so as to require such qualification; each subsidiary of the Company that
would be considered a “significant subsidiary” within the meaning of Rule 1-02(w) of
Regulation S-X under the Securities Act of 1933 (the “Securities Act”), has been duly organized
and is validly existing in good standing under the laws of its jurisdiction of organization. The
Charter and bylaws of the Company, copies of which have been provided to the Investor prior to
the Signing Date, are true, complete and correct copies of such documents as in full force and
effect as of the Signing Date.

(b) Capitalization. The authorized capital stock of the Company, and the outstanding
capital stock of the Company (including securities convertible into, or exercisable or
exchangeable for, capital stock of the Company) as of the most recent fiscal month-end
preceding the Signing Date (the “Capitalization Date”) is set forth on Schedule B. The
outstanding shares of capital stock of the Company have been duly authorized and are validly
issued and outstanding, fully paid and nonassessable, and subject to no preemptive rights (and
were not issued in violation of any preemptive rights). As of the Signing Date, the Company
does not have outstanding any securities or other obligations providing the holder the right to
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acquire its Common Stock (“Common Stock”) that is not reserved for issuance as specified on
Schedule B, and the Company has not made any other commitment to authorize, issue or sell any
Common Stock. Since the Capitalization Date, the Company has not issued any shares of
Common Stock, other than (i) shares issued upon the exercise of stock options or delivered under
other equity-based awards or other convertible securities or warrants which were issued and
outstanding on the Capitalization Date and disclosed on Schedule B and (ii) shares disclosed on
Schedule B. Each holder of 5% or more of any class of capital stock of the Company and such
holder’s primary address are set forth on Schedule B.

(c) Preferred Shares. The Preferred Shares have been duly and validly authorized,
and, when issued and delivered pursuant to this Agreement, such Preferred Shares will be duly
and validly issued and fully paid and non-assessable, will not be issued in violation of any
preemptive rights, and will rank pari passu with or senior to all other series or classes of
Preferred Stock, whether or not issued or outstanding, with respect to the payment of dividends
and the distribution of assets in the event of any dissolution, liquidation or winding up of the
Company.

(d) The Warrant and Warrant Shares. The Warrant has been duly authorized and,
when executed and delivered as contemplated hereby, will constitute a valid and legally binding
obligation of the Company enforceable against the Company in accordance with its terms, except
as the same may be limited by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or
similar laws affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights generally and general equitable
principles, regardless of whether such enforceability is considered in a proceeding at law or in
equity (“Bankruptcy Exceptions™). The shares of Warrant Preferred Stock issuable upon exercise
of the Warrant (the “Warrant Shares”) have been duly authorized and reserved for issuance upon
exercise of the Warrant and when so issued in accordance with the terms of the Warrant will be
validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable, and will rank pari passu with or senior to all other
series or classes of Preferred Stock, whether or not issued or outstanding, with respect to the
payment of dividends and the distribution of assets in the event of any dissolution, liquidation or
winding up of the Company.

(e) Authorization, Enforceability.

Q) The Company has the corporate power and authority to execute and
deliver this Agreement and the Warrant and to carry out its obligations hereunder and
thereunder (which includes the issuance of the Preferred Shares, Warrant and Warrant
Shares). The execution, delivery and performance by the Company of this Agreement and
the Warrant and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby
have been duly authorized by all necessary corporate action on the part of the Company
and its stockholders, and no further approval or authorization is required on the part of
the Company. This Agreement is a valid and binding obligation of the Company
enforceable against the Company in accordance with its terms, subject to the Bankruptcy
Exceptions.
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(i) The execution, delivery and performance by the Company of this
Agreement and the Warrant and the consummation of the transactions contemplated
hereby and thereby and compliance by the Company with the provisions hereof and
thereof, will not (A) violate, conflict with, or result in a breach of any provision of, or
constitute a default (or an event which, with notice or lapse of time or both, would
constitute a default) under, or result in the termination of, or accelerate the performance
required by, or result in a right of termination or acceleration of, or result in the creation
of, any lien, security interest, charge or encumbrance upon any of the properties or assets
of the Company or any subsidiary of the Company (each a “Company Subsidiary” and,
collectively, the “Company Subsidiaries”) under any of the terms, conditions or
provisions of (i) its organizational documents or (ii) any note, bond, mortgage, indenture,
deed of trust, license, lease, agreement or other instrument or obligation to which the
Company or any Company Subsidiary is a party or by which it or any Company
Subsidiary may be bound, or to which the Company or any Company Subsidiary or any
of the properties or assets of the Company or any Company Subsidiary may be subject, or
(B) subject to compliance with the statutes and regulations referred to in the next
paragraph, violate any statute, rule or regulation or any judgment, ruling, order, writ,
injunction or decree applicable to the Company or any Company Subsidiary or any of
their respective properties or assets except, in the case of clauses (A)(ii) and (B), for
those occurrences that, individually or in the aggregate, have not had and would not
reasonably be expected to have a Company Material Adverse Effect.

(iii))  Other than the filing of the Certificates of Designations with the Secretary
of State of its jurisdiction of organization or other applicable Governmental Entity, such
filings and approvals as are required to be made or obtained under any state “blue sky”
laws and such as have been made or obtained, no notice to, filing with, exemption or
review by, or authorization, consent or approval of, any Governmental Entity is required
to be made or obtained by the Company in connection with the consummation by the
Company of the Purchase except for any such notices, filings, exemptions, reviews,
authorizations, consents and approvals the failure of which to make or obtain would not,
individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Company Material
Adverse Effect.

U] Anti-takeover Provisions and Rights Plan. The Board of Directors of the
Company (the “Board of Directors”) has taken all necessary action to ensure that the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement and the Warrant and the consummation of the transactions
contemplated hereby and thereby, including the exercise of the Warrant in accordance with its
terms, will be exempt from any anti-takeover or similar provisions of the Company’s Charter and

bylaws, and any other provisions of any applicable “moratorium”, “control share”, “fair price”,
“interested stockholder” or other anti-takeover laws and regulations of any jurisdiction.

(9) No Company Material Adverse Effect. Since the last day of the last completed
fiscal period for which financial statements are included in the Company Financial Statements
(as defined below), no fact, circumstance, event, change, occurrence, condition or development
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has occurred that, individually or in the aggregate, has had or would reasonably be expected to
have a Company Material Adverse Effect.

(h) Company Financial Statements. The Company has Previously Disclosed each of
the consolidated financial statements of the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries for each
of the last three completed fiscal years of the Company (which shall be audited to the extent
audited financial statements are available prior to the Signing Date) and each completed
quarterly period since the last completed fiscal year (collectively the “Company Financial
Statements”). The Company Financial Statements present fairly in all material respects the
consolidated financial position of the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries as of the dates
indicated therein and the consolidated results of their operations for the periods specified therein;
and except as stated therein, such financial statements (A) were prepared in conformity with
GAAP applied on a consistent basis (except as may be noted therein) and (B) have been prepared
from, and are in accordance with, the books and records of the Company and the Company
Subsidiaries.

Q) Reports.

Q) Since December 31, 2006, the Company and each Company Subsidiary
has filed all reports, registrations, documents, filings, statements and submissions,
together with any amendments thereto, that it was required to file with any Governmental
Entity (the foregoing, collectively, the “Company Reports™) and has paid all fees and
assessments due and payable in connection therewith, except, in each case, as would not,
individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Company Material
Adverse Effect. As of their respective dates of filing, the Company Reports complied in
all material respects with all statutes and applicable rules and regulations of the
applicable Governmental Entities.

(i) The records, systems, controls, data and information of the Company and
the Company Subsidiaries are recorded, stored, maintained and operated under means
(including any electronic, mechanical or photographic process, whether computerized or
not) that are under the exclusive ownership and direct control of the Company or the
Company Subsidiaries or their accountants (including all means of access thereto and
therefrom), except for any non-exclusive ownership and non-direct control that would not
reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect on the system of internal
accounting controls described below in this Section 2.2(i)(ii). The Company (A) has
implemented and maintains adequate disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that
material information relating to the Company, including the consolidated Company
Subsidiaries, is made known to the chief executive officer and the chief financial officer
of the Company by others within those entities, and (B) has disclosed, based on its most
recent evaluation prior to the Signing Date, to the Company’s outside auditors and the
audit committee of the Board of Directors (x) any significant deficiencies and material
weaknesses in the design or operation of internal controls that are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the Company’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information and (y) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or
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other employees who have a significant role in the Company’s internal controls over
financial reporting.

() No Undisclosed Liabilities. Neither the Company nor any of the Company
Subsidiaries has any liabilities or obligations of any nature (absolute, accrued, contingent or
otherwise) which are not properly reflected or reserved against in the Company Financial
Statements to the extent required to be so reflected or reserved against in accordance with
GAAP, except for (A) liabilities that have arisen since the last fiscal year end in the ordinary and
usual course of business and consistent with past practice and (B) liabilities that, individually or
in the aggregate, have not had and would not reasonably be expected to have a Company
Material Adverse Effect.

(k) Offering of Securities. Neither the Company nor any person acting on its behalf
has taken any action (including any offering of any securities of the Company under
circumstances which would require the integration of such offering with the offering of any of
the Purchased Securities under the Securities Act, and the rules and regulations of the Securities
and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) promulgated thereunder), which might subject the
offering, issuance or sale of any of the Purchased Securities to Investor pursuant to this
Agreement to the registration requirements of the Securities Act.

() Litigation and Other Proceedings. Except (i) as set forth on Schedule C or (ii) as
would not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Company Material
Adverse Effect, there is no (A) pending or, to the knowledge of the Company, threatened, claim,
action, suit, investigation or proceeding, against the Company or any Company Subsidiary or to
which any of their assets are subject nor is the Company or any Company Subsidiary subject to
any order, judgment or decree or (B) unresolved violation, criticism or exception by any
Governmental Entity with respect to any report or relating to any examinations or inspections of
the Company or any Company Subsidiaries.

(m)  Compliance with Laws. Except as would not, individually or in the aggregate,
reasonably be expected to have a Company Material Adverse Effect, the Company and the
Company Subsidiaries have all permits, licenses, franchises, authorizations, orders and approvals
of, and have made all filings, applications and registrations with, Governmental Entities that are
required in order to permit them to own or lease their properties and assets and to carry on their
business as presently conducted and that are material to the business of the Company or such
Company Subsidiary. Except as set forth on Schedule D, the Company and the Company
Subsidiaries have complied in all respects and are not in default or violation of, and none of them
is, to the knowledge of the Company, under investigation with respect to or, to the knowledge of
the Company, have been threatened to be charged with or given notice of any violation of, any
applicable domestic (federal, state or local) or foreign law, statute, ordinance, license, rule,
regulation, policy or guideline, order, demand, writ, injunction, decree or judgment of any
Governmental Entity, other than such noncompliance, defaults or violations that would not,
individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Company Material Adverse
Effect. Except for statutory or regulatory restrictions of general application or as set forth on
Schedule D, no Governmental Entity has placed any restriction on the business or properties of
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the Company or any Company Subsidiary that would, individually or in the aggregate,
reasonably be expected to have a Company Material Adverse Effect.

(n) Employee Benefit Matters. Except as would not reasonably be expected to have,
either individually or in the aggregate, a Company Material Adverse Effect: (A) each “employee
benefit plan” (within the meaning of Section 3(3) of the Employee Retirement Income Security
Act of 1974, as amended (“ERISA”)) providing benefits to any current or former employee,
officer or director of the Company or any member of its “Controlled Group” (defined as any
organization which is a member of a controlled group of corporations within the meaning of
Section 414 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”)) that is sponsored,
maintained or contributed to by the Company or any member of its Controlled Group and for
which the Company or any member of its Controlled Group would have any liability, whether
actual or contingent (each, a “Plan”) has been maintained in compliance with its terms and with
the requirements of all applicable statutes, rules and regulations, including ERISA and the Code;
(B) with respect to each Plan subject to Title IV of ERISA (including, for purposes of this clause
(B), any plan subject to Title IV of ERISA that the Company or any member of its Controlled
Group previously maintained or contributed to in the six years prior to the Signing Date), (1) no
“reportable event” (within the meaning of Section 4043(c) of ERISA), other than a reportable
event for which the notice period referred to in Section 4043(c) of ERISA has been waived, has
occurred in the three years prior to the Signing Date or is reasonably expected to occur, (2) no
*accumulated funding deficiency” (within the meaning of Section 302 of ERISA or Section 412
of the Code), whether or not waived, has occurred in the three years prior to the Signing Date or
is reasonably expected to occur, (3) the fair market value of the assets under each Plan exceeds
the present value of all benefits accrued under such Plan (determined based on the assumptions
used to fund such Plan) and (4) neither the Company nor any member of its Controlled Group
has incurred in the six years prior to the Signing Date, or reasonably expects to incur, any
liability under Title IV of ERISA (other than contributions to the Plan or premiums to the PBGC
in the ordinary course and without default) in respect of a Plan (including any Plan that is a
“multiemployer plan”, within the meaning of Section 4001(c)(3) of ERISA); and (C) each Plan
that is intended to be qualified under Section 401(a) of the Code has received a favorable
determination letter from the Internal Revenue Service with respect to its qualified status that has
not been revoked, or such a determination letter has been timely applied for but not received by
the Signing Date, and nothing has occurred, whether by action or by failure to act, which could
reasonably be expected to cause the loss, revocation or denial of such qualified status or
favorable determination letter.

(o) Taxes. Except as would not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be
expected to have a Company Material Adverse Effect, (i) the Company and the Company
Subsidiaries have filed all federal, state, local and foreign income and franchise Tax returns
required to be filed through the Signing Date, subject to permitted extensions, and have paid all
Taxes due thereon, and (ii) no Tax deficiency has been determined adversely to the Company or
any of the Company Subsidiaries, nor does the Company have any knowledge of any Tax
deficiencies. “Tax” or “Taxes” means any federal, state, local or foreign income, gross receipts,
property, sales, use, license, excise, franchise, employment, payroll, withholding, alternative or
add on minimum, ad valorem, transfer or excise tax, or any other tax, custom, duty,
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governmental fee or other like assessment or charge of any kind whatsoever, together with any
interest or penalty, imposed by any Governmental Entity.

(p) Properties and Leases. Except as would not, individually or in the aggregate,
reasonably be expected to have a Company Material Adverse Effect, the Company and the
Company Subsidiaries have good and marketable title to all real properties and all other
properties and assets owned by them, in each case free from liens, encumbrances, claims and
defects that would affect the value thereof or interfere with the use made or to be made thereof
by them. Except as would not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a
Company Material Adverse Effect, the Company and the Company Subsidiaries hold all leased
real or personal property under valid and enforceable leases with no exceptions that would
interfere with the use made or to be made thereof by them.

(@) Environmental Liability. Except as would not, individually or in the aggregate,
reasonably be expected to have a Company Material Adverse Effect:

Q) there is no legal, administrative, or other proceeding, claim or action of
any nature seeking to impose, or that would reasonably be expected to result in the
imposition of, on the Company or any Company Subsidiary, any liability relating to the
release of hazardous substances as defined under any local, state or federal environmental
statute, regulation or ordinance, including the Comprehensive Environmental Response,
Compensation and Liability Act of 1980, pending or, to the Company’s knowledge,
threatened against the Company or any Company Subsidiary;

(i) tothe Company’s knowledge, there is no reasonable basis for any such
proceeding, claim or action; and

(iii)  neither the Company nor any Company Subsidiary is subject to any
agreement, order, judgment or decree by or with any court, Governmental Entity or third
party imposing any such environmental liability.

(n Risk Management Instruments. Except as would not, individually or in the
aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Company Material Adverse Effect, all derivative
instruments, including, swaps, caps, floors and option agreements, whether entered into for the
Company’s own account, or for the account of one or more of the Company Subsidiaries or its or
their customers, were entered into (i) only in the ordinary course of business, (ii) in accordance
with prudent practices and in all material respects with all applicable laws, rules, regulations and
regulatory policies and (iii) with counterparties believed to be financially responsible at the time;
and each of such instruments constitutes the valid and legally binding obligation of the Company
or one of the Company Subsidiaries, enforceable in accordance with its terms, except as may be
limited by the Bankruptcy Exceptions. Neither the Company or the Company Subsidiaries, nor,
to the knowledge of the Company, any other party thereto, is in breach of any of its obligations
under any such agreement or arrangement other than such breaches that would not, individually
or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Company Material Adverse Effect.
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(s) Agreements with Regulatory Agencies. Except as set forth on Schedule E, neither
the Company nor any Company Subsidiary is subject to any material cease-and-desist or other
similar order or enforcement action issued by, or is a party to any material written agreement,
consent agreement or memorandum of understanding with, or is a party to any commitment letter
or similar undertaking to, or is subject to any capital directive by, or since December 31, 2006,
has adopted any board resolutions at the request of, any Governmental Entity (other than the
Appropriate Federal Banking Agencies with jurisdiction over the Company and the Company
Subsidiaries) that currently restricts in any material respect the conduct of its business or that in
any material manner relates to its capital adequacy, its liquidity and funding policies and
practices, its ability to pay dividends, its credit, risk management or compliance policies or
procedures, its internal controls, its management or its operations or business (each item in this
sentence, a “Regulatory Agreement”), nor has the Company or any Company Subsidiary been
advised since December 31, 2006 by any such Governmental Entity that it is considering issuing,
initiating, ordering, or requesting any such Regulatory Agreement. The Company and each
Company Subsidiary are in compliance in all material respects with each Regulatory Agreement
to which it is party or subject, and neither the Company nor any Company Subsidiary has
received any notice from any Governmental Entity indicating that either the Company or any
Company Subsidiary is not in compliance in all material respects with any such Regulatory
Agreement. "Appropriate Federal Banking Agency" means the “appropriate Federal banking
agency” with respect to the Company or such Company Subsidiaries, as applicable, as defined in
Section 3(q) of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act (12 U.S.C. Section 1813(q)).

) Insurance. The Company and the Company Subsidiaries are insured with
reputable insurers against such risks and in such amounts as the management of the Company
reasonably has determined to be prudent and consistent with industry practice. The Company
and the Company Subsidiaries are in material compliance with their insurance policies and are
not in default under any of the material terms thereof, each such policy is outstanding and in full
force and effect, all premiums and other payments due under any material policy have been paid,
and all claims thereunder have been filed in due and timely fashion, except, in each case, as
would not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Company Material
Adverse Effect.

(v) Intellectual Property. Except as would not, individually or in the aggregate,
reasonably be expected to have a Company Material Adverse Effect, (i) the Company and each
Company Subsidiary owns or otherwise has the right to use, all intellectual property rights,
including all trademarks, trade dress, trade names, service marks, domain names, patents,
inventions, trade secrets, know-how, works of authorship and copyrights therein, that are used in
the conduct of their existing businesses and all rights relating to the plans, design and
specifications of any of its branch facilities (“Proprietary Rights™) free and clear of all liens and
any claims of ownership by current or former employees, contractors, designers or others and (ii)
neither the Company nor any of the Company Subsidiaries is materially infringing, diluting,
misappropriating or violating, nor has the Company or any or the Company Subsidiaries received
any written (or, to the knowledge of the Company, oral) communications alleging that any of
them has materially infringed, diluted, misappropriated or violated, any of the Proprietary Rights
owned by any other person. Except as would not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be
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expected to have a Company Material Adverse Effect, to the Company’s knowledge, no other
person is infringing, diluting, misappropriating or violating, nor has the Company or any or the
Company Subsidiaries sent any written communications since January 1, 2006 alleging that any
person has infringed, diluted, misappropriated or violated, any of the Proprietary Rights owned
by the Company and the Company Subsidiaries.

(v) Brokers and Finders. No broker, finder or investment banker is entitled to any
financial advisory, brokerage, finder's or other fee or commission in connection with this
Agreement or the Warrant or the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby based upon
arrangements made by or on behalf of the Company or any Company Subsidiary for which the
Investor could have any liability.

Article 111
Covenants

3.1 Commercially Reasonable Efforts. Subject to the terms and conditions of this
Agreement, each of the parties will use its commercially reasonable efforts in good faith to take,
or cause to be taken, all actions, and to do, or cause to be done, all things necessary, proper or
desirable, or advisable under applicable laws, so as to permit consummation of the Purchase as
promptly as practicable and otherwise to enable consummation of the transactions contemplated
hereby and shall use commercially reasonable efforts to cooperate with the other party to that
end.

3.2  Expenses. Unless otherwise provided in this Agreement or the Warrant, each of
the parties hereto will bear and pay all costs and expenses incurred by it or on its behalf in
connection with the transactions contemplated under this Agreement and the Warrant, including
fees and expenses of its own financial or other consultants, investment bankers, accountants and
counsel.

3.3 Sufficiency of Authorized Warrant Preferred Stock; Exchange Listing.

@) During the period from the Closing Date until the date on which the Warrant has
been fully exercised, the Company shall at all times have reserved for issuance, free of
preemptive or similar rights, a sufficient number of authorized and unissued Warrant Shares to
effectuate such exercise.

(b) If the Company lists its Common Stock on any national securities exchange, the
Company shall, if requested by the Investor, promptly use its reasonable best efforts to cause the
Preferred Shares and Warrant Shares to be approved for listing on a national securities exchange
as promptly as practicable following such request.

3.4  Certain Notifications Until Closing. From the Signing Date until the Closing, the
Company shall promptly notify the Investor of (i) any fact, event or circumstance of which it is
aware and which would reasonably be expected to cause any representation or warranty of the
Company contained in this Agreement to be untrue or inaccurate in any material respect or to
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cause any covenant or agreement of the Company contained in this Agreement not to be
complied with or satisfied in any material respect and (ii) except as Previously Disclosed, any
fact, circumstance, event, change, occurrence, condition or development of which the Company
is aware and which, individually or in the aggregate, has had or would reasonably be expected to
have a Company Material Adverse Effect; provided, however, that delivery of any notice
pursuant to this Section 3.4 shall not limit or affect any rights of or remedies available to the
Investor; provided, further, that a failure to comply with this Section 3.4 shall not constitute a
breach of this Agreement or the failure of any condition set forth in Section 1.2 to be satisfied
unless the underlying Company Material Adverse Effect or material breach would independently
result in the failure of a condition set forth in Section 1.2 to be satisfied.

3.5 Access, Information and Confidentiality.

@ From the Signing Date until the date when the Investor holds an amount of
Preferred Shares having an aggregate liquidation value of less than 10% of the Purchase Price,
the Company will permit the Investor and its agents, consultants, contractors and advisors (X)
acting through the Appropriate Federal Banking Agency, or otherwise to the extent necessary to
evaluate, manage, or transfer its investment in the Company, to examine the corporate books and
make copies thereof and to discuss the affairs, finances and accounts of the Company and the
Company Subsidiaries with the principal officers of the Company, all upon reasonable notice and
at such reasonable times and as often as the Investor may reasonably request and (y) to review
any information material to the Investor’s investment in the Company provided by the Company
to its Appropriate Federal Banking Agency. Any investigation pursuant to this Section 3.5 shall
be conducted during normal business hours and in such manner as not to interfere unreasonably
with the conduct of the business of the Company, and nothing herein shall require the Company
or any Company Subsidiary to disclose any information to the Investor to the extent (i)
prohibited by applicable law or regulation, or (ii) that such disclosure would reasonably be
expected to cause a violation of any agreement to which the Company or any Company
Subsidiary is a party or would cause a risk of a loss of privilege to the Company or any Company
Subsidiary (provided that the Company shall use commercially reasonable efforts to make
appropriate substitute disclosure arrangements under circumstances where the restrictions in this

clause (ii) apply).

(b) From the Signing Date until the date on which all of the Preferred Shares and
Warrant Shares have been redeemed in whole, the Company will deliver, or will cause to be
delivered, to the Investor:

Q) as soon as available after the end of each fiscal year of the Company, and
in any event within 90 days thereafter, a consolidated balance sheet of the Company as of
the end of such fiscal year, and consolidated statements of income, retained earnings and
cash flows of the Company for such year, in each case prepared in accordance with
GAAP and setting forth in each case in comparative form the figures for the previous
fiscal year of the Company, and which shall be audited to the extent audited financial
statements are available; and
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(i) as soon as available after the end of the first, second and third quarterly
periods in each fiscal year of the Company, a copy of any quarterly reports provided to
other stockholders of the Company or Company management.

(© The Investor will use reasonable best efforts to hold, and will use reasonable best
efforts to cause its agents, consultants, contractors and advisors to hold, in confidence all non-
public records, books, contracts, instruments, computer data and other data and information
(collectively, “Information”) concerning the Company furnished or made available to it by the
Company or its representatives pursuant to this Agreement (except to the extent that such
information can be shown to have been (i) previously known by such party on a non-confidential
basis, (ii) in the public domain through no fault of such party or (iii) later lawfully acquired from
other sources by the party to which it was furnished (and without violation of any other
confidentiality obligation)); provided that nothing herein shall prevent the Investor from
disclosing any Information to the extent required by applicable laws or regulations or by any
subpoena or similar legal process.

(d) The Investor’s information rights pursuant to Section 3.5(b) may be assigned by
the Investor to a transferee or assignee of the Purchased Securities or the Warrant Shares or with
a liquidation preference or, in the case of the Warrant, the liquidation preference of the
underlying shares of Warrant Preferred Stock, no less than an amount equal to 2% of the initial
aggregate liquidation preference of the Preferred Shares.

Article IV
Additional Agreements

4.1  Purchase for Investment. The Investor acknowledges that the Purchased Securities
and the Warrant Shares have not been registered under the Securities Act or under any state
securities laws. The Investor (a) is acquiring the Purchased Securities pursuant to an exemption
from registration under the Securities Act solely for investment with no present intention to
distribute them to any person in violation of the Securities Act or any applicable U.S. state
securities laws, (b) will not sell or otherwise dispose of any of the Purchased Securities or the
Warrant Shares, except in compliance with the registration requirements or exemption provisions
of the Securities Act and any applicable U.S. state securities laws, and (c) has such knowledge
and experience in financial and business matters and in investments of this type that it is capable
of evaluating the merits and risks of the Purchase and of making an informed investment
decision.

4.2 Legends.

@ The Investor agrees that all certificates or other instruments representing the
Warrant will bear a legend substantially to the following effect:

“THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS INSTRUMENT HAVE NOT BEEN
REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR THE
SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY STATE AND MAY NOT BE TRANSFERRED, SOLD
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OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF EXCEPT WHILE A REGISTRATION
STATEMENT RELATING THERETO IS IN EFFECT UNDER SUCH ACT AND
APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS OR PURSUANT TO AN EXEMPTION
FROM REGISTRATION UNDER SUCH ACT OR SUCH LAWS.

THIS INSTRUMENT IS ISSUED SUBJECT TO THE RESTRICTIONS ON
TRANSFER AND OTHER PROVISIONS OF A SECURITIES PURCHASE
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE ISSUER OF THESE SECURITIES AND THE
INVESTOR REFERRED TO THEREIN, A COPY OF WHICH IS ON FILE WITH THE
ISSUER. THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS INSTRUMENT MAY NOT
BE SOLD OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED EXCEPT IN COMPLIANCE WITH
SAID AGREEMENT. ANY SALE OR OTHER TRANSFER NOT IN COMPLIANCE
WITH SAID AGREEMENT WILL BE VOID.”

(b) In addition, the Investor agrees that all certificates or other instruments
representing the Preferred Shares and the Warrant Shares will bear a legend substantially to the
following effect:

“THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS INSTRUMENT ARE NOT SAVINGS
ACCOUNTS, DEPOSITS OR OTHER OBLIGATIONS OF A BANK AND ARE NOT
INSURED BY THE FEDERAL DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION OR ANY
OTHER GOVERNMENTAL AGENCY.

THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS INSTRUMENT HAVE NOT BEEN
REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE
“SECURITIES ACT”), OR THE SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY STATE AND MAY
NOT BE TRANSFERRED, SOLD OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF EXCEPT WHILE
A REGISTRATION STATEMENT RELATING THERETO IS IN EFFECT UNDER
SUCH ACT AND APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS OR PURSUANT TO
AN EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION UNDER SUCH ACT OR SUCH LAWS.
EACH PURCHASER OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS
INSTRUMENT IS NOTIFIED THAT THE SELLER MAY BE RELYING ON THE
EXEMPTION FROM SECTION 5 OF THE SECURITIES ACT PROVIDED BY RULE
144A THEREUNDER. ANY TRANSFEREE OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED
BY THIS INSTRUMENT BY ITS ACCEPTANCE HEREOF (1) REPRESENTS THAT
IT IS A“QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL BUYER” (AS DEFINED IN RULE 144A
UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT), (2) AGREES THAT IT WILL NOT OFFER, SELL
OR OTHERWISE TRANSFER THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS
INSTRUMENT EXCEPT (A) PURSUANT TO A REGISTRATION STATEMENT
WHICH IS THEN EFFECTIVE UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT, (B) FOR SO LONG
AS THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS INSTRUMENT ARE ELIGIBLE
FOR RESALE PURSUANT TO RULE 144A, TO A PERSON IT REASONABLY
BELIEVES IS A “QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL BUYER” AS DEFINED IN RULE
144A UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT THAT PURCHASES FOR ITS OWN
ACCOUNT OR FOR THE ACCOUNT OF A QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL BUYER
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TO WHOM NOTICE IS GIVEN THAT THE TRANSFER IS BEING MADE IN
RELIANCE ON RULE 144A, (C) TO THE ISSUER OR (D) PURSUANT TO ANY
OTHER AVAILABLE EXEMPTION FROM THE REGISTRATION
REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT AND (3) AGREES THAT IT WILL
GIVE TO EACH PERSON TO WHOM THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS
INSTRUMENT ARE TRANSFERRED A NOTICE SUBSTANTIALLY TO THE
EFFECT OF THIS LEGEND.

THIS INSTRUMENT IS ISSUED SUBJECT TO THE RESTRICTIONS ON
TRANSFER AND OTHER PROVISIONS OF A SECURITIES PURCHASE
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE ISSUER OF THESE SECURITIES AND THE
INVESTOR REFERRED TO THEREIN, A COPY OF WHICH IS ON FILE WITH THE
ISSUER. THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS INSTRUMENT MAY NOT
BE SOLD OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED EXCEPT IN COMPLIANCE WITH
SAID AGREEMENT. ANY SALE OR OTHER TRANSFER NOT IN COMPLIANCE
WITH SAID AGREEMENT WILL BE VOID.”

(©) In the event that any Purchased Securities or Warrant Shares (i) become registered
under the Securities Act or (ii) are eligible to be transferred without restriction in accordance
with Rule 144 or another exemption from registration under the Securities Act (other than Rule
144A), the Company shall issue new certificates or other instruments representing such
Purchased Securities or Warrant Shares, which shall not contain the applicable legends in
Sections 4.2(a) and (b) above; provided that the Investor surrenders to the Company the
previously issued certificates or other instruments.

4.3  Certain Transactions. The Company will not merge or consolidate with, or sell,
transfer or lease all or substantially all of its property or assets to, any other party unless the
successor, transferee or lessee party (or its ultimate parent entity), as the case may be (if not the
Company), expressly assumes the due and punctual performance and observance of each and
every covenant, agreement and condition of this Agreement to be performed and observed by the
Company.

4.4  Transfer of Purchased Securities and Warrant Shares; Restrictions on Exercise of
the Warrant. Subject to compliance with applicable securities laws, the Investor shall be
permitted to transfer, sell, assign or otherwise dispose of (“Transfer”) all or a portion of the
Purchased Securities or Warrant Shares at any time, and the Company shall take all steps as may
be reasonably requested by the Investor to facilitate the Transfer of the Purchased Securities and
the Warrant Shares; provided that the Investor shall not Transfer any Purchased Securities or
Warrant Shares if such transfer would require the Company to be subject to the periodic
reporting requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the
“Exchange Act”). In furtherance of the foregoing, the Company shall provide reasonable
cooperation to facilitate any Transfers of the Purchased Securities or Warrant Shares, including,
as is reasonable under the circumstances, by furnishing such information concerning the
Company and its business as a proposed transferee may reasonably request (including such
information as is required by Section 4.5(k)) and making management of the Company
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reasonably available to respond to questions of a proposed transferee in accordance with
customary practice, subject in all cases to the proposed transferee agreeing to a customary
confidentiality agreement.

45 Regqistration Rights.

@) Unless and until the Company becomes subject to the reporting requirements of
Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, the Company shall have no obligation to comply with
the provisions of this Section 4.5 (other than Section 4.5(b)(iv)-(vi)); provided that the Company
covenants and agrees that it shall comply with this Section 4.5 as soon as practicable after the
date that it becomes subject to such reporting requirements.

(b) Registration.

Q) Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Company
covenants and agrees that as promptly as practicable after the date that the Company
becomes subject to the reporting requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act
(and in any event no later than 30 days thereafter), the Company shall prepare and file
with the SEC a Shelf Registration Statement covering all Registrable Securities (or
otherwise designate an existing Shelf Registration Statement filed with the SEC to cover
the Registrable Securities), and, to the extent the Shelf Registration Statement has not
theretofore been declared effective or is not automatically effective upon such filing, the
Company shall use reasonable best efforts to cause such Shelf Registration Statement to
be declared or become effective and to keep such Shelf Registration Statement
continuously effective and in compliance with the Securities Act and usable for resale of
such Registrable Securities for a period from the date of its initial effectiveness until such
time as there are no Registrable Securities remaining (including by refiling such Shelf
Registration Statement (or a new Shelf Registration Statement) if the initial Shelf
Registration Statement expires). Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Company is not
eligible to file a registration statement on Form S-3, then the Company shall not be
obligated to file a Shelf Registration Statement unless and until requested to do so in
writing by the Investor.

(i) Any registration pursuant to Section 4.5(b)(i) shall be effected by means
of a shelf registration on an appropriate form under Rule 415 under the Securities Act (a
“Shelf Registration Statement”). If the Investor or any other Holder intends to distribute
any Registrable Securities by means of an underwritten offering it shall promptly so
advise the Company and the Company shall take all reasonable steps to facilitate such
distribution, including the actions required pursuant to Section 4.5(d); provided that the
Company shall not be required to facilitate an underwritten offering of Registrable
Securities unless the expected gross proceeds from such offering exceed (i) 2% of the
initial aggregate liquidation preference of the Preferred Shares if such initial aggregate
liquidation preference is less than $2 billion and (ii) $200 million if the initial aggregate
liquidation preference of the Preferred Shares is equal to or greater than $2 billion. The
lead underwriters in any such distribution shall be selected by the Holders of a majority
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of the Registrable Securities to be distributed; provided that to the extent appropriate and
permitted under applicable law, such Holders shall consider the qualifications of any
broker-dealer Affiliate of the Company in selecting the lead underwriters in any such
distribution.

(i) The Company shall not be required to effect a registration (including a
resale of Registrable Securities from an effective Shelf Registration Statement) or an
underwritten offering pursuant to Section 4.5(b): (A) with respect to securities that are
not Registrable Securities; or (B) if the Company has notified the Investor and all other
Holders that in the good faith judgment of the Board of Directors, it would be materially
detrimental to the Company or its securityholders for such registration or underwritten
offering to be effected at such time, in which event the Company shall have the right to
defer such registration for a period of not more than 45 days after receipt of the request of
the Investor or any other Holder; provided that such right to delay a registration or
underwritten offering shall be exercised by the Company (1) only if the Company has
generally exercised (or is concurrently exercising) similar black-out rights against holders
of similar securities that have registration rights and (2) not more than three times in any
12-month period and not more than 90 days in the aggregate in any 12-month period.

(iv)  If during any period when an effective Shelf Registration Statement is not
available, the Company proposes to register any of its equity securities, other than a
registration pursuant to Section 4.5(b)(i) or a Special Registration, and the registration
form to be filed may be used for the registration or qualification for distribution of
Registrable Securities, the Company will give prompt written notice to the Investor and
all other Holders of its intention to effect such a registration (but in no event less than ten
days prior to the anticipated filing date) and will include in such registration all
Registrable Securities with respect to which the Company has received written requests
for inclusion therein within ten business days after the date of the Company’s notice (a
“Piggyback Registration”). Any such person that has made such a written request may
withdraw its Registrable Securities from such Piggyback Registration by giving written
notice to the Company and the managing underwriter, if any, on or before the fifth
business day prior to the planned effective date of such Piggyback Registration. The
Company may terminate or withdraw any registration under this Section 4.5(b)(iv) prior
to the effectiveness of such registration, whether or not Investor or any other Holders
have elected to include Registrable Securities in such registration.

(V) If the registration referred to in Section 4.5(b)(iv) is proposed to be
underwritten, the Company will so advise Investor and all other Holders as a part of the
written notice given pursuant to Section 4.5(b)(iv). In such event, the right of Investor
and all other Holders to registration pursuant to Section 4.5(b) will be conditioned upon
such persons’ participation in such underwriting and the inclusion of such person’s
Registrable Securities in the underwriting if such securities are of the same class of
securities as the securities to be offered in the underwritten offering, and each such
person will (together with the Company and the other persons distributing their securities
through such underwriting) enter into an underwriting agreement in customary form with
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the underwriter or underwriters selected for such underwriting by the Company; provided
that the Investor (as opposed to other Holders) shall not be required to indemnify any
person in connection with any registration. If any participating person disapproves of the
terms of the underwriting, such person may elect to withdraw therefrom by written notice
to the Company, the managing underwriters and the Investor (if the Investor is
participating in the underwriting).

(vi)  If either (x) the Company grants “piggyback” registration rights to one or
more third parties to include their securities in an underwritten offering under the Shelf
Registration Statement pursuant to Section 4.5(b)(ii) or (y) a Piggyback Registration
under Section 4.5(b)(iv) relates to an underwritten offering on behalf of the Company,
and in either case the managing underwriters advise the Company that in their reasonable
opinion the number of securities requested to be included in such offering exceeds the
number which can be sold without adversely affecting the marketability of such offering
(including an adverse effect on the per share offering price), the Company will include in
such offering only such number of securities that in the reasonable opinion of such
managing underwriters can be sold without adversely affecting the marketability of the
offering (including an adverse effect on the per share offering price), which securities
will be so included in the following order of priority: (A) first, in the case of a Piggyback
Registration under Section 4.5(b)(iv), the securities the Company proposes to sell, (B)
then the Registrable Securities of the Investor and all other Holders who have requested
inclusion of Registrable Securities pursuant to Section 4.5(b)(ii) or Section 4.5(b)(iv), as
applicable, pro rata on the basis of the aggregate number of such securities or shares
owned by each such person and (C) lastly, any other securities of the Company that have
been requested to be so included, subject to the terms of this Agreement; provided,
however, that if the Company has, prior to the Signing Date, entered into an agreement
with respect to its securities that is inconsistent with the order of priority contemplated
hereby then it shall apply the order of priority in such conflicting agreement to the extent
that it would otherwise result in a breach under such agreement.

(©) Expenses of Registration. All Registration Expenses incurred in connection with
any registration, qualification or compliance hereunder shall be borne by the Company. All
Selling Expenses incurred in connection with any registrations hereunder shall be borne by the
holders of the securities so registered pro rata on the basis of the aggregate offering or sale price
of the securities so registered.

(d) Obligations of the Company. Whenever required to effect the registration of any
Registrable Securities or facilitate the distribution of Registrable Securities pursuant to an
effective Shelf Registration Statement, the Company shall, as expeditiously as reasonably
practicable:

Q) Prepare and file with the SEC a prospectus supplement or post-effective
amendment with respect to a proposed offering of Registrable Securities pursuant to an
effective registration statement, subject to Section 4.5(d), keep such registration
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statement effective and keep such prospectus supplement current until the securities
described therein are no longer Registrable Securities.

(i) Prepare and file with the SEC such amendments and supplements to the
applicable registration statement and the prospectus or prospectus supplement used in
connection with such registration statement as may be necessary to comply with the
provisions of the Securities Act with respect to the disposition of all securities covered by
such registration statement.

(iii)  Furnish to the Holders and any underwriters such number of copies of the
applicable registration statement and each such amendment and supplement thereto
(including in each case all exhibits) and of a prospectus, including a preliminary
prospectus, in conformity with the requirements of the Securities Act, and such other
documents as they may reasonably request in order to facilitate the disposition of
Registrable Securities owned or to be distributed by them.

(iv)  Use its reasonable best efforts to register and qualify the securities covered
by such registration statement under such other securities or Blue Sky laws of such
jurisdictions as shall be reasonably requested by the Holders or any managing
underwriter(s), to keep such registration or qualification in effect for so long as such
registration statement remains in effect, and to take any other action which may be
reasonably necessary to enable such seller to consummate the disposition in such
jurisdictions of the securities owned by such Holder; provided that the Company shall not
be required in connection therewith or as a condition thereto to qualify to do business or
to file a general consent to service of process in any such states or jurisdictions.

(v) Notify each Holder of Registrable Securities at any time when a
prospectus relating thereto is required to be delivered under the Securities Act of the
happening of any event as a result of which the applicable prospectus, as then in effect,
includes an untrue statement of a material fact or omits to state a material fact required to
be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein not misleading in light of
the circumstances then existing.

(vi)  Give written notice to the Holders:

(A)  when any registration statement filed pursuant to Section 4.5(a) or
any amendment thereto has been filed with the SEC (except for any amendment
effected by the filing of a document with the SEC pursuant to the Exchange Act)
and when such registration statement or any post-effective amendment thereto has
become effective;

(B)  of any request by the SEC for amendments or supplements to any

registration statement or the prospectus included therein or for additional
information;
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(C)  of the issuance by the SEC of any stop order suspending the
effectiveness of any registration statement or the initiation of any proceedings for
that purpose;

(D)  of the receipt by the Company or its legal counsel of any
notification with respect to the suspension of the qualification of the applicable
Registrable Securities for sale in any jurisdiction or the initiation or threatening of
any proceeding for such purpose;

(E)  of the happening of any event that requires the Company to make
changes in any effective registration statement or the prospectus related to the
registration statement in order to make the statements therein not misleading
(which notice shall be accompanied by an instruction to suspend the use of the
prospectus until the requisite changes have been made); and

(F) if at any time the representations and warranties of the Company
contained in any underwriting agreement contemplated by Section 4.5(d)(x) cease
to be true and correct.

(vii)  Use its reasonable best efforts to prevent the issuance or obtain the
withdrawal of any order suspending the effectiveness of any registration statement
referred to in Section 4.5(d)(vi)(C) at the earliest practicable time.

(viii)  Upon the occurrence of any event contemplated by Section 4.5(d)(v) or
4.5(d)(vi)(E), promptly prepare a post-effective amendment to such registration statement
or a supplement to the related prospectus or file any other required document so that, as
thereafter delivered to the Holders and any underwriters, the prospectus will not contain
an untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact necessary to make
the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not
misleading. If the Company notifies the Holders in accordance with Section 4.5(d)(vi)(E)
to suspend the use of the prospectus until the requisite changes to the prospectus have
been made, then the Holders and any underwriters shall suspend use of such prospectus
and use their reasonable best efforts to return to the Company all copies of such
prospectus (at the Company’s expense) other than permanent file copies then in such
Holders’ or underwriters’ possession. The total number of days that any such suspension
may be in effect in any 12-month period shall not exceed 90 days.

(ix)  Use reasonable best efforts to procure the cooperation of the Company’s
transfer agent in settling any offering or sale of Registrable Securities, including with
respect to the transfer of physical stock certificates into book-entry form in accordance
with any procedures reasonably requested by the Holders or any managing
underwriter(s).

(x) If an underwritten offering is requested pursuant to Section 4.5(b)(ii),
enter into an underwriting agreement in customary form, scope and substance and take all
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such other actions reasonably requested by the Holders of a majority of the Registrable
Securities being sold in connection therewith or by the managing underwriter(s), if any,
to expedite or facilitate the underwritten disposition of such Registrable Securities, and in
connection therewith in any underwritten offering (including making members of
management and executives of the Company available to participate in “road shows”,
similar sales events and other marketing activities), (A) make such representations and
warranties to the Holders that are selling stockholders and the managing underwriter(s), if
any, with respect to the business of the Company and its subsidiaries, and the Shelf
Registration Statement, prospectus and documents, if any, incorporated or deemed to be
incorporated by reference therein, in each case, in customary form, substance and scope,
and, if true, confirm the same if and when requested, (B) use its reasonable best efforts to
furnish the underwriters with opinions of counsel to the Company, addressed to the
managing underwriter(s), if any, covering the matters customarily covered in such
opinions requested in underwritten offerings, (C) use its reasonable best efforts to obtain
“cold comfort” letters from the independent certified public accountants of the Company
(and, if necessary, any other independent certified public accountants of any business
acquired by the Company for which financial statements and financial data are included
in the Shelf Registration Statement) who have certified the financial statements included
in such Shelf Registration Statement, addressed to each of the managing underwriter(s), if
any, such letters to be in customary form and covering matters of the type customarily
covered in “cold comfort” letters, (D) if an underwriting agreement is entered into, the
same shall contain indemnification provisions and procedures customary in underwritten
offerings (provided that the Investor shall not be obligated to provide any indemnity), and
(E) deliver such documents and certificates as may be reasonably requested by the
Holders of a majority of the Registrable Securities being sold in connection therewith,
their counsel and the managing underwriter(s), if any, to evidence the continued validity
of the representations and warranties made pursuant to clause (i) above and to evidence
compliance with any customary conditions contained in the underwriting agreement or
other agreement entered into by the Company.

(xi)  Make available for inspection by a representative of Holders that are
selling stockholders, the managing underwriter(s), if any, and any attorneys or
accountants retained by such Holders or managing underwriter(s), at the offices where
normally kept, during reasonable business hours, financial and other records, pertinent
corporate documents and properties of the Company, and cause the officers, directors and
employees of the Company to supply all information in each case reasonably requested
(and of the type customarily provided in connection with due diligence conducted in
connection with a registered public offering of securities) by any such representative,
managing underwriter(s), attorney or accountant in connection with such Shelf
Registration Statement.

(xii)  Use reasonable best efforts to cause all such Registrable Securities to be
listed on each national securities exchange on which similar securities issued by the
Company are then listed or, if no similar securities issued by the Company are then listed
on any national securities exchange, use its reasonable best efforts to cause all such
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Registrable Securities to be listed on such securities exchange as the Investor may
designate.

(xiii)  If requested by Holders of a majority of the Registrable Securities being
registered and/or sold in connection therewith, or the managing underwriter(s), if any,
promptly include in a prospectus supplement or amendment such information as the
Holders of a majority of the Registrable Securities being registered and/or sold in
connection therewith or managing underwriter(s), if any, may reasonably request in order
to permit the intended method of distribution of such securities and make all required
filings of such prospectus supplement or such amendment as soon as practicable after the
Company has received such request.

(xiv) Timely provide to its security holders earning statements satisfying the
provisions of Section 11(a) of the Securities Act and Rule 158 thereunder.

(e) Suspension of Sales. Upon receipt of written notice from the Company that a
registration statement, prospectus or prospectus supplement contains or may contain an untrue
statement of a material fact or omits or may omit to state a material fact required to be stated
therein or necessary to make the statements therein not misleading or that circumstances exist
that make inadvisable use of such registration statement, prospectus or prospectus supplement,
the Investor and each Holder of Registrable Securities shall forthwith discontinue disposition of
Registrable Securities until the Investor and/or Holder has received copies of a supplemented or
amended prospectus or prospectus supplement, or until the Investor and/or such Holder is
advised in writing by the Company that the use of the prospectus and, if applicable, prospectus
supplement may be resumed, and, if so directed by the Company, the Investor and/or such
Holder shall deliver to the Company (at the Company’s expense) all copies, other than
permanent file copies then in the Investor and/or such Holder’s possession, of the prospectus
and, if applicable, prospectus supplement covering such Registrable Securities current at the time
of receipt of such notice. The total number of days that any such suspension may be in effect in
any 12-month period shall not exceed 90 days.

()] Termination of Registration Rights. A Holder’s registration rights as to any
securities held by such Holder (and its Affiliates, partners, members and former members) shall
not be available unless such securities are Registrable Securities.

(9) Furnishing Information.

Q) Neither the Investor nor any Holder shall use any free writing prospectus
(as defined in Rule 405) in connection with the sale of Registrable Securities without the
prior written consent of the Company.

(i) It shall be a condition precedent to the obligations of the Company to take
any action pursuant to Section 4.5(d) that Investor and/or the selling Holders and the
underwriters, if any, shall furnish to the Company such information regarding
themselves, the Registrable Securities held by them and the intended method of
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disposition of such securities as shall be required to effect the registered offering of their
Registrable Securities.

(h) Indemnification.

Q) The Company agrees to indemnify each Holder and, if a Holder is a
person other than an individual, such Holder’s officers, directors, employees, agents,
representatives and Affiliates, and each Person, if any, that controls a Holder within the
meaning of the Securities Act (each, an “Indemnitee”), against any and all losses, claims,
damages, actions, liabilities, costs and expenses (including reasonable fees, expenses and
disbursements of attorneys and other professionals incurred in connection with
investigating, defending, settling, compromising or paying any such losses, claims,
damages, actions, liabilities, costs and expenses), joint or several, arising out of or based
upon any untrue statement or alleged untrue statement of material fact contained in any
registration statement, including any preliminary prospectus or final prospectus contained
therein or any amendments or supplements thereto or any documents incorporated therein
by reference or contained in any free writing prospectus (as such term is defined in Rule
405) prepared by the Company or authorized by it in writing for use by such Holder (or
any amendment or supplement thereto); or any omission to state therein a material fact
required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein, in light of the
circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; provided, that the Company
shall not be liable to such Indemnitee in any such case to the extent that any such loss,
claim, damage, liability (or action or proceeding in respect thereof) or expense arises out
of or is based upon (A) an untrue statement or omission made in such registration
statement, including any such preliminary prospectus or final prospectus contained
therein or any such amendments or supplements thereto or contained in any free writing
prospectus (as such term is defined in Rule 405) prepared by the Company or authorized
by it in writing for use by such Holder (or any amendment or supplement thereto), in
reliance upon and in conformity with information regarding such Indemnitee or its plan
of distribution or ownership interests which was furnished in writing to the Company by
such Indemnitee for use in connection with such registration statement, including any
such preliminary prospectus or final prospectus contained therein or any such
amendments or supplements thereto, or (B) offers or sales effected by or on behalf of
such Indemnitee “by means of” (as defined in Rule 159A) a “free writing prospectus” (as
defined in Rule 405) that was not authorized in writing by the Company.

(i) If the indemnification provided for in Section 4.5(h)(i) is unavailable to an
Indemnitee with respect to any losses, claims, damages, actions, liabilities, costs or
expenses referred to therein or is insufficient to hold the Indemnitee harmless as
contemplated therein, then the Company, in lieu of indemnifying such Indemnitee, shall
contribute to the amount paid or payable by such Indemnitee as a result of such losses,
claims, damages, actions, liabilities, costs or expenses in such proportion as is appropriate
to reflect the relative fault of the Indemnitee, on the one hand, and the Company, on the
other hand, in connection with the statements or omissions which resulted in such losses,
claims, damages, actions, liabilities, costs or expenses as well as any other relevant
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equitable considerations. The relative fault of the Company, on the one hand, and of the
Indemnitee, on the other hand, shall be determined by reference to, among other factors,
whether the untrue statement of a material fact or omission to state a material fact relates
to information supplied by the Company or by the Indemnitee and the parties’ relative
intent, knowledge, access to information and opportunity to correct or prevent such
statement or omission; the Company and each Holder agree that it would not be just and
equitable if contribution pursuant to this Section 4.5(h)(ii) were determined by pro rata
allocation or by any other method of allocation that does not take account of the equitable
considerations referred to in Section 4.5(h)(i). No Indemnitee guilty of fraudulent
misrepresentation (within the meaning of Section 11(f) of the Securities Act) shall be
entitled to contribution from the Company if the Company was not guilty of such
fraudulent misrepresentation.

Q) Assignment of Registration Rights. The rights of the Investor to registration of
Registrable Securities pursuant to Section 4.5(b) may be assigned by the Investor to a transferee
or assignee of Registrable Securities with a liquidation preference or, in the case of the Warrant,
the liquidation preference of the underlying shares of Warrant Preferred Stock, no less than an
amount equal to (i) 2% of the initial aggregate liquidation preference of the Preferred Shares if
such initial aggregate liquidation preference is less than $2 billion and (ii) $200 million if the
initial aggregate liquidation preference of the Preferred Shares is equal to or greater than $2
billion; provided, however, the transferor shall, within ten days after such transfer, furnish to the
Company written notice of the name and address of such transferee or assignee and the number
and type of Registrable Securities that are being assigned.

() Clear Market. With respect to any underwritten offering of Registrable Securities
by the Investor or other Holders pursuant to this Section 4.5, the Company agrees not to effect
(other than pursuant to such registration or pursuant to a Special Registration) any public sale or
distribution, or to file any Shelf Registration Statement (other than such registration or a Special
Registration) covering any preferred stock of the Company or any securities convertible into or
exchangeable or exercisable for preferred stock of the Company, during the period not to exceed
ten days prior and 60 days following the effective date of such offering or such longer period up
to 90 days as may be requested by the managing underwriter for such underwritten offering. The
Company also agrees to cause such of its directors and senior executive officers to execute and
deliver customary lock-up agreements in such form and for such time period up to 90 days as
may be requested by the managing underwriter. “Special Registration” means the registration of
(A) equity securities and/or options or other rights in respect thereof solely registered on Form S-
4 or Form S-8 (or successor form) or (B) shares of equity securities and/or options or other rights
in respect thereof to be offered to directors, members of management, employees, consultants,
customers, lenders or vendors of the Company or Company Subsidiaries or in connection with
dividend reinvestment plans.

(K) Rule 144; Rule 144A. With a view to making available to the Investor and
Holders the benefits of certain rules and regulations of the SEC which may permit the sale of the
Registrable Securities to the public without registration, the Company agrees to use its
reasonable best efforts to:
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Q) make and keep public information available, as those terms are understood
and defined in Rule 144(c)(1) or any similar or analogous rule promulgated under the
Securities Act, at all times after the Signing Date;

(i) (A) file with the SEC, in a timely manner, all reports and other documents
required of the Company under the Exchange Act, and (B) if at any time the Company is
not required to file such reports, make available, upon the request of any Holder, such
information necessary to permit sales pursuant to Rule 144A (including the information
required by Rule 144A(d)(4) under the Securities Act);

(i) solong as the Investor or a Holder owns any Registrable Securities,
furnish to the Investor or such Holder forthwith upon request: a written statement by the
Company as to its compliance with the reporting requirements of Rule 144 under the
Securities Act, and of the Exchange Act; a copy of the most recent annual or quarterly
report of the Company; and such other reports and documents as the Investor or Holder
may reasonably request in availing itself of any rule or regulation of the SEC allowing it
to sell any such securities to the public without registration; and

(iv)  take such further action as any Holder may reasonably request, all to the
extent required from time to time to enable such Holder to sell Registrable Securities
without registration under the Securities Act.

Q) As used in this Section 4.5, the following terms shall have the following
respective meanings:

Q) “Holder” means the Investor and any other holder of Registrable
Securities to whom the registration rights conferred by this Agreement have been
transferred in compliance with Section 4.5(h) hereof.

(i)  “Holders’ Counsel” means one counsel for the selling Holders chosen by
Holders holding a majority interest in the Registrable Securities being registered.

(iii)  “Register,” “registered,” and “registration” shall refer to a registration
effected by preparing and (A) filing a registration statement or amendment thereto in
compliance with the Securities Act and applicable rules and regulations thereunder, and
the declaration or ordering of effectiveness of such registration statement or amendment
thereto or (B) filing a prospectus and/or prospectus supplement in respect of an
appropriate effective registration statement on Form S-3.

(iv)  “Registrable Securities” means (A) all Preferred Shares, (B) the Warrant
(subject to Section 4.5(q)) and (C) any equity securities issued or issuable directly or
indirectly with respect to the securities referred to in the foregoing clauses (A) or (B) by
way of conversion, exercise or exchange thereof, including the Warrant Shares, or share
dividend or share split or in connection with a combination of shares, recapitalization,
reclassification, merger, amalgamation, arrangement, consolidation or other
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reorganization, provided that, once issued, such securities will not be Registrable
Securities when (1) they are sold pursuant to an effective registration statement under the
Securities Act, (2) except as provided below in Section 4.5(p), they may be sold pursuant
to Rule 144 without limitation thereunder on volume or manner of sale, (3) they shall
have ceased to be outstanding or (4) they have been sold in a private transaction in which
the transferor's rights under this Agreement are not assigned to the transferee of the
securities. No Registrable Securities may be registered under more than one registration
statement at any one time.

(v) “Registration Expenses” mean all expenses incurred by the Company in
effecting any registration pursuant to this Agreement (whether or not any registration or
prospectus becomes effective or final) or otherwise complying with its obligations under
this Section 4.5, including all registration, filing and listing fees, printing expenses, fees
and disbursements of counsel for the Company, blue sky fees and expenses, expenses
incurred in connection with any “road show”, the reasonable fees and disbursements of
Holders” Counsel, and expenses of the Company’s independent accountants in
connection with any regular or special reviews or audits incident to or required by any
such registration, but shall not include Selling Expenses.

(vi)  “Rule 1447, “Rule 144A”, “Rule 159A”, “Rule 405 and “Rule 415 mean,
in each case, such rule promulgated under the Securities Act (or any successor provision),
as the same shall be amended from time to time.

(vit)  “Selling Expenses” mean all discounts, selling commissions and stock
transfer taxes applicable to the sale of Registrable Securities and fees and disbursements
of counsel for any Holder (other than the fees and disbursements of Holders’ Counsel
included in Registration Expenses).

(m)  Atany time, any holder of Securities (including any Holder) may elect to forfeit
its rights set forth in this Section 4.5 from that date forward; provided, that a Holder forfeiting
such rights shall nonetheless be entitled to participate under Section 4.5(b)(iv) — (vi) in any
Pending Underwritten Offering to the same extent that such Holder would have been entitled to
if the holder had not withdrawn; and provided, further, that no such forfeiture shall terminate a
Holder’s rights or obligations under Section 4.5(g) with respect to any prior registration or
Pending Underwritten Offering. “Pending Underwritten Offering’ means, with respect to any
Holder forfeiting its rights pursuant to this Section 4.5(m), any underwritten offering of
Registrable Securities in which such Holder has advised the Company of its intent to register its
Registrable Securities either pursuant to Section 4.5(b)(ii) or 4.5(b)(iv) prior to the date of such
Holder’s forfeiture.

(n) Specific Performance. The parties hereto acknowledge that there would be no
adequate remedy at law if the Company fails to perform any of its obligations under this Section
4.5 and that the Investor and the Holders from time to time may be irreparably harmed by any
such failure, and accordingly agree that the Investor and such Holders, in addition to any other
remedy to which they may be entitled at law or in equity, to the fullest extent permitted and
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enforceable under applicable law shall be entitled to compel specific performance of the
obligations of the Company under this Section 4.5 in accordance with the terms and conditions
of this Section 4.5.

(o) No Inconsistent Agreements. The Company shall not, on or after the Signing
Date, enter into any agreement with respect to its securities that may impair the rights granted to
the Investor and the Holders under this Section 4.5 or that otherwise conflicts with the provisions
hereof in any manner that may impair the rights granted to the Investor and the Holders under
this Section 4.5. In the event the Company has, prior to the Signing Date, entered into any
agreement with respect to its securities that is inconsistent with the rights granted to the Investor
and the Holders under this Section 4.5 (including agreements that are inconsistent with the order
of priority contemplated by Section 4.5(b)(vi)) or that may otherwise conflict with the provisions
hereof, the Company shall use its reasonable best efforts to amend such agreements to ensure
they are consistent with the provisions of this Section 4.5.

(p) Certain Offerings by the Investor. In the case of any securities held by the
Investor that cease to be Registrable Securities solely by reason of clause (2) in the definition of
“Registrable Securities,” the provisions of Sections 4.5(b)(ii), clauses (iv), (ix) and (x)-(xii) of
Section 4.5(d), Section 4.5(h) and Section 4.5(j) shall continue to apply until such securities
otherwise cease to be Registrable Securities. In any such case, an “underwritten” offering or
other disposition shall include any distribution of such securities on behalf of the Investor by one
or more broker-dealers, an “underwriting agreement” shall include any purchase agreement
entered into by such broker-dealers, and any “registration statement” or “prospectus” shall
include any offering document approved by the Company and used in connection with such
distribution.

(@) Registered Sales of the Warrant. The Holders agree to sell the Warrant or any
portion thereof under the Shelf Registration Statement only beginning 30 days after notifying the
Company of any such sale, during which 30-day period the Investor and all Holders of the
Warrant shall take reasonable steps to agree to revisions to the Warrant to permit a public
distribution of the Warrant, including entering into a warrant agreement and appointing a warrant
agent.

4.6  Depositary Shares. Upon request by the Investor at any time following the
Closing Date, the Company shall promptly enter into a depositary arrangement, pursuant to
customary agreements reasonably satisfactory to the Investor and with a depositary reasonably
acceptable to the Investor, pursuant to which the Preferred Shares or the Warrant Shares may be
deposited and depositary shares, each representing a fraction of a Preferred Share or Warrant
Share, as applicable, as specified by the Investor, may be issued. From and after the execution of
any such depositary arrangement, and the deposit of any Preferred Shares or Warrant Shares, as
applicable, pursuant thereto, the depositary shares issued pursuant thereto shall be deemed
“Preferred Shares”, “Warrant Shares” and, as applicable, “Registrable Securities” for purposes of
this Agreement.

4.7 Restriction on Dividends and Repurchases.
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@) Prior to the earlier of (x) the third anniversary of the Closing Date and (y) the date
on which all of the Preferred Shares and Warrant Shares have been redeemed in whole or the
Investor has transferred all of the Preferred Shares and Warrant Shares to third parties which are
not Affiliates of the Investor, neither the Company nor any Company Subsidiary shall, without
the consent of the Investor, declare or pay any dividend or make any distribution on capital stock
or other equity securities of any kind of the Company or any Company Subsidiary (other than (i)
regular quarterly cash dividends of not more than the amount of the last quarterly cash dividend
per share declared or, if lower, announced to its holders of Common Stock an intention to
declare, on the Common Stock prior to November 17, 2008, as adjusted for any stock split, stock
dividend, reverse stock split, reclassification or similar transaction, (ii) dividends payable solely
in shares of Common Stock, (iii) regular dividends on shares of preferred stock in accordance
with the terms thereof and which are permitted under the terms of the Preferred Shares and the
Warrant Shares, (iv) dividends or distributions by any wholly-owned Company Subsidiary or (v)
dividends or distributions by any Company Subsidiary required pursuant to binding contractual
agreements entered into prior to November 17, 2008).

(b) During the period beginning on the third anniversary of the Closing Date and
ending on the earlier of (i) the tenth anniversary of the Closing Date and (ii) the date on which all
of the Preferred Shares and Warrant Shares have been redeemed in whole or the Investor has
transferred all of the Preferred Shares and Warrant Shares to third parties which are not Affiliates
of the Investor, neither the Company nor any Company Subsidiary shall, without the consent of
the Investor, (A) pay any per share dividend or distribution on capital stock or other equity
securities of any kind of the Company at a per annum rate that is in excess of 103% of the
aggregate per share dividends and distributions for the immediately prior fiscal year (other than
regular dividends on shares of preferred stock in accordance with the terms thereof and which
are permitted under the terms of the Preferred Shares and the Warrant Shares); provided that no
increase in the aggregate amount of dividends or distributions on Common Stock shall be
permitted as a result of any dividends or distributions paid in shares of Common Stock, any stock
split or any similar transaction or (B) pay aggregate dividends or distributions on capital stock or
other equity securities of any kind of any Company Subsidiary that is in excess of 103% of the
aggregate dividends and distributions paid for the immediately prior fiscal year (other than in the
case of this clause (B), (1) regular dividends on shares of preferred stock in accordance with the
terms thereof and which are permitted under the terms of the Preferred Shares and the Warrant
Shares, (2) dividends or distributions by any wholly-owned Company Subsidiary, (3) dividends
or distributions by any Company Subsidiary required pursuant to binding contractual agreements
entered into prior to November 17, 2008) or (4) dividends or distributions on newly issued shares
of capital stock for cash or other property.

(©) Prior to the earlier of (x) the tenth anniversary of the Closing Date and (y) the date
on which all of the Preferred Shares and Warrant Shares have been redeemed in whole or the
Investor has transferred all of the Preferred Shares and Warrant Shares to third parties which are
not Affiliates of the Investor, neither the Company nor any Company Subsidiary shall, without
the consent of the Investor, redeem, purchase or acquire any shares of Common Stock or other
capital stock or other equity securities of any kind of the Company or any Company Subsidiary,
or any trust preferred securities issued by the Company or any Affiliate of the Company, other
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than (i) redemptions, purchases or other acquisitions of the Preferred Shares and Warrant Shares,
(ii) in connection with the administration of any employee benefit plan in the ordinary course of
business and consistent with past practice, (iii) the acquisition by the Company or any of the
Company Subsidiaries of record ownership in Junior Stock or Parity Stock for the beneficial
ownership of any other persons (other than the Company or any other Company Subsidiary),
including as trustees or custodians, (iv) the exchange or conversion of Junior Stock for or into
other Junior Stock or of Parity Stock or trust preferred securities for or into other Parity Stock
(with the same or lesser aggregate liquidation amount) or Junior Stock, in each case set forth in
this clause (iv), solely to the extent required pursuant to binding contractual agreements entered
into prior to the Signing Date or any subsequent agreement for the accelerated exercise,
settlement or exchange thereof for Common Stock (clauses (ii) and (iii), collectively, the
“Permitted Repurchases™), (v) redemptions of securities held by the Company or any wholly-
owned Company Subsidiary or (vi) redemptions, purchases or other acquisitions of capital stock
or other equity securities of any kind of any Company Subsidiary required pursuant to binding
contractual agreements entered into prior to November 17, 2008.

(d) Until such time as the Investor ceases to own any Preferred Shares or Warrant
Shares, the Company shall not repurchase any Preferred Shares or Warrant Shares from any
holder thereof, whether by means of open market purchase, negotiated transaction, or otherwise,
other than Permitted Repurchases, unless it offers to repurchase a ratable portion of the Preferred
Shares or Warrant Shares, as the case may be, then held by the Investor on the same terms and
conditions.

(e) During the period beginning on the tenth anniversary of the Closing and ending
on the date on which all of the Preferred Shares and Warrant Shares have been redeemed in
whole or the Investor has transferred all of the Preferred Shares and Warrant Shares to third
parties which are not Affiliates of the Investor, neither the Company nor any Company
Subsidiary shall, without the consent of the Investor, (i) declare or pay any dividend or make any
distribution on capital stock or other equity securities of any kind of the Company or any
Company Subsidiary; or (ii) redeem, purchase or acquire any shares of Common Stock or other
capital stock or other equity securities of any kind of the Company or any Company Subsidiary,
or any trust preferred securities issued by the Company or any Affiliate of the Company, other
than (A) redemptions, purchases or other acquisitions of the Preferred Shares and Warrant
Shares, (B) regular dividends on shares of preferred stock in accordance with the terms thereof
and which are permitted under the terms of the Preferred Shares and the Warrant Shares, or (C)
dividends or distributions by any wholly-owned Company Subsidiary.

()] “Junior Stock™ means Common Stock and any other class or series of stock of the
Company the terms of which expressly provide that it ranks junior to the Preferred Shares as to
dividend rights and/or as to rights on liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company.
“Parity Stock means any class or series of stock of the Company the terms of which do not
expressly provide that such class or series will rank senior or junior to the Preferred Shares as to
dividend rights and/or as to rights on liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company (in
each case without regard to whether dividends accrue cumulatively or non-cumulatively).
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4.8 Executive Compensation. Until such time as the Investor ceases to own any debt
or equity securities of the Company acquired pursuant to this Agreement or the Warrant, the
Company shall take all necessary action to ensure that its Benefit Plans with respect to its Senior
Executive Officers comply in all respects with Section 111(b) of the EESA as implemented by
any guidance or regulation thereunder that has been issued and is in effect as of the Closing Date,
and shall not adopt any new Benefit Plan with respect to its Senior Executive Officers that does
not comply therewith. “Senior Executive Officers” means the Company's "senior executive
officers™ as defined in subsection 111(b)(3) of the EESA and regulations issued thereunder,
including the rules set forth in 31 C.F.R. Part 30.

4.9  Related Party Transactions. Until such time as the Investor ceases to own any
Purchased Securities or Warrant Shares, the Company and the Company Subsidiaries shall not
enter into transactions with Affiliates or related persons (within the meaning of Item 404 under
the SEC’s Regulation S-K) unless (i) such transactions are on terms no less favorable to the
Company and the Company Subsidiaries than could be obtained from an unaffiliated third party,
and (ii) have been approved by the audit committee of the Board of Directors or comparable
body of independent directors of the Company.

4.10 Bank and Thrift Holding Company Status. If the Company is a Bank Holding
Company or a Savings and Loan Holding Company on the Signing Date, then the Company shall
maintain its status as a Bank Holding Company or Savings and Loan Holding Company, as the
case may be, for as long as the Investor owns any Purchased Securities or Warrant Shares. The
Company shall redeem all Purchased Securities and Warrant Shares held by the Investor prior to
terminating its status as a Bank Holding Company or Savings and Loan Holding Company, as
applicable. “Bank Holding Company”” means a company registered as such with the Board of
Governors of the Federal Reserve System (the “Federal Reserve™) pursuant to 12 U.S.C. §1842
and the regulations of the Federal Reserve promulgated thereunder. “Savings and Loan Holding
Company” means a company registered as such with the Office of Thrift Supervision pursuant to
12 U.S.C. 81467(a) and the regulations of the Office of Thrift Supervision promulgated
thereunder.

4.11 Predominantly Financial. For as long as the Investor owns any Purchased
Securities or Warrant Shares, the Company, to the extent it is not itself an insured depository
institution, agrees to remain predominantly engaged in financial activities. A company is
predominantly engaged in financial activities if the annual gross revenues derived by the
company and all subsidiaries of the company (excluding revenues derived from subsidiary
depository institutions), on a consolidated basis, from engaging in activities that are financial in
nature or are incidental to a financial activity under subsection (k) of Section 4 of the Bank
Holding Company Act of 1956 (12 U.S.C. 1843(k)) represent at least 85 percent of the
consolidated annual gross revenues of the company.

Article V
Miscellaneous

5.1  Termination. This Agreement may be terminated at any time prior to the Closing:
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@) by either the Investor or the Company if the Closing shall not have occurred by
the 30" calendar day following the Signing Date; provided, however, that in the event the
Closing has not occurred by such 30" calendar day, the parties will consult in good faith to
determine whether to extend the term of this Agreement, it being understood that the parties shall
be required to consult only until the fifth day after such 30" calendar day and not be under any
obligation to extend the term of this Agreement thereafter; provided, further, that the right to
terminate this Agreement under this Section 5.1(a) shall not be available to any party whose
breach of any representation or warranty or failure to perform any obligation under this
Agreement shall have caused or resulted in the failure of the Closing to occur on or prior to such
date; or

(b) by either the Investor or the Company in the event that any Governmental Entity
shall have issued an order, decree or ruling or taken any other action restraining, enjoining or
otherwise prohibiting the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and such order, decree,
ruling or other action shall have become final and nonappealable; or

(c) by the mutual written consent of the Investor and the Company.

In the event of termination of this Agreement as provided in this Section 5.1, this Agreement
shall forthwith become void and there shall be no liability on the part of either party hereto
except that nothing herein shall relieve either party from liability for any breach of this
Agreement.

5.2  Survival of Representations and Warranties. All covenants and agreements, other
than those which by their terms apply in whole or in part after the Closing, shall terminate as of
the Closing. The representations and warranties of the Company made herein or in any
certificates delivered in connection with the Closing shall survive the Closing without limitation.

5.3  Amendment. No amendment of any provision of this Agreement will be effective
unless made in writing and signed by an officer or a duly authorized representative of each party;
provided that the Investor may unilaterally amend any provision of this Agreement to the extent
required to comply with any changes after the Signing Date in applicable federal statutes. No
failure or delay by any party in exercising any right, power or privilege hereunder shall operate
as a waiver thereof nor shall any single or partial exercise thereof preclude any other or further
exercise of any other right, power or privilege. The rights and remedies herein provided shall be
cumulative of any rights or remedies provided by law.

5.4  Waiver of Conditions. The conditions to each party’s obligation to consummate
the Purchase are for the sole benefit of such party and may be waived by such party in whole or
in part to the extent permitted by applicable law. No waiver will be effective unless it is in a
writing signed by a duly authorized officer of the waiving party that makes express reference to
the provision or provisions subject to such waiver.

5.5  Governing Law: Submission to Jurisdiction, Etc. This Agreement will be
governed by and construed in accordance with the federal law of the United States if and to
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the extent such law is applicable, and otherwise in accordance with the laws of the State of
New York applicable to contracts made and to be performed entirely within such State.
Each of the parties hereto agrees (a) to submit to the exclusive jurisdiction and venue of the
United States District Court for the District of Columbia and the United States Court of
Federal Claims for any and all civil actions, suits or proceedings arising out of or relating
to this Agreement or the Warrant or the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby, and
(b) that notice may be served upon (i) the Company at the address and in the manner set
forth for notices to the Company in Section 5.6 and (ii) the Investor in accordance with
federal law. To the extent permitted by applicable law, each of the parties hereto hereby
unconditionally waives trial by jury in any civil legal action or proceeding relating to this
Agreement or the Warrant or the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby.

5.6  Notices. Any notice, request, instruction or other document to be given hereunder
by any party to the other will be in writing and will be deemed to have been duly given (a) on the
date of delivery if delivered personally, or by facsimile, upon confirmation of receipt, or (b) on
the second business day following the date of dispatch if delivered by a recognized next day
courier service. All notices to the Company shall be delivered as set forth in Schedule A, or
pursuant to such other instruction as may be designated in writing by the Company to the
Investor. All notices to the Investor shall be delivered as set forth below, or pursuant to such
other instructions as may be designated in writing by the Investor to the Company.

If to the Investor:

United States Department of the Treasury

1500 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW, Room 2312

Washington, D.C. 20220

Attention: Assistant General Counsel (Banking and Finance)
Facsimile: (202) 622-1974

5.7 Definitions

€)) When a reference is made in this Agreement to a subsidiary of a person, the term
“subsidiary” means any corporation, partnership, joint venture, limited liability company or other
entity (x) of which such person or a subsidiary of such person is a general partner or (y) of which
a majority of the voting securities or other voting interests, or a majority of the securities or other
interests of which having by their terms ordinary voting power to elect a majority of the board of
directors or persons performing similar functions with respect to such entity, is directly or
indirectly owned by such person and/or one or more subsidiaries thereof.

(b) The term “Affiliate” means, with respect to any person, any person directly or
indirectly controlling, controlled by or under common control with, such other person. For
purposes of this definition, “control” (including, with correlative meanings, the terms “controlled
by” and “under common control with”) when used with respect to any person, means the
possession, directly or indirectly, of the power to cause the direction of management and/or
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policies of such person, whether through the ownership of voting securities by contract or
otherwise.

(c) The terms “knowledge of the Company” or “Company’s knowledge” mean the
actual knowledge after reasonable and due inquiry of the “officers” (as such term is defined in
Rule 3b-2 under the Exchange Act, but excluding any Vice President or Secretary) of the
Company.

5.8  Assignment. Neither this Agreement nor any right, remedy, obligation nor
liability arising hereunder or by reason hereof shall be assignable by any party hereto without the
prior written consent of the other party, and any attempt to assign any right, remedy, obligation
or liability hereunder without such consent shall be void, except (a) an assignment, in the case of
a merger, consolidation, statutory share exchange or similar transaction that requires the approval
of the Company’s stockholders (a “Business Combination”) where such party is not the surviving
entity, or a sale of substantially all of its assets, to the entity which is the survivor of such
Business Combination or the purchaser in such sale and (b) as provided in Sections 3.5 and 4.5.

5.9  Severability. If any provision of this Agreement or the Warrant, or the application
thereof to any person or circumstance, is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining provisions hereof, or the application of such
provision to persons or circumstances other than those as to which it has been held invalid or
unenforceable, will remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be affected, impaired or
invalidated thereby, so long as the economic or legal substance of the transactions contemplated
hereby is not affected in any manner materially adverse to any party. Upon such determination,
the parties shall negotiate in good faith in an effort to agree upon a suitable and equitable
substitute provision to effect the original intent of the parties.

5.10 No Third Party Beneficiaries. Nothing contained in this Agreement, expressed or
implied, is intended to confer upon any person or entity other than the Company and the Investor
any benefit, right or remedies, except that the provisions of Section 4.5 shall inure to the benefit
of the persons referred to in that Section.
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ANNEX A
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ANNEX A
FORM OF [CERTIFICATE OF DESIGNATIONS]
OF
FIXED RATE CUMULATIVE PERPETUAL PREFERRED STOCK, SERIES [e]

OF
]

[Insert name of Issuer], a [corporation/bank/banking association] organized and existing
under the laws of the [Insert jurisdiction of organization] (the “Issuer”), in accordance with the
provisions of Section[s] [®] of the [Insert applicable statute] thereof, does hereby certify:

The board of directors of the Issuer (the “Board of Directors™) or an applicable committee
of the Board of Directors, in accordance with the [[certificate of incorporation/articles of
association] and bylaws] of the Issuer and applicable law, adopted the following resolution on
[®] creating a series of [®] shares of Preferred Stock of the Issuer designated as “Fixed Rate
Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, Series [@]”.

RESOLYVED, that pursuant to the provisions of the [[certificate of incorporation/articles
of association] and the bylaws] of the Issuer and applicable law, a series of Preferred Stock, par
value $[e] per share, of the Issuer be and hereby is created, and that the designation and number
of shares of such series, and the voting and other powers, preferences and relative, participating,
optional or other rights, and the qualifications, limitations and restrictions thereof, of the shares
of such series, are as follows:

Part 1. Designation and Number of Shares. There is hereby created out of the authorized
and unissued shares of preferred stock of the Issuer a series of preferred stock designated as the
“Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, Series [®]” (the “Designated Preferred
Stock™). The authorized number of shares of Designated Preferred Stock shall be [e].

Part 2. Standard Provisions. The Standard Provisions contained in Schedule A attached
hereto are incorporated herein by reference in their entirety and shall be deemed to be a part of
this [Certificate of Designations] to the same extent as if such provisions had been set forth in
full herein.

Part. 3. Definitions. The following terms are used in this [Certificate of Designations]
(including the Standard Provisions in Schedule A hereto) as defined below:

(a) “Common Stock” means the common stock, par value $[®] per share, of the
Issuer.

(b) “Dividend Payment Date” means February 15, May 15, August 15 and November
15 of each year.
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(c) “Junior Stock” means the Common Stock, [Insert titles of any existing Junior
Stock] and any other class or series of stock of the Issuer the terms of which expressly provide
that it ranks junior to Designated Preferred Stock as to dividend rights and/or as to rights on
liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Issuer.

(d) “Liquidation Amount” means $[1,000]" per share of Designated Preferred Stock.

(e) “Minimum Amount” means $[Insert $ amount equal to 25% of the aggregate
value of the Designated Preferred Stock issued on the Original Issue Date].

§)) “Parity Stock™ means any class or series of stock of the Issuer (other than
Designated Preferred Stock) the terms of which do not expressly provide that such class or series
will rank senior or junior to Designated Preferred Stock as to dividend rights and/or as to rights
on liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Issuer (in each case without regard to whether
dividends accrue cumulatively or non-cumulatively). Without limiting the foregoing, Parity
Stock shall include the Issuer’s [Insert title(s) of existing classes or series of Parity Stock].

(2) “Signing Date” means [Insert date of applicable securities purchase agreement].

Part. 4. Certain Voting Matters. [To be inserted if the Charter provides for voting in
proportion to liquidation preferences: Whether the vote or consent of the holders of a plurality,
majority or other portion of the shares of Designated Preferred Stock and any Voting Parity
Stock has been cast or given on any matter on which the holders of shares of Designated
Preferred Stock are entitled to vote shall be determined by the Issuer by reference to the specified
liquidation amount of the shares voted or covered by the consent as if the Issuer were liquidated
on the record date for such vote or consent, if any, or, in the absence of a record date, on the date
for such vote or consent. For purposes of determining the voting rights of the holders of
Designated Preferred Stock under Section 7 of the Standard Provisions forming part of this
[Certificate of Designations], each holder will be entitled to one vote for each $1,000 of
liquidation preference to which such holder’s shares are entitled.] [To be inserted if the Charter
does not provide for voting in proportion to liquidation preferences: Holders of shares of
Designated Preferred Stock will be entitled to one vote for each such share on any matter on
which holders of Designated Preferred Stock are entitled to vote, including any action by written
consent.]

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank]

"If Issuer desires to issue shares with a higher dollar amount liquidation preference, liquidation preference
references will be modified accordingly. In such case (in accordance with Section 4.6 of the Securities
Purchase Agreement), the issuer will be required to enter into a deposit agreement.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, [Insert name of Issuer] has caused this [Certificate of
Designations] to be signed by [e], its [®], this [e] day of [e].

[Insert name of Issuer]
By:

Name:
Title:
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Schedule A

STANDARD PROVISIONS

Section 1. General Matters. Each share of Designated Preferred Stock shall be identical
in all respects to every other share of Designated Preferred Stock. The Designated Preferred
Stock shall be perpetual, subject to the provisions of Section 5 of these Standard Provisions that
form a part of the Certificate of Designations. The Designated Preferred Stock shall rank equally
with Parity Stock and shall rank senior to Junior Stock with respect to the payment of dividends
and the distribution of assets in the event of any dissolution, liquidation or winding up of the
Issuer.

Section 2. Standard Definitions. As used herein with respect to Designated Preferred

Stock:

(a) “Applicable Dividend Rate” means (i) during the period from the Original Issue
Date to, but excluding, the first day of the first Dividend Period commencing on or after the fifth
anniversary of the Original Issue Date, 5% per annum and (i1) from and after the first day of the
first Dividend Period commencing on or after the fifth anniversary of the Original Issue Date,
9% per annum.

(b) “Appropriate Federal Banking Agency” means the “appropriate Federal banking
agency” with respect to the Issuer as defined in Section 3(q) of the Federal Deposit Insurance
Act (12 U.S.C. Section 1813(q)), or any successor provision.

(©) “Business Combination” means a merger, consolidation, statutory share
exchange or similar transaction that requires the approval of the Issuer’s stockholders.

(d) “Business Day” means any day except Saturday, Sunday and any day on which
banking institutions in the State of New York generally are authorized or required by law or
other governmental actions to close.

(e) “Bylaws” means the bylaws of the Issuer, as they may be amended from time to
time.
63) “Certificate of Designations” means the Certificate of Designations or comparable

instrument relating to the Designated Preferred Stock, of which these Standard Provisions form a
part, as it may be amended from time to time.

(2) “Charter” means the Issuer’s certificate or articles of incorporation, articles of
association, or similar organizational document.

(h) “Dividend Period” has the meaning set forth in Section 3(a).

(1) “Dividend Record Date” has the meaning set forth in Section 3(a).
() “Liquidation Preference” has the meaning set forth in Section 4(a).
A-1
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(k) “Original Issue Date” means the date on which shares of Designated Preferred
Stock are first issued.

) “Preferred Director” has the meaning set forth in Section 7(b).

(m)  “Preferred Stock™ means any and all series of preferred stock of the Issuer,
including the Designated Preferred Stock.

(n) “Qualified Equity Offering” means the sale and issuance for cash by the Issuer to
persons other than the Issuer or any of its subsidiaries after the Original Issue Date of shares of
perpetual Preferred Stock, Common Stock or any combination of such stock, that, in each case,
qualify as and may be included in Tier 1 capital of the Issuer at the time of issuance under the
applicable risk-based capital guidelines of the Issuer’s Appropriate Federal Banking Agency
(other than any such sales and issuances made pursuant to agreements or arrangements entered
into, or pursuant to financing plans which were publicly announced, on or prior to November 17,
2008).

(o) “Standard Provisions” mean these Standard Provisions that form a part of the
Certificate of Designations relating to the Designated Preferred Stock.

(p) “Successor Preferred Stock™ has the meaning set forth in Section 5(a).

(q) “Voting Parity Stock” means, with regard to any matter as to which the holders of
Designated Preferred Stock are entitled to vote as specified in Sections 7(a) and 7(b) of these
Standard Provisions that form a part of the Certificate of Designations, any and all series of
Parity Stock upon which like voting rights have been conferred and are exercisable with respect
to such matter.

Section 3. Dividends.

(a) Rate. Holders of Designated Preferred Stock shall be entitled to receive, on each
share of Designated Preferred Stock if, as and when declared by the Board of Directors or any
duly authorized committee of the Board of Directors, but only out of assets legally available
therefor, cumulative cash dividends with respect to each Dividend Period (as defined below) at a
rate per annum equal to the Applicable Dividend Rate on (i) the Liquidation Amount per share of
Designated Preferred Stock and (ii) the amount of accrued and unpaid dividends for any prior
Dividend Period on such share of Designated Preferred Stock, if any. Such dividends shall begin
to accrue and be cumulative from the Original Issue Date, shall compound on each subsequent
Dividend Payment Date (i.e., no dividends shall accrue on other dividends unless and until the
first Dividend Payment Date for such other dividends has passed without such other dividends
having been paid on such date) and shall be payable quarterly in arrears on each Dividend
Payment Date, commencing with the first such Dividend Payment Date to occur at least 20
calendar days after the Original Issue Date. In the event that any Dividend Payment Date would
otherwise fall on a day that is not a Business Day, the dividend payment due on that date will be
postponed to the next day that is a Business Day and no additional dividends will accrue as a
result of that postponement. The period from and including any Dividend Payment Date to, but
excluding, the next Dividend Payment Date is a “Dividend Period”, provided that the initial
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Dividend Period shall be the period from and including the Original Issue Date to, but excluding,
the next Dividend Payment Date.

Dividends that are payable on Designated Preferred Stock in respect of any Dividend
Period shall be computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months. The
amount of dividends payable on Designated Preferred Stock on any date prior to the end of a
Dividend Period, and for the initial Dividend Period, shall be computed on the basis of a 360-day
year consisting of twelve 30-day months, and actual days elapsed over a 30-day month.

Dividends that are payable on Designated Preferred Stock on any Dividend Payment Date
will be payable to holders of record of Designated Preferred Stock as they appear on the stock
register of the Issuer on the applicable record date, which shall be the 15th calendar day
immediately preceding such Dividend Payment Date or such other record date fixed by the
Board of Directors or any duly authorized committee of the Board of Directors that is not more
than 60 nor less than 10 days prior to such Dividend Payment Date (each, a “Dividend Record
Date”). Any such day that is a Dividend Record Date shall be a Dividend Record Date whether
or not such day is a Business Day.

Holders of Designated Preferred Stock shall not be entitled to any dividends, whether
payable in cash, securities or other property, other than dividends (if any) declared and payable
on Designated Preferred Stock as specified in this Section 3 (subject to the other provisions of
the Certificate of Designations).

(b) Priority of Dividends. So long as any share of Designated Preferred Stock
remains outstanding, no dividend or distribution shall be declared or paid on the Common Stock
or any other shares of Junior Stock (other than dividends payable solely in shares of Common
Stock) or Parity Stock, subject to the immediately following paragraph in the case of Parity
Stock, and no Common Stock, Junior Stock or Parity Stock shall be, directly or indirectly,
purchased, redeemed or otherwise acquired for consideration by the Issuer or any of its
subsidiaries unless all accrued and unpaid dividends for all past Dividend Periods, including the
latest completed Dividend Period (including, if applicable as provided in Section 3(a) above,
dividends on such amount), on all outstanding shares of Designated Preferred Stock have been or
are contemporaneously declared and paid in full (or have been declared and a sum sufficient for
the payment thereof has been set aside for the benefit of the holders of shares of Designated
Preferred Stock on the applicable record date). The foregoing limitation shall not apply to (i)
redemptions, purchases or other acquisitions of shares of Common Stock or other Junior Stock in
connection with the administration of any employee benefit plan in the ordinary course of
business and consistent with past practice; (ii) the acquisition by the Issuer or any of its
subsidiaries of record ownership in Junior Stock or Parity Stock for the beneficial ownership of
any other persons (other than the Issuer or any of its subsidiaries), including as trustees or
custodians; and (iii) the exchange or conversion of Junior Stock for or into other Junior Stock or
of Parity Stock for or into other Parity Stock (with the same or lesser aggregate liquidation
amount) or Junior Stock, in each case, solely to the extent required pursuant to binding
contractual agreements entered into prior to the Signing Date or any subsequent agreement for
the accelerated exercise, settlement or exchange thereof for Common Stock.
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When dividends are not paid (or declared and a sum sufficient for payment thereof set
aside for the benefit of the holders thereof on the applicable record date) on any Dividend
Payment Date (or, in the case of Parity Stock having dividend payment dates different from the
Dividend Payment Dates, on a dividend payment date falling within a Dividend Period related to
such Dividend Payment Date) in full upon Designated Preferred Stock and any shares of Parity
Stock, all dividends declared on Designated Preferred Stock and all such Parity Stock and
payable on such Dividend Payment Date (or, in the case of Parity Stock having dividend
payment dates different from the Dividend Payment Dates, on a dividend payment date falling
within the Dividend Period related to such Dividend Payment Date) shall be declared pro rata so
that the respective amounts of such dividends declared shall bear the same ratio to each other as
all accrued and unpaid dividends per share on the shares of Designated Preferred Stock
(including, if applicable as provided in Section 3(a) above, dividends on such amount) and all
Parity Stock payable on such Dividend Payment Date (or, in the case of Parity Stock having
dividend payment dates different from the Dividend Payment Dates, on a dividend payment date
falling within the Dividend Period related to such Dividend Payment Date) (subject to their
having been declared by the Board of Directors or a duly authorized committee of the Board of
Directors out of legally available funds and including, in the case of Parity Stock that bears
cumulative dividends, all accrued but unpaid dividends) bear to each other. If the Board of
Directors or a duly authorized committee of the Board of Directors determines not to pay any
dividend or a full dividend on a Dividend Payment Date, the Issuer will provide written notice to
the holders of Designated Preferred Stock prior to such Dividend Payment Date.

Subject to the foregoing, and not otherwise, such dividends (payable in cash, securities or
other property) as may be determined by the Board of Directors or any duly authorized
committee of the Board of Directors may be declared and paid on any securities, including
Common Stock and other Junior Stock, from time to time out of any funds legally available for
such payment, and holders of Designated Preferred Stock shall not be entitled to participate in
any such dividends.

Section 4. Liquidation Rights.

(a) Voluntary or Involuntary Liquidation. In the event of any liquidation, dissolution
or winding up of the affairs of the Issuer, whether voluntary or involuntary, holders of
Designated Preferred Stock shall be entitled to receive for each share of Designated Preferred
Stock, out of the assets of the Issuer or proceeds thereof (whether capital or surplus) available for
distribution to stockholders of the Issuer, subject to the rights of any creditors of the Issuer,
before any distribution of such assets or proceeds is made to or set aside for the holders of
Common Stock and any other stock of the Issuer ranking junior to Designated Preferred Stock as
to such distribution, payment in full in an amount equal to the sum of (i) the Liquidation Amount
per share and (ii) the amount of any accrued and unpaid dividends (including, if applicable as
provided in Section 3(a) above, dividends on such amount), whether or not declared, to the date
of payment (such amounts collectively, the “Liquidation Preference”).

(b) Partial Payment. If in any distribution described in Section 4(a) above the assets
of the Issuer or proceeds thereof are not sufficient to pay in full the amounts payable with respect
to all outstanding shares of Designated Preferred Stock and the corresponding amounts payable
with respect of any other stock of the Issuer ranking equally with Designated Preferred Stock as
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to such distribution, holders of Designated Preferred Stock and the holders of such other stock
shall share ratably in any such distribution in proportion to the full respective distributions to
which they are entitled.

(©) Residual Distributions. If the Liquidation Preference has been paid in full to all
holders of Designated Preferred Stock and the corresponding amounts payable with respect of
any other stock of the Issuer ranking equally with Designated Preferred Stock as to such
distribution has been paid in full, the holders of other stock of the Issuer shall be entitled to
receive all remaining assets of the Issuer (or proceeds thereof) according to their respective rights
and preferences.

(d) Merger, Consolidation and Sale of Assets Not Liquidation. For purposes of this
Section 4, the merger or consolidation of the Issuer with any other corporation or other entity,
including a merger or consolidation in which the holders of Designated Preferred Stock receive
cash, securities or other property for their shares, or the sale, lease or exchange (for cash,
securities or other property) of all or substantially all of the assets of the Issuer, shall not
constitute a liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Issuer.

Section 5. Redemption.

(a) Optional Redemption. Except as provided below, the Designated Preferred Stock
may not be redeemed prior to the first Dividend Payment Date falling on or after the third
anniversary of the Original Issue Date. On or after the first Dividend Payment Date falling on or
after the third anniversary of the Original Issue Date, the Issuer, at its option, subject to the
approval of the Appropriate Federal Banking Agency, may redeem, in whole or in part, at any
time and from time to time, out of funds legally available therefor, the shares of Designated
Preferred Stock at the time outstanding, upon notice given as provided in Section 5(c) below, at a
redemption price equal to the sum of (i) the Liquidation Amount per share and (ii) except as
otherwise provided below, any accrued and unpaid dividends (including, if applicable as
provided in Section 3(a) above, dividends on such amount) (regardless of whether any dividends
are actually declared) to, but excluding, the date fixed for redemption.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, prior to the first Dividend Payment Date falling on or
after the third anniversary of the Original Issue Date, the Issuer, at its option, subject to the
approval of the Appropriate Federal Banking Agency, may redeem, in whole or in part, at any
time and from time to time, the shares of Designated Preferred Stock at the time outstanding,
upon notice given as provided in Section 5(c) below, at a redemption price equal to the sum of (i)
the Liquidation Amount per share and (ii) except as otherwise provided below, any accrued and
unpaid dividends (including, if applicable as provided in Section 3(a) above, dividends on such
amount) (regardless of whether any dividends are actually declared) to, but excluding, the date
fixed for redemption; provided that (x) the Issuer (or any successor by Business Combination)
has received aggregate gross proceeds of not less than the Minimum Amount (plus the
“Minimum Amount” as defined in the relevant certificate of designations for each other
outstanding series of preferred stock of such successor that was originally issued to the United
States Department of the Treasury (the “Successor Preferred Stock™) in connection with the
Troubled Asset Relief Program Capital Purchase Program) from one or more Qualified Equity
Offerings (including Qualified Equity Offerings of such successor), and (y) the aggregate
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redemption price of the Designated Preferred Stock (and any Successor Preferred Stock)
redeemed pursuant to this paragraph may not exceed the aggregate net cash proceeds received by
the Issuer (or any successor by Business Combination) from such Qualified Equity Offerings
(including Qualified Equity Offerings of such successor).

The redemption price for any shares of Designated Preferred Stock shall be payable on
the redemption date to the holder of such shares against surrender of the certificate(s) evidencing
such shares to the Issuer or its agent. Any declared but unpaid dividends payable on a
redemption date that occurs subsequent to the Dividend Record Date for a Dividend Period shall
not be paid to the holder entitled to receive the redemption price on the redemption date, but
rather shall be paid to the holder of record of the redeemed shares on such Dividend Record Date
relating to the Dividend Payment Date as provided in Section 3 above.

(b)  No Sinking Fund. The Designated Preferred Stock will not be subject to any
mandatory redemption, sinking fund or other similar provisions. Holders of Designated Preferred
Stock will have no right to require redemption or repurchase of any shares of Designated
Preferred Stock.

(©) Notice of Redemption. Notice of every redemption of shares of Designated
Preferred Stock shall be given by first class mail, postage prepaid, addressed to the holders of
record of the shares to be redeemed at their respective last addresses appearing on the books of
the Issuer. Such mailing shall be at least 30 days and not more than 60 days before the date fixed
for redemption. Any notice mailed as provided in this Subsection shall be conclusively presumed
to have been duly given, whether or not the holder receives such notice, but failure duly to give
such notice by mail, or any defect in such notice or in the mailing thereof, to any holder of shares
of Designated Preferred Stock designated for redemption shall not affect the validity of the
proceedings for the redemption of any other shares of Designated Preferred Stock.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if shares of Designated Preferred Stock are issued in book-entry
form through The Depository Trust Issuer or any other similar facility, notice of redemption may
be given to the holders of Designated Preferred Stock at such time and in any manner permitted
by such facility. Each notice of redemption given to a holder shall state: (1) the redemption date;
(2) the number of shares of Designated Preferred Stock to be redeemed and, if less than all the
shares held by such holder are to be redeemed, the number of such shares to be redeemed from
such holder; (3) the redemption price; and (4) the place or places where certificates for such
shares are to be surrendered for payment of the redemption price.

(d) Partial Redemption. In case of any redemption of part of the shares of Designated
Preferred Stock at the time outstanding, the shares to be redeemed shall be selected either pro
rata or in such other manner as the Board of Directors or a duly authorized committee thereof
may determine to be fair and equitable. Subject to the provisions hereof, the Board of Directors
or a duly authorized committee thereof shall have full power and authority to prescribe the terms
and conditions upon which shares of Designated Preferred Stock shall be redeemed from time to
time. If fewer than all the shares represented by any certificate are redeemed, a new certificate
shall be issued representing the unredeemed shares without charge to the holder thereof.

(e) Effectiveness of Redemption. If notice of redemption has been duly given and if
on or before the redemption date specified in the notice all funds necessary for the redemption
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have been deposited by the Issuer, in trust for the pro rata benefit of the holders of the shares
called for redemption, with a bank or trust company doing business in the Borough of
Manhattan, The City of New York, and having a capital and surplus of at least $500 million and
selected by the Board of Directors, so as to be and continue to be available solely therefor, then,
notwithstanding that any certificate for any share so called for redemption has not been
surrendered for cancellation, on and after the redemption date dividends shall cease to accrue on
all shares so called for redemption, all shares so called for redemption shall no longer be deemed
outstanding and all rights with respect to such shares shall forthwith on such redemption date
cease and terminate, except only the right of the holders thereof to receive the amount payable on
such redemption from such bank or trust company, without interest. Any funds unclaimed at the
end of three years from the redemption date shall, to the extent permitted by law, be released to
the Issuer, after which time the holders of the shares so called for redemption shall look only to
the Issuer for payment of the redemption price of such shares.

§)) Status of Redeemed Shares. Shares of Designated Preferred Stock that are
redeemed, repurchased or otherwise acquired by the Issuer shall revert to authorized but unissued
shares of Preferred Stock (provided that any such cancelled shares of Designated Preferred Stock
may be reissued only as shares of any series of Preferred Stock other than Designated Preferred
Stock).

Section 6. Conversion. Holders of Designated Preferred Stock shares shall have no right
to exchange or convert such shares into any other securities.

Section 7. Voting Rights.

(a) General. The holders of Designated Preferred Stock shall not have any voting
rights except as set forth below or as otherwise from time to time required by law.

(b) Preferred Stock Directors. Whenever, at any time or times, dividends payable on
the shares of Designated Preferred Stock have not been paid for an aggregate of six quarterly
Dividend Periods or more, whether or not consecutive, the authorized number of directors of the
Issuer shall automatically be increased by two and the holders of the Designated Preferred Stock
shall have the right, with holders of shares of any one or more other classes or series of Voting
Parity Stock outstanding at the time, voting together as a class, to elect two directors (hereinafter
the ““Preferred Directors™ and each a ““Preferred Director™) to fill such newly created
directorships at the Issuer’s next annual meeting of stockholders (or at a special meeting called
for that purpose prior to such next annual meeting) and at each subsequent annual meeting of
stockholders until all accrued and unpaid dividends for all past Dividend Periods, including the
latest completed Dividend Period (including, if applicable as provided in Section 3(a) above,
dividends on such amount), on all outstanding shares of Designated Preferred Stock have been
declared and paid in full at which time such right shall terminate with respect to the Designated
Preferred Stock, except as herein or by law expressly provided, subject to revesting in the event
of each and every subsequent default of the character above mentioned; provided that it shall be
a qualification for election for any Preferred Director that the election of such Preferred Director
shall not cause the Issuer to violate any corporate governance requirements of any securities
exchange or other trading facility on which securities of the Issuer may then be listed or traded
that listed or traded companies must have a majority of independent directors. Upon any
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termination of the right of the holders of shares of Designated Preferred Stock and Voting Parity
Stock as a class to vote for directors as provided above, the Preferred Directors shall cease to be
qualified as directors, the term of office of all Preferred Directors then in office shall terminate
immediately and the authorized number of directors shall be reduced by the number of Preferred
Directors elected pursuant hereto. Any Preferred Director may be removed at any time, with or
without cause, and any vacancy created thereby may be filled, only by the affirmative vote of the
holders a majority of the shares of Designated Preferred Stock at the time outstanding voting
separately as a class together with the holders of shares of Voting Parity Stock, to the extent the
voting rights of such holders described above are then exercisable. If the office of any Preferred
Director becomes vacant for any reason other than removal from office as aforesaid, the
remaining Preferred Director may choose a successor who shall hold office for the unexpired
term in respect of which such vacancy occurred.

(c) Class Voting Rights as to Particular Matters. So long as any shares of Designated
Preferred Stock are outstanding, in addition to any other vote or consent of stockholders required
by law or by the Charter, the vote or consent of the holders of at least 66 2/3% of the shares of
Designated Preferred Stock at the time outstanding, voting as a separate class, given in person or
by proxy, either in writing without a meeting or by vote at any meeting called for the purpose,
shall be necessary for effecting or validating:

(1) Authorization of Senior Stock. Any amendment or alteration of the
Certificate of Designations for the Designated Preferred Stock or the Charter to authorize
or create or increase the authorized amount of, or any issuance of, any shares of, or any
securities convertible into or exchangeable or exercisable for shares of, any class or series
of capital stock of the Issuer ranking senior to Designated Preferred Stock with respect to
either or both the payment of dividends and/or the distribution of assets on any
liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Issuer;

(11) Amendment of Designated Preferred Stock. Any amendment, alteration
or repeal of any provision of the Certificate of Designations for the Designated Preferred
Stock or the Charter (including, unless no vote on such merger or consolidation is
required by Section 7(c)(iii) below, any amendment, alteration or repeal by means of a
merger, consolidation or otherwise) so as to adversely affect the rights, preferences,
privileges or voting powers of the Designated Preferred Stock; or

(ii1))  Share Exchanges, Reclassifications, Mergers and Consolidations. Any
consummation of a binding share exchange or reclassification involving the Designated
Preferred Stock, or of a merger or consolidation of the Issuer with another corporation or
other entity, unless in each case (x) the shares of Designated Preferred Stock remain
outstanding or, in the case of any such merger or consolidation with respect to which the
Issuer is not the surviving or resulting entity, are converted into or exchanged for
preference securities of the surviving or resulting entity or its ultimate parent, and (y)
such shares remaining outstanding or such preference securities, as the case may be, have
such rights, preferences, privileges and voting powers, and limitations and restrictions
thereof, taken as a whole, as are not materially less favorable to the holders thereof than
the rights, preferences, privileges and voting powers, and limitations and restrictions
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thereof, of Designated Preferred Stock immediately prior to such consummation, taken as
a whole;

provided, however, that for all purposes of this Section 7(c), any increase in the amount of the
authorized Preferred Stock, including any increase in the authorized amount of Designated
Preferred Stock necessary to satisfy preemptive or similar rights granted by the Issuer to other
persons prior to the Signing Date, or the creation and issuance, or an increase in the authorized or
issued amount, whether pursuant to preemptive or similar rights or otherwise, of any other series
of Preferred Stock, or any securities convertible into or exchangeable or exercisable for any other
series of Preferred Stock, ranking equally with and/or junior to Designated Preferred Stock with
respect to the payment of dividends (whether such dividends are cumulative or non-cumulative)
and the distribution of assets upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Issuer will not be
deemed to adversely affect the rights, preferences, privileges or voting powers, and shall not
require the affirmative vote or consent of, the holders of outstanding shares of the Designated
Preferred Stock.

(d) Changes after Provision for Redemption. No vote or consent of the holders of
Designated Preferred Stock shall be required pursuant to Section 7(c) above if, at or prior to the
time when any such vote or consent would otherwise be required pursuant to such Section, all
outstanding shares of the Designated Preferred Stock shall have been redeemed, or shall have
been called for redemption upon proper notice and sufficient funds shall have been deposited in
trust for such redemption, in each case pursuant to Section 5 above.

(e) Procedures for Voting and Consents. The rules and procedures for calling and
conducting any meeting of the holders of Designated Preferred Stock (including, without
limitation, the fixing of a record date in connection therewith), the solicitation and use of proxies
at such a meeting, the obtaining of written consents and any other aspect or matter with regard to
such a meeting or such consents shall be governed by any rules of the Board of Directors or any
duly authorized committee of the Board of Directors, in its discretion, may adopt from time to
time, which rules and procedures shall conform to the requirements of the Charter, the Bylaws,
and applicable law and the rules of any national securities exchange or other trading facility on
which Designated Preferred Stock is listed or traded at the time.

Section 8. Record Holders. To the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, the Issuer
and the transfer agent for Designated Preferred Stock may deem and treat the record holder of
any share of Designated Preferred Stock as the true and lawful owner thereof for all purposes,
and neither the Issuer nor such transfer agent shall be affected by any notice to the contrary.

Section 9. Notices. All notices or communications in respect of Designated Preferred
Stock shall be sufficiently given if given in writing and delivered in person or by first class mail,
postage prepaid, or if given in such other manner as may be permitted in this Certificate of
Designations, in the Charter or Bylaws or by applicable law. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if
shares of Designated Preferred Stock are issued in book-entry form through The Depository
Trust Issuer or any similar facility, such notices may be given to the holders of Designated
Preferred Stock in any manner permitted by such facility.
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Section 10. No Preemptive Rights. No share of Designated Preferred Stock shall have
any rights of preemption whatsoever as to any securities of the Issuer, or any warrants, rights or
options issued or granted with respect thereto, regardless of how such securities, or such
warrants, rights or options, may be designated, issued or granted.

Section 11. Replacement Certificates. The Issuer shall replace any mutilated certificate at
the holder’s expense upon surrender of that certificate to the Issuer. The Issuer shall replace
certificates that become destroyed, stolen or lost at the holder’s expense upon delivery to the
Issuer of reasonably satisfactory evidence that the certificate has been destroyed, stolen or lost,
together with any indemnity that may be reasonably required by the Issuer.

Section 12. Other Rights. The shares of Designated Preferred Stock shall not have any
rights, preferences, privileges or voting powers or relative, participating, optional or other special
rights, or qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof, other than as set forth herein or in the
Charter or as provided by applicable law.
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ANNEX B

FORM OF CERTIFICATE OF DESIGNATIONS
FOR WARRANT PREFERRED STOCK

[SEE ATTACHED]
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ANNEX B
FORM OF [CERTIFICATE OF DESIGNATIONS]
OF
FIXED RATE CUMULATIVE PERPETUAL PREFERRED STOCK, SERIES [e]

OF
]

[Insert name of Issuer], a [corporation/bank/banking association] organized and existing
under the laws of the [Insert jurisdiction of organization] (the “Issuer”), in accordance with the
provisions of Section[s] [®] of the [Insert applicable statute] thereof, does hereby certify:

The board of directors of the Issuer (the “Board of Directors™) or an applicable committee
of the Board of Directors, in accordance with the [[certificate of incorporation/articles of
association] and bylaws] of the Issuer and applicable law, adopted the following resolution on
[®] creating a series of [®] shares of Preferred Stock of the Issuer designated as “Fixed Rate
Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, Series [@]”.

RESOLYVED, that pursuant to the provisions of the [[certificate of incorporation/articles
of association] and the bylaws] of the Issuer and applicable law, a series of Preferred Stock, par
value $[e] per share, of the Issuer be and hereby is created, and that the designation and number
of shares of such series, and the voting and other powers, preferences and relative, participating,
optional or other rights, and the qualifications, limitations and restrictions thereof, of the shares
of such series, are as follows:

Part 1. Designation and Number of Shares. There is hereby created out of the authorized
and unissued shares of preferred stock of the Issuer a series of preferred stock designated as the
“Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, Series [®]” (the “Designated Preferred
Stock™). The authorized number of shares of Designated Preferred Stock shall be [e].

Part 2. Standard Provisions. The Standard Provisions contained in Schedule A attached
hereto are incorporated herein by reference in their entirety and shall be deemed to be a part of
this [Certificate of Designations] to the same extent as if such provisions had been set forth in
full herein.

Part. 3. Definitions. The following terms are used in this [Certificate of Designations]
(including the Standard Provisions in Schedule A hereto) as defined below:

(a) “Common Stock” means the common stock, par value $[®] per share, of the
Issuer.

(b) “Dividend Payment Date” means February 15, May 15, August 15 and November
15 of each year.
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(c) “Junior Stock” means the Common Stock, [Insert titles of any existing Junior
Stock] and any other class or series of stock of the Issuer the terms of which expressly provide
that it ranks junior to Designated Preferred Stock as to dividend rights and/or as to rights on
liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Issuer.

(d) “Liquidation Amount” means $[1,000]" per share of Designated Preferred Stock.

(e) “Minimum Amount” means $[Insert $ amount equal to 25% of the aggregate
value of the Designated Preferred Stock issued on the Original Issue Date].

§)) “Parity Stock™ means any class or series of stock of the Issuer (other than
Designated Preferred Stock) the terms of which do not expressly provide that such class or series
will rank senior or junior to Designated Preferred Stock as to dividend rights and/or as to rights
on liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Issuer (in each case without regard to whether
dividends accrue cumulatively or non-cumulatively). Without limiting the foregoing, Parity
Stock shall include the Issuer’s UST Preferred Stock [and] [Insert title(s) of any other classes or
series of Parity Stock].

(2) “Signing Date” means [Insert date of applicable securities purchase agreement.

(h) “UST Preferred Stock™ means the Issuer’s Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual
Preferred Stock, Series [eo].

Part. 4. Certain Voting Matters. [To be inserted if the Charter provides for voting in
proportion to liquidation preferences: Whether the vote or consent of the holders of a plurality,
majority or other portion of the shares of Designated Preferred Stock and any Voting Parity
Stock has been cast or given on any matter on which the holders of shares of Designated
Preferred Stock are entitled to vote shall be determined by the Issuer by reference to the specified
liquidation amount of the shares voted or covered by the consent as if the Issuer were liquidated
on the record date for such vote or consent, if any, or, in the absence of a record date, on the date
for such vote or consent. For purposes of determining the voting rights of the holders of
Designated Preferred Stock under Section 7 of the Standard Provisions forming part of this
[Certificate of Designations], each holder will be entitled to one vote for each $1,000 of
liquidation preference to which such holder’s shares are entitled.] [To be inserted if the Charter
does not provide for voting in proportion to liquidation preferences: Holders of shares of
Designated Preferred Stock will be entitled to one vote for each such share on any matter on
which holders of Designated Preferred Stock are entitled to vote, including any action by written
consent.]

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank]

"If Issuer desires to issue shares with a higher dollar amount liquidation preference, liquidation preference
references will be modified accordingly. In such case (in accordance with Section 4.6 of the Securities
Purchase Agreement), the issuer will be required to enter into a deposit agreement.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, [Insert name of Issuer] has caused this [Certificate of
Designations] to be signed by [e], its [®], this [e] day of [e].

[Insert name of Issuer]
By:

Name:
Title:
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Schedule A

STANDARD PROVISIONS

Section 1. General Matters. Each share of Designated Preferred Stock shall be identical
in all respects to every other share of Designated Preferred Stock. The Designated Preferred
Stock shall be perpetual, subject to the provisions of Section 5 of these Standard Provisions that
form a part of the Certificate of Designations. The Designated Preferred Stock shall rank equally
with Parity Stock and shall rank senior to Junior Stock with respect to the payment of dividends
and the distribution of assets in the event of any dissolution, liquidation or winding up of the
Issuer.

Section 2. Standard Definitions. As used herein with respect to Designated Preferred

Stock:

(a) “Appropriate Federal Banking Agency” means the “appropriate Federal banking
agency” with respect to the Issuer as defined in Section 3(q) of the Federal Deposit Insurance
Act (12 U.S.C. Section 1813(q)), or any successor provision.

(b) “Business Combination” means a merger, consolidation, statutory share
exchange or similar transaction that requires the approval of the Issuer’s stockholders.

() “Business Day” means any day except Saturday, Sunday and any day on which
banking institutions in the State of New York generally are authorized or required by law or
other governmental actions to close.

(d) “Bylaws” means the bylaws of the Issuer, as they may be amended from time to
time.

(e) “Certificate of Designations” means the Certificate of Designations or comparable
instrument relating to the Designated Preferred Stock, of which these Standard Provisions form a
part, as it may be amended from time to time.

€3] “Charter” means the Issuer’s certificate or articles of incorporation, articles of
association, or similar organizational document.

(2) “Dividend Period” has the meaning set forth in Section 3(a).

(h) “Dividend Record Date” has the meaning set forth in Section 3(a).

(1) “Liquidation Preference” has the meaning set forth in Section 4(a).

)] “Original Issue Date” means the date on which shares of Designated Preferred
Stock are first issued.

(k) “Preferred Director” has the meaning set forth in Section 7(b).
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) “Preferred Stock” means any and all series of preferred stock of the Issuer,
including the Designated Preferred Stock.

(m)  “Qualified Equity Offering” means the sale and issuance for cash by the Issuer to
persons other than the Issuer or any of its subsidiaries after the Original Issue Date of shares of
perpetual Preferred Stock, Common Stock or any combination of such stock, that, in each case,
qualify as and may be included in Tier 1 capital of the Issuer at the time of issuance under the
applicable risk-based capital guidelines of the Issuer’s Appropriate Federal Banking Agency
(other than any such sales and issuances made pursuant to agreements or arrangements entered
into, or pursuant to financing plans which were publicly announced, on or prior to November 17,
2008).

(n) “Standard Provisions” mean these Standard Provisions that form a part of the
Certificate of Designations relating to the Designated Preferred Stock.

(0) “Successor Preferred Stock™ has the meaning set forth in Section 5(a).

(p) “Voting Parity Stock™ means, with regard to any matter as to which the holders of
Designated Preferred Stock are entitled to vote as specified in Sections 7(a) and 7(b) of these
Standard Provisions that form a part of the Certificate of Designations, any and all series of
Parity Stock upon which like voting rights have been conferred and are exercisable with respect
to such matter.

Section 3. Dividends.

(a) Rate. Holders of Designated Preferred Stock shall be entitled to receive, on each
share of Designated Preferred Stock if, as and when declared by the Board of Directors or any
duly authorized committee of the Board of Directors, but only out of assets legally available
therefor, cumulative cash dividends with respect to each Dividend Period (as defined below) at a
per annum rate of 9.0% on (1) the Liquidation Amount per share of Designated Preferred Stock
and (ii) the amount of accrued and unpaid dividends for any prior Dividend Period on such share
of Designated Preferred Stock, if any. Such dividends shall begin to accrue and be cumulative
from the Original Issue Date, shall compound on each subsequent Dividend Payment Date (i.e.,
no dividends shall accrue on other dividends unless and until the first Dividend Payment Date for
such other dividends has passed without such other dividends having been paid on such date) and
shall be payable quarterly in arrears on each Dividend Payment Date, commencing with the first
such Dividend Payment Date to occur at least 20 calendar days after the Original Issue Date. In
the event that any Dividend Payment Date would otherwise fall on a day that is not a Business
Day, the dividend payment due on that date will be postponed to the next day that is a Business
Day and no additional dividends will accrue as a result of that postponement. The period from
and including any Dividend Payment Date to, but excluding, the next Dividend Payment Date is
a “Dividend Period”, provided that the initial Dividend Period shall be the period from and
including the Original Issue Date to, but excluding, the next Dividend Payment Date.

Dividends that are payable on Designated Preferred Stock in respect of any Dividend
Period shall be computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months. The
amount of dividends payable on Designated Preferred Stock on any date prior to the end of a
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Dividend Period, and for the initial Dividend Period, shall be computed on the basis of a 360-day
year consisting of twelve 30-day months, and actual days elapsed over a 30-day month.

Dividends that are payable on Designated Preferred Stock on any Dividend Payment Date
will be payable to holders of record of Designated Preferred Stock as they appear on the stock
register of the Issuer on the applicable record date, which shall be the 15th calendar day
immediately preceding such Dividend Payment Date or such other record date fixed by the
Board of Directors or any duly authorized committee of the Board of Directors that is not more
than 60 nor less than 10 days prior to such Dividend Payment Date (each, a “Dividend Record
Date”). Any such day that is a Dividend Record Date shall be a Dividend Record Date whether
or not such day is a Business Day.

Holders of Designated Preferred Stock shall not be entitled to any dividends, whether
payable in cash, securities or other property, other than dividends (if any) declared and payable
on Designated Preferred Stock as specified in this Section 3 (subject to the other provisions of
the Certificate of Designations).

(b) Priority of Dividends. So long as any share of Designated Preferred Stock
remains outstanding, no dividend or distribution shall be declared or paid on the Common Stock
or any other shares of Junior Stock (other than dividends payable solely in shares of Common
Stock) or Parity Stock, subject to the immediately following paragraph in the case of Parity
Stock, and no Common Stock, Junior Stock or Parity Stock shall be, directly or indirectly,
purchased, redeemed or otherwise acquired for consideration by the Issuer or any of its
subsidiaries unless all accrued and unpaid dividends for all past Dividend Periods, including the
latest completed Dividend Period (including, if applicable as provided in Section 3(a) above,
dividends on such amount), on all outstanding shares of Designated Preferred Stock have been or
are contemporaneously declared and paid in full (or have been declared and a sum sufficient for
the payment thereof has been set aside for the benefit of the holders of shares of Designated
Preferred Stock on the applicable record date). The foregoing limitation shall not apply to (i)
redemptions, purchases or other acquisitions of shares of Common Stock or other Junior Stock in
connection with the administration of any employee benefit plan in the ordinary course of
business and consistent with past practice; (ii) the acquisition by the Issuer or any of its
subsidiaries of record ownership in Junior Stock or Parity Stock for the beneficial ownership of
any other persons (other than the Issuer or any of its subsidiaries), including as trustees or
custodians; and (iii) the exchange or conversion of Junior Stock for or into other Junior Stock or
of Parity Stock for or into other Parity Stock (with the same or lesser aggregate liquidation
amount) or Junior Stock, in each case, solely to the extent required pursuant to binding
contractual agreements entered into prior to the Signing Date or any subsequent agreement for
the accelerated exercise, settlement or exchange thereof for Common Stock.

When dividends are not paid (or declared and a sum sufficient for payment thereof set
aside for the benefit of the holders thereof on the applicable record date) on any Dividend
Payment Date (or, in the case of Parity Stock having dividend payment dates different from the
Dividend Payment Dates, on a dividend payment date falling within a Dividend Period related to
such Dividend Payment Date) in full upon Designated Preferred Stock and any shares of Parity
Stock, all dividends declared on Designated Preferred Stock and all such Parity Stock and
payable on such Dividend Payment Date (or, in the case of Parity Stock having dividend

A-3
095331-0002-11515-NY02.2693646.6
UST Seq. No. 327



payment dates different from the Dividend Payment Dates, on a dividend payment date falling
within the Dividend Period related to such Dividend Payment Date) shall be declared pro rata so
that the respective amounts of such dividends declared shall bear the same ratio to each other as
all accrued and unpaid dividends per share on the shares of Designated Preferred Stock
(including, if applicable as provided in Section 3(a) above, dividends on such amount) and all
Parity Stock payable on such Dividend Payment Date (or, in the case of Parity Stock having
dividend payment dates different from the Dividend Payment Dates, on a dividend payment date
falling within the Dividend Period related to such Dividend Payment Date) (subject to their
having been declared by the Board of Directors or a duly authorized committee of the Board of
Directors out of legally available funds and including, in the case of Parity Stock that bears
cumulative dividends, all accrued but unpaid dividends) bear to each other. If the Board of
Directors or a duly authorized committee of the Board of Directors determines not to pay any
dividend or a full dividend on a Dividend Payment Date, the Issuer will provide written notice to
the holders of Designated Preferred Stock prior to such Dividend Payment Date.

Subject to the foregoing, and not otherwise, such dividends (payable in cash, securities or
other property) as may be determined by the Board of Directors or any duly authorized
committee of the Board of Directors may be declared and paid on any securities, including
Common Stock and other Junior Stock, from time to time out of any funds legally available for
such payment, and holders of Designated Preferred Stock shall not be entitled to participate in
any such dividends.

Section 4. Liquidation Rights.

(a) Voluntary or Involuntary Liquidation. In the event of any liquidation, dissolution
or winding up of the affairs of the Issuer, whether voluntary or involuntary, holders of
Designated Preferred Stock shall be entitled to receive for each share of Designated Preferred
Stock, out of the assets of the Issuer or proceeds thereof (whether capital or surplus) available for
distribution to stockholders of the Issuer, subject to the rights of any creditors of the Issuer,
before any distribution of such assets or proceeds is made to or set aside for the holders of
Common Stock and any other stock of the Issuer ranking junior to Designated Preferred Stock as
to such distribution, payment in full in an amount equal to the sum of (i) the Liquidation Amount
per share and (ii) the amount of any accrued and unpaid dividends (including, if applicable as
provided in Section 3(a) above, dividends on such amount), whether or not declared, to the date
of payment (such amounts collectively, the “Liquidation Preference”).

(b) Partial Payment. If in any distribution described in Section 4(a) above the assets
of the Issuer or proceeds thereof are not sufficient to pay in full the amounts payable with respect
to all outstanding shares of Designated Preferred Stock and the corresponding amounts payable
with respect of any other stock of the Issuer ranking equally with Designated Preferred Stock as
to such distribution, holders of Designated Preferred Stock and the holders of such other stock
shall share ratably in any such distribution in proportion to the full respective distributions to
which they are entitled.

(c) Residual Distributions. If the Liquidation Preference has been paid in full to all
holders of Designated Preferred Stock and the corresponding amounts payable with respect of
any other stock of the Issuer ranking equally with Designated Preferred Stock as to such
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distribution has been paid in full, the holders of other stock of the Issuer shall be entitled to
receive all remaining assets of the Issuer (or proceeds thereof) according to their respective rights
and preferences.

(d) Merger, Consolidation and Sale of Assets Not Liquidation. For purposes of this
Section 4, the merger or consolidation of the Issuer with any other corporation or other entity,
including a merger or consolidation in which the holders of Designated Preferred Stock receive
cash, securities or other property for their shares, or the sale, lease or exchange (for cash,
securities or other property) of all or substantially all of the assets of the Issuer, shall not
constitute a liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Issuer.

Section 5. Redemption.

(a) Optional Redemption. Except as provided below, the Designated Preferred Stock
may not be redeemed prior to the later of (i) first Dividend Payment Date falling on or after the
third anniversary of the Original Issue Date; and (ii) the date on which all outstanding shares of
UST Preferred Stock have been redeemed, repurchased or otherwise acquired by the Issuer. On
or after the first Dividend Payment Date falling on or after the third anniversary of the Original
Issue Date, the Issuer, at its option, subject to the approval of the Appropriate Federal Banking
Agency, may redeem, in whole or in part, at any time and from time to time, out of funds legally
available therefor, the shares of Designated Preferred Stock at the time outstanding, upon notice
given as provided in Section 5(c) below, at a redemption price equal to the sum of (i) the
Liquidation Amount per share and (ii) except as otherwise provided below, any accrued and
unpaid dividends (including, if applicable as provided in Section 3(a) above, dividends on such
amount) (regardless of whether any dividends are actually declared) to, but excluding, the date
fixed for redemption.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, prior to the first Dividend Payment Date falling on or
after the third anniversary of the Original Issue Date, the Issuer, at its option, subject to the
approval of the Appropriate Federal Banking Agency and subject to the requirement that all
outstanding shares of UST Preferred Stock shall previously have been redeemed, repurchased or
otherwise acquired by the Issuer, may redeem, in whole or in part, at any time and from time to
time, the shares of Designated Preferred Stock at the time outstanding, upon notice given as
provided in Section 5(c) below, at a redemption price equal to the sum of (i) the Liquidation
Amount per share and (ii) except as otherwise provided below, any accrued and unpaid
dividends (including, if applicable as provided in Section 3(a) above, dividends on such amount)
(regardless of whether any dividends are actually declared) to, but excluding, the date fixed for
redemption; provided that (x) the Issuer (or any successor by Business Combination) has
received aggregate gross proceeds of not less than the Minimum Amount (plus the “Minimum
Amount” as defined in the relevant certificate of designations for each other outstanding series of
preferred stock of such successor that was originally issued to the United States Department of
the Treasury (the “Successor Preferred Stock™) in connection with the Troubled Asset Relief
Program Capital Purchase Program) from one or more Qualified Equity Offerings (including
Qualified Equity Offerings of such successor), and (y) the aggregate redemption price of the
Designated Preferred Stock (and any Successor Preferred Stock) redeemed pursuant to this
paragraph may not exceed the aggregate net cash proceeds received by the Issuer (or any
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successor by Business Combination) from such Qualified Equity Offerings (including Qualified
Equity Offerings of such successor).

The redemption price for any shares of Designated Preferred Stock shall be payable on
the redemption date to the holder of such shares against surrender of the certificate(s) evidencing
such shares to the Issuer or its agent. Any declared but unpaid dividends payable on a
redemption date that occurs subsequent to the Dividend Record Date for a Dividend Period shall
not be paid to the holder entitled to receive the redemption price on the redemption date, but
rather shall be paid to the holder of record of the redeemed shares on such Dividend Record Date
relating to the Dividend Payment Date as provided in Section 3 above.

(b)  No Sinking Fund. The Designated Preferred Stock will not be subject to any
mandatory redemption, sinking fund or other similar provisions. Holders of Designated Preferred
Stock will have no right to require redemption or repurchase of any shares of Designated
Preferred Stock.

(©) Notice of Redemption. Notice of every redemption of shares of Designated
Preferred Stock shall be given by first class mail, postage prepaid, addressed to the holders of
record of the shares to be redeemed at their respective last addresses appearing on the books of
the Issuer. Such mailing shall be at least 30 days and not more than 60 days before the date fixed
for redemption. Any notice mailed as provided in this Subsection shall be conclusively presumed
to have been duly given, whether or not the holder receives such notice, but failure duly to give
such notice by mail, or any defect in such notice or in the mailing thereof, to any holder of shares
of Designated Preferred Stock designated for redemption shall not affect the validity of the
proceedings for the redemption of any other shares of Designated Preferred Stock.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if shares of Designated Preferred Stock are issued in book-entry
form through The Depository Trust Issuer or any other similar facility, notice of redemption may
be given to the holders of Designated Preferred Stock at such time and in any manner permitted
by such facility. Each notice of redemption given to a holder shall state: (1) the redemption date;
(2) the number of shares of Designated Preferred Stock to be redeemed and, if less than all the
shares held by such holder are to be redeemed, the number of such shares to be redeemed from
such holder; (3) the redemption price; and (4) the place or places where certificates for such
shares are to be surrendered for payment of the redemption price.

(d) Partial Redemption. In case of any redemption of part of the shares of Designated
Preferred Stock at the time outstanding, the shares to be redeemed shall be selected either pro
rata or in such other manner as the Board of Directors or a duly authorized committee thereof
may determine to be fair and equitable. Subject to the provisions hereof, the Board of Directors
or a duly authorized committee thereof shall have full power and authority to prescribe the terms
and conditions upon which shares of Designated Preferred Stock shall be redeemed from time to
time. If fewer than all the shares represented by any certificate are redeemed, a new certificate
shall be issued representing the unredeemed shares without charge to the holder thereof.

(e) Effectiveness of Redemption. If notice of redemption has been duly given and if
on or before the redemption date specified in the notice all funds necessary for the redemption
have been deposited by the Issuer, in trust for the pro rata benefit of the holders of the shares
called for redemption, with a bank or trust company doing business in the Borough of
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Manhattan, The City of New York, and having a capital and surplus of at least $500 million and
selected by the Board of Directors, so as to be and continue to be available solely therefor, then,
notwithstanding that any certificate for any share so called for redemption has not been
surrendered for cancellation, on and after the redemption date dividends shall cease to accrue on
all shares so called for redemption, all shares so called for redemption shall no longer be deemed
outstanding and all rights with respect to such shares shall forthwith on such redemption date
cease and terminate, except only the right of the holders thereof to receive the amount payable on
such redemption from such bank or trust company, without interest. Any funds unclaimed at the
end of three years from the redemption date shall, to the extent permitted by law, be released to
the Issuer, after which time the holders of the shares so called for redemption shall look only to
the Issuer for payment of the redemption price of such shares.

§)) Status of Redeemed Shares. Shares of Designated Preferred Stock that are
redeemed, repurchased or otherwise acquired by the Issuer shall revert to authorized but unissued
shares of Preferred Stock (provided that any such cancelled shares of Designated Preferred Stock

may be reissued only as shares of any series of Preferred Stock other than Designated Preferred
Stock).

Section 6. Conversion. Holders of Designated Preferred Stock shares shall have no right
to exchange or convert such shares into any other securities.

Section 7. Voting Rights.

(a) General. The holders of Designated Preferred Stock shall not have any voting
rights except as set forth below or as otherwise from time to time required by law.

(b) Preferred Stock Directors. Whenever, at any time or times, dividends payable on
the shares of Designated Preferred Stock have not been paid for an aggregate of six quarterly
Dividend Periods or more, whether or not consecutive, the authorized number of directors of the
Issuer shall automatically be increased by two and the holders of the Designated Preferred Stock
shall have the right, with holders of shares of any one or more other classes or series of Voting
Parity Stock outstanding at the time, voting together as a class, to elect two directors (hereinafter
the ““Preferred Directors™ and each a ““Preferred Director™) to fill such newly created
directorships at the Issuer’s next annual meeting of stockholders (or at a special meeting called
for that purpose prior to such next annual meeting) and at each subsequent annual meeting of
stockholders until all accrued and unpaid dividends for all past Dividend Periods, including the
latest completed Dividend Period (including, if applicable as provided in Section 3(a) above,
dividends on such amount), on all outstanding shares of Designated Preferred Stock have been
declared and paid in full at which time such right shall terminate with respect to the Designated
Preferred Stock, except as herein or by law expressly provided, subject to revesting in the event
of each and every subsequent default of the character above mentioned; provided that it shall be
a qualification for election for any Preferred Director that the election of such Preferred Director
shall not cause the Issuer to violate any corporate governance requirements of any securities
exchange or other trading facility on which securities of the Issuer may then be listed or traded
that listed or traded companies must have a majority of independent directors. Upon any
termination of the right of the holders of shares of Designated Preferred Stock and Voting Parity
Stock as a class to vote for directors as provided above, the Preferred Directors shall cease to be
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qualified as directors, the term of office of all Preferred Directors then in office shall terminate
immediately and the authorized number of directors shall be reduced by the number of Preferred
Directors elected pursuant hereto. Any Preferred Director may be removed at any time, with or
without cause, and any vacancy created thereby may be filled, only by the affirmative vote of the
holders a majority of the shares of Designated Preferred Stock at the time outstanding voting
separately as a class together with the holders of shares of Voting Parity Stock, to the extent the
voting rights of such holders described above are then exercisable. If the office of any Preferred
Director becomes vacant for any reason other than removal from office as aforesaid, the
remaining Preferred Director may choose a successor who shall hold office for the unexpired
term in respect of which such vacancy occurred.

(c) Class Voting Rights as to Particular Matters. So long as any shares of Designated
Preferred Stock are outstanding, in addition to any other vote or consent of stockholders required
by law or by the Charter, the vote or consent of the holders of at least 66 2/3% of the shares of
Designated Preferred Stock at the time outstanding, voting as a separate class, given in person or
by proxy, either in writing without a meeting or by vote at any meeting called for the purpose,
shall be necessary for effecting or validating:

(1) Authorization of Senior Stock. Any amendment or alteration of the
Certificate of Designations for the Designated Preferred Stock or the Charter to authorize
or create or increase the authorized amount of, or any issuance of, any shares of, or any
securities convertible into or exchangeable or exercisable for shares of, any class or series
of capital stock of the Issuer ranking senior to Designated Preferred Stock with respect to
either or both the payment of dividends and/or the distribution of assets on any
liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Issuer;

(11) Amendment of Designated Preferred Stock. Any amendment, alteration
or repeal of any provision of the Certificate of Designations for the Designated Preferred
Stock or the Charter (including, unless no vote on such merger or consolidation is
required by Section 7(c)(iii) below, any amendment, alteration or repeal by means of a
merger, consolidation or otherwise) so as to adversely affect the rights, preferences,
privileges or voting powers of the Designated Preferred Stock; or

(ii1))  Share Exchanges, Reclassifications, Mergers and Consolidations. Any
consummation of a binding share exchange or reclassification involving the Designated
Preferred Stock, or of a merger or consolidation of the Issuer with another corporation or
other entity, unless in each case (x) the shares of Designated Preferred Stock remain
outstanding or, in the case of any such merger or consolidation with respect to which the
Issuer is not the surviving or resulting entity, are converted into or exchanged for
preference securities of the surviving or resulting entity or its ultimate parent, and (y)
such shares remaining outstanding or such preference securities, as the case may be, have
such rights, preferences, privileges and voting powers, and limitations and restrictions
thereof, taken as a whole, as are not materially less favorable to the holders thereof than
the rights, preferences, privileges and voting powers, and limitations and restrictions
thereof, of Designated Preferred Stock immediately prior to such consummation, taken as
a whole;
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provided, however, that for all purposes of this Section 7(c), any increase in the amount of the
authorized Preferred Stock, including any increase in the authorized amount of Designated
Preferred Stock necessary to satisfy preemptive or similar rights granted by the Issuer to other
persons prior to the Signing Date, or the creation and issuance, or an increase in the authorized or
issued amount, whether pursuant to preemptive or similar rights or otherwise, of any other series
of Preferred Stock, or any securities convertible into or exchangeable or exercisable for any other
series of Preferred Stock, ranking equally with and/or junior to Designated Preferred Stock with
respect to the payment of dividends (whether such dividends are cumulative or non-cumulative)
and the distribution of assets upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Issuer will not be
deemed to adversely affect the rights, preferences, privileges or voting powers, and shall not
require the affirmative vote or consent of, the holders of outstanding shares of the Designated
Preferred Stock.

(d) Changes after Provision for Redemption. No vote or consent of the holders of
Designated Preferred Stock shall be required pursuant to Section 7(c) above if, at or prior to the
time when any such vote or consent would otherwise be required pursuant to such Section, all
outstanding shares of the Designated Preferred Stock shall have been redeemed, or shall have
been called for redemption upon proper notice and sufficient funds shall have been deposited in
trust for such redemption, in each case pursuant to Section 5 above.

(e) Procedures for Voting and Consents. The rules and procedures for calling and
conducting any meeting of the holders of Designated Preferred Stock (including, without
limitation, the fixing of a record date in connection therewith), the solicitation and use of proxies
at such a meeting, the obtaining of written consents and any other aspect or matter with regard to
such a meeting or such consents shall be governed by any rules of the Board of Directors or any
duly authorized committee of the Board of Directors, in its discretion, may adopt from time to
time, which rules and procedures shall conform to the requirements of the Charter, the Bylaws,
and applicable law and the rules of any national securities exchange or other trading facility on
which Designated Preferred Stock is listed or traded at the time.

Section 8. Record Holders. To the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, the Issuer
and the transfer agent for Designated Preferred Stock may deem and treat the record holder of
any share of Designated Preferred Stock as the true and lawful owner thereof for all purposes,
and neither the Issuer nor such transfer agent shall be affected by any notice to the contrary.

Section 9. Notices. All notices or communications in respect of Designated Preferred
Stock shall be sufficiently given if given in writing and delivered in person or by first class mail,
postage prepaid, or if given in such other manner as may be permitted in this Certificate of
Designations, in the Charter or Bylaws or by applicable law. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if
shares of Designated Preferred Stock are issued in book-entry form through The Depository
Trust Issuer or any similar facility, such notices may be given to the holders of Designated
Preferred Stock in any manner permitted by such facility.

Section 10. No Preemptive Rights. No share of Designated Preferred Stock shall have
any rights of preemption whatsoever as to any securities of the Issuer, or any warrants, rights or
options issued or granted with respect thereto, regardless of how such securities, or such
warrants, rights or options, may be designated, issued or granted.
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Section 11. Replacement Certificates. The Issuer shall replace any mutilated certificate at
the holder’s expense upon surrender of that certificate to the Issuer. The Issuer shall replace
certificates that become destroyed, stolen or lost at the holder’s expense upon delivery to the
Issuer of reasonably satisfactory evidence that the certificate has been destroyed, stolen or lost,
together with any indemnity that may be reasonably required by the Issuer.

Section 12. Other Rights. The shares of Designated Preferred Stock shall not have any
rights, preferences, privileges or voting powers or relative, participating, optional or other special
rights, or qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof, other than as set forth herein or in the
Charter or as provided by applicable law.
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ANNEX C

FORM OF WAIVER

In consideration for the benefits | will receive as a result of my employer’s participation in the
United States Department of the Treasury’s TARP Capital Purchase Program, | hereby
voluntarily waive any claim against the United States or my employer for any changes to my
compensation or benefits that are required to comply with the regulation issued by the
Department of the Treasury as published in the Federal Register on October 20, 2008.

I acknowledge that this regulation may require modification of the compensation, bonus,
incentive and other benefit plans, arrangements, policies and agreements (including so-called
“golden parachute” agreements) that | have with my employer or in which | participate as they
relate to the period the United States holds any equity or debt securities of my employer acquired
through the TARP Capital Purchase Program.

This waiver includes all claims I may have under the laws of the United States or any state
related to the requirements imposed by the aforementioned regulation, including without
limitation a claim for any compensation or other payments | would otherwise receive, any
challenge to the process by which this regulation was adopted and any tort or constitutional
claim about the effect of these regulations on my employment relationship.
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ANNEX D

FORM OF OPINION

@) The Company has been duly incorporated and is validly existing as a corporation
in good standing under the laws of the state of its incorporation.

(b) The Preferred Shares have been duly and validly authorized, and, when issued and
delivered pursuant to the Agreement, the Preferred Shares will be duly and validly issued and
fully paid and non-assessable, will not be issued in violation of any preemptive rights, and will
rank pari passu with or senior to all other series or classes of Preferred Stock issued on the
Closing Date with respect to the payment of dividends and the distribution of assets in the event
of any dissolution, liquidation or winding up of the Company.

(c) The Warrant has been duly authorized and, when executed and delivered as
contemplated by the Agreement, will constitute a valid and legally binding obligation of the
Company enforceable against the Company in accordance with its terms, except as the same may
be limited by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or similar laws
affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights generally and general equitable principles,
regardless of whether such enforceability is considered in a proceeding at law or in equity.

(d) The shares of Warrant Preferred Stock issuable upon exercise of the Warrant have
been duly authorized and reserved for issuance upon exercise of the Warrant and when so issued
in accordance with the terms of the Warrant will be validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable,
and will rank pari passu with or senior to all other series or classes of Preferred Stock, whether
or not issued or outstanding, with respect to the payment of dividends and the distribution of
assets in the event of any dissolution, liquidation or winding up of the Company.

(e) The Company has the corporate power and authority to execute and deliver the
Agreement and the Warrant and to carry out its obligations thereunder (which includes the
issuance of the Preferred Shares, Warrant and Warrant Shares).

U] The execution, delivery and performance by the Company of the Agreement and
the Warrant and the consummation of the transactions contemplated thereby have been duly
authorized by all necessary corporate action on the part of the Company and its stockholders, and
no further approval or authorization is required on the part of the Company.

(@)  The Agreement is a valid and binding obligation of the Company enforceable
against the Company in accordance with its terms, except as the same may be limited by
applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or similar laws affecting the
enforcement of creditors’ rights generally and general equitable principles, regardless of whether
such enforceability is considered in a proceeding at law or in equity; provided, however, such
counsel need express no opinion with respect to Section 4.5(h) or the severability provisions of
the Agreement insofar as Section 4.5(h) is concerned.
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ANNEX E

FORM OF WARRANT

[SEE ATTACHED]
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ANNEX E
FORM OF WARRANT TO PURCHASE PREFERRED STOCK

THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS INSTRUMENT HAVE NOT BEEN
REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR THE
SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY STATE AND MAY NOT BE TRANSFERRED, SOLD OR
OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF EXCEPT WHILE A REGISTRATION STATEMENT
RELATING THERETO IS IN EFFECT UNDER SUCH ACT AND APPLICABLE STATE
SECURITIES LAWS OR PURSUANT TO AN EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION
UNDER SUCH ACT OR SUCH LAWS. THIS INSTRUMENT IS ISSUED SUBJECT TO
THE RESTRICTIONS ON TRANSFER AND OTHER PROVISIONS OF A SECURITIES
PURCHASE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE ISSUER OF THESE SECURITIES AND THE
INVESTOR REFERRED TO THEREIN, A COPY OF WHICH IS ON FILE WITH THE
ISSUER. THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS INSTRUMENT MAY NOT BE
SOLD OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED EXCEPT IN COMPLIANCE WITH SAID
AGREEMENT. ANY SALE OR OTHER TRANSFER NOT IN COMPLIANCE WITH SAID
AGREEMENT WILL BE VOID.

WARRANT
to purchase

Shares of Preferred Stock

of

Issue Date:

1. Definitions. Unless the context otherwise requires, when used herein the
following terms shall have the meanings indicated.

“Board of Directors” means the board of directors of the Company, including any duly
authorized committee thereof.

“business day” means any day except Saturday, Sunday and any day on which banking
institutions in the State of New York generally are authorized or required by law or other
governmental actions to close.

“Charter” means, with respect to any Person, its certificate or articles of incorporation,
articles of association, or similar organizational document.

“Company” means the Person whose name, corporate or other organizational form and
jurisdiction of organization is set forth in Item 1 of Schedule A hereto.
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“Exchange Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or any
successor statute, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.

“Exercise Price” means the amount set forth in Item 2 of Schedule A hereto.
“Expiration Time” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.

“Issue Date” means the date set forth in Item 3 of Schedule A hereto.
“Liquidation Amount” means the amount set forth in Item 4 of Schedule A hereto.

“Original Warrantholder” means the United States Department of the Treasury. Any
actions specified to be taken by the Original Warrantholder hereunder may only be taken by such
Person and not by any other Warrantholder.

“Person” has the meaning given to it in Section 3(a)(9) of the Exchange Act and as used
in Sections 13(d)(3) and 14(d)(2) of the Exchange Act.

“Preferred Stock” means the series of perpetual preferred stock set forth in Item 5 of
Schedule A hereto.

“Purchase Agreement” means the Securities Purchase Agreement — Standard Terms
incorporated into the Letter Agreement, dated as of the date set forth in Item 6 of Schedule A
hereto, as amended from time to time, between the Company and the United States Department
of the Treasury (the “Letter Agreement”), including all annexes and schedules thereto.

“Regulatory Approvals” with respect to the Warrantholder, means, to the extent
applicable and required to permit the Warrantholder to exercise this Warrant for shares of
Preferred Stock and to own such Preferred Stock without the Warrantholder being in violation of
applicable law, rule or regulation, the receipt of any necessary approvals and authorizations of,
filings and registrations with, notifications to, or expiration or termination of any applicable
waiting period under, the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976, as amended,
and the rules and regulations thereunder.

“SEC” means the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission.

“Securities Act” means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or any successor statute,
and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.

“Shares” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.
“Warrantholder” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.
“Warrant” means this Warrant, issued pursuant to the Purchase Agreement.

2. Number of Shares; Exercise Price. This certifies that, for value received, the
United States Department of the Treasury or its permitted assigns (the “Warrantholder”) is
entitled, upon the terms and subject to the conditions hereinafter set forth, to acquire from the
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Company, in whole or in part, after the receipt of all applicable Regulatory Approvals, if any, up
to an aggregate of the number of fully paid and nonassessable shares of Preferred Stock set forth
in Item 7 of Schedule A hereto (the “Shares”), at a purchase price per share of Preferred Stock
equal to the Exercise Price.

3. Exercise of Warrant; Term. Subject to Section 2, to the extent permitted by
applicable laws and regulations, the right to purchase the Shares represented by this Warrant is
exercisable, in whole or in part by the Warrantholder, at any time or from time to time after the
execution and delivery of this Warrant by the Company on the date hereof, but in no event later
than 5:00 p.m., New York City time on the tenth anniversary of the Issue Date (the “Expiration
Time”), by (A) the surrender of this Warrant and Notice of Exercise annexed hereto, duly
completed and executed on behalf of the Warrantholder, at the principal executive office of the
Company located at the address set forth in Item 8 of Schedule A hereto (or such other office or
agency of the Company in the United States as it may designate by notice in writing to the
Warrantholder at the address of the Warrantholder appearing on the books of the Company), and
(B) payment of the Exercise Price for the Shares thereby purchased, by having the Company
withhold, from the shares of Preferred Stock that would otherwise be delivered to the
Warrantholder upon such exercise, shares of Preferred Stock issuable upon exercise of the
Warrant with an aggregate Liquidation Amount equal in value to the aggregate Exercise Price as
to which this Warrant is so exercised.

If the Warrantholder does not exercise this Warrant in its entirety, the
Warrantholder will be entitled to receive from the Company within a reasonable time, and in any
event not exceeding three business days, a new warrant in substantially identical form for the
purchase of that number of Shares equal to the difference between the number of Shares subject
to this Warrant and the number of Shares as to which this Warrant is so exercised.
Notwithstanding anything in this Warrant to the contrary, the Warrantholder hereby
acknowledges and agrees that its exercise of this Warrant for Shares is subject to the condition
that the Warrantholder will have first received any applicable Regulatory Approvals.

4. Issuance of Shares; Authorization. Certificates for Shares issued upon exercise of
this Warrant will be issued in such name or names as the Warrantholder may designate and will
be delivered to such named Person or Persons within a reasonable time, not to exceed three
business days after the date on which this Warrant has been duly exercised in accordance with
the terms of this Warrant. The Company hereby represents and warrants that any Shares issued
upon the exercise of this Warrant in accordance with the provisions of Section 3 will be duly and
validly authorized and issued, fully paid and nonassessable and free from all taxes, liens and
charges (other than liens or charges created by the Warrantholder, income and franchise taxes
incurred in connection with the exercise of the Warrant or taxes in respect of any transfer
occurring contemporaneously therewith). The Company agrees that the Shares so issued will be
deemed to have been issued to the Warrantholder as of the close of business on the date on which
this Warrant and payment of the Exercise Price are delivered to the Company in accordance with
the terms of this Warrant, notwithstanding that the stock transfer books of the Company may
then be closed or certificates representing such Shares may not be actually delivered on such
date. The Company will at all times reserve and keep available, out of its authorized but
unissued preferred stock, solely for the purpose of providing for the exercise of this Warrant, the
aggregate number of shares of Preferred Stock then issuable upon exercise of this Warrant at any
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time. The Company will use reasonable best efforts to ensure that the Shares may be issued
without violation of any applicable law or regulation or of any requirement of any securities
exchange on which the Shares are listed or traded.

5. No Rights as Stockholders; Transfer Books. This Warrant does not entitle the
Warrantholder to any voting rights or other rights as a stockholder of the Company prior to the
date of exercise hereof. The Company will at no time close its transfer books against transfer of
this Warrant in any manner which interferes with the timely exercise of this Warrant.

6. Charges, Taxes and Expenses. Issuance of certificates for Shares to the
Warrantholder upon the exercise of this Warrant shall be made without charge to the
Warrantholder for any issue or transfer tax or other incidental expense in respect of the issuance
of such certificates, all of which taxes and expenses shall be paid by the Company.

7. Transfer/Assignment.

(A)  Subject to compliance with clause (B) of this Section 7, this Warrant and all rights
hereunder are transferable, in whole or in part, upon the books of the Company by the registered
holder hereof in person or by duly authorized attorney, and a new warrant shall be made and
delivered by the Company, of the same tenor and date as this Warrant but registered in the name
of one or more transferees, upon surrender of this Warrant, duly endorsed, to the office or agency
of the Company described in Section 3. All expenses (other than stock transfer taxes) and other
charges payable in connection with the preparation, execution and delivery of the new warrants
pursuant to this Section 7 shall be paid by the Company.

(B)  The transfer of the Warrant and the Shares issued upon exercise of the Warrant
are subject to the restrictions set forth in Section 4.4 of the Purchase Agreement. If and for so
long as required by the Purchase Agreement, this Warrant shall contain the legends as set forth in
Section 4.2(a) of the Purchase Agreement.

8. Exchange and Reqistry of Warrant. This Warrant is exchangeable, upon the
surrender hereof by the Warrantholder to the Company, for a new warrant or warrants of like
tenor and representing the right to purchase the same aggregate number of Shares. The
Company shall maintain a registry showing the name and address of the Warrantholder as the
registered holder of this Warrant. This Warrant may be surrendered for exchange or exercise in
accordance with its terms, at the office of the Company, and the Company shall be entitled to
rely in all respects, prior to written notice to the contrary, upon such registry.

9. Loss, Theft, Destruction or Mutilation of Warrant. Upon receipt by the Company
of evidence reasonably satisfactory to it of the loss, theft, destruction or mutilation of this
Warrant, and in the case of any such loss, theft or destruction, upon receipt of a bond, indemnity
or security reasonably satisfactory to the Company, or, in the case of any such mutilation, upon
surrender and cancellation of this Warrant, the Company shall make and deliver, in lieu of such
lost, stolen, destroyed or mutilated Warrant, a new Warrant of like tenor and representing the
right to purchase the same aggregate number of Shares as provided for in such lost, stolen,
destroyed or mutilated Warrant.
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10.  Saturdays, Sundays, Holidays, etc. If the last or appointed day for the taking of
any action or the expiration of any right required or granted herein shall not be a business day,
then such action may be taken or such right may be exercised on the next succeeding day that is
a business day.

11. Rule 144 Information. The Company covenants that it will use its reasonable best
efforts to timely file all reports and other documents required to be filed by it under the
Securities Act and the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations promulgated by the SEC
thereunder (or, if the Company is not required to file such reports, it will, upon the request of any
Warrantholder, make publicly available such information as necessary to permit sales pursuant to
Rule 144 under the Securities Act), and it will use reasonable best efforts to take such further
action as any Warrantholder may reasonably request, in each case to the extent required from
time to time to enable such holder to, if permitted by the terms of this Warrant and the Purchase
Agreement, sell this Warrant without registration under the Securities Act within the limitation
of the exemptions provided by (A) Rule 144 under the Securities Act, as such rule may be
amended from time to time, or (B) any successor rule or regulation hereafter adopted by the
SEC. Upon the written request of any Warrantholder, the Company will deliver to such
Warrantholder a written statement that it has complied with such requirements.

12.  Adjustments and Other Rights. For so long as the Original Warrantholder holds
this Warrant or any portion thereof, if any event occurs that, in the good faith judgment of the
Board of Directors of the Company, would require adjustment of the Exercise Price or number of
Shares into which this Warrant is exercisable in order to fairly and adequately protect the
purchase rights of the Warrants in accordance with the essential intent and principles of the
Purchase Agreement and this Warrant, then the Board of Directors shall make such adjustments
in the application of such provisions, in accordance with such essential intent and principles, as
shall be reasonably necessary, in the good faith opinion of the Board of Directors, to protect such
purchase rights as aforesaid.

Whenever the Exercise Price or the number of Shares into which this Warrant is
exercisable shall be adjusted as provided in this Section 12, the Company shall forthwith file at
the principal office of the Company a statement showing in reasonable detail the facts requiring
such adjustment and the Exercise Price that shall be in effect and the number of Shares into
which this Warrant shall be exercisable after such adjustment, and the Company shall also cause
a copy of such statement to be sent by mail, first class postage prepaid, to each Warrantholder at
the address appearing in the Company’s records.

13.  No Impairment. The Company will not, by amendment of its Charter or through
any reorganization, transfer of assets, consolidation, merger, dissolution, issue or sale of
securities or any other voluntary action, avoid or seek to avoid the observance or performance of
any of the terms to be observed or performed hereunder by the Company, but will at all times in
good faith assist in the carrying out of all the provisions of this Warrant and in taking of all such
action as may be necessary or appropriate in order to protect the rights of the Warrantholder.

14.  Governing Law. This Warrant will be governed by and construed in accordance
with the federal law of the United States if and to the extent such law is applicable, and
otherwise in accordance with the laws of the State of New York applicable to contracts made and
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to be performed entirely within such State. Each of the Company and the Warrantholder agrees
(a) to submit to the exclusive jurisdiction and venue of the United States District Court for the
District of Columbia for any civil action, suit or proceeding arising out of or relating to this
Warrant or the transactions contemplated hereby, and (b) that notice may be served upon the
Company at the address in Section 17 below and upon the Warrantholder at the address for the
Warrantholder set forth in the registry maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 8 hereof.
To the extent permitted by applicable law, each of the Company and the Warrantholder hereby
unconditionally waives trial by jury in any civil legal action or proceeding relating to the
Warrant or the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby.

15. Binding Effect. This Warrant shall be binding upon any successors or assigns of
the Company.

16. Amendments. This Warrant may be amended and the observance of any term of
this Warrant may be waived only with the written consent of the Company and the
Warrantholder.

17. Notices. Any notice, request, instruction or other document to be given hereunder
by any party to the other will be in writing and will be deemed to have been duly given (a) on the
date of delivery if delivered personally, or by facsimile, upon confirmation of receipt, or (b) on
the second business day following the date of dispatch if delivered by a recognized next day
courier service. All notices hereunder shall be delivered as set forth in Item 9 of Schedule A
hereto, or pursuant to such other instructions as may be designated in writing by the party to
receive such notice.

18. Entire Agreement. This Warrant, the forms attached hereto and Schedule A
hereto (the terms of which are incorporated by reference herein), and the Letter Agreement
(including all documents incorporated therein), contain the entire agreement between the parties
with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersede all prior and contemporaneous
arrangements or undertakings with respect thereto.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]
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[Form of Notice of Exercise]
Date:

TO: [Company]
RE: Election to Purchase Preferred Stock

The undersigned, pursuant to the provisions set forth in the attached Warrant, hereby
agrees to subscribe for and purchase the number of shares of the Preferred Stock set forth below
covered by such Warrant. The undersigned, in accordance with Section 3 of the Warrant, hereby
agrees to pay the aggregate Exercise Price for such shares of Preferred Stock in the manner set
forth in Section 3(B) of the Warrant. A new warrant evidencing the remaining shares of
Preferred Stock covered by such Warrant, but not yet subscribed for and purchased, if any,
should be issued in the name set forth below.

Number of Shares of Preferred Stock

Aggregate Exercise Price:

Holder:
By:
Name:
Title:
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Warrant to be duly executed by
a duly authorized officer.

Dated:

COMPANY:

By:

Name:
Title:

Attest:

By:

Name:
Title:

[Signature Page to Warrant]
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Item 1
Name:

Corporate or other organizational form:

Jurisdiction of organization:

Item 2
Exercise Price:!

Item 3
Issue Date:

Iltem 4
Liquidation Amount:

Item 5
Series of Perpetual Preferred Stock:

Item 6

SCHEDULE A

Date of Letter Agreement between the Company and the United States Department of the

Treasury:

Item 7
Number of shares of Preferred Stock:?

Item 8
Company’s address:

Item 9
Notice information:

$0.01 per share or such greater amount as the Charter may require as the par value of the Preferred Stock.

The initial number of shares of Preferred Stock for which this Warrant is exercisable shall include the

number of shares required to effect the cashless exercise pursuant to Section 3(B) of this Warrant (e.g.,
such number of shares of Preferred Stock having an aggregate Liquidation Amount equal in value to the
aggregate Exercise Price) such that, following exercise of this Warrant and payment of the Exercise Price
in accordance with such Section 3(B), the net number of shares of Preferred Stock delivered to the
Warrantholder (and rounded to the nearest whole share) would have an aggregate Liquidation Amount
equal to 5% of the aggregate amount invested by the United States Department of the Treasury on the

investment date.
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SCHEDULE A

ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Company Information:

Name of the Company: GrandSouth Corporation
Corporate or other organizational form: Corporation
Jurisdiction of Organization: South Carolina

Appropriate Federal Banking Agency: Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation

Notice Information: ~ GrandSouth Bancorporation
381 Halton Road
Greenville, SC 29607
Attn: President
Facsimile: (864) 770-1081

Terms of the Purchase:

Series of Preferred Stock Purchased: Series T
Per Share Liquidation Preference of Preferred Stock: $1,000.00
Number of Shares of Preferred Stock Purchased: 9,000

Dividend Payment Dates on the Preferred Stock: February 15, May 15, August 15 and
November 15

Series of Warrant Preferred Stock: Series W

Number of Warrant Shares: 450.00450

Number of Net Warrant Shares (after net settlement): 450
Exercise Price of the Warrant: $0.01

Purchase Price: $9,000,000.00

Location of Closing: To be determined by the parties.
Time of Closing: To be determined by the parties.

Date of Closing: January 9, 2009

Letter Agreement
UST Seq. No. 327
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Wire Information for Closing: ABA Number: -
Bank: .

Account Name: e r——
Account Number: TEe——

Beneficiary: GrandSouth Bancorporation

Contact for Confirmation of Wire Information:

Letter Agreement

Columbia: 1148348 v.1 UST Seq. No. 327



SCHEDULE B

CAPITALIZATION

Capitalization Date: December 31, 2008

Common Stock

Par value: None
Total Authorized: 20,000,000 shares
Outstanding: 3,573,695

Subject to warrants, options, convertible
securities, etc.: 217,412

Reserved for benefit plans and other issuances: 560,918
Remaining authorized but unissued: 15,647,975
Shares issued after Capitalization Date (other

than pursuant to warrants, options,
convertible securities, etc. as set forth

above):  None
Preferred Stock
Par value: None

Total Authorized: None (20,000,000 shares on January 6, 2009)
Outstanding (by series): None
Reserved for issuance: None

Remaining authorized but unissued: None (20,000,000 shares on January 6, 2009)

Holders of 5% or more of any class of capital stock Primary Address
Mason Y. Garrett 381 Halton Road, Greenville, SC 29607
Ronald K. Earnest 381 Halton Road, Greenville, SC 29607

Letter Agreement
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SCHEDULE C

LITIGATION

List any exceptions to the representation and warranty in Section 2.2(1) of the Securities
Purchase Agreement — Standard Terms.

If none, please so indicate by checking the box: XI.

Letter Agreement
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SCHEDULE D

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

List any exceptions to the representation and warranty in the second sentence of Section 2.2(m)
of the Securities Purchase Agreement — Standard Terms.

If none, please so indicate by checking the box: [XI.

List any exceptions to the representation and warranty in the last sentence of Section 2.2(m) of
the Securities Purchase Agreement — Standard Terms.

If none, please so indicate by checking the box: XI].

Letter Agreement
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SCHEDULE E

REGULATORY AGREEMENTS

List any exceptions to the representation and warranty in Section 2.2(s) of the Securities
Purchase Agreement — Standard Terms.

If none, please so indicate by checking the box: XI.

Letter Agreement
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SCHEDULE F

DISCLOSURE SCHEDULES

List any information required pursuant to Section 2.1(a) of the Securities Purchase Agreement —
Standard Terms.

2.2(g) - The Company expects to increase its allowance for loan and lease losses at the end of the
fourth quarter of 2008 by approximately $600,000 in view of recent increases in the level of
overall risk in the Company’s markets and the general economy, as well as regulatory guidance.
The increase will negatively impact the Company’s 2008 earnings, which will be negative for the
fourth quarter, but positive for the year. The Company’s ability to consummate the Purchase and
other transactions contemplated by the Agreement and the Warrant and perform its obligations
thereunder on a timely basis should not be materially affected.

2.2(h) - Audited Financial Statements for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007
and unaudited Financial Statements for the quarters ended March 31, June 30 and September 30,
2008 are attached. Financial statements for December 31, 2008 are not yet available and will be
provided to Treasury as soon as reasonably possible.

If none, please so indicate by checking the box: 0.

Letter Agreement
Columbia: 1148348 v.1 UST Seq No. 327
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12/31/2008

REPORT OF INDZPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors
GrandScuth Bancorporaticn and Subsidiary
Greenville, South Carolina

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of
GrandSouth Bancorporation and Subsidiary as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and
the related consolidated statements of income, shareholders' equity and
comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year
period ended December 31, 2005. These consolidated financial statements are the
responsibility of the Cocmpany's management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion con these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. Aan audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles wused and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall consolidated financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of GrandSouth
Bancorporation and Subsidiary as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 and the results
of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year
period ended December 31, 2005, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

s/Elliott Davis LLC
Greenville, South Carolina
February 10, 2006
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Haynsworth Sinkler Boyd. P. A.

12/31/2008
<PAGE>
GRANDSOUTH BANCORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Dollars in thousands)
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
ASSETS
<S>
Cash and due from banks ........ .ttt innnns et e e
Federal funds sold ........ S
Cash and cash eqQUIVAleNtS .. ...ttt iieiieiane et eienoeennnnnnns
Investment securities available fOr Sale ... ... ..ttt ittt ittt et e e i e,
Other INVeSEMENES, AL COSE &t u it teriueeeteeneneooreeeeeeeeneeesasenoeaeeeeeneeenaeeeersoeanns
DT T- 3 ¢ ¥ o T 1 o
Property and eqQUiIDmMENEL, ML ...ttt ittt ittt ees e tanenoeneronesnoeeenetsenaeenensnnneenns
Bank owned life insurance ............iiiiiiiiiiiiaenn e e e,
Assets acquired in settlement Of 1CANS . ... ...ttt ittt i i et e s
[0 o o1 o R T of <
TOEAL BSSES sttt ittt et ette ettt tnt e e e e e
LIABILITIES AND SEAREASOLDERS' EQUITY
Deposits
NONINEEYESt DEAYING ottt ittt it ittt ettt ae it aee et tee e teae et aeeee e et te e
Interest Dearing . ... i i e e e e e i e e
oS- B =) oo = <8
Federal Home Lcan Bank advances ...... e e et et e
[0 o8 o T=3 i T3 o e 1 5 1 2 Lo - S
Subordinated GebentUreS . .......iiieri ittt e e ..
[0 0TS i I 1= < 0 A 1= P
Total liabilities .......... P .. . e
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES - Notes 10 and 14
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common stock, no par value, 20,000,000 shares authorized,
3,065,726 and 2,382,357 shares issued and outstanding
at December 31, 2005 and 2004 respectively .........iiiitioiiiiimenaiiiiieeanen
Retained EaImingS ... ittt ittt ettt ettt ittes et et e e
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) .......... e e e e e e,
Total shareholGersS' EQUILY ..t v ittt it ittt ettt ee e itaes e eaeeeaaaaaaeenonenennens
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity ........... ...t iiiiiiiiiiiiiinnnanns
</TABLE>
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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$ 12,321
209,340

16,351
955
174,165
3,629
4,247

S 8,818
167,328

176,146
13,500
2,500
3,500
1,487

10,840
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12/31/2008

<PAGE>
GRANDSOUTH BANCORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(Dollars in thousands except share and per share data)
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
For the years ended December 31,
2005 2004 2003
INTEREST INCOME
<8> <Cx <C> <C>
Loans and fees On 10anS ... ..ttt ittt i e e e e e $ 14,917 $ g,901 $ 7,992
Investment SECUXILIeS ...ttt iiiine it ittt i et 895 525 557
Federal funds sold and due from banks ...... [SPIPEP e e e 311 B3 55
Total interest INCOME .. ...ttt ittt teein e ieaannn 16,123 10,508 8,604
INTEREST EXPENSE
T oo T 1 = Y 5,720 3,250 2,793
Federal Home Loan Bank advances and other borrowings ................... 664 506 382
Subordinated debentures ........ ... ...l i i e e s 116 79 74
Total INteresSt EXPeNSE ..ttt tu et tiesun oo ennaennenneaennnns 6,500 3,835 3,249
Net interest inCOME ... ...ttt eneenneneennennenenns e e 9,623 6,674 5,355
PROVISION FOR POSSIBLE LOAN LOSSES ... ...ttt ittt cetnanatannenans 1,125 1,000 1,339
Net interest income after provision for
POSSible 10ANn lOSSES ...t tiiit it ittt e e e e 8,498 5,674 4,016
NONINTEREST INCOM=
Service fees on depoSit ACCOUNES 1 vttt ittt in i e i e ttee e tieneneenenn 311 266 289
Gain on sale of investment securities available for sale ............... 18 - 90
Other ........c.icieiiimeienn. Crese s esee ittt es e aant s T 251 135 132
Total noninterest INCOME ... ..ttt ittt ntitenneeeanneaannnnans SB8C 401 511
NONINTEREST EXPENSES
Salaries and benefits ... ...ttt i e e e e e 3,095 2,163 1,895
Data PrOCESSIMG v v v ettt oottt teno s tones tteeeaneneteeneeneaeneneeaneaneenn 338 321 351
o= 1 B - U ¢ Lo T 200 85 49
Occupancy and eQUIPMENET ..ttt ittt tnoneeneneeuneernoneenaeeaneeseas 579 579 517
Printing and sSuPPlies .. ...ttt i i e e e 92 76 71
Professional services ......... et e et et e e e 290 193 152
Writedowns on assets acquired in settlement of loans ................... 251 68 24
OLher OpPeXALING ..ttt ittt ittt iett ittt nes oo titeeeetneneanaeeennn 720 502 436
Total NONINCEYEST EXPEISES ot vt toonoonsnosonensoneeeeaenaeaneennn 5,562 3,987 3,495
Income DEefOre INCOME LaAXES . vt iiiveenenneneneeneneeenoneeanensenns 3,516 2,088 1,032
INCOME TAX PROVISION ..ttt ittt ittt iieaeitie i eiae s tiaee i ianaaneneennnn 1,155 769 382
NET IMCOME ot ittt ettt oot teteesaoaness s eeeeeeeeenasaeaeanesennns $ 2,361 S 1,319 S 650
NET INCOME PER COMVCN SHARE
Basic .......... e e et eae s e sty $ 0.91 S 0.55 S 0.27
3 0 o Y o N . $ 0.76 $ 0.43 $ 0.22

WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF COMMON
SHARES OUTSTANDING

278 eeeaan 2,582,298 2,382,357 2,382,567
Diluted ............. et e e e e e e a e e e 3,218,986 3,200,558 3,162,300

</TABLE>

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.
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GRANDSOUTH BANCORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003
(Dollars in thousands except share data)

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Common stock
Retained
Shares Amount earnings
<S> <C> <C» <C»
Balance, December 31, 2002 .. ...ttt inenentnsonennnnn .. 1,875,329 $ 8,464 $ 660

NEet INCOME .+ttt ittt it ntienaniaaaanteeneneness - - 650
Other comprehensive income -

Unrealized holding losses on

investment securities (net of

income tax benefit of $108) ............iiiiaan - - -

Less reclassification adjustment for
gains included in net income (net of
income tax expense of $33) ........... . i - - -

Comprehensive inCOME ........oiiieinnenennonnn e - - -
Stock dividend (5%) ..vui ittt e 93,731 625 (625)
Cash dividend ($.04) per share .............covounn. - - (79)
Stock dividend (10%) .. ...ttt it e 196,910 606 (606)

Balance, December 31, 2003 ......... et e e e 2,165,970 9,655 -

1= 1 o T o = - - 1,319
Other comprehensive income -

Unrealized holding gain on

investment securities (net of

income tax expense Of $5) ...ttt - - -

Comprehensive income ...........coiiiiinniininann, - - -
Cash in lieu of fractional shares .................. (191) (1) -
Cash dividend ($.08) per share ..........c.eouvuuuennn - - (173)
Stock dividend (10%) .... ..t i e 216,578 1,146 {1,146)

Balance, December 31, 2004 ............... et imnanannnn 2,382,357 10,840 -

Net income . .....tiniti e irnnnsnann e - - 2,361
Other comprehensive income -

Unrealized holding losses on

investment securities (net of

income tax effect of $180) ............. .. ... ... - - -

Less reclassification adjustment for
gains included in net income (net of
income tax expense of $7) ......... ... i i, - - -

Comprehensive income .......... O - - -
Conversion of subordinated debentures into

COMMON SEOCK 4ottt vt v conenenrarecsnoneeenseeensennenn 683,581 3,500 -
Cash in lieu of fractional shares .................. (212) - (2)
Cash dividend (S.08) per share ..................... - - (210)

Balance, December 31, 2005 ........iietunirionnennnnennnns

</TABLE>

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.
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GRANDSOUTH BANCORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Dollars in thousands)
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
<S>
DY S 1 Lo T
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities

Deferred income tax expense (benefit) ........ ... . i i
Provision for possible 1oan loOSSES ...........ittiiiiiii i uinianinnneeeas
Depreciation ............... e e e e i e e e e e e
Amortization and accretion (net) of securities available for sale .............
Gain on sale of investment securities available for sale ................ e
Gain on sale of property and equipment ..... ettt e e e e e e
(Gain) loss on sale of assets acquired in settlement of loans .................
Accreticn of bank owned life insurance ............. . i, [
Write-down of assets acquired in settlement of 1loans .............ieeeennnneann
Increase in OLher 8SSeLS ... ittt i it ittt ittt tnen e
Increase in other liabilities ........... .. .iiuiiiiiiiiiinnennns PN e

Net cash provided by operating activities ............cciiiiiieiinnnnnnn.

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase ©f investment SeCULiCIeS ... ...ttt ittt ieeeeiineenneaan
Redemption {purchase) of Federal Home Loan Bank StOCK .........viinienennrnnnnennn
Proceeds from principal paydowns on investment securities ........................
Proceeds from sales and calls of investment securities ..............ccciitunnn.,
Proceeds from maturity of investment securities ..............c.ciiiiiiiniinaannn
Increase in 1OANS, Meb ...ttt ittt ittt iieta et ettt
Purchase of bank owned 1life INSUXANCE .. ...ttt ittt e eteeeeeaeneannanas
Increase in cash surrender value of life insurance ....................

Proceeds from sale of assets acquired in settlement of loans
Cash equivalents acquired, net of payment for purchase acquisition ...............
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment ............. ... ..ttt
Purchase o property and €QUIPMENE .. .. vttt ittt et et e N

Net cash used for investing activities ............ .ottt innnennnnnn

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from Federal Home Loan Bank advanCes . ............oieuiuiunennennnnneeeeann
Repayment of Federal Home Loan Bank advVamCeS ..........euivnnineonneeennncnneanss
Proceeds frcm other borrowings .......... e e e e e e e e e
Repayment ©f other DOIrrowings . ..... ... it e i ittt i s
Net increase in deposits ..... ...ttt nnnennnnsan PR TS
Dividends Paid ...ttt ittt i e e e e e e e
Cash paid in lieu of fractional shares .................. ... i,

Net cash provided by financing activities .........c.ciiiiiiiiennrinnnnn.

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash eguivalents ....................

CASH AND CASE EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING
OF YEAR ................ cre e L

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR . ...ttt iitiiinnnennnnnnann e e e
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
Cash paid for:
INCOME LAXES . ...ttt iittn et ontiannennnns et eenrees i aetas o an e .
INCEYeST .....ovvvnnnn PN
</TABLE>
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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For the years ended December 31,
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(24,582)

309
(737)

11,000
(16,000)
3,900
(2,500)
45,515
(210)
(2)

{11,027}

(375)
2,908
5,500

(28,271)
(3,357)
(63)

606

(9,796)

(155)
5,160
7,187
1,000

(40,295)

(42)
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GRANDSOUTH BANCORPORATICN AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(Dollars in thousands)
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NON-CASH
INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

<S>
Change in unrealized gain (loss) on investment securities

available for sale, before tax ........iiiiiiiiiin it ennns

Loans charged-off, net of recoveries ..........c.ci.i it ieinnnannn.

Loans transferred to assets acquired in settlement of loans .......

Subordinated debentures converted into common Stock ...............

</TABLE>

For the years ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003

<C> <C»> <C>
............. $ (505} $ 16 $  (382)
............. S 368 $1,052 $ 389
............. $ 310 $1,157 S 449
............. $ 3,500 - -

The accompanying notes are an integral part cf these consolidated financial

statements.
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GRANDSOUTH BANCORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in thousands except per share data)

NOTZ 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACTIVITIES

GrandSouth Bancorporation (the "Company") is a South Carclina
corporation organized in 2000 for the purpose of being a holding company for
GrandSouth Bank {the "Bank"). On October 2, 2000, pursuant to a Plan of Exchange
approved by the shareholders, all of the outstanding shares of $2.50 par value
common stock of the Bank were exchanged for shares of no par value common stock
of the Company. The Company presently engages in no business other than that of
owning the Bank, has no employees, and operates as cne business segment. The
Company is regulated by the Federal Reserve Board. The consolidated financial
statements include the accounts of the Company and the Bank. All significant
intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

The Bank was incorporated in 1998 and operates as a South Carolina
chartered bank previding full banking services to its customers. The Bank is
subject to regulation by the South Carolina State Board of Financial
Institutions and the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.

Basis of presentation
The accounting and reporting policies conform to accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America and to general practices
in the banking industry. The Company uses the accrual basis of accountirng.

Reclassifications
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current
presentation. These reclassifications have no effect on previously reported
shareholders' equity or net income.

Acquisition
In May 2005, the Company acquired an auto-financing business with assets
valued at $3,236 and recorded §737 in goodwill. This auto-financing
business had $2,413 in specialty commercial lines of credit with the Bank.
These loans are now on the Bank's books in the auto dealers' names.

Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities as of the date of the consolidated financial
statements and the reported amount of income and expenses during the
reporting periods. Actual results cculd differ from those estimates.

Concentrations of credit risk

The Company makes loans to individuals and small businesses for various
personal and commercial purposes primarily in the upstate region of South
Carolina. The Company's loan portfolio is not concentrated in loans to any
single borrcwer or in a relatively small number of borrowers. Additionally,
management is not aware of any concentrations of loans to classes of
borrowers or industries that would be similarly affected by economic
conditions.

In addition to monitoring potential concentrations of loans to particular
borrowers or groups of borrowers, industries and geographic regions,
Management monitors exposure to credit risk that could arise from potential
concentrations of lending products and practices such as loans that subject
borrowers to substantial payment increases (e.g. principal deferral
periods, loans with initial interest-only periods, etc), and loans with
high loan-to-value ratios. Additionally, there are industry practices that
could subject the Company to increased credit risk should economic
conditions change over the course of a loan's life. For example, the
Company makes variable rate loans and fixed rate principal-amortizing loans
with maturities prior to the loan being fully paid (i.e. balloon payment
loans) . These loans are underwritten and monitored to manage

24
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GRANDSOUTH BANCORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in thousands except per share data)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACTIVITIES, Continued
the associated risks. Management has determined that there is no
concentration of credit risk asscciated with its 1lending policies or
practices

The Company's investment portfolio consists principally of obligaticns of
the United States of America, its agencies or its corporations and general
obligation municipal securities. In the opinion of management, there is no
concentration of credit risk in its investment portfolio. The Company
places its deposits and correspondent accounts with and sells its federal
funds to high quality institutions. Management believes credit risk
associated with correspondent accounts is not significant.

Investment securities
The Bank accounts for investment securities in acccrdance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 115, *“Accounting for Certain
Investments in Debt and Equity Securities." The statement requires
investments in equity and debt securities to be classified into one of
three categories:

1. Available for sale: These are securities that are not classified as
either held to maturity or as trading securities. These securities are
reported at fair market value which is determined using quoted market
prices. Unrealized gains and losses are reported, net of income taxes,
as separate components of shareholders' equity (accumulated cther
comprehensive income (loss)). Gains or 1losses on dispositions of
securities are based on the difference between the net proceeds and the
adjusted carrying amounts of the securities sold using the specific
identification method. Premiums and discounts are amortized into
interest incecme by a method that approximates a level yield.

2. Held to maturity: These are securities that the Company has the ability
and intent to hold until maturity. These securities are stated at cost,
adjusted for amortization of premiums and the accretion of discounts.
Premiums and discounts are amortized into interest income by a method
that approximates a level yield. The Company has no held to maturity
securities.

3. Trading: These are securities that are bought and held principally for
the purpose of selling in the near future. Trading securities are
reported at fair market value, and related unrealized gains and losses
are recognized in the income statement. The Company has no trading
securities.

Loans and interest income on loans

Loans are stated at the principal balance outstanding. Th2 allowance for
possible loan losses is deducted from total 1loans in ths consolidated
balance sheet. Interest income is recognized on an accrual basis over the
term of the loan based on the principal amount outstanding.

Loans are generally placed on non-accrual status when principal or interest
becomes ninety days past due, or when payment in full is not anticipated.
When a loan is placed on non-accrual status, interest accrued but not
received is generally reversed against interest income. If collectibility
is in doubt, cash receipts on non-accrual 1loans are not recorded as
interest income, but are used to reduce principal. Loans are not returned
to accrual status until the borrower demonstrates the ability to pay
principal and interest. Lcans on non-accrual status as well as real estate
acquired through foreclosure or deed taken in lieu of foreclosure are
included in non-performing assets.
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GRANDSOUTH BANCORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in thousands except per share data)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACTIVITIES, Continued
Allowance for possible loan losses

The provision for possible loan losses charged to operating expense
reflects the amount deemed appropriate by management to establish an
adequate reserve tc meet the present estimated loss characteristics of the
current loan portfolio. Management's estimate is based on periodic and
regular evaluation of individual loans, the overall risk characteristics of
the various portfolio segments, past experience with losses, and prevailing
and anticipated economic conditions. Loans that are determined to be
uncollectible are charged against the allowance. Provision for possible
lecan lcsses and recoveries cn loans previously charged off are added to the
allowance.

The Company accounts for impaired loans in accordance with SFAS No. 114,
"Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan." This standard requires
that all lenders value loans at the loan's fair value if it is prcbable
that the lender will be unable to collect all amounts due according to the
terms of the loan agreement. Fair value may be determined based upon the
present value of expected cash flows, market price of the loan, if
available, or value of the underlying collateral. Expected cash flows are
required to be discounted at the loan's effective interest rate.

Under SFAS No. 114, as amended by SFAS No. 118, when the ultimate
collectibility of an impaired 1loan's principal is in dcubt, wholly or
partially, all cash receipts are applied to principal. Once the reported
principal balance has been reduced to zero, future cash receipts are
applied to interest income, to the extent that any interest has been
foregone. Further cash receipts are recorded as recoveries of any amounts
previocusly charged off.

A loan is also ccnsidered impaired if its terms are modified in a troubled
debt restructuring. For these accruing impaired loans, cash receipts are
typically applied to principal and interest receivable in accordance with
the terms of the restructured loan agreement. Interest income is recognized
on these loans using the accrual method of accounting.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of the related assets. Maintenance and repairs are charged to
operations, while major improvements are capitalized. Upon retirement, sale
or other disposition of property and equipment, the cost and accumulated
depreciation are eliminated from the accounts, and gain or loss is included
in income from cperations.

Assets acquired in settlement of loans

Assets acquired in settlement of loans include real estate acquired through
foreclosure or deed taken in lieu of foreclosure, and repossessed assets.
These assets are recorded at the lower of the carrying value of the loans
or the estimated fair value of the related asset, net of estimated selling
costs. The excess carrying value, if any, is charged to the allowance for
possible loan losses upon transfer. If further reduction in value occurs,
charges are included in income from operations.

Goodwill

Gocdwill is evaluated for impairment on at least an annual basis by
comparing the fair value of its reporting wunits to their related carrying
value. If the carrying value of a reporting unit exceeds its fair wvalue,
the Company determines whether the implied fair value of the goodwill,
using a discounted cash flow analysis, exceeds the carrying value of the
goodwill. If the carrying value of the goodwill exceeds the implied fair
value of the goodwill, an impairment loss is recorded in an amount equal to
that excess. To date, the Company has not had to record any impairment
write downs of its goodwill.
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GRANDSQUTH BANCORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TC CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in thousands except per share data)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACTIVITIES, Continued
Income taxes

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis. When
income and expenses are recognized in different periods for financial
reporting purposes versus for purposes of computing income taxes currently
payable, deferred taxes are provided on such temporary differences. The
Company accounts for inceme taxes in accordance with SFAS No. 109,
"Accounting for Income Taxes." Under SFAS No. 109, deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognized for the expected future tax consequences of
events that have been recognized in the financial statements or tax return.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the enacted tax
rates expected to apply to taxable income in the vyears in which those
temporary differences are expected to be realized or settled.

Advertising and public relations expense

Advertising, promotional, and other business development costs are
generally expensed as incurred. External costs incurred in producing media
advertising are expensed the first time the advertising takes place.
External costs relating to direct mailings are expensed in the peried in
which the direct mailings are sent.

Net income per common share

Net income per commcn share is computed on the basis of the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding in accordance with SFAS No.
128, "“Earnings per Share." The treasury stock method is used to compute the
effect of stock options and convertible subordinated debentures on the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding for diluted earnings
per share. On January 21, 2003, the Company declared a five percent stock
dividend and on January 22, 2004 and February 28, 2005 the Company declared
ten percent stock dividends. Per share and share amounts have been
retroactively restated to reflect the stock dividends declared in 2003,
2004 and 2005. The 2005 stock dividend was reflected in the 2004 financial
statements.

Statement of cash flows

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are defined
as those amounts included in the balance sheet caption "Cash and cash
equivalents." Cash and cash equivalents have an original maturity of three
months or less.

Fair values of financial instruments

SFAS No. 107, "Disclosures About Fair Value of Financial Instruments," as
amended by SFAS No. 113, requires disclosure of fair value information for
financial instruments, whether or not recognized in the consolidated
balance sheet, when it is practicable to estimate the fair value. SFAS No.
107 defines a financial instrument as cash, evidence of an ownership
interest in an entity or contractual obligations, which require the
exchange of cash or other financial instruments. Certain items are
specifically excluded £from the disclosure requirements, including the
Company's common stock. In additicn, other nonfinancial instruments such as
property and equipment and other assets and liabilities are not subject to
the disclosure requirements.

Risks and uncertainties

In the normal course cf its business the Company encounters two significant
types of risks: economic and regulatory. There are three main components of
economic risk: interest rate risk, credit risk and market risk. The Company
is subject to interest rate risk to the degree that its interest-bearing
liabilities mature or reprice at different times, or on different bases,
than its interest-earning assets. Credit risk is the risk of default on the
Company's loan and investment securities portfolios that results from a
borrower's inability or wunwillingness to make contractually required

payments. Market risk reflects changes in the value of collateral
underlying 1loans receivable and the valuation cf real estete held by the
Company .
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GRANDSOUTH BANCCRPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{(Dollars in thousands except per share data)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACTIVITIES, Continued

The Company is subject to the regulations of various governmental agencies.
These regulations can and do change significantly £from period to period.
The Company also undergoes periodic examinations by the regulatory
agencies, which may subject it to further changes with respect to asset
valuations, amounts of required loss allowances and operating restrictions
from the regulators' judgments based on information available to them at
the time of their examination.

Stock-based compensation

The Company has a stock-based employee compensation plan, which is further
described in Note 16. The Company accounts for the plan under the
recognition and measurement principles of Accounting Principles Board
(*APB") Opinion No. 25, ™"Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees," and
related Interpretations. No stock-based employee compensation cost is
reflected in net income, as all stock options granted under the plan had an
exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying commen stock on
the date of grant. The following table illustrates the effect on net income
and net income per common share as if the Company had applied the fair
value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation, " to stock-based employee compensation. Per share and weighted

average shares outstanding have been restated to reflect the ten percent
stock dividends declared on January 22, 2004 and February 28, 2005. The

2005 stock dividend was reflected in the 2004 financial statements.

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

<S>
Net income, as reported ...........cevievuunos e e e
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation

expense determined under fair value based

method for all awards, net of related tax effects ....... T ..

Pro forma net inceme - basSic .. ...t e i e
Add: Interest savings, net of tax/weighted average

incremental shares assumed on conversion of

subordinated debentures ......... e ettt e, PR

Pro forma net income - Ailuted ..... ..ttt i e i i et

Net income per common share:

Basic - as reported ...............n et et e e

ZER-3 N TNEE o3 o U ') « 117 R

Diluted - @S TePOXELEA ..t iiiiritiiii ettt ittt iine i

Diluted - pro forma ........oeeeiuanns e e e e e e e
</TABLE>

The fair values at date of grant range from $1.38 to $3.56. The fair value of
the coption grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes
option pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions for
grants: the risk free interest rate used ranged from 4.00% to 5.89%, the
expected volatility ranged from 5.00% to 20.09%, the expected option life was
10 years and the assumed dividend yields ranged from zero tc $C.08 per share.
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GRANDSOUTH BANCORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in thousands except per share data)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACTIVITIES, Continued
Recently issued accounting standards

The following is a summary of recent authoritative pronouncements that affect
accounting, reporting, and disclosure of financial information by the
Company :

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004),
"Share-Based Payment" ("SFAS No. 123(R)"). SFAS No.123(R) covers a wide
range of stock-based compensation arrangements including stock options,
restricted stock plans, performance-based awards, stock appreciation
rights, and employee stock purchase plans. SFAS No. 123(R) will require
companies to measure all employee stock-based compensation awards using a
fair value method and record such expense in their financial statements. In
addition, the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) requires additional accounting
and disclosure related to the income tax and cash flow effects resulting
from stock-based payment arrangements. SFAS No. 123(R}) is effective for the
Company beginning with the first interim reporting period in 2006. The
Company is currently evaluating the impact that the adoption of SFAS No.
123 (R) will have on its financial position, results of operations and cash
flows. The cumulative effect of adoption, if any, will be measured and
recognized in the statement of income on the date of adoption.

In April 2005, the Securities and Exchange Commission's Office of
the Chief Accountant and its Division of Corporaticn Finance released Staff
Accounting Bulletin ("SAB") No.107 to provide guidance regarding the
application of SFAS No. 123(R). SAB No. 107 provides interpretive guidance
related to the interaction between SFAS No.123(R) and certain SEC rules and
regulations, as well as the staff's views regarding the valuation of
stock-based payment arrangements for public companies. SAB No. 107 also
reminds public companies of the importance of including disclosures within
filings made with the SEC relating to the accounting for stock-based
payment transactions, particularly during the transition to SFAS No.123(R).

In May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154, "Accounting Changes and
Error Corrections--a replacement of APB Opinion No. 20 and FASB Statement
No. 3". SFAS No. 154 establishes retrospective application as the required
method for reporting a change 1in accounting principle, wunless it is
impracticable, in which case the changes should be applied to the latest
practicable date presented. SFAS No. 154 also requires that a correction of
an error be reported as a prior period adjustment by restating prior period
financial statements. SFAS No. 154 is effective for accounting changes and
corrections of errors made in fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2005.

Other accounting standards that have been issued or proposed by the
FASB or other standards-setting bodies that do not require adoption until a
future date are not expected to have a material impact on the consolidated
financial statements upon adoption.

NOTE 2 - RESTRICTIONS ON CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS

The Bank is required to maintain average reserve balances, computed
by applying prescribed percentages to its various types of deposits, either at
the Bank or on deposit with the Federal Reserve Bank. At December 31, 2005 and
2004 these required reserves were met by vault cash.
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NOTE 3 - INVESTMENT SECURITIES

The amortized cost and fair value of investment securities available
for sale are as fcllows:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
December 31, 2005
Gross unrealized
Amortized = =00 —------co------- Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
<S> <C> <C> <C> <C>
U.S. Government AGENCLeS ...ttt iiieeeiiioeirineroneenenoeens $14,498 $ - S 209 $14,289
State and municipals ........c.iiiiiiii i e .. 463 - 2 461
Mortgage backed ........... .. i it e e 13,772 - 362 13,410
Total investment securities ...........c.oiviiiiivnnannn. $28,733 $ - $ 573 $28,160
<CAPTION>
December 31, 2004
Gross unrealized
Amortized = = =00@meeeeesc-------- Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
<S> <C> <C> <C> <C>
U.S. Government AGENCIES .. .cutiieen oo oennnoaaeanonsan $ 7,496 S - S 34 $ 7,462
Mortgage DACKEA ...ttt ittt e 8,924 44 79 8,889
Total investment securities ..... e e $ 44 $ 113 $16,351
</TABLE>

The amortized costs and fair values of securities available for sale
at December 31, 2005, by contractual maturity, are shown in the following chart.
Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may
have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment

penalties.
Amortized

Cost Fair value
Less tham OnNe YeaAr .. .....uiieieenieeeinnennrnnennnn $ 3,000 $ 2,967
One to five years .........cieiiiiiiiniieieeinenneann 13,547 13,307
Five LO LEN YEAYS .t vvveirevnnonnnnenaneennnnanans 10,175 9,907
After ten years ...........c.iieiiieannnn e 2,011 1,97%
Total investment securities ............... $28,733 $28,160

Investment securities with an aggregate amortized cost of $1,499%9
(fair value of $1,465) at December 31, 2005 and $8,207 (fair value of $8,201) at
Decewber 31, 2004 were pledged to collateralize public deposits and berrowings.
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NOTE 3 - INVESTMENT SECURITIES, Continued
The fcllowing table shows gross unrealized losses and fair value, and

length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized
loss position at December 31, 2005.

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
<S> <C>
U.S. Government Agencies ................. $ 134

State and municipals .................. A
Mortgage backed ................. RIS e

</TABLE>

Thirteen 1individual securities were in a continuous loss position for
twelve months or more. The Company has the ability and intent to hold these
securities until such time as the value recovers or the securities mature. The
Company believes, based on industry analyst reports and credit ratings, that the
deterioration in value is attributable to changes in market interest rates and
not in the credit quality of the issuer and therefore, these 1losses are not
considered other-than-temporary.

The Bank, as a member institution of the Federal Home Loan Bank of
Atlanta ("FHLB"), is required to own capital stock in the FHLB based generally
upon the balance of investment securities pledged and FHELB borrowings. FHLB
capital stock, with a cost of $798 and $955 at December 31, 2005 and 2004,
respectively, is included in other investments in the consolidated balance
sheets. No ready market exists for the stock, and it has no quoted market value.
However, redemption of the stock has historically been at par value.

NOTE 4 - LOANS

The composition of net lcans by major loan category is presented below:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
December 31,
2005 2004

<S> <Cx» <C>
[T, 1141T=3 oo - 1 I $ 41,915 $ 33,644
Real estate - constructicn ............. e e e e 39,895 39,170
Real estate - mortgage ........ Ceterreaean i et ee et e e ceeene 110,694 96,984
COMSUMET 4 4 vttt e ea s et o e te s e o maneanseessseneeoenseenasssenstoaetsensssonennnns 7,858 6,660
LOANS, GYOSS &t veet v onenoeenensorasnsensasaaseenesosonsseenassoeeisasnsaansensas 200,362 176,458
Less allowance for possible loan loOSSeS .......ii ittt rinnnnennnns 3,050 2,293

$197,312 $174,165
</TABLE>

At December 31, 2005 and 2004, non-accrual loans totaled $2,551 and
$1,497, respectively. The gross interest income that would have been recorded
under the original terms of the loans amounted to $96, $168, and $94, in 2005,
2004 and 2003, respectively. The Bank had no locans with payments past due ninety
days or more and accruing interest at December 31, 2005 and 2004. Variable rate
and fixed rate loans totaled $141,172 and $59,190, respectively, at December 31,
2005.
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NOTE 4 - LOANS, Continued

The following is a summary of the activity within the allowance for
possible loan losses for the periods presented:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
For the years ended December 31,
2005 2004
<S> <C> <C>
Balance, beginning of year ........... TN e $ 2,293 $ 2,345
Provision for possible loan 1lOSSE€S ........cviiriinnnnrnnnnnnnns . e 1,125 1,000
Loans charged against the allowance, net of recoveries .................... {368) {1,052)
Balance, end Of YeAY . ...ttt ittt ireneroeeeetaneeeseeeeenenannnnnns $ 3,050 $ 2,293
</TABLE>

The following is a summary of impaired loans for the per:iods reported:

At December 31,

2005 2004

Impaired loans:

No valuation allowance required ............... $ 28C $2,186

Valuation allowance required .................. 2,16C 1,161
Total impaired 10aNS . ......ccitirrininenrsneennenns $2,440 $3,1357
Valuation allowance .........ovieernnnnncnnanennnnan $ 630 $ 305
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

2008

<S> <C>
Average recorded investment in impaired loans ..................oian $3,388
Interest income recognized on impaired loans ..............c.... e . 172
</TABLE>

NOTE 5 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Components of property and equipment included in the balance sheet are

as follows:

December 31,

2005 2004
Land and land improvements ........ e $ 1,104 $ 567
Building and leasehold improvements .............. 2,752 2,891
Construction in Process ..........eeevveeecnoonan- 335 -
Furniture and equipment ........veeeernecnrnanaraan 1,353 1,293
Vehicles ....iiiniiiiii i ivennnnnennnnnnn e .. 251 133
5,795 4,884
Accumulated depreciation ..........ciiiiiiiaaia.n (1,415) (1,255)
Total property and equipment ...... RN $ 4,380 $ 3,629
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NOTE 5 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, Continued

Construction in process consists of capitalized costs related to the
construction of the Anderson branch office. Depreciation expense for the years
ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 amounted to $329, $385, and $334,
respectively. Depreciation is charged to operations over the estimated useful
lives of the assets. The estimated useful lives and methods of depreciation for
the principal items focllow:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Type of Asset Life in Years
<S> <C>
Software 3
Furniture and equipment 5 to 7
Buildings and improvements S to 40
Vehicles 3
«</TABLE>

NOTE 6 - DEPOSITS
The following is a detail of deposit accounts:

December 31,

2005 2004
Noninterest bearing ............... ... .. . ..., $ 12,321 $ 8,818
Interest bearing:

NOW aCCOUunts . ..iutetiiuniinenenannraosanas 2,%41 2,914
Money market accounts ................0.00.. 50,505 61,240
SaVINGS .ttt it i i e e i e i 751 742
66,918 73,714

Time, less than $100,000 .................. 80,064 50,222
Time, $100,000 and over .......... e 74,679 52,210
154,743 102,432

Total deposSits . ... i ennans $221,661 $176,146

Interest expense on time deposits greater than $100,000 was $2,226,
$905, and $519, in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Brokered deposits as of
December 31, 2005 amounted to $30,774.

At December 31, 2005 the scheduled maturities of certificates of
deposit are as follows:

2006 $ 136,418
2007 16,150
2008 1,934
2009 129
2010 and thereafter 112
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NOTE 7 - FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK ADVANCES

The Bank had advances outstanding from the FHLB totaling $8,500 and
$13,500 at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The advances bear interest
at fixed rates ranging from 4.33 percent to 4.38 percent. An advance of $6,500
matures in 2006, and an advance of $2,000 matures in 2011. The advance maturing
in 2011 is callable, and may reprice prior to its final maturity date.

Advances are ccllateralized by qualifying residential 1 - 4 family
first mortgages and qualifying commercial loans. During 2005, the maximum amount
of advances outstanding was $16,500 and the average amount outstanding during
2005 was $11,392.

NOTE 8 - OTHER BORROWINGS

At December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Company had outstanding $3,900 and
$2,500, respectively, in other borrowings from an unrelated bank. The borrowings
bear interest at the federal prime rate (7.25 percent at December 31, 2005). The
borrowings mature in 2017 and may be repaid before maturity without penalty.

NOTE 9 - SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES

In 2001, the Company issued ten-year variable rate convertible

subordinated debentures (the "Debentures"). The Debentures paid interest
quarterly at prime minus 2 percent. Under the original terms of the Debenrture
agreement (the "Terms"), the holders of the Debentures could convert the

principal amount of each Debenture into common stock of the Company at the
conversion rate of $5.12 (which was based con the approximate fair value at
issuance of $6.50, as adjusted for the 2003, 2004 and 2005 stock dividends) of
Debenture principal for one share of the Company's stock. Under the Terms, the
Company had the opticn of redeeming the Debentures at any time after December
31, 2005 as a whole or in part and from time to time at predetermined prices. At
the Company's request, during the third and fourth quarters of 2005, holders of
$3,500 of the Company's Debentures converted their principal to common stock.
This conversion was made in advance of the earliest contractual redemption date
of January 1, 2006, provided for by the Terms. The Company paid the holders an
amount equal to the interest income that would have been earned on the
Debentures through January 1, 2006. This interest was paid based on the interest
rate in effect at the time of conversion: 4.25% and 4.75% for the third and
fourth quarters of 2005, respectively.

NOTE 10 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company is party to litigation and claims arising in the normal
course of business. Management, after consultation with legal counsel, believes
that the 1liabilities, if any, arising from such litigation and claims will not
be material to the Company's financial position or results of operations.

The Company has entered into a contract with an architect and
contractor to construct the Anderson branch office in the amount of $688.
Management estimates the total cost of construction of the Anderson branch
office to be approximately $750.

The Company has a ground lease on its main office location, which
expires in 2021. The monthly lease payment is $1 for years one through eleven
and increases to $2 per month in year sixteen.

The Company leased an office, which it used as a branch until July
2003, under a necn-cancelable operating lease, which terminated in October 2004.
Monthly lease payments of $3 were due on the lease until cancellation. This
office was closed in July 2003, but the lease obligation continued until October
2004.

The Company also leases land upen which it constructed a branch
office under a non-cancelable operating lease, which expires in March of 2018.
The lease requires monthly lease payments of $0.8. The lease contains four
renewal options of five years each with provisions for adjustments to the
monthly lease payments. The lease agreement requires the Company to pay all
property taxes.
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NOTE 10 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES, Continued
Future minimum lease payments under these operating leases are
summarized as follows:
For the year ended
ended
December 31,
2006 $ 23
2007 23
2008 23
2009 23
2010 23
Thereafter 241
$ 3156
NOTE 11 - UNUSED LINES OF CREDIT
At December 31, 2005, the Bank had two unused lines of credit to
purchase federal funds totaling $7,400 from unrelated banks. These lines of
credit are available on a one to fourteen day basis for deneral corporate
purposes of the Bank. The lenders reserve the right to withdraw the line at

their option.

The Bank had an additional line of credit with the FHLB to borrow

up to fifteen percent of the Bank's total assets. At December 31, 2005, the Bank

had unused available credit of $29,286.

Note 7.)

NOTE 12 - INCOME TAXES

The following
deferrals,
items of revenue and expense for tax and financial
years ended December 31:

The line of credit agreement
the Bank to pledge investment securities or qualifying loans as collateral.

2005 2004
Income taxes currently payable
Federal ......coveiimmennnnnnneenns . $ 1,400 $ 649
State ..... G eantesancreaseca e ansan 1le 65
1,516 714
Deferred tax provision (benefit) ...... (361) 55
Income tax provision ........... $ 1,155 $ 769
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NOTE 12 - INCOME TAXES, Continued
The income tax effect of cumulative temporary differences at December 31, are as
follows:
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Deferred tax asset (liability)
2005 2004
<S> <C> <C>
Allowance for possible 10An 1OSSES5 ...t ietirertoersnosesasnaanneetnonaesnnnannns . $ 699 $ 456
Nonaccrual loan interest .......... TN teesearasenenase s 40 14
Unrealized net losses on investment securities available for sale ................ N 212 26
Depreciation ............. e et e et e e e e e et e (234) (195)
Ty L o 1Y o 1« o R N (10) -
Write down of assets acquired in settlement of lecans 86 -
Deferred compensation ........... S s eecttasaraceenoaasas e et aneasevaassan 88 -
[0 o £ 1= o 10 (7)
Deferred CAX @SSBL ...ttt et ioinenitonesannesaeaansaaenoansanaeesseeneseeeennnns 891 294
Less: valuation allowance .............c.ciiuieaann. DN e {50) -
Neb deferred LaX ASSeLE i iu it ittt it entonenesneneeneaononsonsesenensaanansenasss $ 841 $ 294
</TABLE>
The net deferred tax asset is included in other assets in the
consolidated balance sheets. The valuation allowance is related tc the Company's
stand-alone state net operating loss carryforwards.
The provision for income taxes is reconciled to the amount of income
tax computed at the federal statutory rate on income befcre income taxes for the
years ended December 31, as follows:
<TABLE =
<CAPTION>
2005 2004 2003
Amount % Amount % Amount ¥
<S> <C> <C> <C> <C> <C> <C>
Tax expense &t statutory rate .........coceenveernnns $ 1,196 34 $ 710 34 $ 351 34
Increase in taxes resulting from:
State bank tax (net of federal benefit) ......... 77 2 43 2 24 2
Officers life insurance ...... e e e, (55) (1) - - - -
o 10 oY= < (63) (2) 16 1 7 1
Income tax provision ............ T $ 1,155 33 $ 769 37 S 382 37
</TABLE>
NOTE 13 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Certain directors, executive officers and companies with which they are
affiliated, are customers of and have banking transactions with the Bank in the
ordinary course of business. These loans were made on substantially the same
terms, including interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the time
for comparable arms-length transactions. A summary of loan transactions with

directors, including their affiliates and executive cfficers are as follows:

For the years ended

December 31,
2005 2004
Balance, beginning of year ................... $ 2,071 $ 1,808
New lOANS ... itiiviitnacnnnnennnensnans e 202 1,688
Less loan PAymMeNtsS . ...iienrrnnnnerncnnnannns {627) (1,425)
Balance, end of year ..... e e e $ 1,646 $ 2,071
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NOTE 13 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS, Continued

Deposits by directors and their related interests at December 31, 2005
and 2004 approximated $1,216 and $1,883, respectively.

The Company leases land from a relative of a director, shareholder and
executive officer of the Company (see Note 10). Lease expenses charged to
operations under these agreements approximated $10 in 2005, $40 in 2004, and $46
in 2003.

Of the $3,500 in debentures that were converted into common stock,
$1,810 were converted into 353,511 shares of common stock held by related
parties.

NOTE 14 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF-BALANCE SHEET RISK

In the ordinary course of business, and to meet the financing needs of
its customers, the Bank is a party to variocus financial instruments with
off-balance sheet risk. These financial instruments, which include commitments
to extend credit and standby letters of credit, involve, to varying degrees,
elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of the amounts recognized in
the balance sheet. The contract amount of those instruments reflects the extent
of involvement the Bank has in particular classes of financial instruments.

The Bank's exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by
the other party to the financial instrument for commitments to extend credit and
standby letters of credit is represented by the contractual amounts of those
instruments. The Bank uses the same credit policies in making commitments and
conditional obligations as it does for on-balance sheet instruments. Commitments
to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no
violation of any material condition established in the contract. Commitments
generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may
require the payment of a fee. At December 31, 2005 and 2004, unfunded
commitments to extend credit were $45,968 and $27,848, respectively. Variable
rate and fixed rate unfunded commitments to extend credit were $29,853 and
$16,115, respectively, at December 31, 2005. The Bank evaluates each customer's
credit worthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if
deemed necessary by the Bank upon extension of credit, is based on management's
credit evaluation of the borrower. Collateral varies but may include accounts
receivable, inventory, property, plant and equipment, commercial ard residential
real estate. At December 31, 2005 and 2004, there were outstanding letters of
credit totaling $332 and $9%4, respectively.

NOTE 15 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

The Bank sponsors the GrandSouth Bank Profit Sharing Section 401(k)
pPlan (the "Plan") for the benefit of all eligible emplcyees. The Bank
contributes seventy-five percent of the first four percent of the employee's
compensation contributed to the Plan. Contributions made to the Plan in 2005,
2004, and 2003 amcunted to $56, $40, and $35, respectively.

In 2001, supplemental benefits were approved by the Bcard of Directors
for certain executive officers of the Bank. These benefits are not qualified
under the Internal Revenue Code and they are not funded. However, certain
funding is provided informally and indirectly by life insurance policies owned
by the Bank. The Company recorded net expense related to these benefits of $61,
$56, and $29 in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
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NOTE 16 - STOCK OPTION PLAN

During 1998, the Board of Directors
the benefit of the directors, officers and employees. The Board may grant up to
778,330 options (after the shareholders approved an amendment to increase the
number of shares in the plan at the 2005 Annual meeting) at an option price per
share not less than the fair market value on the date of grant. All options
granted to officers and employees vest 20 percent each year for five years and
expire 10 years from the grant date. Information on options outstanding and
exercisable at December 31, 2005 is disclosed in the table below.

approved a stock option plan for

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Options outstanding Options exercisable
Weighted
Average Weighted Weighted
Range of Remaining Average Average
Exercise Number Contractual Exercise Number Exercise
Prices Outstanding Life Price Exercisable Price
<S> <C> <C> <C> <C> <C>
$ 3.58 181,682 2.87 $ 3.58 181,682 $ 3.58
3.94 47,842 5.12 3.94 38,274 3.94
5.51 - 5.71 41,489 6.20 5.68 23,623 5.69
6.69 33,000 §.13 €6.69 6,600 6.69
8.50 - 9.5 17,500 10.00 9.04 - -
10.05 93,358 10.00 10.05 - -
414,871 250,179
</TABLE>
A summary of the status of the plan and changes durinc the year is
presented below:
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
For the years ended December 31,
2005 2004 2003
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price
<S> <C> <C> <C> <Cs> <C> <C>
Outstanding at beginning of year .... 304,013 $4.26 271,013 $3.85 264,660 $3.82
Granted ........... PO 110,858 g.89 33,000 6.69 6,353 5.51
Exercised .............. e, - - -
Forfeited or expired ............. ... - - -
Outstanding at end of year .......... 414,871 5.76 304,013 4.26 271,013 3.85
Opticns exercisable at December 31, 250,179 3.92 225,712 3.77 207,846 3.69
Shares available for grant .......... 363,459 26,317 59,317
</TABLE>
Granted shares and per share exercise prices have been restated to

reflect the 2003, 2004 and 2005 stock dividends.
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NOTE 17 - COMMON STOCK AND N=T INCOME PER COMMON SHARE

Following is a reconciliation of basic net income per share to diluted net
income per share for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003.

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Income Shares Per-share
(numerator) (denominator) amount
For the year ended December 31, 2005
Basic net income per ccmmon share
<S> <C»> <C> <C>
Income available to common shareholders ........... et $ 2,361 2,582,298 $ 0.51
Effect of dilutive instruments:
SEOCK OPLIONS .t iv vt ittt i i e e - 152,728 -
Effect of convertible instruments:
Interest savings/weighted average
incremental shares assumed
conversion of subordinated debentures ................ .. ..., 73 483,960 -
Diluted net income per commocn share
Income available to common shareholders

plus assumed exercises of stock options .............. .. $ 2,434 3,218,986 $ 0.76

For the year ended December 31, 2004
Basic net income per common share

Income available to common shareholders ....... e e $ 1,319 2,382,357 $ 0.55
Effect of dilutive instruments:
SLOCK OPLIONS ittt ittt ie it e e B N - 134,086 -

Effect of convertible instruments:
Interest savings/weighted average
incremental shares assumed on
conversion of subordinated debentures ........... ... 50 684,115 -
Diluted net income per common share
Income available to common shareholders

plus assumed exercises of stock options ............... .. ... $ 1,369 $ 0.43
For the year ended December 31, 2003
Basic net income per common share
Income available to common shareholders ................. e $ 650 2,382,567 S 0.27
Bffect of dilutive instruments:
Stock options ......... et ettt e s e e - 95,896 -
Effect of convertible instruments:
Interest savings/weighted average
incremental shares assumed on
conversion of subordinated debentures ............... 00000 47 683,837 -
Diluted net inccme per common share
Income available to common shareholders
plus assumed exercises of stock options ................ Ceeeaeae S €97 3,162,300 $ 0.22

</TABLE:>
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NOTE 18 - RESTRICTIONS ON DIVIDENDS

The ability of the Company to pay cash dividends is dependent upon
its receiving cash in the form of dividends from the Bank. 3South Carolina
banking regulations restrict the amount of cash dividends the 3ank can pay to
the Company.

NOTE 19 - REGULATORY MATTERS

The Company and the Bank are subject to various regulatory capital
requirements administered by the federal banking agencies. Failure to meet
minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory, and possible
additional discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, cculd have a
direct material effect on the Company's financial statements. Under capital
adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action,
specific capital guidelines must be met that involve quantitative measures of
the Company's and Bank's assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance sheet
items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The Company's capital
amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the
regulators about components, risk weightings, and other factors.

In connection with the Company's acquisition of a specialty lender in
2005, the Company committed to the Federal Reserve to increase the amount of its
Tier 1 capital to the well capitalized level by June 30, 2006. The conversion of
subordinated debentures to common stock in 2005 was in furtherance of this
commitment. The Company plans to raise additional Tier 1 capital in 2006 and is
exploring several avenues to do so.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital
adequacy require the Company and the Bank to maintain minimum amounts and ratios
(set forth in the table below) of total and Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted
assets, and of Tier 1 capital to average assets. The Company and Bank actual
capital amounts and ratios and minimum regulatory amounts and ratios are
presented as follows:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
To be well capitalized
For capital under prompt corrective
adeguacy purposes action provisions
Actual Minimum Minimum

Amount Ratio Amocunt Ratio Amount Ratio
Company (consolidated):
As of December 31, 2005
<S> <C> <C> <C= <C> <C> <C>
Total capital (to risk weighted assets) ............... $18,374 8.8% $16,787 8.0% N/A N/A
Tier 1 capital (to risk weighted assets) .............. 15,747 7.5 8,393 4.0 N/A N/A
Tier 1 capital (to average assets) ........... [ 15,747 6.7 9,416 4.0 N/A N/A
Bank:
As of December 31, 2005
Total capital (to risk weighted assets) ............... $21,145 10.1% $16,778 8.0% $20,972 10.0%
Tier 1 capital (to risk weighted assets) .............. 18,518 8.8 8,389 4.0 12,583 6.0
Tier 1 capital (to average assSe€ts) .........oviveevee.. 18,518 8.0 9,230 4.0 11,538 5.0
Company (consolidated):
As of December 31, 2004
Total capital (to risk weighted assets) ............... $16,577 9.3% $14,331 8.0% N/A N/A
Tier 1 capital (to risk weighted assets) .............. 10,840 6.1 7,166 4.0 N/A N/A
Tier 1 capital (to average assets) .......... e 10,840 5.6 8,196 4.0 N/A N/A
Bank:
As of December 31, 2004
Total capital (to risk weighted assets) ............... $18,715 10.5% $14,312 8.0% $17,891 10.0%
Tierl capital (to risk weighted assets) ............... 16,478 9.2 7,156 4.0 10,734 6.0
Tier 1 capital (to average asSets) ...........ocenennn 16,478 8.5 8,196 4.0 10,246 5.0
</TABLE>
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GRANDSOUTHE BANCORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
NCTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in thousands except per share data)

NOTE 20 - FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

SFAS No. 107, "Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments"
requires disclosure of fair value information, whether or not recognized in the
balance sheets, when it is practical to estimate the fair value. SFAS No. 107
defines a financial instrument as cash, evidence of an ownership interest in an
entity or contractual obligations that require the exchange of cash or other
instruments. Certain items are specifically excluded from the disclosure
requirements, including the Bank's ccmmon stock, property and equipment and
other assets and liabilities.

Fair value approximates carrying value for cash and due from banks and
federal funds sold due to the short-term nature of the instrument.

Investment securities available for sale are valued using quoted fair
market prices. Other investments at cost are considered to be an appropriate
estimate of fair value due to historical redemption of the stock at cost.

Fair value for locans maturing after one year is based on the discounted
present value of the estimated future cash flows. Discount rates used in these
computations approximate the rates currently offered for similar loans of
comparable terms and credit quality.

Fair value for demand deposit accounts is equal to the carrying value.
Interest-bearing accounts with no fixed maturity date are valued based on rates
offered within the Bank's market wusing current interest rates on similar
instruments. Certificate of deposit accounts maturing within one year are valued
at their carrying wvalue. The fair value of certificate of deposit accounts
maturing after one year are estimated by discounting cash flows from expected
maturities using current interest rates on similar instruments.

The fair values of other borrowings are estimated using currently
offered market rates.

The fair values of fixed rate advances from the FHLB are estimated
using the discounted cash flow calculation that applies to the Company's current
borrowing rate available from the FHLB. The carrying amounts of the varialble
rate subordinated debentures are reasonable estimates of fair valus because they
could be repriced frequently.

The Bank has used management's best estimate of fair value based on the
above assumptions. Thus, the fair values presented may not be the amounts that
could be realized in an immediate sale or settlement of the instrument. In
addition, any income taxes or other expenses that would be incurred in an actual
sale or settlement are not taken into consideratiocn in the fair value presented.

The estimated fair values of the Bank's financial instruments are as
follows:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

Carrying
Amount
Financial Assets:
«8> <C>
Cash and due from banks ..........ieiiiiiniiiiniennnnnns $ 6,628
Federal funds sold ................ e e 6,312
Investment securities available for sale ................ 28,160
Other inveStmMERts, 8L COST . .ituivrv e einenennersonnns 798
Loans, Qross .......... et e e e 200,362
Financial Liabilities:
Depesits ............. et e e e i e e 221,661
Federal Home Loan Bank advancCes ..............cevueeenons 8,500
Other borrowings .......... ittt inannnn 3,900
Subordinated debentures ............ ..t ann -
</TABLE>
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199,796

221,528
8,462
3,800

December 31,

Carrying
Amount

<Cx
$ 2,544
3,424
16,351
955
176,458

176,146
13,500
2,500
3,500

3,424
16,351
955
176,707

176,695
13,483
2,500
3,500
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GRANDSOUTH BANCORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dcllars in thousands except per share data)
NOTE 21 - PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Following is condensed financial informacion of GrandSouth
Bancorporation (parent company only) :

CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

2005 2004
ASSETS
7= =« $ 64 $ 226
Investment in bank subsidiary ............... 18,914 16,435
Due from subsidiary ...........cciiviiianinnn . 737 -
Deferred tax asSe€L .....uttuvnie e renanann 374 233
$20,089 $16,894
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
AcCrued EXPENSES . ... rronnnnraanaeens e $ 61 $ 54
Due to subsidiary ............cciiiiiiiiaL, - 43
Note payable ..... e esasesaca s s anense s 3,500 2,500
Subordinated debentures ....... e - 3,500
Shareholders' equity ....... ...t 16,128 10,797
$16,894
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
<TABLE>
<CAPTICN>
For the years ended
December 31,

2005 2004 2003
<S> <C> <C> <C>
REVENUES ... ...ttt iennnennnnansnn Ct e e s etceenen st e s e sananns S - $ - $ -
EXPENSES

Interest ...........c..0.. ettt a et it et et e 320 160 75
SUNALY .+ttt i e PN 67 40 36

Loss before equity in undistributed net
income of bank subsidiary ........ teeees et e (387) (200) {111)

EQUITY IN UNDISTRIBUTED NET INCOME

OF BANK SUBSIDIARY ..ttt iienittaaettnentoesstoosnnssonsaannsssnns 2,606 1,445 720
Income before INCOME LAXESE ..ttt iinr et neensneossonsens 2,219 1,245 609
Income tax benefit ... ... i e e i e 142 74 41
Net income ................ t e st et s asetrasee st aneasn $ 2,381 $ 1,319 $ 650

</TABLE>
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GRANDSOUTH BANCORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
NCTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in thousands except per share data)
NOTE 21 - PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL INFORMATION, Continued
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
<S>

D £= S 1 o U 1T

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
used for operating activities

Deferred iNCOME CAXES ... tveunvrnnnnennrenonneeneenennans
Accrued expenses and other ...............iiiiiiiinniniiann,
Increase in due to (from) subsidiary ................000..
Equity in undistributed net income of bank subsidiary ....

Net cash used for operating activities ............

INVESTING ACTIVITY

Investment in bank subsidiary ..........cciiiiiiiiii i,

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from note payable ........... .. i,
Payment of cash dividends ..... P
Cash paid in lieu of fracticnal shares ...............c.0v..

Net cash provided by (used for)

financing activities ........ ... i i,
Net increase (decrease) incash ..............vvunn
CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR ...ttt inetttnennnnnncenensensnnennnes
CASH, END OF YEAR ... .ottt i et e e .
</TABLE>
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<C>
$ 2,361

For the years ended
December 31,

<C>
$ 1,319

(75)
36

2003



Haynsworth Sinkler Boyd. P. A. is\private\sec-bank\09992\0001\gsb 2006 audited financials.txt, 1
12/31/2008

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors
GrandSouth Bancorporation and Subsidiary
Greenville, South Carolina

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of
GrandSouth Bancorporation and Subsidiary as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and
the related consolidated statements of income, shareholders' equity and
comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2006. These consolidated financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall consolidated financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reascnable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of GrandSouth
Bancorporation and Subsidiary as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 and the results
of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2006, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

s/Elliott Davis, LLC

Greenville, South Carolina
March 21, 2007
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GRANDSOUTH BANCORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Dollars in thousands)
<TABLE>
<CAPTICN>
DECEMBER 31,
2006 2005
ASSETS
<S> <C> <C>
Cash and due from banks ... ...ttt ittt i iiet s ttett i seetinnettnenrane e ennnsnnns s 6,145 $ 6,628
Federal funds s0ld ........ ..o iieeinnenninnn .. e TSN 13,659 6,312
Cash and cash eqQuUivAlents ... ... .ottt ettt ittt aiianaaaeanaan . 19,804 12,940
Investment securities available for sale ......... ... it it i i e PPN 41,646 28,160
Other InVeSTMENLES, AL COSE .t ittt it ittt ittt it tn e ettt eeeineaseneneonenaenosnnaecesnneenas 504 798
Loans, net ........ccetinciinn . S e et e e e 224,338 197,312
Premises and equipment, D&k ... .. .. ...ttt i it e e i e e . 5,120 4,380
Bank owned life IMSUXANCE ... uti ittt ittt it tee et st i e iaaasenaaaesensenaneeatenannna 4,576 4,408
Assets acquired in settlement OFf JOANS .ttt vttt iiittienn ittt ienee it e, 149 630
Other assets ............ e et e s et et et e e e e e e 4,173 3,320
Total assets .......... e e e e ettt e et $ 300,310 $ 251,948
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Deposits
Noninterest bearing ............. i iiiiiiiinenann, e e e $ 15,215 $ 12,321
INEEYESE DEATIMG .+ttt iiit it e it i e teet it it e e e 253,708 209,340
e T e 1= o - I = 268,923 221,661
Federal Hcome Loan Bank advances ....... et e e, e - 8,500
Other DOFTOWINGS 4t i it ieietiaeetieie it iee s tn e neeesneeensoenennnas PR S e - 3,900
Junior subordinated debentULeS ..o i i ittt ie ittt ittt ettt e e 8,247 -
Other liabilities ......... e e e e e e e e e, [P 3,670 1,759
Total liabilities ........ e et .o Ceesen R e eeeee 280,840 235,820
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES - Notes 10 and 14
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common stock, no par value, 20,000,000 shares authorized,
3,373,845 and 3,065,726 shares issued and outstanding
at December 31, 2006 and 2005 respecCtively ... ...t iiiiieiriieettnemannrronnaeeernnrannn 19,054 14,340
Retained earnings ...... et e i e i et et et et e et e e e e 554 2,149
Accumulated othexr comprehensive 1OSS ... ...ttt renennnannns e (138) (361)
Total sharehclders' eQuUitY ..... ...ttt iietiaenannann e 19,470 16,128
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity .......... ..ttt iiiinnnnnnnnans $ 300,310 $ 251,948
</TABLE>
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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GRANDSOUTH BANCORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(Dollars in thousands except per share data)
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

For the years ended December 31,

2006
INTEREST INCCME
<S> <C>
Loans and fees on loans ......... e et et $21,338
Investment securities ..... et e i e e e e v Cieeeae e 1,622
Lo £ 7= 651
Total INCEereSt INCOME ..ttt it ennneruoeeesnmeeonoeeosenennenstoeenns 23,611
INTEREST EXPENSE
<) o T T o i = 10,045
Federal Home Loan Bank advances and other DOrrowings ............ioceviuieuneann 407
Subordinated debentures ... ..... ...t i i i i i e e 389
Total INCEreSL EXPEMSE ... .tiitueeetiieteieneee e eransioreonseeesnnens 10,841
Net Interest INCOME .. ...ttt ittt ittt iaiiaanee s e eenenas 12,770
PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES ...ttt ittt tiattttmeeenneeaensnasonosseaensassnsnenns 1,110

Net interest income after provisicn for

1OAN LOSSES ittt ittt ittt e e e e e 11,660

NONINTEREST INCOME

Service fees on deposit GCCOUNLS ... .. ittt ittt iiiee et enanennns 388
Gain on sale of investment securities available for sale ..................... -
Gain on sale of assets acquired in the settlement of loans ............... ... 113
L0 o £ T3 252
Total noninterest INCOME .. ... ..ttt iinnrinieerannonrenaronnnssannnnn 759
NONINTEREST EXPENSES
Salaries and employee benefits ........... 0 ittt e . 4,628
Data processing .......... ettt et e e e e e e 408
Insurance ............... e ec ettt e e st et s et aas s teeseaereee s Gese e 411
Ket occupancy and expenses of premises and equipment ......... e e 79¢
Printing, postage and supplies ... ..ttt i e it e s 222
Professional SerVICES ... viiiiiuetiinee ettt e et 347
Miscellaneous loan expense ....... et e e e e e e 1583
Other operating ............ it iinennnnns N PN 433
Total noninterest eXPenses ............oc.0 e, 7,398
Income before income taxes ............ it e e 5,021
INCOME TAX PROVISION ............ D R PN e e e e, 1,761
Net income ................. N $ 3,260
</TABLE>

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolideted €£financial
statements.
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GRANDSOUTH BANCORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME, CONTINUED
{(Dollars in thousands except per share data)
<TABLE =
<CAPTION>
For the years ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
NET INCOME PER COMMON SHARE*
<S> <C»> <C> <C»
Basic ............ e e e ettt e e $ 0.97 $ 0.83 $ 0.50
Diluted ..... . e SN e et et ei e st $ 0.89 $ 0.69 $ 0.39
WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF COMMON SHARES CUTSTANDING*
Basic ............ S 3,372,065 2,840,528 2,620,593
B2 ST =Y 3,653,849 3,540,885 3,520,614
</TABLE>

*Net income per common share and weighted average number of common shares
outstanding for 2005 and 2004 have been restated to reflect the ten percent
stock dividend declared in July 2006.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.
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GRANDSOUTH BANCORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSCLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004
(Dollars in thousands except share data)

<TABLE>

<CAPTION>

<S>

Balance, December 31, 2003 ... ...ttt innienennennnn
Net InCOmE ...t intntinen it i oneeennnns

Other comprehensive income -
Unrealized holding gain on
investment securities (net of

income tax expense of $5) ............. .. ...,
Comprehensive income ...........c.cciuiiinnuinnnnnnn

Cash in lieu of fractional shares ......... e
Cash dividend ($.08) per share ..................
Stock dividend (10%) .............cooiniiinn. e
Balance, December 31, 2004 .......oviirnennennnnnen e
Net Income . ....... ..t iine it

Other comprehensive income -
Unrealized holdirng losses on
investment securities (net of
income tax benefit of $180) ...................

Less reclassification adjustment for
gains included in net income (net of

income tax expense of $7) .......... ...,
Comprehensive income ....................... PPN
Conversion of subordinated debentures into
CoOmmMON SEOCK . vvvveerrnnonnneann e
Cash in lieu of fractional shares ...............
Cash dividend ($.08) per share ..................
Balance, December 31, 2005 ......citieunineennnannnnns
Net InCome ........ ittt eennrnonnornoensernreneas

Other comprehensive income -
Unrealized holding gains on
investment securities (net of
income tax effect of $141) .............. e

Comprehensive inNCOME ... iviviienn i eennennnnn
Stock based compensation ............ 00000l
Stock dividend (10%) ..
Cash in lieu of fractional shares ...............
Exercise of stock options ......... e
Cash dividend ($.08) per share ......

Balance, December 31, 2006 ....... PN
</TABLE>
The accompanying

statements.
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<C>
2,165,970

2,382,357

3,065,726

306,573
(407)
1,954

consolidated

stock
Amount
<C>
$ $,695
(1)
1,146
10,840
3,500
14,340
110
4,592
12
$ 19,054
financial

Retained
earnings

(4,592)
(s}

Accumulated

other
comprehensive
income {(loss)

11

(307)

(11)

223

Total
shareholders'
equity

(307)
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GRANDSOUTH BANCORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Dollars in thousands)
<TABLE =
<CAPTION>
Fcr <he years ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
<8> <C> <C> <C>
= A o oo 1T e $ 3,260 $ 2,361 $ 1,319
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities
Deferred income tax expense (benefit) ................... N e 273 (361) 55
Provisicn for possible loan 1O0SSES .........iuitiiiiitini it iannneann 1,110 1,125 1,000
Depreciation of premises and equipment .............. ... 388 329 385
Net amortization (accretion) of investment securities
available for sale ..... ...ttt i e e e e, (6) 19 114
Gain on sale of investment securities available for sale ................ - (18} -
Gain on sale of property and equipment . ........iiitiit ittt (14) (1) (4)
(Gain) loss on sale of assets acquired in settlement of loans ........... (119) 1 13
Accretion of bank owned life insurance .............. (168) (161) -
Stock based compensation ......... ..l et e 110 -
Write-down of assets acqguired in settlement of loans .................... 15 251 68
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Increase in Other aSSetsS ... ...ttt it tinarinoeesnnenns e (1,018) (232) (534)
Increase in other liabilities .......iiinii ittt 1,903 185 233
Net cash provided by operating activities ............c.uiiuiuienunnn s 5,734 3,498 2,645
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Origination Of 1OANS, MEL ...ttt ittt it et e et e eeaaenaaasesasensnnnn (28,300) {24,582) (28,271)
Purchase c¢f investment securities available for sale .............. ... (21,338) (16,048} {11,027)
Proceeds from principal paydowns on investment securities
available fOr SAle ........i'ereiiiiantnaiiiea, e e e 3,222 2,769 2,908
Proceeds from sales of investment securities available for
= = Y - 962 5,500
Proceeds from maturity and calls of investment securities
available for sale ..... N e e e e e e 5,000 - -
Redemption (purchase) of Federal Home Loan Bank StOCK - .v.vciviienneeannennn 294 157 (375)
Purchase of bank owned life insurance ...............cueueeuunn. e e - - (3,357)
Increase in cash surrender value of life insurance ......................... - - (63)
Investment in capital LrUST ... ...ttt ittt ittt e e (247) - -
Proceeds from sale of assets acquired in settlement of loans ............... 749 309 606
Cash equivalents acquired, net of payment for purchase
e e 1B = A X < - (737) -
Proceeds from sale of premises and equipment .............. ¢ . iiiiiiiinnn 37 22 16
Purchase of premises and equipment ............... e et (1,151) (1,101} (132)
Net cash used for investing activities ............ e (41,734) (38,247} (34,195)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase in deposSits, MEL .. ...ttt ittt iai it ie e ettt oeneaaannns 47,262 45,515 29,637
Proceeds from Federal Home Loan Bank advVanCes .. ..uvivrittntennnnneennnnnes - 11,000 5,000
Repayment of Federal Home Loan Bank advances ........... e e (8,500) (16,000) (3,100)
Prcceeds from issuance of junior subordinated debentures .................. 8,247 - -
Proceeds from other borrowings ........... ..ttt neineneenanas 100 3,900 2,50¢
Repayment of other borrowings ...........c.ceeiivunnnrnnn e e e (4,000) (2,500) -
Proceeds from exercise of stock options ............. ... . it 12 - -
Dividends paid ......... e e et (252) (192) (130)
Cash paid in lieu of fractionmal Shares ..............ciiiiiiiinnennecennnnn (5) (2) (1)
Net cash provided by financing activities ......... . i 42,864 41,721 33,908
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ..............couuuuununn 6,864 6,972 2,360

</TABLE>

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.
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GRANDSOUTH BANCORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(Dollars in thousands)
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
For the years ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
<S> <C> <C> <C>
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR .. vutunnnnnunnsnnmeenneenennannn 12,940 5,968 3,608
CASHE AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR ... ..ttt iiiinii ittt enrnnennnnn $ 19,804 $ 12,940 $ 5,968
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
Cash paid for:
INCOME LAXES 4t oot vt eonososesnsneneessoeasenenesannsnonssosssnnsenns $ 1,548 $ 1,225 $ 238
INEEYESE . vveveneeenannnnns R e e e e e $ 10,671 $ 6,632 $ 3,811
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NON-CASH
INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Change in unrealized gain (loss) on investment securities
available for sale, before tax .........cccvuuvnnn e et e s $ 364 (505) S 16
Loans charged-off, net Of reCOVErieS ...... ..ttt neenn S 1,737 S 368 S 1,052
Loans transferred to assets acquired in settlement of loans ............. $ 164 $ 310 $ 1,157
Dividends declared, but unpai@ .........iiiiiiiii i, S 67 $ 61 $ 43
Subordinated debentures converted into common stock .................. e S - $ 3,500 $ -
Stock dividend ................ et e e e e e e e S 4,592 - $ 1,146
</TABLE>

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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GRANDSOUTH BANCORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in thousands except per share data)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACTIVITIES

GrandSouth Bancorporation (the “Company") is a South Carclina
corporation organized in 2000 for the purpcse of being a holding company for
GrandSouth Bank (the "Bank"). On October 2, 2000, pursuant to a Plan of Exchange
approved by the sharehclders, all of the outstanding shares of $2.50 par value
common stock of the Bank were exchanged for shares of no par value common stock
of the Company. The Company presently engages in no business other than that of
owning the Bank, has no employees, and operates as one business segment. The
Company is regulated by the Federal Reserve Board. The consolidated financial
statements include the accounts of the Company and the Bank. All significant
intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.
The GrandSouth Capital Trust 1 (see note 9) is an unconsolidated subsidiary.

The Bank was incorporated in 1998 and operates as a South Carolina
chartered bank providing full banking services to its customers. The Bank is
subject to regulation by the South Carolina State Board of Financial
Institutions and the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.

Basis of presentation
The accounting and reporting policies conform to accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America and to general practices
in the banking industry. The Company uses the accrual basis of accounting.

Reclassifications
Certain prior year amcunts have been reclassified to conform to the current
presentation. These reclassifications have no effect on previously reported
shareholders' equity, comprehensive income, or net income.

Acquisition
In May 2005, the Cempany acquired an auto-financing business with assets
valued at $3,236 and recorded §737 in goodwill. This auto-financing
business had $2,413 in specialty commercial lines of credit with the Ban!

Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States cf America
requires management to make estimates and assumpticns that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities as of the date of the ccnsolidated financial
statements and the reported amount of income and expenses during the
reporting periods. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Concentrations of credit risk

The Company makes loans to individuals and small businesses for various
personal and commercial purposes primarily in the upstate region of South
Carolina. The Company's loan portfolio is not concentrated in loans to any
single borrower or in a relatively small number of borrowers. Additiocnally,
management is not aware of any concentrations of locans to classes of
borrowers or industries that would be similarly affected by economic
conditions.

In addition to monitoring potential concentrations of loans to particular
borrowers or groups of borrowers, industries and geographic regions,
Management monitors exposure to credit risk that could arise from potential
concentrations of lending products and practices such as loans that subject
borrowers to substantial payment increases (e.g. principal deferral
periods, loans with initial interest-only periods, etc), and loans with
high loan-to-value ratios. Additionally, there are industry practices that
could subject the Company to increased credit risk should economic
conditions change over the course of a loan's life. For example, the
Company makes variable rate loans and fixed rate principal-amortizing
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GRANDSOUTH BANCORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACTIVITIES, Continued

loans with maturities prior to the loan being fully paid (i.e. balloon
payment loans). These loans are underwritten and monitored to manage the
associated risks. Management has determined that there is no concentration
of credit risk associated with its lending policies or practices.

The Company's investment portfolio consists principally of obligations of
the United States of America, its agencies or its corporations and general
obligation municipal securities. In the opinion of management, there is no
concentration of credit risk in its investment portfolioc. The Company
places its deposits and correspondent accounts with and sells its federal
funéds to high quality institutions. Management believes credit risk
associated with correspondent accounts is not significant.

Investment securities
The Bank accounts for investment securities in accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 115, "Accounting for Certain
Investments in Debt and Equity Securities." The statement requires
investments in equity and debt securities to be classified into one of
three categories:

1. Available for sale: These are securities that are nct classified as
either held to maturity or as trading securities. These securities are
reported at fair market value which is determined using quoted market
prices. Unrealized gains and losses are reported, net of income taxes,
as separate components c¢f shareholders' equity (accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss)). Gains or losses on dispositions of
securities are based on the difference between the net proceeds and
the adjusted carrying amounts of the securities sold using the
specific identification method. Premiums and discounts are amortized
into interest income by a method that approximates a level yield.

2. Held to maturity: These are securities that the Company has the
ability and intent to hold until maturity. These securities are stated
at cost, adjusted for amortization of premiums and the accretion of
discounts. Premiums and discounts are amortized into interest income
by a method that approximates a level yield. The Company has no held
to maturity securities.

3. Trading: These are securities that are bought and held principally for
the purpose of selling in the near future. Trading securities are
reported at fair market value, and related unrealized gains and losses
are reccgnized in the income statement. The Company has no trading
securities.

Loans and interest income on loans
Loans are stated at the principal balance outstanding. The allowance for
possible 1loan losses is deducted from total 1loans in the consolidated
balance sheets. Interest income is recognized on an accrual basis over the
term of the loan based on the principal amount outstanding.

Loans are generally placed on non-accrual status when principal or interest
becomes ninety days past due, or when payment in full is not anticipated.
When a loan is placed on ncn-accrual status, interest accrued but not
received is generally reversed against interest income. If collectibility
is in doubt, cash receipts on non-accrual loans are not recorded as
interest income, but are used to reduce principal. Loans are not returned
to accrual status until the borrower demonstrates the ability to pay
principal and interest. Loans on non-accrual status as well as real estate
acquired through foreclosure or deed taken in lieu of foreclosure are
included in non-performing assets.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACTIVITIES, Continued

Allowance for loan losses

The provision for lcan losses charged tc operating expense reflects the
amount deemed appropriate by management to establish an adequate reserve to
meet the present estimated loss characteristics of the current 1loan
portfolio. Management's estimate 1is based on periodic and regular
evaluation of individual loans, the overall risk characteristics of the
various portfolio segments, past experience with losses, and prevailing and
anticipated economic conditions. Loans that are determined to be
uncollectible are charged against the allowance. Provision for loan losses
and recoveries on loans previously charged cff are added tc the allowance.

The Company accounts for impaired 1loans in accordance with SFAS No. 114,
“Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan." This standard requires
that all lenders value loans at the loan's fair value if it is probable
that the lender will be unable to collect all amounts due according to the
terms of the loan agreement. Fair value may be determined based upon the
present value of expected cash flows, market price of the 1loan, if
available, or value of the underlying collateral. Expected cash flows are
required to be discounted at the loan's effective interest rate.

Under SFAS No. 114, as amended by SFAS No. 118, when the ultimate
collectibility of an impaired 1loan's principal is in doubt, wholly or
partially, all cash receipts are applied to principal. Once the reported
principal balance has been reduced to zero, future cash receipts are
applied to interest income, to the extent that any interest has been
foregone. Further cash receipts are recorded as recoveries of any amounts
previously charged off.

A loan is also considered impaired if its terms are modified in a troubled
debt restructuring. For these accruing impaired loans, cash receipts are
typically applied to principal and interest receivable in accordance with
the terms of the restructured loan agreement. Interest income is recognized
on these loans using the accrual method of accounting.

Premises and eguipment

Premises and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of the related assets. Maintenance and repairs are charged to
operations, while major improvements are capitalized. Upon retirement, sale
or cther disposition of premises and equipment, the cost and accumulated
depreciation are eliminated from the accounts, and gain or loss is included
in income from operatiocns.

Assets acquired in settlement of loans

Assets acquired in settlement of loans include real estate acquired through
foreclosure or deed taken in lieu of foreclosure, and repossessed assets.
These assets are recorded at the lower of the carrying value of the loans
or the estimated fair value of the related asset, net of estimated selling
costs. The excess carrying value, if any, is charged to the allowance for
possible loan losses upon transfer. If further reduction in value occurs,
charges are included in income from operations.

Goodwill

Goodwill is included in other assets and is evaluated for impairment on at
least an annual basis by comparing the fair value of its reporting units to
their related carrying value. If the carrying value of a reporting unit
exceeds its fair value, the Company determines whether the implied fair
value of the goodwill, wusing a discounted cash flow analysis, exceeds the
carrying value of the goodwill. If the carrying value of the goodwill
exceeds the implied fair value of the goodwill, an impairment 1loss is
recorded in an amount equal to that excess. To date, the Company has not
had to record any impairment of its goodwill.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACTIVITIES, Continued

Income taxes

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis. When
income and expenses are recognized in different periods for financial
reporting purposes versus for purposes of computing income taxes currently
payable, deferred taxes are provided on such temporary differences. The
Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with SFAS No. 109,
"Accounting for Income Taxes." Under SFAS No. 109, deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognized for the expected future tax consequences of
events that have been recognized in the financial statements or tax return.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the enacted tax
rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those
temporary differences are expected to be realized or settled.

Advertising and public relations expense
Advertising, promotional, and other Dbusiness development costs are
generally expensed as incurred. External costs incurred in producing media
advertising are expensed the first time the advertising takes place.
External costs relating to direct mailings are expensed in the period in
which the direct mailings are sent.

Net income per common share

Net income per common share is computed on the basis of the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding in accordance with SFAS No.
128, "Earnings per Share." The treasury stock method is used to compute the
effect of stock options and convertible subordinated debentures on the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding for diluted earnings
per share. On January 22, 2004, February 28, 2005 and July 19, 2006, the
Company declared ten percent stock dividends. Per share and share amounts
have been retroactively restated since the Company's 2005 Annual Report on
Form 10-KSB to reflect the stock dividend declared in 2006. The 2005 stock
dividend was reflected in the 2004 financial statements.

Statement of cash flows
For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are defined
as those amounts included in the balance sheet caption "Cash and cash
equivalents." Cash and cash equivalents have an original maturity of three
months or less.

Fair values of financial instruments

SFAS No. 107, *"Disclosures About Fair Value of Financial Instruments,” as
amended by SFAS No. 119, requires disclosure of fair value information for
financial instruments, whether or not recognized in the consolidated
balance sheet, when it is practicable to estimate the fair value. SFAS No.
107 defines a financial instrument as cash, evidence of an ownership
interest in an entity or contractual obligations, which require the
exchange of cash or other financial instruments. Certain items are
specifically excluded from the disclosure requirements, including the
Company's common stock. In addition, other nonfinancial instruments such as
property and equipment and other assets and liabilities are not subject to
the disclosure requirements.

Risks and uncertainties
In the normal course of its business the Company encounters two significant
types of risks: economic and regulatory. There are three main components of
economic risk: interest rate risk, credit risk and market risk. The Company
is subject to interest rate risk to the degree that its interest-bearing
liabilities mature or reprice at different times, or on different bases,
than its interest-earning assets. Credit risk is the risk of default on the
Company's loan and investment securities portfolios that results from a
borrower's 1inability or wunwillingness to make contractually required

payments. Market risk reflects changes in the value of collateral
underlying 1loans receivable and the valuation of real estate held by the
Company .
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACTIVITIZS, Continued

The Company is subject to the regulations of varicus governmental agencies.
These regulations can and do change significantly from period to period.
The Company also undergoes periodic examinations by the regulatory
agencies, which may subject it to further changes with respect to asset
valuations, amounts of required loss allowances and operating restrictions
from the regulators' judgments based on information available to them at
the time of their examination.

Stock-based compensation

The Company has a stock-based employee compensation plan, which is further
described in Note 16. Until January 1, 2006, the Ccmpany accounted for the
plan under the recognition and measurement principles of Accounting
Principles Board ("APB") Opinion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees, " and related Interpretations. Ne stock-based employee
compensation cost was reflected in net income prior to 2006, as all stock
cptions granted under the plan had an exercise price equal to the market
value of the wunderlying common stock on the date of grant. The Company
adopted SFAS 123 (R) on January 1, 2006. The following table illustrates the
effect on net income and net income per common share as if the Company had
applied the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123, "Accounting
for Stock-Based Compensation," to stock-based employee compensation in 2005
and 2004, and the actual expense recognized in 2006 under SFAS 123(R). Per
share and weighted average shares outstanding have been restated to reflect
the ten percent stock dividend declared on July 19, 2006. The February 28,
2005 stock dividend was reflected in the 2004 financial statements.

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
<S>
Net income, as TepPOrLed .. ... ii it iieteninteneneneentoanenecantoeananeenas
Add: Stock-based compensation expense included in net
income, net of tax effects ......... .. . i, e

Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation

Pro

Add:

Net

Net

expense determined under fair value based
method for all awards, net of related tax effects

forma net income - basic ........ ..l e i e e
Interest savings, net of tax/weighted average

incremental shares assumed on conversion of
subordinated debentures ......... ..., e e e

income (2006) and pro forma net income (2005
and 2004) - diluted

income per common share:
Basic - A8 YePOILed ... .. ...t i e i ittt e e

Basic - pro forma (2005 and 2004) ........c..uun. e e

Diluted - as reported ........c.iiiiiiiiiin i it

Diluted - pro forma (2005 and 2004) ......... e e

</TABLE>

usT
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2006

<Cs>
$ 3,260

71

Years ended December 31,

<C>
$ 2,361

2004
<C>
$ 1,318
(54)
1,265
50
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GRANDSOUTH BANCORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACTIVITIES, Continued
The weighted average fair values of the options granted during the

years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 have been estimated using the
Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following assumptions:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
2006
Assumptions:
<S> <C>
Dividend yield ............. ... Ceeee e e 0.64%
Weighted average risk-free interest rate ..............ieivinnnnnn. 5.04%
Weighted average expected volatility .............. .. ..uu.. e 31.14%
Weighted average expected life in years .......... ... i, 8.00
Weighted average fair values ..........c.iiiiiiiiniininninieinnananns $ 5.42
</TABLE>

As of December 31, 2006 the Company had 472,038 outstanding opticns to
employees and directors. The table set forth below summarizes stock option
activity for the Company's stock compensation plan for the period ended December
31, 2006. The number of shares outstanding, granted and exercised as well as the
corresponding weighted average exercise prices have been retroactively restated
to reflect all stock dividends since the date the options were granted.

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Stock Opticns
Weighted-Average
Remaining
Weighted-Average Contractual
Shares Exercise Price Life (Years)
«8> <C> <C>
Outstanding at December 31, 2005 .......... 456,392 $ 5.24
Granted . ... iert it e e e e 19,800 $12.50
Exercised ............. P e (1,954) $ 5.97
Forfeited .........uiiiiiimmninenneneneennn {2,200) S B.41
Outstanding at December 31, 2006 .......... 472,038 $ 5.53 4,86
Exercisable at December 31, 2006 .......... 344,014 $ 4.15 3.48
</TABLE>

*Intrinsic value is calculated in the aggregate for shares granted, outstanding
and exercisable by taking the closing price of the Company's common stock as of
December 31, 2006, as reported by the OTCBB ($25.00 in this case), 1less the
weighted-average exercise price of the respective category of stock option. That
result is then multiplied by the number of shares outstanding. Intrinsic value
for shares exercised is the closing price of the stock as reported by the OTCBB
on the date of exercise less the actual exercise price of the particular shares
exercised. This difference is then multiplied by the number of shares exercised.
This intrinsic value is calculated for each exercise during the year and totaled
here for all exercises during the year.

The table set forth below summarizes non-vested stock options as of
December 31, 2006. The number of non-vested shares outstanding, granted and
vested during the vyear and the weighted average fair values have been
retroactively restated to reflect all stock dividends since the date the options
were granted.

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Weighted- Average
Grant Date

Number Fair value
<S> <C> <C>
Non-vested outstanding at December 31, 2005 161,733 $ 2.38
Granted 19,800 5.42
Vested during the year (51,309) 2.10
Forfeited during the year (2,200) 2.56
Non-vested outstanding at December 31, 2006 128,024 3.08
</TABLE>
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December 31

Intrinsic

Value*

$ 248

$ 9,195

$ 7,173

Total
Fair Value

2004

<C>
1.32%
5.00%
15.25%
8.00

$ 1.67
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACTIVITIES, Continued

The total fair value of options vested during 2005 and 2004 was $40 for
each year. As of December 31, 2006, there was $405 total unrecognized
compensation cost related to non-vested share-based compensation arrangements,
which is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 3.92 years.
The Company issues authorized but unissued shares to satisfy option exercises.

Recently issued accounting standards
The following is a summary of recent authoritative pronouncements that may
affect accounting, reporting, and disclosure of financial information by the
Company :

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, "The Fair Value
Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities - Including an
amendment of FASB Statement No. 115." This statement permits, but does not
require, entities to measure many financial instruments at fair value. The
objective is to previde entities with an opportunity to mitigate volatility
in reported earnings caused by measuring related assets and liabilities
differently without having to apply complex hedge accounting provisions.
Entities electing this coption will apply it when the entity first recognizes
an eligible instrument and will report unrealized gains and losses on such
instruments in current earnings. This statement 1) applies to all entities,
2) specifies certain election dates, 3) can be applied on an
instrument-by-instrument basis with some exceptions, 4) is irrevocable and
5) applies only tec entire instruments. One exception is demand deposit
liabilities which are explicitly excluded as qualifying for fair value. With
respect to SFAS 115, available-for-sale and held-to-maturity securities at
the effective date are eligible for the fair value option at that date. If
the fair value option is elected for those securities at the effective date,
cumulative unrealized gains and losses at that date shall be included in the
cumulative-effect adjustment and thereafter, such securities will be
accounted for as trading securities. SFAS 159 is effective for the Company
on January 1, 2008. Earlier adoption is permitted in 2007 if the Company

also elects to apply the provisions of SFAS 157, "Fair Value Measurement."
The Company is currently analyzing the fair value option provided under SFAS
159.

In September 2006, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulleting No. 108
("SAB 108"). SAB 108 provides interpretive guidance on how the effects of
the carryover or reversal of prior year misstatements should be considered
in quantifying a potential current year misstatement. Prior to SAB 108,
Companies might evaluate the materiality of financial statement
misstatements using either the income statement or balance sheet approach,
with the income statement approach focusing on new misstatements added in
the current year, and the balance sheet approach focusing on the cumulative
amount of misstatement present in a company's balance sheet. Misstatements
that would be material under one approach could be viewed as immaterial
under another approach, and not be corrected. SAB 108 now regquires that
companies view financial statement misstatements as material if they are
material according tc either the income statement or balance sheet approach.
The Company has analyzed SAB 108 and determined that upon adoption it will
have no impact on the reported results of operations or financial
conditions.

In September, 2006, The FASB ratified the consensuses reached by the
FASB's Emerging Issues Task Force ("EITF") relating to EITF 06-4 "RAccounting
for the Deferred Compensation and Postretirement Benefit Aspects of
Endorsement Split-Dollar Life Insurance Arrangements." EITF 06-4 requires
employers to recognize a liability for future benefits in accordance with
SFAS No. 106, "Employers' Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than
Pensions" (plan) or Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 12, "Omnibus
Opinion - 1967" (individual contract) based on the substantive agreement (s)
with the employee(s). If the agreement pays a death benefit, then the
Company needs to accrue that death Dbenefit. If the agreement reguires the
Company to keep the split dollar arrangement in force during the retirement
period, then the Company has to accrue the cost of maintaining the policy
based on the employee(s) actuarial life expectancy. These expenses should be
recognized over the employment service period required to vest the benefit.
EITF 06-4 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006,
but earlier adoption is permitted. Entities should recocgnize the effects of
applying this EITF through either (a)

33
UST Seq. No. 327



Haynsworth Sinkler Boyd. P. A, is\private\sec-bank\09992\0001\gsb 2006 audited financials.txt, 16
12/31/2008

<PAGE>

GRANDSOUTH BANCORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Dollars in thousands except per share data)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACTIVITIES, Continued

a change in accounting principle through a cumulative-effect adjustment to
retained earnings or to other components of equity or net assets in the
statement of financial position as of the beginning cf the year of adoption
or (b) a change in accounting principle through retrcspective application to
all prior periods. The Company is currently analyzing the effect of adoption
of EITF 06-4 on its financial position, results ocf operations and cash
flows.

In September of 2006, the FASB issued SFAS 157, ‘“"Fair Value
Measurements." This statement defines fair value, establishes a framework
for measuring fair value in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America, and expands disclosures about fair
value measurements. This statement applies under other accounting
pronouncements that require or permit fair value measurements and does not
require any new fair value measurements, but rather eliminates
inconsistencies found in various prior pronouncements. This statement
emphasizes that fair wvalue is a market-based measurement, not an
entity-specific measurement. This statement expands disclosures about the
use of fair value to measure assets and liabilities in interim and annual
periods. This statement is effective for financial statements issued for
fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, and interim periods within
those fiscal years. Earlier application is encouraged. The Company does not
expect the adoption of this statement to have a material effect on its
financial statements or on its results of cperations.

In June of 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation ©No. 48, "Accounting
for Uncertainty in Income Taxes--an interpretation of FASB Statement No.
109" ("FIN 48"). FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threshold and wmeasurement
attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax
position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. When a position is
taken in a tax return that reduces the amount of income taxes paid to a
taxing authority, the enterprise realizes an immediate economic benefit.
However, considerable time can elapse before the acceptability of that tax
position is determined. FIN 48 requires the affirmative evaluation that it
is more likely than not, based on the technical merits of a tax position,
that an enterprise is entitled to economic benefits resulting from positions
taken in tax returns. If a tax position does not meet the
more-likely-than-not recognition threshold, the benefit of that position is
not recognized in the financial statements. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 20056, but earlier application is
encouraged. The Company is currently analyzing the effect of adoption of FIN
48 on its financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

Other accounting standards that have been issued or propesed by the
FASB or other standards-setting bodies that do not require adoption until a
future date are not expected to have a material impact on the consolidated
financial statements upon adopticn.

NOTE 2 - RESTRICTIONS ON CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS

The Bank is required to maintain average reserve balances, computed
by applying prescribed percentages to its various types of deposits, either at
the Bank or on deposit with the Federal Reserve Bank. At December 31, 2006 and
2005 these required reserves were met by vault cash.
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NOTE 3 - INVESTMENT SECURITIES

The amortized cost and fair value of investment securities available
for sale are as follows:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
December 31, 2006
Gross unrealized
Amortized = === seeee-c-a-eeao-- Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
<S> <C> <C> <C> <C>
Government -sponsored enterprises ..........c.ovveriirrnnerena, $22,500 $ 72 $ 103 $22,469
State and MURICIPALS . .ter ittt it i e e 3,332 23 16 3,339
Mortgage backed ...........i ittt e e e i e 16,023 79 264 15,838
Total investment securities ............... i $41,855 $ 174 $ 383 $41,646
</TABLE>
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
December 31, 2005
Gross unrealized
Amortized =000 @ —--e----eo--a--- Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
<S> <Cx <C> <C> <C>
Government -sponsored €nterprises ...........c.cvetiriieenan. $14,498 $ - $ 209 514,289
State and municipals .......iiiii it i i e e e e 463 - 2 461
Mortgage backed ........... e e PO 13,772 - 362 13,410
Total investment securities ..............cciviunnnnn $28,733 $ - $ 573 $28,160
</TABLE>

Government -sponsored enterprises include FHLB bonds, FHLMC bonds,
FNMA bonds and an FHLB structured note.

The amortized costs and fair values of securities available for sale
at December 31, 2006, by contractual maturity, are shown in the following chart.
Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may
have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment

penalties.
Amortized

Cost Fair value
Less than One year ...........iiiriinerennnennans $ 8,012 $ 7,967
One to five Yyears ...........iiiiiniiinennnnennnns 15,511 15,463
Five O LN YEArS . ...ttt ittt nnrinnneennnans 10,022 9,847
After ten years ............ et re e e 8,310 8,369
Total investment securities ............... $41,855 $41,646

Investment securities with an aggregate amortized cost of $2,229 ({fair
value of $2,227) at December 31, 2006 and $1,499 (fair wvalue of $1,465) at
December 31, 2005 were pledged to collateralize public deposits and borrowings.
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NOTE 3 - INVESTMENT SECURITIES, Continued

The following table shows gross unrealized losses and fair value, and
length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized

loss position at December 31, 2006.

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
<S> <C> <C»> <C> <C> <C> <C>
Government -sponsored enterprises ............. .. S - S - $11,404 S 103 $11,404 S 103
State and municipals ...........c.iiiiiiiiiaiaa 1,946 16 - - 1,946
Mortgage backed .......... et e e e 823 4 9,891 260 10,714 264
Total ........ et et eresesentsansssernanasennen $ 2,769 $ 20 $21,295 S 363 $24,064 S 383
</TABLE>

The following table shows gross unrealized losses and fair value, and
length of time that individual securities have been in a continucus unrealized
loss position at December 31, 2005.
«<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
<S> <C> <C> <C> <C> <C> <C>
Government -sponscred enterprises .............. . $ 6,926 $ 75 $ 7,363 $ 134 $14,289 209
State and municipals ......... ... i, 481 2 - - 461 2
Mortgage backed .......... F P T PR 8,808 143 4,602 219 13,410 362
o o $16,195 $ 220 $11,965 353 $28,160 573
</TABLE>

At December 31, 2006, twenty-four individual securities were in a
continuous loss position for twelve months or more. The Company has the ability
and intent to hold these securities until such time as the value recovers or the
securities mature. The Company believes, based on industry analyst reports and
credit ratings, that the deterioration in value is attributable to changes in
market interest rates and not in the credit gquality of the issuer and therefore,

these losses are not considered other-than-temporary. All of the

twenty-four

securities have either a Standard & Poor's AAA or a Moody's Aaa credit rating as

quoted by Bloomberg.

The Bank, as a member institution of the FHLB, is

required to own

capital stock in the FHLB based generally upon the balance of investment
securities pledged and FHLB borrowings. FHLB capital stock, with a cost of $504

and $798 at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, is

included in other

investments in the consclidated balance sheets. The decrease in the Bank's

investment in FHLB stock corresponds to the Bank's repayment

of the FHLB

advances previously outstanding. No ready market exists for the stock, and it

has no quoted market value. However,
been at par value.
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NOTE 4 - LOANS

The composition of net loans by major loan category 1is presented

below:
December 31,
2006 200S

Commercial, financial and agricultural ........... $ 35,783 $ 41,915
Real estate - construction ............c..iiunn. 65,096 39,895
Real estate - mortgage ........... e e, 120,673 110,694
Installment loans to individuals ................. 5,209 7,858
LOAns, GYOSS ... tienrraentirennan e e 226,761 200,362
Less allowance for possible lcan losses .......... 2,423 3,050

$224,338 $197,312

At December 31, 2006 and 2005, non-accrual loans totaled $834 and
$2,551, vrespectively. The gross interest income that would have been recorded
under the original terms of the loans amounted to $318, $96, and $168, in 2006,
2005 and 2004, respectively. The Bank had no loans with payments past due ninety
days or more and accruing interest at December 31, 2006 and 2005. Variable rate
and fixed rate lcans totaled $134,582 and $92,179, respectively, at December 31,
2006.

The <following is a summary of the activity within the allowance for
possible loan losses for the periods presented:

<TABLE>

<CAPTION>

8> <C>
Balance, beginning Of YEBL ...t tiiiiitn i oneeeeeeneenenaannonansns $
Provision for possible loan losses ..... e . e e e

Loans charged against the allowance, net of recoveries ..............

Balance, end Of year ....... ittt i e i i e e e $

</TABLE>
The following is a summary of impaired loans for the periods reported:

At December 31,

2006 2005
Impaired loans:
No valuation allowance required ............... $ 790 S 280
Valuation allowance required .................. 358 2,160

Total impaired 1loans ..........c..eieieeennan P $1,1438 $2,440

Valuation allowance ........... e e e $ 199 $ 630

2006 2005 2004
Average recorded investment in impaired loans .... §$2,171 $3,388 $3,406
Interest income recognized on impaired loans ..... 68 172 102
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UST Seq. No. 327

2005
<C>
S 2,293
1,125
(368)
$
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NOTE 5 - PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

Compcnents of premises and equipment
as follows:

2006
Land and land improvements .................0.00.. $ 1,214
Building and leasehold improvements .............. 3,728
Construction in process ..... e N -
Furniture and equipment .................c0.i0tian. 1,638
Vehicles ............... et e 284
6,864
Accumulated depreciation ..........ciiiiiiiieenannn (1,744)
Total property and equipment ............. $ 5,120
Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31,

2004 amounted to $388, $329, and $385, respectively.
operations over the estimated wuseful lives of the assets.

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Type of Asset Life in

<S>
Software
Furniture and equipment
Buildings and improvements
Vehicles

</TABLE>

NOTE 6 - DEPCSITS

The following is a detail of deposit accounts:

included in the balance sheet are

December 31,

2006, 2005 and

Depreciation is charged to
The estimated useful
lives and metheds of depreciation for the principal items follow:

Years Depreciation Method
<C> <C>

3 Straight-line

5 to 7 Straight-line

5 to 40 Straight-line

3 Straight-line
December 31,

2006 2005

Noninterest bearing demand ........uoeverimnrrcneananeean $ 15,215 $ 12,321
Interest bearing:

Demand @CCOUNLES . ..vviiir v eerononennnnannns e 3,224 2,941

Money market ACCOUNES ... .viiriituneeitnerroneeennans 82,538 50,905

L B £ T - 571 751

101,548 66,918

Time certificates of deposit, less than $100,000 .... 91,165 80,064

Time certificates of deposit, $100,000 and over ..... 76,210 74,679

167,375 154,743

Total depoSitsS ...t iiii it it i et e e $268,923 $221,661

Interest expense on time deposits greater than $100,000 was $3,294,

$2,226, and $905, in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Brokered deposits as of

December 31, 2006 amcunted to $18,393.
38
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NOTE 6 - DEPOSITS, Continued

At December 31,
deposit are as follows:

2006 the scheduled maturities of

2007
2008
2009
2010
2011 and thereafter

certificates of

$ 125,239
36,460
2,176
2,272
1,228

NOTE 7 - FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK ADVANCES
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
For the Years Ended
December 31, 2006 December 31, 2005 December 31, 2004

<S> <C> <C> <C=
Outstanding at end of period ..........iciiiiiiiiiiiaiiaaan. S - $ 8,500 $13,500
Weighted average rate, end of period ........ovevuuu... e -% 4.34% 3.67%
Maximum amount outstanding at

any month end ................. e e e e $ 8,500 $16,500 $15,500
Average amount outstanding during the period ................. $ 6,905 $11,392 $11,498
Weighted average rate, during the period ..................... 4.36% 4.03% 3.70%
</TABLE>
NOTE 8 - OTHER BORROWINGS

At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company had outstanding $0 and

$3,900, respectively, 1in other borrowings from an unrelated bank. The Company

borrowed an additional
2006 to bring the line to $4,000 before paying
proceeds from the Trust transaction described in note 9.

$100 under a line of credit during the first quarter of
it off on May 11,

2006, with

NOTE 9 - CAPITAL TRUST AND JUNICR SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES
On May 3, 2006, the Company sponsored the creation of a Delaware
statutory trust, GrandSouth Capital Trust I (the "Trust"), and is the sole owner

of the $247 in common securities issued by the Trust. On May 10, 2006, the Trust

issued $8,000 in floating rate capital securities. The proceeds of this
issuance, and the amount of the Company's investment in the common securities,
were used to acquire $8,247 principal amount of the Company's floating rate

junior subordinated debt securities due 2036 ("Debentures").
and the accrued interest thereon,
interest rate associated with the debt securities,

the common securities of the Trust, is adjustable

plus 185 basis points (7.22% at December 31, 2006). The

interest payments cn the Debentures for up to twenty consecutive
In the event that such

not beyond the stated maturity date of the Debentures.

now constitute the Trust's sole assets.
and the distribution rate on

quarterly at 3 month LIBCR
Company may defer

These securities,

The

quarters, but

interest payments are deferred by the Company, the Trust may defer distributions

on the capital and common securities. In such an event,

the Company wculd be

restricted in its ability to pay dividends on its common stock and perform under

other obligations that are not senior to the Debentures.
The Debentures

to that date,

of par upon the occurrence of certain events

are redeemable at par at the option of the Company, in
whole or in part, on any interest payment date on or after June 23, 2011.
the Debentures are redeemable at par plus a premium of up to 4.40%
that would have a negative

Prior

tax

effect on the Trust or that would cause it to be required to be registered as an

investment

compary under the Investment Company Act of 1940 or that would cause

trust preferred securities not tc be eligible to be treated as Tier 1 capital by

the Federal Reserve.
will use the proceeds of the
capital securities and common

transaction

securities. The Trust's

Upon repayment or redemption of the Debentures,
to redeem an eguivalent
obligations

the Trust
amount of
under the

capital securities are unconditionally guaranteed by the Company. In accordance

with FASB Interpretation No. the Trust is not

Company's financial statements.

46 (R},
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NOTE 10 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company is party to litigation and claims arising in the normal
course of business. Management, after consultation with legal counsel, believes
that the liabilities, if any, arising from such litigation and claims will not
be material to the Company's financial position or results of operations.

The Company has a ground lease on its main office location, which
expires in 2021. The monthly lease payment is $1 for years one through eleven
and increases to $2 per month in year sixteen. The Company alsc leases land upon
which it constructed a branch office under a non-cancelable operating lease,
which expires in March of 2018. The lease requires monthly lease payments of
$0.8. The lease contains four renewal options of five years each with provisions
for adjustments to the monthly lease payments. The lease agreement requires the
Company to pay all property taxes.

The Ccmpany leased an office, which it used as a branch until July
2003, under a non-cancelable operating lease, which terminated in October 2004.
Monthly lease payments of $3 were due on the lease until cancellation. This
office was closed in July 2003, but the lease obligation continued until October
2004.

Future minimum lease payments under current operating leases are
summarized as follows:

For the year ended
December 31,

2007 $ 23
2008 23
2009 23
2010 23
2011 23
Thereafter 218
$ 333

NOTE 11 - UNUSED LINES OF CREDIT

At December 31, 2006, the Bank had two unused lines of credit to
purchase federal funds totaling $9,400 from unrelated banks. These lines of
credit are available on a cne to fourteen day basis for general corporate
purposes of the Bank. The lenders reserve the right to withdraw the line at
their option. The Bank had an additional line of credit with the FHLB to borrow
up to fifteen percent of the Bank's total assets. At December 31, 2006, the Bank
had unused available credit of $45,047 from the FHLB. The line of credit
agreement requires the Bank to pledge investment securities or qualifying loans
as collateral.

40
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NOTE 12 - INCOME TAXES

The following
deferrals,

summary of the provision for income taxes includes tax
which arise from temporary differences in the recognition of certain

items of revenue and expense for tax and financial reporting purposes for the
years ended December 31:

2006 2005 2004

Income taxes currently payable
Federal ......ciiiiiiniiiininennnnnenn $ 1,323 $ 1,400 $ 649
State ... . a0 et m e 165 116 65
1,488 1,516 714
Deferred tax provision (benefit) ....... 273 (361) 55
Income tax provision ............ $ 1,761 $ 1,155 $ 769

The income tax effect of cumulative temporary differences at December 31, are as

follows:
Deferred tax asset
2006 2005
Allowance for possible lcan 1oSSe€s ........vveunns $ 412 $ 699
Nonaccrual loan interest ................ [N 57 40
Unrealized net losses cn investment
securities available for sale ................... 7 212
Write down of assets acquired
in settlement of loans ............... e . - 86
Deferred compensation .............cceiiiuiinn, 108 88
L0 ¢ Y- 50 -
Deferred tax asset .......eeveennunennnnnnn 698 1,128
Less: valuation allowanCe .............eeeevvnaen (80) (50)
618 1,075
Depreciation .....iiiieiiiii i i e 191 234
191 234
Net deferred tax assSef .......uoovveeenvnennn $ 427 $ 841
The net deferred tax asset 1is included in other assets in the

consolidated balance sheets. The valuation allowance is related tc the Company's

stand-alone state net cperating loss carryforwards.

The provision for income taxes is

reconciled to the amount of income

tax computed at the federal statutory rate on income before income taxes for the

vears ended December 31, as follows:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
2006 2005 2004
Amount ¥ Amount % Amount

<S> <C»> <C> <C> <C> <C>
Tax expense at StatutOry rate ............eoeereeennnnans $ 1,707 34 $ 1,196 34 $ 710
Increase in taxes resulting from:

State bank tax (net of federal benefit) ............. 137 2 77 2 43

Officers life insurance ..... e e e e e (57) (1) (55) (1) -

[0 £ 1S e 4 - (63) (2) 16

Income tax provision ............c.ciiiiiiiaiii. $ 1,761 35 $ 1,155 3 $ 769
</TABLE>
41
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NOTE 13 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Certain directors, executive officers and companies with which they
are affiliated, are customers of and have banking transacticns with the Bank in
the ordinary course of business. These loans and commitments were made on
substantially the same terms, including interest rates and collateral, as those
prevailing at the time for comparable arms-length transactions. A summary of
loan and commitment transactions with directors, including their affiliates and
executive officers are as follows:

Por the years ended

December 31,
2006 2005
Balance, beginning of year ................... $ 1,646 $ 2,071
New lOAnsS .....vvininnennennennnn e, 1,924 202
Less loan payments ...............0.... e (624) (627)
Balance, end of year ................. ..., . $ 2,946 $ 1,646

Deposits by directors and their related interests at December 31, 2006
and 2005 approximated $1,425 and $1,216, respectively.

The Company leases land from a relative of a director, shareholder and

executive officer of the Company (see Note 10). Lease expenses charged to
operations under these agreements approximated $9 in 2006, $10 in 2005, and $40
in 2004.

Of the $3,500 of debentures that were converted into common stock in
2005, $1,810 were converted into 353,511 shares of common stcck held by related
parties.

NOTE 14 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF-BALANCE SHEET RISK

In the ordinary course of business, and to meet the financing needs of
its customers, the Bank is a party to various financial instruments with
off-balance sheet risk. These financial instruments, which include commitments
to extend credit and standby 1letters of credit, involve, to varying degrees,
elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of the amounts recognized in
the balance sheet. The contract amount of those instruments reflects the extent
of involvement the Bank has in particular classes of firancial instruments.

The Bank's exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by
the other party tc the financial instrument for commitments to extend credit and
standby letters of credit is represented by the contractual amounts of those
instruments. The Bank uses the same credit policies in making commitments and
conditional obligations as it does for on-balance sheet instruments. Commitments
to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no
violation of any material condition established in the contract. Commitments
generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may
require the payment of a fee. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, wunfunded
commitments to extend credit were $71,053 and $45,968, respectively. Variable
rate and fixed rate unfunded commitments to extend credit were $42,875 and
$28,178, respectively, at December 31, 2006. The Bank evaluazes each customer's
credit worthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if
deemed necessary by the Bank upon extensicn of credit, is based on management's
credit evaluation of the borrower. Collateral wvaries but may include accounts
receivable, inventory, property, plant and equipment, ccmmercial and residential
real estate. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, there were outstanding letters of
credit totaling $1,318 and $332, respectively.
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NOTE 15 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

The Bank sponsors the GrandSouth Bank Profit Sharing Section 401 (k)
Plan (the "Plan") for the benefit of all eligible employees. The Bank
contributes seventy-five percent of the first four percent of the employee's
compensation contributed to the Plan. Contributions made to the Plan in 2006,
2005, and 2004 amounted to $67, $56, and $40, respectively.

In 2001, supplemental benefits were approved by the Board of Directors
for certain executive officers of the Bank. These benefits are not qualified
under the Internal Revenue Code and they are not funded. However, certain
funding is provided informally and indirectly by life insurance policies owned
by the Bank. The Company recorded net expense related to these benefits of $61,
$61, and $56 in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

43
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NOTE 16 - STOCK OPTICN PLAN

During 1998, the Board of Directors approved a stock option plan for
the benefit of the directors, officers and employees. The Bcard may grant up to
856,028 options (after the shareholders approved an amendment to increase the
number of shares in the plan at the 2005 Annual meeting) at an option price per
share not less than the fair market value on the date of grant. All options
granted to officers and employees vest 20 percent each year for five years and
expire 10 years frcm the grant date. The related compensaticn expense (see Note
1) is recognized over the vesting period. Information on options outstanding and
exercisable at December 31, 2006 is disclosed in the table below.

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Options cutstanding
Weighted
Average Weighted
Range of Remaining Average
Exercise Number Contractual Exercise
Prices OQutstanding Life Price
<S> <C> <C> <C>
$ 3.25 199,850 1.88 $ 3.25
3.58 52,626 4.12 3.58
5.01 - 5.18 44,268 5.18 5.16
6.08 36,300 7.14 6.08
7.73 - 8.64 16,500 8.44 8.18
9.14 102,694 8.64 9.14
12.27 - 13.62 19,800 $.35 12.50
472,038 4.86 5.53
</TABLE>

A summary of the status of the plan and changes during the year is
presented below:

For the years ended December 31,

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
2006

Weighted

Average

Exercise

Shares Price Shares

<8> <C> <C> <C>
Qutstanding at beginning of year ............ 456,392 $ 5.24 334,414
Granted ..... ittt e i e e e e 19,800 12.50 121,978
Exercised ........ et a e e e (1,954) 5.97 -
Forfeited or expired .............ccviinn. .. {(2,200) 8.41 -
Outstanding at end of year ......... ... c.ovun 472,038 5.53 456,392
Options exercisable at December 31, ......... 344,014 4.15 275,197
Shares available for grant .................. 383,990 399,771

</TABLE>

All share and per share values have been retroactively restated for all
The Company issues

stock dividends since the date the options were

granted.

authorized but unissued shares to satisfy option exercises.
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Options exercisable

Number
Exercisable

Weighted
Average

Exercise
Price

<C>
$ 3.87
3.99

3.56

Weighted

Average

Exercise
Price

.58
.16
.08
.03
.14

WOV WwWw

2004
Weighted
Average
Exercise

Shares

<C>
298,114
36,300

334,414

248,283
28,949

Price
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NOTE 17 - COMMON STOCK AND NET INCOME PER COMMON SHARE

Following is a reconciliatioen of basic net income per share to diluted net
income per share for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004.

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Income Shares Per-share
{(numerator) (denominator) amount
For the year ended December 31, 2006
<S> <C»> <C> <C>
Basic net income per common share
Income available to common shareholders ..............iiiiunnneennn $ 3,260 3,372,065 S 0.97
Effect cof dilutive instruments:
SEOCK OPLIOMS ittt ittt ittt it r e ittt ittt e i e e - 281,784 -
Diluted net income per common share
Inccme available to common shareholders
plus assumed exercises of stock options .......... e $ 3,260 3,653,849 $ 0.89

For the year ended December 31, 2005
Basic net income per common share

Income available o common shareholders ............... [ $ 2,361 2,840,528 S 0.83
Effect cf dilutive instruments:
StOCK OPLIONS ottt ittt it i it et e i e e e - 168,001 -

Effect of convertible instruments:
Interest savings/weighted average
incremental shares assumed on
cenversion of subordinated debentures ................ ..., 73 532,356 -
Diluted net inccme per common share
Income available to common shareholders
plus assumed exercises of stock options ........................ $ 2,434 3,540,885 $ 0.69

For the year ended December 31, 2004
Basic net income per commcn share

Income available to common shareholders ..........coiiivieenrunnnns $ 1,319 2,620,593 $ 0.50
Bffect of dilutive instruments:
StOCK OPTIONS ittt ittt ittt it it ee e e e e - 147,495 -

Effect of convertible instruments:
Interest savings/weighted average
incremental shares assumed on
conversion of subordinated debentures ...................... 50 752,526 -
Diluted rnet income per common share
Income available to commcn shareholders
plus assumed exercises of stock options .............. e S 1,369 3,520,614 $ 0.39

</TABLE>
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UST Seq. No. 327



Haynsworth Sinkler Boyd. P. A.
12/31/2008

is\private\sec-bank\09992\0001\gsb 2006 audited financials.txt, 28

]

<PAGE>

GRANDSOUTH BANCORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TC CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dellars in thousands except per share data)

NOTE 18 - RESTRICTIONS ON DIVIDENDS

The ability of the Company to pay cash dividends is dependent upon its
receiving cash in the form of dividends from the Bank. South Carolina banking
regulations restrict the amount of cash dividends the Bank can pay to the
Company. In the event that the interest payments on the junior subordinated
debentures (see note 9) are deferred by the Company, the Ccmpany would be
restricted in its ability to pay dividends on its common stock.

NOTE 19 - REGULATORY MATTERS

The Company and the Bank are subject to various regulatory capital
requirements administered by the federal banking agencies. Failure tc meet
minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory, and possible
additional discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a
direct material effect on the Company's financial statements. Under capital
adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action,
specific capital guidelines must be met that involve quantitative measures of
the Company's and Bank's assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance sheet
items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The Company's capital
amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the
regulators about components, risk weightings, and other facrtors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital
adequacy require the Company and the Bank to maintain minimum amounts and ratios
(set forth in the table below) of total and Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted
assets, and of Tier 1 capital to average assets. The Company and Bank actual
capital amounts and ratios and minimum regulatory amounts and ratios are
presented as follows:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION:=

Actual

Amount Ratio
Company (consolidated):
<8»> <C> <C>
As of December 31, 2006
Total capital (to risk weighted assets) ............... $30,031 12.3%
Tier 1 capital (to risk weighted assets) .............. 26,079 10.7
Tier 1 capital (to average assets) .............. e 26,079 9.3
Bank:
As of December 31, 2006
Total capital (to risk weighted assets) ............... $27,623 11.3%
Tier 1 capital (to risk weighted assets) .............. 25,200 10.3
Tier 1 capital (to average assets) .......... PN 25,200 8.5
Company (consclidated):
As of December 31, 2005
Total capital (to risk weighted assets) ............... S18,374 8.8%
Tier 1 capital (to risk weighted assets) .............. 15,747 7.5
Tier 1 capital {to average assSets) ...............c....- 15,747 5.7
Bank:
As of December 31, 2005
Total capital (to risk weighted assets) ............... $21,145 10.1%
Tier 1 capital (to risk weighted assets) ............ " 18,518 8.8
Tier 1 capital (to average aSS€LS) ...........c..vuen... 18,518 8.0
</TABLE>
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For capital
adequacy purposes

$19,576
9,788
11,199

$19,555
9,777
11,812

$l6,787
8,393
9,416

$16,778
8,389
9,230

Minimum

<C>

PN ) NS &b o
oo coo

ooo

B
00O

To be well capitalized
under prompt corrective
action provisions

Minimum
Amount Ratio
<C> <C>

N/A N/A
N/A N/A
N/A N/A
$24,443 10.0%
14,666 €.0
14,765 5.0
N/A N/A

N/A N/A

N/A N/A

$ 20,972 10.0%
12,583 6.0
11,538 5.0
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GRANDSOUTH BANCORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in thousands except per share data)

NOTE 20 - FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

SFAS No. 107, ‘"Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments"
requires disclosure of fair value information, whether or not recognized in the
balance sheets, when it is practical to estimate the fair value. SFAS No. 107
defines a financial instrument as cash, evidence of an ownership interest in an
entity or contractual obligations that require the exchange of cash or other
instruments. Certain items are specifically excluded from the disclosure
requirements, including the Bank's common steck, property and equipment and
other assets and liabilities.

Fair value approximates carrying value for cash and due from banks and
federal funds sold due to the short-term nature of the instrument.

Investment securities available for sale are valued using quoted fair
market prices. Other investments at cost are considered to be an appropriate
estimate of fair value due to historical redemption cf the stock at cost.

Fair value for loans maturing after one year is based on the discounted
present value of the estimated future cash flows. Discount rates used in these
computations approximate the rates currently offered for similar lecans of
comparable terms and credit quality.

Fair value for demand depcsit accounts is equal to the carrying value.
Interest-bearing accounts with no fixed maturity date are valued based on rates
offered within the Bank's market using current interest vrates on similar
instruments. Certificate of deposit accounts maturing within one year are valued
at their carrying value. The fair value of certificate of deposit accounts
maturing after one year are estimated by discounting cash flows from expected
maturities using current interest rates con similar instruments.

The carrying amcunts of the variable rate junior subordinated
debentures are reasonable estimates of fair wvalue because they reprice
quarterly. The fair values of fixed rate advances from the FHLB are estimated
using the discounted cash flow calculation that applies to the Company's current
borrowing rate available from the FHLB. The fair values of other borrowings are
estimated using currently offered market rates.

The Company has used management's best estimate of fair value based on
the above assumptions. Thus, the fair values presented may not be the amounts
that could be realized in an immediate sale or settlement of the instrument. 1In
addition, any income taxes or other expenses that wculd be incurred in an actual
sale or settlement are not taken into consideration in the fair value presented.

The estimated fair values of the Company's financial instruments ac
December 31, are as follows:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Carrying
Amount
Financial Assets:
<S> <C>
Cash and due from banks ..................... [ S 6,145
Federal funds s0ld .......ciiiniiimeen e nnenaennons 13,659
Investment securities available for sale ................ 41,646
Other investments, at COSt ...... . ieiiiiiniiensons PPN 504
Loans, gross ........ e e er s tes e et e s e ena s e 226,761
Financial Liabilities:
Deposits .............. S 268,923
Federal Home Loan Bank advancCes ..........coceecevrnennnas -
Other bOXrrowings ... viiienumennnoanennnnnenonss e -
Junior subordinated debentures ..............c.0iiiiian 8,247
</TABLE>
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504
226,629

268,737

8,247

Carrying
Amount

200,362

221,661
38,500
3,500
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GRANDSOUTH BANCORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in thousands except per share data)

NOTE 21 - PARENT CCMPANY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Following is condensed financial information of GrandSouth Bancorporation
(parent company only):

CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
December 31,
2006 2005

ASSETS

<S> <C> <C>
Cash .ttt e e e e e et it $ 350 S 64
Investment in bank subsidiary .............. .. i e .. 25,799 18,214
Due from SUDSIAIarY ...ttt i i i i et et e et e e 848 737
Investment in capital BrUSE .. ...ttt i e e s 247 -
Deferred £LaAX @SS L ..t iutiiiee it ineenoessnseeensnsetioneennseensnanasnnas 549 374

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHCLDERS' EQUITY

Accrued expenses ........ (N N $ 76 S 61
Note payable . ... ... i it it e i e e - 3,900
Junior subordinated debenbULES . ... u ittt ittt et eennneens 8,247 -
Shareholders' equity ........coiiiiiviinnn PP . 19,470 16,128
$27,793 $20,089

</TABLE>

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
For the years ended
December 31,

2006 2005 2004
<S> <C> <C> <C>
REVENUES .....cciiiinnnnnnn s aesassssmasssessaaseeesacsasaas s teas s e S 12 $ - $ -
EXPENSES

5 1 = oy <=1 o TN 495 320 160
SUNAry . ..oveiiiiii i e e e e it e e e e 76 67 40

Loss before equity in undistributed net
income of bank subsidiary ..........c i, (559) (387) (200)

EQUITY IN UNDISTRIBUTED NET INCOME

OF BANK SUBSIDIARY ..ttt ittt eneennosenmesseennosanscnanssnninsenns 3,631 2,606 1,445
Income before income LaXesS . ......ciiiineiiennnnnnnns N 3,072 2,219 1,245
Income tax benefit ... ... i i i i e e i e e 188 142 74
NEeL INCOME ... i it ittt st enntotasonsesenoessneassanansonas S 3,260 $ 2,361 $ 1,219

</TABLE>
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Shareholders and Board of Directors
of GrandSocuth Bancorporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of
GrandSouth Bancorporation and Subsidiary as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and
the related consclidated statements of income, changes in shareholders' equity
and comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of the three vyears in the
period ended December 31, 2007. These consolidated financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted cur audits in accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whethexr the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of GrandSouth
Bancorporation and Subsidiary as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the results
of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the
reriod ended December 31, 2007, in cenformity with U. S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

We were not engaged to examine management's assertion about the
effectiveness of GrandSouth Bancorporation and Subsidiary's internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007 included in the accompanying
Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and,
accordingly, we do not express an opinicn thereon.

/s/ Elliott Davis, LLC
BElliott Davis, LLC

Greenville, South Carolina
March 28, 2008

22
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GRANDSOUTH BANCORPORATION
Consolidated Balance Sheets

<TABLE=>
<CAPTION>

Assets
<S>

Cash and due FXOom DamKS ...ttt i i it ettt ettt e e

Federal funds sold

Cash and Cash eQUiIVALeNTS ittt ittt ittt it ittt e ietaeee e aeneeeeeaeeaeenaeannas
Securities available-for-Sale ... ...ttt e e e e e

Other investments,

= Y T o o 1=

Leans, net of allowance for loan losses of $2,943 for 2007 and

$2,423 FOT 2006 ..ottt it e e et e et et e et e e
Premises and @QUIPMENT, NEEL ... ittt ittt it ee e e et et aetee s et
Bank owned life insurance .................. e e e, e e e e
Assets acquired in settlement Of 1OEANS . ... ...ttt i i e e
Interest receilvable ... ... e e e e e e e e e
Deferred InCOMe LaKES ittt ittt e ittt et e et et et e

Goodwill
Other assets

Liabilities

Deposits
Lol 4B oY oS of = o o =T R 1+ Ve N
Interest DeAIrINg . ...ttt i i i it et e e e e e

Interest payable
Other liabilities

TOLAl dEPOSLES vttt e e e et e e e et
Short-term DorrOWingsS ... i i i e i ettt ettt e e e e
Junior subordinated debentures ........... .. iiiiiiiiiiieiiens e F

Commitments and Contingencies - Note 10

Shareholders' equity

Common stock - no par value; 20,000,000 shares authorized; issued and
cutstanding - 3,381,488 at December 31, 2007 and
3,373,846 at December 31, 2006 ...t utiiinri ittt ittt et e e e e

Retained earnings

Accumulated cther comprehensive income (LOSS) ... ...ttt it

</TABLE>

Total shareholders' equity ..........c.itiinnieninnns e ettt

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity ..........cuiiiiniiininninennnnn. PSP

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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December 31,
2007

December 31,
2006

(Dollars in thousands)

<C>
S 4,585
4,420

259,786
4,896
4,753
1,752
2,313

544

$ 15,037
230,602

305,639
$,000
8,247

<C>
S 6,145
13,659

$ 15,215
253,708




Haynsworth Sinkler Boyd. P. A.
12/31/2008

is\private\sec-bank\09992\0001\gsb 2007 audited financials.txt, 3

<PAGE>

GRANDSOUTH BANCORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Income

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

Interest income

<S>

Interest and fees on loans ........... e e e

Investment securities

0= =Y« 2

Nontaxable ..................... Y e

5T T« 1= o T N

Other, principally federal funds SCld .......iiuit it vrnrrnentiennnnnennn
Total interest INCOME ... ...ttt ittt st iatieeen e enerenns

Interest expense

Deposits ...... e e e e e e
Short-term bOrrOWingsS . ...ttt ittt ittt i et aeeneaanneans
Junior subordinated debt ............. . i i, FS PPN

Total iNLEresSt EXPENSE ..ttt ettt et tneeetinnntnnesttnneeenses

Net interest income ..... e et e et e
Provision for lcan 1OSSES .......c..iieiiiiiiieteneeteraaneanan SN
Net interest income after provision fcr loan 1loSSeS .........ciiiiiinienrnnnnnnns

Noninterest income
Service charges on deposit A@CCOUNES ...ttt ittt ettt ineenenan
(Loss) gain on sale of investment securities ................... .00
Gain on sale of assets acquired in settlement of locans ...................
Lo % + 1= S T N

Total NONINEerest INCOME . uvti it tnn oot oonneinroennneennnens

Noninterest expenses

Salaries and employee benefits ........ et e et
Premises and eQUIPMENE ... ittt e i e et e e
PAL@ PrOCESSING t ittt ittt ettt taeee i tesasaeesetaesesenenseeonsanneensnn
Insurance .............. e Cee s et e, C e s e e s
Printing, postage and sUPPlies . ... .i i ieeit ittt
Professional fees ...... P hee et rcaraaraeeeanra st e ara et
Miscellaneous 1lOaN €XPENSE ... ..vererernnronnennns e e e e
Other OPEratINg ... uiitiiit it ittt e i tanan s nenaaanns

Total noninterest eXPENSES ... veeentenrruennnn e et e e e e

Income before income taxes
INCOME LAX EXPEIISE ottt e sttt onasvnosantonensstsenastssnaseanssrossasonsseennnanonns

b 1L+ oo 1

Per share*
Net income ... ...ttt e i eee e
Net income, assuming dilution ......... .. ...ttt iiininenennn.
</TABLE>
* Per share amounts have been retroactively adjusted to reflect a 10% stock
dividend declared July 19, 2006.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.
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2007

Years ended December 31,

2005

(Dollars in thousands, except per share)

<C>
$ 23,826
2,052
351
32
583

<C>
$ 21,338

<C>
$ 14,917

843
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GRANDSOUTH BANCORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Changes
Income

in Shareholders'

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

Equity and Comprehensive

Common Stock

<S>
Balance, January 1,

<C»

2005 2,382,357

Comprehensive income:
Net InCOme . ... ... i iiniii it ianneanennnn -

Unrealized holding gains and losses

on available-for-sale securities

arising during the period, net of

income taxes of $180 ......... ..t -
Less: Reclassification adjustment for

securities gains included in net income,

net of income taxes Of $7 ........ i -

Total other comprehensive income ........... -
Total comprehensive income ............... -

Conversion of subordinated debentures

into common stock, including cash paid

in lieu of issuing fractional shares 683,369
Cash dividend declared, $.07 per share* .............. -

Balance, December 31, 2005 ............ 3,065,726

Comprehensive income:
Net income ............. e e e -

Unrealized holding gains and losses
on available-for-sale securities
arising during the period, net of
income taxes of $141 ..... e [ -

Total other comprehensive income ....... e -
Total comprehensive income ................. -

Share-based compensation .............c.iiiiiiiiiiann -
Issuance of 10% stock dividend, including

cash payment for fractional shares
Exercise of stock options
Cash dividend declared, $.08 per share ............... -

Balance, December 31, 2006 ...........c0cuiiuenninnnnnnn

Comprehensive income:
Net INCOME ...t iiit ittt ii it enenesananenanns -

Unrealized holding gains and losses

on available-for-sale securities

arising during the period, net of

income taxes Of $157 .. ..vuvirernnnrennnennneann -
Add: Reclassificatien ad]ustment for

securities losses included in net income,

net ¢f income taxes of $8 .......... iy -

Total other comprehensive income ................. -
Total comprehensive income ....... et -
Share-based COMPENSALiON ...t iirttiine it iernnennnns -

Exercise of stock opticns
Cash dividend declared, $.08 per share ............... -

Balance, December 31, 2007

</TABLE>

* Per share amounts have been retroactively restated

dividend declared July 19, 2006.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated
statements.
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to reflect a 10%

---------- Accumulated
Retained Other Comprehensive
Amount Earnings Income (Loss) Total
(Dollars in thcousands, except per share)
<C> <C> <C> <C>

$ 10,840 $ - $ (43) $ 10,797
- 2,361 - 2,361
- - (307) (307)
R - (11) (11)

- - - {318)

- - - 2,043

3,500 (2) - 3,498
- (210) - (210)

14,340 2,149 (361} 16,128

- 3,260 - 3,260

- - 223 223

- B - 223

- - - 3,483

110 - - 110
4,592 (4,597} - (5)

12 - - 12
- (258) - (258)

19,054 554 (138) 19,470

- 2,789 - 2,799

- - 306 306

- - 16 16

- - - 322

- - - 3,121

121 - - 121

25 - - 25
- (270) - (270)

184 $§ 22,4867

stock

financial
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GRANDSOUTH BANCORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of
<TABLE>

<CAPTION>

Operating activities
<S>
Net income
Adjustments to reconc
cash provided by
Provision for
Writedowns of
Depreciation
Deferred inco
Net securitie
Loss {gain) o
Gain on sale

ir\private\sec-bank\09992\0001\gsb 2007 audited financials.txt, 5

Cash Flows

ile net income to net

operating activities
loan losses
assets acquired in settlement of loans

me tax expense (benefit)
s {accretion) and premium amortization
n sale of available-for-sale securities

cr other disposition of fixed assets ...
(Gain) loss on sale of assets acquired in settlement of loans

Increase in cash surrender value of bank owned life insurance ...........

Increase in i
Increase (dec
Decrease (inc
Increase in a
Share-based c

Net cash
Investing activities
Purchases of availabl

Maturities and calls

Proceeds from sale cof

Purchases of other investments

Proceeds of redemptio
Investment in capital
Net increase in loans
Purchases of premises
Proceeds from sale cf
Proceeds from sale of

Cash equivalents acquired, net of payment for purchase acquisition

Net cash used by investing activities

Financing activities
Net increase in depcs
Net increase in short
Proceeds from Federal

Repayment of Federal Home Loan Bank Advances

Proceeds from issuanc
Proceeds from other b
Repayment of other Lo
Cash dividends pald .
Payment of cash in 1li
Exercise of stock opt

Net cash provided by financing activities

(Decrease) increase in cash

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning

Cash and cash equivalents,
<«/TABLE>
The accompanying notes ar

statements.

UST Seg. No. 327

nterest receivable
rease) in interest payable .......
rease)
ompensation expense

provided by operating activities

e-for-sale securities

of available-for-sale securities .......
Paydowns of available-

for-sale mortgage-backed securities ..
available-for-sale securities

ns of other investments
trust
made to customers
and equipment
premises and equipment
assets acquired in settlement of lcans

its
-term borrowings
Home Loan Bank Advances

e of junior subordinated debentures
orrowings

TYOWINGS ..ttt ittt ittt it

eu of fractlonal shares
ions

and cash equivalents ...........ouuuus

ending

e an integral part of these

26

in prepaid expenses and other assets
ccrued expenses and other liabilities ..

consolidated financial

Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
(Dollars in thousands)
<C> <C> <C>

$ 2,799 $ 3,260 $ 2,361
1,045 1,110 1,125
- 15 251
380 388 329
(282) 273 (361)
2 (6) 19
24 - (18)
- (14) (1)
(&) (119) 1
(177) (168) (161)
(543) (325) (539)
69 170 {132)
231 (693) 307
32 1,733 317

121 110 -
3,695 5,734 3,498
(37,310} (21,338) (16,046)
14,015 5,000 -
3,386 3,222 2,769
2,449 - 962
(261) - -
- 294 157

- (247) -
(38,580) (28,300) (24,582)
(156) (1,151) (1,101)
- 37 22
490 749 309
- = (737)
(55,967) (41,734) (38,247)
36,716 47,262 45,515
5,000 - -
- - 11,000
- (8,500) (16,000}
- 8,247 -
- 100 3,900
- (4,000) (2,500)
(268) {252) (192)
- (5) (2)

25 12 -
41,473 42,864 41,721
{10,799) 6,864 6,972
19,804 12,940 5,968
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GRANDSOUTH BANCORPORATION

Consoclidated Statements of Cash Flows - continued
<TABLE>

<CAPTION>

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information
Cash paid during the period for:

<S>
B8 o ol o
INCOME LaAXES .ottt it i tie sttt v ee et ser et aaseensseanerioenennassnennensan
Noncash investing and financing activities:
Transfer of loans to assets acquired in settlement of loans .............
Subordinated debentures converted into common StoCk .................. .
Dividends declared but unpaid .......... .ttt e e
Other comprehensive income (loss), before tax ....... PO
Stock dividend ..... .. e i i e e
</TABLE>

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolicdated financial
statements.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
GrandSouth Bancorporation

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)
NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

GrandSouth Bancorporation (the "Company") is a South Carolina company organized
in 2000 for the purpose of being a holding company for GrandSouth Bank (the
"Bank"). On October 2, 2000, pursuant to a Plan of Exchange approved by the
shareholders, all of the outstanding shares of $2.50 par value common stock of
the Bank were exchanged for shares of no par value commen stock of the Company.
The Company presently engages in no business other than that of owning the Bank,
has no employees, and operates as one business segment. The Company is regulated
by the Federal Reserve Board. The consolidated financial statements include the
accounts of the Company and the Bank. All significant intercompany transactions
and accounts have been eliminated in consolidation. The GrandSouth Capital Trust
1 (see Note 9) is an unconsolidated subsidiary.

The Bank was incorpocrated in 1998 and operates as a South Carolina chartered
bank providing full banking services to its customers. The Bank is subject to
regulation by the South Carolina State Board of Financial Institutions and the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.

Basis of presentation - The accounting and reporting pelicies conform to
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and to
general practices within the banking industry. The Company uses the accrual
basis of accounting. In certain instances, amounts reported in prior years'
consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the
current presentation. Such reclassifications had no effect on previously
reported shareholders' egquity or net income.

Acquisition - In May 2005, the Company acquired an auto-financing business with
assets valued at $3,236 and recorded $737 in goodwill. This auto-financing
business had $2,413 in specialty commercial lines of credit with the Bank prior
to the acquisition.

Estimates - The preparaticn of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities as of the date of the consolidated financial statements and the
reported amounts of income and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.
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Concentrations of credit risk -~ The Company makes loans to individuals and small
businesses for various personal and commercial purposes primarily in the upstate
regicn of South Carclina. The Company's loan portfolio is not concentrated in
loans to any single borrower or in a relatively small number of borrowers.
Additionally, management is not aware of any concentrations of locans to classes
cf borrowers or industries that would be similarly affected by economic
conditions.

In addition to monitoring potential concentrations of loans to particular
borrowers or groups of borrowers, industries and geographic regions, management
monitors exposure to credit risks that could arise Zrom potential concentrations
of lending products and practices such as loans that subject borrowers to
substantial payment increases (e.g., principal deferral periods, 1loans with
initial interest-only periods, etc.), and loans with high loan-to-value ratios.
Additionally, there are industry practices that could subject the Company to
increased credit risk should economic conditions change cver the course of a
loan's life. For example, the Company makes variable rate loans and fixed rate
principal-amortizing loans with maturities prior to the loan being fully paid
(i.e., balloon payment loans). These loans are underwritten and monitored to
manage the associated risks. Management has determined that there is no
concentration of credit risk associated with its lending policies or practices.

The Company's investment portfolio ccnsists principally of obligations of the
United States of America, government-sponsored entities and general obligation
municipal securities. In the opinion of management, there is no concentration of
credit risk in its investment portfolic. The Company places its deposits and
correspondent accounts with and sells its federal funds to high quality
institutions. Management believes credit risk associated with correspondent
accounts is not significant.

Investment securities - The Bank accounts for investment securities in
accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS) No. 11§,
"Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities." This

statement requires investments in equity and debt securities to be classified
into one of three categories:

1. Available-for-sale: These are securities that are not classified as
either held-to-maturity or as trading securities. These securities are
reported at fair value which is determined using quoted market prices.
Unrealized gains and losses are reported, net of income taxes, as
separate components of shareholders' equity (accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss)). Gains or losses on dispositions of
securities are based on the difference between the net proceeds and
the adjusted carrying amounts of the securities sold using the
specific identification method. Premiums and discounts are amortized
into interest income by a method that approximates a level yield.

2. Held-to-maturity: These are securities that the Company has the
ability and intent to hold until maturity. These securities are stated
at cost, adjusred for the amortization of premiums and the accretion
of discounts. Premiums and discounts are included in interest income
using a method that approximates a level yield. The Company has no
held-to-maturity securities.

3. Trading: These are securities that are bought and held principally for
the purpose of selling in the near £future. Trading securities are
reported at fair value, and related unrealized gains and losses are
recognized in the income statement. The Company hzs no trading
securities.

Other investments - Other investments ccnsist of Federal Home Loar Bank stock, a
restricted security, and are carried at cost. Management periodically evaluates
this stock for impairment and makes any appropriate downward valuation
adjustments when necessary.

Loans and interest income on loans- Loans are stated at the principal balance
outstanding, increased or reduced by deferred net lcan costs or fees. The
allowance for loan losses is deducted from total loans in the consolidated
balance sheets. Loan origination and commitment fees and certain direct loan
origination costs (principally salaries and employee benefits} are deferred and
amcrtized as an adjustment of the related lcan's yield. Generally, these amounts
are amortized over the contractual 1life of the related loans or commitments.
Interest income is reccgnized on an accrual basis over the term of the loan
based on the principal amount outstanding.

Loans are generally placed on nonaccrual status when principal or interest
becomes ninety days past due, or when payment in full is not anticipated. When a
loan is placed cn nonaccrual status, interest accrued but not received is
generally reversed against interest income. If collectibility is in doubt, cash
receipts on nonaccrual loans are nct recorded as interest income, but are used
to reduce principal. Loans are not returned to accrual status until the borrower
demcnstrates the ability to pay principal and interest.

Allowance for loan losses - The provision for loan losses charged to operating
expense reflects the amount deemed appropriate by management to establish an
adeguate allowance to meet the present estimated loss characteristics of the
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current loan portfolio. Management's estimate is based on pericdic and regular
evaluation of individual loans, the overall risk characteristics of the various
portfolio segments, past experience with losses, and prevailing and anticipated
economic conditions. Loans that are determined to be uncollectible are charged
against the allowance. The provision for lcan losses and recoveries on loans
previously charged off are added to the allowance.

The Company accounts for impaired 1loans in accordance with SFAS No. 114,
“Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan." This standard reguires that
all lenders value loans at the loan's fair value if it is probable that the
lender will be unable to collect all amounts due in accordance with the terms of
the loan agreement. Fair value may be determined based upon the present value of
expected cash flows, market price of the loan, if available, or value of the
underlying collateral. Expected cash flows are reguired to be discounted at the
loan's effective interest rate.

Under SFAS No. 114, as amended by SFAS No. 118, when the ultimate collectibility
of an impaired 1loan's principal is in doubt, wholly or partially, all cash
receipts are applied to principal. Once the reported principal balance has been
reduced to zero, future cash receipts are applied to interest income to the
extent that any interest has been foregone. Further cash receipts are recoveries
of any amounts previously charged off.

A loan is also considered impaired if its terms are modified in a troubled debt
restructuring. For these accruing impaired loans, cash receipts are typically
applied to principal and interest receivable in accordance with the terms of the
restructured loan agreement. Interest income is recognized on these loans using
the accrual method of accounting.

Premises and equipment - Premises and equipment are stated at cost, less
accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line
method over the estimated wuseful lives of the related assets. Maintenance and
repairs are charged to operations while major improvements are capitalized. Upon
retirement, sale or other disposition of premises and equipment, the cost and
accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the accounts and any gain or loss
is included in income from cperations.

Bank owned life insurance - The Company has entered into arrangements that
provide for deferred compensation for certain officers. Bank owned 1life
insurance policies provide an informal and indirect method for funding those
arrangements. The amounts recorded as bank owned life insurance in the
consolidated balance sheets represent the cash surrender value of the policies.
The deferred compensaticn 1liability is included in other 1liabilities at the
present value of the obligation.

Assets acquired in settlement of loans - Assets acquired in settlement of loans
include real estate acquired through foreclosure or deed taken in lieu of
foreclosure and repossessed assets. These assets are recorded at fair value,
less estimated costs to sell, at the date of foreclosure, establishing a new
cost basis. Loan losses arising from the acquisition of such property as of that
date are charged against the allowance for loan losses. Subseqguent to
foreclosure, valuations are periodically performed by management and the assets
are carried at the lower cof the new cost basis or fair wvalue, less estimated
costs to sell. Revenues and expenses from operations and changes in any
subsequent valuation allowance are included in other noninterest income in the
Censolidateé Statements of Income. The carrying value of foreclosed assets
included in the balance sheets was $1,752 and $149 as of December 31, 2007 and
2006, respectively.

Goodwill - Goodwill is evaluated for impairment on at least an annual basis by
comparing the fair value of the operating unit(s) from which it arose to their
carrying value(s). 1If the carrying value of an operating unit exceeds its fair
value, the Company considers whether the implied fair value of the goodwill,
determined using a discounted cash flow analysis, exceeds the carrying value of
the goodwill. If the carrying value of the goodwill exceeds the implied fair
value of the goodwill, an impairment loss is recorded in an amount equal to that
excess. To cdate, the Company has not recorded any impairments of its goodwill.

Income taxes - The Company uses an asset and liability approach for firancial
accounting and reporting of deferred income taxes. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are determined based con the difference between the financial
statement and income tax bases of assets and 1liabilities as measured by the
currently enacted tax rates which are assumed will be in effect when these
differences reverse. If it is more likely than not that some portion or all of a
deferred tax asset will not be realized, a valuation allowance is recognized.
Deferred income tax expense or credit is the result of changes in deferred tax
assets and liabilities.

The Company adopted the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board
("FASB") Interpretation 48 ("FIN 48"}, "Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes, an Interpretation of FASB Statement 109," during 2007. The Company
analyzed its filing positions in all open tax years in each of the federal and
state income tax jurisdictions where it is required to file income tax returns
and believes that those positions will more likely than not be sustained upon
audit by the taxing authorities. The Company anticipates that no audit
adjustments by such authorities will result in a material adverse impact on the
Company's financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. Therefore,
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no reserves for uncertain income tax adjustments have been recorded pursuant to
FIN 48. The adoption of FIN 48 had no effect on the Company's consclidated
financial statements.

Advertising and public relations expense - The Company generally expenses
advertising and promotion costs as they are incurred. External costs incurred in
producing media advertising are expensed the first time the advertising takes
place. External costs relating to direct mailings are expensed in the period in
which the direct mailings are sent.

Net income per share - Net income per share is computed on the basis of the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding in accordance with SFAS No.
128, *"Earnings per Share." The treasury stock method is used to compute the
effect of stock options and convertible subordinated debentures outstanding
during 2005 on the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for
diluted earnings per share. On July 19, 2006, the Company declared a ten percent
stock dividend. Per share and share amounts have been retroactively restated to
reflect the effects of this stock dividend on 2005 amounts.

Statement of cash flows - For purposes of reporting cash flews, cash and cash
equivalents are defined as those amounts included in the balance sheet caption
"Cash and cash equivalents." Cash and cash equivalents have an original maturity
of three months or less.

Retirement plan - The Company has a salary reduction profit sharing plan
pursuant to Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code as more fully described
in Note 14. The Company also sponsors certain supplemental benefits that were
provided to certain executive officers by the Board of Directors in 2001, as
more fully described in Note 4.

Fair values of financial instruments - SFAS No. 107, "Disclosures About Fair
Values of Financial Instruments," requires disclosures of fair value information
for financial instruments, whether or not recognized in the consolidated balance
sheets, when it is practicable to estimate the fair value. SFAS No. 107 defines
a financial instrument as cash, evidence of an ownership interest in an entity
or contractual obligations, which require the exchange of cash or other
financial instruments. Certain items are specifically excluded from the
disclosure requirements, including the Company's common stock and other
nonfinancial instruments such as property and equipment and other assets and
liabilities. See Note 17 for fair value disclosures.

Risks and uncertainties - In the normal course of business the Company
encounters two significant types of risks: economic and regulatory. There are
three main components of economic risk: interest vrate risk, credit risk and
market risk. The Company is subject to interest rate risk to the degree that its
interest-bearing liabilities reprice or mature at different times, or on
different bases, than its interest-earning assets. Credit risk is the risk of
default on the Company's loan and investment securities portfolios that results
from a borrower's inability or unwillingness to make contractually required
payments. Market risk reflects changes in the value of collateral underlying
loans receivable and the valuation of real estate held by the Company.

The Company is subject to the regulations of various governmental agencies.
These regulations can and do change significantly from period to period. The
Company undergoes periodic examinations conducted by the regulatory agencies
which may subject it to further changes with respect to asset valuations,
amounts of required loan loss allowance, and operating restrictions resulting
from the regulators' judgments based on information to them at the time of their
examination.

Share-Based Compensation - The Company has a share-based employee compensation
plan, which is described more fully in Note 15. Effective January 1, 2006, the
Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised
2004) ("SFAS 123(R)")" Share-Based Payment.” Prior to adoption of SFAS 123(R),
the Company accounted for those plans under the recognition and measurement
principles of Accounting Principles Board ("APB") Opinion No. 25, "Accounting
for Stock Issued to Employees," and related interpretations. Accordingly, prior
to adoption of SFAS 123(R), no share-based employee compensation cost was
reflected in net income, as all options granted under those plans had an
exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying common stock on the
date of grant.

The following table illustrates the effect on net income and net income per
share as if the Company had applied the fair value recognition provisions of
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 123, ‘"Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation," to stock-based employee compensation awarded in 2005.
Per share amounts and weighted average shares outstanding have been restated to
reflect the 10% stock dividend declared as of July 19, 2006.
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<TABLE>
<CAPTION=>
Year ended
December 31, 2005
(Dollars in thousands,
except per share amounts)
<S> <C>
Net income, as reported .......eeieiiriienianaaan e e e P e . $ 2,361
Add: Share-based compensation expense included i
net income, net of income tax effects ......... ... il i i i i e -
Deduct: Total share-based employee compensation
expense determined under fair value based method
for all awards, net of related income tax effects ............... e (124)
Pro forma net income - basic ...... [N et e 2,237
Add: Interest savings, net of tax, on weighted averag
incremental shares assumed on conversion of
subordinated debentUreS ... .. ...ttt i i e e e 73
Pro fOImMa NEL INCOME L ittt ittt et iet ot nsesaetsenenaeeennenonseeneioeeeeanees ettt e $ 2,310
Net income per common share
BasSiC - @S FEPOILEA ittt ittt ittt e e e e e e PPN S .83
BaSiC - Pro fOIMA ..ttt ittt ettt it e Cieeearanaanaas PN $ .79
Diluted - as reported ............. N e e e e e S .69
Diluted - pro forma ........ e e e e e e e e e e i e $ .65
«</TABLE>

Comprehensive 1Income - Comprehensive income consists of net income or loss for
the current period and other comprehensive income, defined as income, expenses,
gains and losses that bypass the consolidated statement of income and are
reported directly in a separate component of shareholders' equity. The Company
classifies and reports items of other comprehensive income according to their
nature, reports total comprehensive income or loss in the consolidated statement
of changes in shareholders' equity and displays the accumulated balance of other
comprehensive income or loss separately in the shareholders' equity section of
the consolidated balance sheet. See Note 16 for further discussion.

NOTE 2 - RESTRICTIONS ON CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS

The Bank is required by regulation to maintain average cash reserve balances,
computed by applying prescribed percentages to its variocus types of deposits,
either at the Bank or in an account maintained with the Federal Reserve Bank.
The average amourts of the cash reserve balances required at December 31, 2007
and 2006 were approximately $287 and $168, respectively.

NOTE 3 - INVESTMENT SECURITIES

The aggregate amortized cost and estimated fair values of securities, as well as
gross unrealized gains and losses of securities were as follows:
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<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

Available-for-sale

<S>
Government - sponsored
enterprises (GSEs) ...........
State, county and
municipal .......... .. L.
Mortgage-backed
securities
issued by GSEs ...............
Total ity
</TABLE>

Securities issued by government-sponsored
issued by the Federal Home Lcan Banks,

iz\private\sec-bank\09992\0001\gsb 2007 audited financials.txt, 12

December 31,

enterprises include debt instruments

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Company, and

the Federal National Mortgage Association. The amortized cost and estimated fair
value of securities by contractual maturity are shown below. Expected maturities

may differ from contractual maturities

because borrowers may have the right to

call or prepay obligaticns with or without call or prepayment penalties.

Due within one year ....................

Due after one through five years .......
Due after five through ten years .......
Due after ten years ....................

The estimated fair values and gross
investment

as of December 31, 2007 and 2006

other-than-temporarily impaired,

aggregated by investment category and the

December 31, 2007

Available-for-sale
Amortized Estimated
Cost Fair value

(Dollars in thousands)

$ 3,105 $ 3,116

13,737 13,898

9,557 9,565

e 32,890 32,988
$59,289 $59,567

unrealized 1losses of all of the Company's
securities whose estimated fair values were less than amortized cost
which had not been determined to be
are presented below. The securities have been

length of time that individual

securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position.

UST Seq. No. 327

2007 2006
Gross Gross Gross Gross

Unrealized Unrealized Estimated Unrealized Unrealized Estimated

Amortized Hold:ing Holding Fair Amortized  Helding Holding Fair

Cost Gains Losses value Cost Gains Losses Value

{Dollars in thousands)
<C> <C> <C> <C> <C> <C> <Cx <C>

e $19,250 $ 2%6 $ 2 $19,544 $22,500 $ 72 S 103 $22,469
e 13,406 32 149 13,289 3,332 23 16 3,339
e 26,633 266 165 26,734 16,023 79 264 15,838
$59,567 $421,855 $ 174 S 383 $41,646
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<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

Available-for-sale

<S>
Government - sponscred

enterprises (GSES) ........ccveunn

State, county and

municipal securities .............

Mortgage-backed securities

issued by GSES ........... ...
Total .......

</TABLE>

<TABLE>

<CAPTION>

Available-for-sale

<S>

Government - sponsored

enterprises (GSEs) ............

State, county and

municipal securities .............

Mortgage-backed securities

issued by GSEs ............... ...,

</TABLE>

At December 31, 2007, 18 securities had been

December 31, 2007

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or more Total
Es;;&;;;é ----- éé;é;iized EstimA;;é ------ a;;é;i;zed Estimated Unrealized
Fair Value Loss Fair Value Loss Fair value Loss
""""" " (bollars in thousands)
<C> <C> <C> <C> <C> <C>
- $ - s 998 $ 2 $ 998 $ 2
6,955 117 1,634 32 8,589 149
3,021 29 8,579 136 11,600 16S
s 9,976 s 146 $11,211 s 170 $21,187 s 316

December 31, 2006

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or more Tctal
ESL;;;;;& ----- 6;;;;i;zed Estim;;;é ------ &;;é;i;zed Estimated Unrealized
Fair Value Loss Fair Value Loss Fair Value Loss
""""" " (Dollars in thousands)
<C> <C> <C> <C> <C> <C»>
- $ - $11,404 $ 103 $11,404 $ 103
1,946 16 - - 1,946 16
823 4 9,891 260 10,714 264
$ 2,769 s 20 s21,295 s 363 s24,064 s 383

continuously in an unrealized loss

position for less than 12 months and 21 securities had been continuously in an

unrealized loss position for 12 months or more.
these investments to be other-than-temporarily

losses resulted primarily from higher

downgrades of the credit ratings of the
securities issued by government-sponsored

The Company does not consider

impaired because the unrealized

rates and there have been no

issuers. The contractual terms of
enterprises do not permit the issuer

to settle the securities at a price less than the face amount of the securities.
Although the Company classifies its investment securities as available-for-sale,

management has not determined that any specific
prior to maturity and believes

maturity. Also, there have been no significant

securities will be disposed of

that the Company has both the ability and the
intent to hold those investments until a recovery of fair value, including until

adverse changes in the credit

ratings of any of the security issuers that would indicate that the Company will
ke unable to collect all principal and interest amounts according to contractual

terms. Substantially all of the
securities held were rated at least

and 2006.

The Bank is a member of the Federal

issuers

state, county and municipal
"investment grade" as of December 31, 2007

Home Loan Bank of Atlanta ("FHLB") and,

accordingly, is required to own restricted stock in that institution in amounts
that may vary from time to time. Because of the restrictions imposed, the stock

may not be sold to other parties,
price as that at which it was acquired by the Bank.

but is

redeemable by the FHLB at the same

The Company evaluates this

security for impairment based on the probability of ultimate recoverability of

the recorded amount c¢f the investment.

on this evaluation.

No impairment has been reccgnized based

During 2007, the Company sold available-for-sale securities with amortized costs
totaling $2,473 for proceeds of $2,449,
$24. The income tax provision credited to expense applicable tc the net realized

losses was $8. During 2006, the Company did not sell any

resulting in gross realized 1losses of

available-for-sale

securities. During 2005, the Company sold available-for-sale securities with

amortized costs totaling $944 for proceeds of $962,

gains of $20 and gross realized

transfers of available-for-sale
200S.

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, securities

resulting in gross realized

losses of $2. The income tax provision charged
to expense applicable to the net

realized gains of $18 was §7. There were no

securities to other categecries in 2007, 2006 or

with a carrying value of $2,199 and

$2,227, respectively, were pledged as collateral to secure public deposits and

other purposes.
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NOTE 4 - LOANS
Loans consisted of the following:

December 31,
2007 2006

(Dollars in thousands)

Commercial, financial and agricultural ......... $ 44,640 $ 135,783
Real estate- construction ...............ccue.. 84,458 65,096
Real estate - MOrtgage .......ccoiieviiiennaennn 128,633 120,673
Installment lcans to individuals ........... . 4,998 5,209

LOANS, QYOSS vt venrtenrenesertnnnsannnes 262,729 226,761
Allowance for possible loan losses ............. (2,943) (2,423)

Loans - net ......... F N $ 259,786 $ 224,338

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, nonaccrual loans totaled $1,127 and $834,
respectively. The gross interest income that would have been recorded under the
original terms of the nonaccrual loans was $164, $318 and $96 in 2007, 2006 and
2005, respectively. The average amounts of impaired loans were $1,255, $2,171
and $3,338 for 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Interest income recognized on
impaired loans was $34, $68, and $172 in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The
Bank had nc loans with payments past due ninety days or more and accruing
interest as of December 31, 2007 and 2006. Variable rate and fixed rate loans
totaled $147,186 and $115,543, respectively, at December 31, 2007.

Following is a summary of the Company's impaired lcans:

December 31,

{Dollars in thousands)
Impaired loans

No valuation allowance required ............ccovuuuen. $ 184 $ 790
Valuation allowance required ...............ooiviunnnn 990 358
Total impaired 1O8NS ...ttt nereioroaennnnsnns $1,174 $1,148

Allowance for loan losses on impaired loans at year end ....

There were no irrevocable commitments to lend additional funds to debtors owing
amounts on impaired lcans at December 31, 2007.

Transactions in the allowance for loan losses are summarized below:

Years Ended December 31,

(Dollars in thousands)

Balance at January 1 ..........ccecoenn $ 2,423 $ 3,050 S 2,293

Provision charged to expense ..... e 1,045 1,110 1,125

Recoveries .........c.iiiiiiinnnns RN 804 442 115

Charge-offs ............... e e (1,329) (2,179) (483)

Balance at December 31 ............... $ 2,942 $ 2,423 $ 3,050
34
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NOTE 5 - PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT
Premises and equipment consisted of the following:

December 31,

2007 2006

(Dollars in thousands)

Land and land improvements ...............cueioann $ 1,214 $ 1,214
Building and leasehold improvements .............. 3,743 3,728
Furniture and eguipment ..............ccvivieennnn 1,765 1,638
Vehicles ...t i ittt et e 298 284

< o 3 7,020 6,864
Accumulated depreciation .................c .. (2,124) (1,744)

Premises and equipment, net ................ $ 4,896 $ 5,120

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was
$380, $388, and $329, respectively. Estimated useful 1lives and methods of
depreciation for the principal items follow:

Type of Asset Life in Years Depreciation Method
Software 3 Straight-line
Furniture and equipment 5 to 7 Straight-line
Buildings and improvements 5 to 40 Straight-line
Vehicles 3 Straight-line

NOTE & - DEPOSITS
A summary of deposits follows:

December 31,

(Dollars in thousands)

Noninterest bearing demand ..... e e e $ 15,037 $ 15,215
Interest bearing:
Demand accounts .............. e et e 5,312 3,224
Money market ACCOUNES ...t ivieeneennennnnnns 99,496 82,538
SAVINGS vttt ittt ittt ettt e e e i e e 607 571
120,452 101,548
Time certificates of depcsit, less than $100,000 ..... 101,671 91,165
Time certificates of deposit, $100,000 and over ...... 83,516 76,210
185,187
Total deposits ...ttt inreenrnnennnen $305,639

Interest expense on time deposits greater than $100,000 was $4,182, $3,294, and
$2,226 in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Brokered deposits were $16,857 and
$18,393 as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, $17 and $27, respectively, of overdrawn demand
deposit balances were reclassified as loans.

At December 31, 2007, the scheduled maturities of time deposits are as follows:

s
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Year Amount
(Dollars in thousands)
2008 $ 150,436
2009 23,676
2010 7,703
2011 1,775
2012 1,5%4
Thereafter 3
Total time deposits $ 185,187

NOTE 7 ~ SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

Short-term borrowings as of December 31, 2007 consist of advances from the
Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta ("FHLB"), repayable on January 2, 2008.
Short-term FHLB advances are secured as discussed in Note 8.

The following table presents information about short-term FHLB advances for each
of the years indicated.

<TABLE>

<CAPTION>

<8>

Outstanding at end of period ........i.vtiiiiii it eeann N
Weighted average rate, end of period ...... ..ttt
Maximum amount cutstanding at any month end ................ ... onan.
Average amount outstanding during the period .............ciiuieiiinn.
Weighted average rate during the period ......... .. ... i
</TABLE>

As cf December 31, 2007, the banking subsidiary had unused short-term credit
accommodations available from unrelated banks which allow the banking subsidiary
to purchase up to $9,400 of federal funds. These lines of credi: are available
generally on a one to fourteen day basis for general corporate purposes of the
Bank and impose various other conditions. The lenders reserve the right to
withdraw the lines at their cption.

NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM DEBT

At December 31, 2007, the Bank had unused credit availability wunder the FHLB's
blanket lien agreement of up toc §19,740 under the FHLB's various credit
programs, subject to pledging and other requirements. The amount of eligible
collateral instruments available as of December 31, 2007 to secure any
additional FHLB borrowings totaled approximately $33,051.

NOTE 9 - CAPITAL TRUST AND JUNIOR SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES

On May 3, 2006, the Company sponsored the creation of a Delaware statutory
trust, GrandSouth Capital Trust I, ({(the "Trust") and is the sole owner of the
$247 of common securities issued by the Trust. On May 10, 2006, the Trust issued
$8,000 in floating rate capital securities. The proceeds of this issuance, and
the amount of the Company's investment in the common securities, were used to
acquire $8,247 principal amount of the Company's floating rate Jjunior
subordinated debt securities due in 2036 ("Debentures"). These securities, and
the accrued interest therecn, now constitute the Trust's sole assets. The
interest rate associated with the debt securities, and the distribution rate on
the common securities of the Trust, is adjustable gquarterly at 3 month LIBOR
plus 185 basis points (6.73% at December 31, 2007). The Company may defer
interest payments on the Debentures for up to 20 consecutive gquarters, but not
beyond the stated maturity cf the Debentures. 1In the event that such interest
payments are deferred by the Company, the Trust may defer distributions on the
capital and common securities. In such an event, the Company would be restricted
in its ability to pay dividends on its common stock and perform under
obligations that are not senior to the Debentures.

The Debentures are redeemable at par at the option of the Company, in whole or
in part, on any interest payment date on or after June 23, 2011. Prior to that
date, the Debentures are redeemable at par plus a premium of up to 4.40% of par
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2007

<C>

$ 5,000
4.40%

$ 5,000

$ 169
5.92%

Years Ended December 31,

2006
(Dollars in thousands)
<C>
$ -
0.00%
$ 8,500
S 6,905
4.36%

2005

<C>

$ 8,500
4.34%

$16,500

$11,392
4.03%
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upon the occurrence of certain events that would have a negative tax effect con
the Trust or that would cause it to be required to be registered as an
investment company under the Investment Company Act of 1940 or that would cause
trust preferred securities not to be eligible to be treated as Tier 1 capital by
the Federal Reserve. Upon repayment or redemption of the Debentures, the Trust
will use the proceeds of the transaction to redeem an equivalent amount cf
capital securities and ccmmon securities. The Trust's obligations under the
capital securities are unconditionally guaranteed by the Company. In accordance
with FASB Interpretation Nc. 46{R), the Trust is not consolidated in the
Company's financial statements.

Junior subordinated debentures consisted of:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

<S>
Junior Subordinated Debt due to Unconsolidated Trust (1),
dated May 10, 2006 maturing May 10, 2036, with variable

interest rate based on 3-month LIBOR ..ttt tiiitetitnneneentonoisoeentoneenensaaneennssns

</TABLE>
(1) Securities qualify as Tier 1 capital under the regulatory risk-based capital
guidelines, subject to certain limitations.

NOTE 10 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company is party to litigation and claims arising in the normal course of
business. Management, after consultation with legal counsel, believes that the
liabilities, if any, arising from such 1litigation and claims will not be
material to the Company's financial position or results of operations.

The Company has a ground lease on its main office location, which expires in
2021. The monthly lease payment is $1 for years one through eleven and increases
incrementally to $2 per month by year sixteen. The Company also leases land upon
which it constructed a branch office under a non-cancelable operating lease
which expires in March, 2018. The lease requires monthly lease payments of $0.8
and contains four renewal options of five years each which contain provisions
for adjustments to the monthly lease payments. The lease agreement requires the
Company to pay all property taxes.

The future minimum lease payments due under the current operating leases are as
follows:

Year Amount

{Dollars in thousands)

2008 s 23

2009 23

2010 23

2011 23

2012 23
Thereafter 195
Total $ 310

NOTE 11 - INCOME TAXES

The following summary of the provision for income taxes includes zax deferrals,
which arise from temporary differences 1in the recognition cf certain items of
revenues and expense for tax and financial reporting purposes:

37
UST Seqg. No. 327

December 31,

2007 2006

(Dollars in thousands)




Haynsworth Sinkler Boyd. P. A.

is\private\sec-bank\09992\0001\gsb 2007 audited financials.txt, 19

12/31/2008
<PAGE>
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Years Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005
(Dollars in thousands)
Current
<S> <C> <C> <C:
=Y s L o= 3 Y $ 1,717 $ 1,323 $ 1,400
2 - L - e e 145 165 116
B o= B R < U < o= . I 1,862 1,488 1,516
Deferred
Federal provision (benefit) ....... et aee e a e e (282 273 (361)
Total INCOME BAX EXDPEINSE .. ittt it inetenene et eenneneeennenaeeennanennn $ 1,580 $ 1,761 $ 1,185

</TABLE>

The income tax effects of cumulative
as follows:

Deferred tax assets
Allowance for lcan losses
Nonaccrual loan interest
Unrealized net holding losses on
available-for-sale securities
State net operating loss carryforward ...............
Writedown of assets acquired in settlement of loans
Deferred compensation
Other

Gross deferred tax assets .......iviiiinnnn..
Valuation allowance

Deferred tax liabilities
Unrealized net holding gains on
available-for-sale securities
Accelerated depreciation . e
Other ....... et ettt e e e

The wvaluation allowance 1is related to the

operating 1loss carryforwards.

Company's

temporary differences at December 31, are

December 31,

$ 628

stand-alone
The portion of the change in net

(Dollars in thousands)

$ 412
57

71

state net

deferred tax

assets or liabilities which is related to unrealized holding gains and losses on

available-for-sale securities is

charged or credited

directly to other

2006 and 2005,

comprehensive income cor loss. The balance of the change in net deferred tax
assets is charged or credited to income tax expense. In 2007,
$165 was charged, $141 was credited, and $187 was charged,

other comprehensive income or loss. In 2007,
$273 was charged, and $361 was credited, respectively, to

reconciled to the
rate of 34% on income

The provision for income taxes is
computed at the federal statutory
follows:
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2006 and 2005,

respectively, to
$282 was credited,

amcunt of income
before income taxes as

income tax expense.
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<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Years Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005
(Dollars in thousands)

<S> <C>
Tax expense at statutory rate ............. .0t tiiniianennan.n $ 1,707
State income tax, net of federal

income tax benefit ............... ... ... . e e
Tax-exempt interest IinCoOMe ..........iiieniiniineninnenenannnnnn

Bank-owned life insurance increase
Other, net

</TABLE>

NOTE 12 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Certain directors, executive officers and companies with which
affiliated are customers of and have banking transactions,
commitments to lend, with the Bank in the ordinary course of
transactions are made on substantially the same terms,
and collateral, as those prevailing at the time for
transactions. A summary of loan and commitment
executive officers, including their affiliates,

comparable

follows:

they are

including loans and
business.
including interest rates
arms-length
transactions with directors and

Such

Years ended
Decemkber 31,

2007

2006

{Dollars in thousands)

Balance, beginning of year ..... e $ 2,946 $ 1,646
New loans ..... et e e ettt 611 1,924
Less - loan payments [N e (1,130) (624)
Balance, end of year ........ ... i $ 2,427 S 2,946

Deposits of directors and their related interests at December 31,
approximated $2,140 and S$1,425, respectively.

During the third quarter of 2007, the Company's Chief Executive

2007 and 2006

Officer and

Chairman of the Board purchased from the Bank a 100% participation in two
nonaccrual loans of an unaffiliated borrower totaling $811. Interest of $33 was
collected in connection with the sale of the participation interest. The Bank

has made no commitments or entered into any other
contingently liable to repurchase the participated interest.

agreements that would make it

The Company leases land from a relative of a director, shareholder and executive
officer of the Company (see Note 10). Lease expenses charged to operations under
these arrangements totaled $9, $9 and $10 in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

NOTE 13 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF-BALANCE SHEET RISK

In the ordinary course of business, and to meet the financing needs of its
customers, the Bank is party to various financial instruments with off-balance
sheet risk. These financial instruments, which include commitments to extend
credit and standby letters of credit, involve, to varying degrees, elements of
credit and interest rate risk in excess of the amounts recognized in the balance
sheets. The contract amounts of those instruments vreflect the extent of
involvement the Bank has in particular classes of financial instruments.

The Bank's exposure to credit loss in the event of
party to the financial instrument for commitments to extend credit and statndby
letters of credit is represented by the contractual amounts of those
instruments. The Bank uses the same credit policies in making commitments and

nonperformance by the other
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conditional okligations as it does for on-balance sheet instruments. Commitments
to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no
violation of any material condition established in the contract. Commitments
generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may
require the payment of a fee. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, unfunded
commitments to extend credit were $76,874 and $71,053, respectively. The Bank
evaluates each customer's credit worthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount
of collatereal obtained, 1if deemed necessary by the Bank upon extension of
credit, is based on management's credit evaluation of the borrower. Collateral
varies but may include accounts receivable, inventory, property, plant and
equipment, and commercial and residential real estate. At December 31, 2007 and
2006, there were outstanding letters of credit totaling $89%7 and S1,318,
respectively.

NOTE 14 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

The Bank sponsors the GrandSouth Bank Profit Sharing Section 401 (k) Plan (the
vPlan") for the benefit of all eligible employees. The Bank contributes
seventy-five percent of the first four percent of the employee's compensation
contributed to the Plan. Contributions made to the Plan in 2007, 2006 and 2005
were $118, $67 and $56, respectively.

In 2001, supplemental benefits were approved by the Becard of Directors for
certain executive officers of the Bank. These benefits are not gualified under
the Internal Revenue Code and they are not funded. However, certain funding is
provided informally and indirectly by life insurance policies ownad by the Bank.
The Company recorded net expense related to these benefits of $4, $61 and $61 in
2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

NOTE 15 - STOCK OPTION PLAN

During 1998, the Board of Directors approved a stock option plan for the benefit
of the directors, officers and employees. The Board may grant up to 856,028
options (after the shareholders approved an amendment to increase the number of
shares in the plan at the 2005 Annual Meeting) at an exercise price per share
not less than the fair market value on the date of grant. All options granted to
directors, officers and employees vest 20 percent each year for five years and
expire 10 years from the grant date. The related compensation expense is
recognized over the vesting period. The Company measures the fair value of each
option award on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model
with the following assumptions used for awards granted in 2007, 2006 and 2005,
as indicated in the following table:

Years Ended Cecember 31,

2007 2006 2005
Assumptions:
Dividend yield ....... cciiiimii i 0.72% 0.64% 0.89%
Weighted average risk-free interest rate ..... 4.55% 5.04% 4.24%
Weighted average expected volatility ......... 60.30% 31.14% 20.09%
Weighted average expected life in years ...... 6.00 8.00 8.00
Weighted average grant date fair value ....... $ 6.35 § 5.42 $ 2.79

The Company determines the assumptions used in the Black-Scholes option-pricing
model as follows: the dividend yield is based on the historical dividend yield
of the Company's stock, adjusted to reflect the expected dividend yield over the
expected life of the option, the risk-free interest rate is based on the U.S.
Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of the grant; volatility is based on
historical wvolatility adjusted to reflect the ways in which current information
indicates that the future is reasonably expected to differ from the past; and
the simplified method of Staff Accounting Bulletin 107 was used to estimate the
average life.

The following table summarizes the activity during 2007 related to stock options
awarded by the Company:
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<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Year Ended December 31, 2007
Weighted Average
Weighted Remaining
Average Exercise Contrctual Life Intrinsic
Shares Price Per Share (Years) Value
(Dollars in thousands, except per share)
<S> <C> <C> <C> <C>
Outstanding at beginning of year ....... et e 472,038 $ 5.53
Granted ... .. i e ittt et e e 25,000 14.84
ExXercised ....... ittt it et e i e e (7,642) 3.25
Forfeited or expired .......... et e - -
Outstanding at end of year ......... et e 489,396 $ 6.04 4.19 $ 2,221
Options OULSLANAING .. vv i it ittt iierntieroninsanesonennean 489,396 $ 6.04 4.19 s 2,221
and expected to vest
Options exercisable at year-end ........ . cvviiieunvnnnnen 361,115 $ 4.56 2.89 $ 2,065

</TABLE>

The weighted average grant date fair values of options granted in 2007 and 2006
were $6.35 and $5.42, respectively. The total intrinsic value of options
exercised in 2007 and 2006 was $57 and $33, respectively.

As of December 31, 2007, total compensation costs of unvested options that have
not yet been recognized were $471. Those compensation costs will be recognized
over the remaining weighted average vesting period of 1.7 years.

Intrinsic value is calculated in the aggregate for shares granted, outstanding
and exercisable by taking the closing price of the Company's common stock as of
December 31, 2007, as reported by the OTCEB, and subtracting the
weighted-average exercise price of the respective category of stock option. That
result is then multiplied by the number of options outstanding.

Intrinsic value for shares exercised represents the closing price of the stock
on the date of exercise as reported by the OTCBB less the actual exercise price
of the options exercised multiplied by the number of options exercised. These
intrinsic wvalues are calculated for each exercise during the year and the
resulting total is presented.

All share and per share values have been retroactively restated for all stock
dividends since the date the options were granted. The Company issues authorized
but unissued shares to satisfy option exercises. As of December 31, 2007, there
were 358,990 shares available for grant under the Plan.

NOTE 16 - SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Restrictions on Subsidiary Dividends, Loans or Advances - South Carolina banking
regulations restrict the amount cf dividends that banks can pay tc shareholders.
Any of the banking subsidiary's dividends to the parent company which exceed in
amount the subsidiary's current vyear-to-date earnings ($3,226 at December 31,
2007) are subject to the prior approval of the South Carolina Commissioner of
Banking. Therefore, $25,221 of the Company's equity in the net assets of the
Bank was restricted as of December 31, 2007. In addition, dividends paid by the
banking subsidiary to the parent company would be prohibited if the effect
thereof would cause the Bank's capital to be reduced below applicable minimum
capital requirements. Under Federal Reserve Board regulations, the amounts of
lcans or advances from the banking subsidiary to the parent company are
generally limited to 10% of the Bank's capital stock and surplus on a secured
basis. Furthermore, in the event that interest payments on the junior
subordinated debentures (see Note 9) are deferred by the Company, the Company
would be restricted in its ability to pay dividends cn its common stock.

Stock Dividends - The Company's Board of Directors declared a 10% stock dividend
on July 19, 2006. All per share information has been retroactively adjusted to
give effect to the stock dividend.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) - As of December 31, 2007 and
2006, accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) included as a component of
shareholders' equity in the consolidated balance sheets consisted of accumulated
changes in the unrealized holding gains and (losses) on available-for-sale
securities, net of income tax effects, amounting to $322 and $223 respectively.
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Earnings per Share - Net income per share and net income per share, assuming
dilution, were computed as follows:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005

(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)
Net income per share, kasic

<S> <C> <C> <C>
Numerator - net income ............. ettt e et e e e e et s $ 2,799 $ 3,260 $ 2,361
Denominator

Weighted average common shares

issued and outstanding .. ..... ..ttt i e it e e e e 3,373,909 3,372,065 2,840,528

Net income per share, BasSiC ...ttt iiiei it iieee et eeanannaens S .83 $ .97 $ 83

Net income per share, assuming dilution

Numerator

Net income, as rYeported .. ...ttt irennnoronnronnrnneneeennnenansoneennas $ 2,799 S 3,260 $ 2,361

Add: Interest savings, net of tax, on weighted average

incremental shares assumed on conversion of

subordinated debentures ... ...ttt i e e i et e - - 73

Net income (2007 and 2006) and pro forma net income (2005) ................ $ 2,799 $ 3,260 $ 2,434

Denominator

Weighted average common shares

issued and OULSTANAING ..ttt tn it nn et anre e e 3,373,509 3,372,065 2,840,528

Effect of assumed conversion of subordinated debentures .............. e - - 532,356

Effect of dilutive StOCK OPLIONS .. vt inein ittt iiane e N 251,042 281,784 168,001
Total shares ................. P 3,624,951 3,653,849 3,540,885

Net income per share, assuming dilution ....................... e $ .77 $ .89 $ .69

</TABLE>

Weighted average common shares outstanding have been retrcactively restated to
reflect a 10% stock dividend declared on July 19, 2006.

Regulatory Capital - All bank holding companies and banks are subject to various
regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking agencies.
Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory, and
possibly additional discretionary, actions by regulators that, if undertaken,
could have a direct material effect on the Company's consolidated financial
statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for
prompt corrective action, bank holding companies and banks must meet specific
capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of their assets,
liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory
accounting practices. Capital amounts and classification are also subject to
qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings, and
other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy
require the Company and its banking subsidiary to maintain minimum amounts and
ratios set forth in the table below of Total and Tier 1 Capital, as defined in
the regulations, to risk weighted assets, as defined, and of Tier 1 Capital, as
defined, to average assets, as defined. Management believes, as of December 31,
2007 and 2006, that the Company and its subsidiary bank exceeded all capital
adequacy minimum requirements.

As of December 31, 2007, the most recent notification from the FDIC categorized
the Bank as well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt
corrective action. To be categorized as well capitalized as defined in the
Federal Deposit Insurance Act, the Bank must maintain minimum tctal risk-based,
Tier 1 risk-based, and Tier 1 leverage ratios as set forth in the table. There
are no conditions or events since that notification that management believes
have changed the Bank's category. Bank holding companies with higher levels of
risk, or that are experiencing or anticipating significant growth, are expected
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by the Federal Reserve to maintain capital well above the minimums. The
Company's and Bank's actual capital amounts and ratios are also presented in the
table.

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Minimum for
Actual Capital Adegquacy
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
December 31, 2007 (Dollars in thousands)
Tier 1 Capital (to Average Assets)
<S> <C> <C> <C> <C>
COMPANY &ttt vvvvsrannnnnnneneeneennnns $ 28,850 8.4% $ 13,750 4.0%
GrandSouth Bank .......coviiinnennnenn. 27,526 B.6% 12,869 4.0%
Tier 1 Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets)
Company ..... e e .. $ 28,850 10.1% $ 11,414 4.0%
GrandSouth Bank ........eevivenernnans 27,526 9.6% 11,432 4.0%
Total Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets)
COMPANY e v v vnmnsennnnnrennnn ceeenes.. $ 32,489 11.4% $ 22,828 8.0%
GrandSouth Bank .......ceutveennnennnns 30,469 10.7% 22,864 8.0%
December 31, 2006
Tier 1 Capital (to Average Assets)
Company ........... C ettt e $ 26,078 9.3% $ 11,199 4.0%
GrandSouth Bank .........cc0iienen.n.. 25,200 8.5% 11,812 4.0%
Tier 1 Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets)
COMPANY + e vt veverennonnononesenonnssns $ 26,079 10.7% $ 9,788 4.0%
GrandSouth Bank ........cccoeieeuennn 25,200 10.3% 9,777 4.0%
Total Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets)
COMPANY « vt v eocnnonnns e . $ 30,031 12.3% $ 19,575 8.0%
GrandSouth Bank ........c.ciciveirnneenns 27,623 11.3% 19,555 8.0%

</TABLE>
NOTE 17 - DISCLOSURES ABOUT FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

SFAS No. 107, "Disclosures about Fair Values of Financial Instruments,” as
amended, requires disclosure of the estimated fair value of on-balance sheet and
off-balance sheet financial instruments. A financial instrument is defined by
SFAS No. 107 as cash, evidence of an ownership interest in an entity or a
contract that creates a contractual obligation or right to deliver or receive
cash or another financial instrument from a second entity on potentially
favorable or unfavorable terms.

Fair wvalue estimates are made at a specific point in time based on relevant
market information about the financial instrument. These estimates do not
reflect any premium or discount that could result from offering for sale at one
time the Company's entire holdings of a particular financial instrument. No
active trading market exists for a significant portion of the Company's
financial instruments. Fair value estimates for these instruments are based on
management's judgments regarding future expected loss experience, current
economic conditions, risk characteristics of various financial instruments, and
other factors. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve
uncertainties and matters cf significant judgment and therefore cannot be
determined with precision. Changes in assumptions could significantly affect the
estimates.

Fair value estimates are based on existing on-and-off balance sheet financial
instruments without attempting to estimate the value cf anticipated future
pusiness and the value of assets and liabilities that are not considered
financial instruments. Significant assets and liabilities that are specifically
excluded from the disclosure requirements include net deferred tax assets,
interest receivable and payable, assets acquired in settlement of loans, bank
owned life insurance, goodwill, other assets and liabilities, and premises and
equipment. In addition, the income tax ramifications related to the realization
of the unrealized gains and losses can have a significant effect on fair value
estimates and have not been considered in the estimates.

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Company in estimating the
fair values of its financial instruments:

For cash and due from banks and federal funds sold, the carrying amount
approximates fair value because these instruments generally mature in 90 days or
less.
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NA
$ 17,148
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NA
$ 14,765

NA
$ 14,666

NA
$ 24,443

NA
5.0%

NA

NA
10.0%

NA
6.0%

NA
10.0%
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The fair value of debt securities issued by government-sponsored enterprises is
estimated based on published closing quotations. The fair value of state, county
and municipal securities is generally not available from published quotations;
consequently, their fair values estimates are based on matrix pricing or guoted
market prices of similar instruments adjusted for credit quality differences
between the quoted instruments and the securities being valued. Fair value for
mortgage-backed securities is estimated primarily using dealers' guotes.

The fair value of other investments approximates the carrying amount.

Fair values are estimated for loans using discounted cash flow analyses, using
interest rates currently offered for loans with similar terms and credit
quality. The Company does not engage in originating, holding, guaranteeing,
servicing or investing in loans where the terms of the loan product give rise to
a concentration of credit risk.

The fair value of deposits with no stated maturity (noninterest bearing demand,
interest bearing demand and money market accounts and savings) is estimated as
the amount payable on demand, or carrying amount. The fair value of time
deposits is estimated using a discounted cash flcw calculation that applies
rates currently offered to aggregate expected maturities.

The fair values of the Company's short-term borrowings approximate their
carrying amounts.

The fair values of variable rate long-term debt instruments are estimated at the
carrying amount.

The estimated fair values of off-balance-sheet financial instruments such as
loan commitments and standby letters of credit are generally based upon fees
charged to enter into similar agreements, taking intc account the remaining
terms of the agreements and the counterparties' creditworthiness. The vast
majority of the banking subsidiary's loan commitments do not involve the
charging of a fee, and fees associated with outstanding standby letters of
credit are not material. For loan commitments and standby letters of credit, the
committed interest rates are either variable or approximate current interest
rates offered for similar commitments. Therefore, the estimated fair values of
these off-balance-sheet financial instruments are nominal.

The following is a summary of the carrying amounts and estimated fair values of
the Company's financial assets and liabilities:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

2007

Carrying
Amount
of Assets
{Liabilities)
Financial Assets:
<S> <C>
Cash and due from banks ........ e erinaseneanrastnsn s $ 4,585
Federal funds sold ........ .., e e 4,420
Securities available-for-sale ........ e e 59,567
Other investments .................. et e 765
LOANS, NEL vttt ittt ieeeneeennseneonosnaseenssneensas . 259,786
Financial Liabilities:
| 975 « Yo = I o = T R R R 335,639
Short-term borrowings .................o.. et 5,000
Long-term debt . ....... .. it it e B 8,247
</TABLE>
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Notional
Amount
Off-balance-sheet commitments
<8> <C>
Loan COMMAiLMentS .....veenencnonannn e e e, $76,874
Skandby letters of credit ............ e e e 897

</TABLE>
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December 31,

Estimated Carrying
Fair value Amount
of Assets of Assets
(Liabilities) (Liabilities)
{Dollars in thousands)
<C> <C>
$ 4,585 $ 6,145
4,420 13,659
59,567 41,646
765 504
259,911 224,338
306,514 268,923
5,000 -
8,247 8,247
Estimated Notional
Fair Value Amount
<C> <C>
$ - $71,053
- 1,318

2006

Estimated
Fair value
of Assets
(Liabilities)

<C»>
$ 6,145
13,659
41,646
504
224,208

268,737

8,247

Estimated
Fair Value
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ECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
Impact of Recent Accounting Changes

Fair Value Measurements - The provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 157 ("SFAS No. 157"), "Fair Value Measurements," are effective for
fiscal vyears beginning after November 15, 2007 (January 1, 2008 for the
Company) . SFAS No. 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring
fair value in generally accepted accounting principles, and expands disclosures
about fair value measurements. This standard eliminates inconsistencies found in
various prior pronouncements but does not require any new fair value
measurements. The adoption of SFAS No. 157 in 2008 will not impact the Company's
accounting measurements but it is expected to result in additional disclosures.

Fair Value Option - The provisions of Statements of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 159 ("SFAS No. 159"} , "The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities Including an Amendment of FASB Statement 115," are
effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007 (January 1, 2008
for the Company). This Statement provides an entity the option to measure many
financial instruments and certain other items at fair value. Changes in the fair
values of items for which the option 1is selected will be recorded in the
entity's earnings. The objective is to improve financial reporting by allowing
entities to mitigate the earnings volatility that has resulted from the
previously required application of different measurement attributes without the
need to apply complex hedge accounting provisions. The Company has not elected
to apply the Statement's provisions to any items held as of January 1, 2008 and
does not currently expect that it will apply the Statement's provisions to any
items acquired subsequently. Therefore, the adoption of the Statement in 2008
has not had, and is nct expected to have, any effecz on the Company's
consolidated financial statements.

Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes - In June 2006, the FASB issued
Interpretation No. 48 (FIN 48}, "Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes," to
clarify the accounting and disclosure for uncertainty in tax pesitions, as
defined. FIN 48 seeks to reduce the diversity in practice associated with
certain aspects of the recognition and measurement related to accounting for
income taxes. The Company implemented the provisions of FIN 48 as cf January 1,
2007, and has analyzed £iling positions in all of the federal and state
jurisdictions where it is required to file income tax returns, as well as all
open tax years in these jurisdictions. The Company believes that its income tax
filing positions taken or expected to be taken in an its tax returns will more
likely than not be sustained upon audit by the taxing authorities and does not
anticipate any adjustments that will result in a material adverse impact on the
Company's financial condition, results of operations, or cash flow. Therefore,
no reserves for uncertain income tax positions have been recorded pursuant to
FIN 48. In addition, the Company did not record a cumulative effect adjustment
related to the adopticn of FIN 48.

Accounting for Bank Owned Life Insurance - In September 2006, the FASB ratified
the consensuses reached by the FASB's Emerging Issues Task Force ("EITF")
relating to EITF 06-4, "Accounting for the Deferred Cempensation and
Postretirement Benefit Aspects of Endorsement Split-Dollar Life Insurance
Arrangements" ("EITF 06-4"). Entities purchase 1life insurance £for various
reasons including protection against 1loss of key employees and to £fund
postretirement benefits. The two most commen types of 1life insurance
arrangements are endorsement split dollar life and collateral assignment splitc
dollar life. EITF 06-4 covers the former and EITF 06-10 (discussed below) ccvers
the latter. EITF 06-4 states that entities with endorsement split-dollar 1life
insurance arrangements that provide a benefit to an emplcyee that extends to
postretirement periods should recognize a liability for future benefits in
accordance with SFAS No. 106, "Employers' Accounting for Postretirement Benefits
Other Than Pensions," (if, in substance, a postretirement benefit plan exists)
or Accounting Principles Board ("APB") Opinion No. 12, "Omnibus Opinion--1967"
(if the arrangement 1is, in substance, an individual deferred compensation
contract). Entities should recognize the effects of applying this Issue through
either (a) a change in accounting principle through a cumulative-effect
adjustment to retained earnings or to other components of equity or net assets
in the statement of firancial position as of the beginning of the year of
adoption or (b) a change in accounting principle through retrospective
application to all prior periods. EITF 06-4 is effective for the Company on
January 1, 2008. The Company does not believe the adoption of EITF 06-4 will
have a material impact on its financial position, results cf operations or cash
flows.

In September 2006, the FASB ratified the consensus reached on EITF 06-5,
"Accounting for Purchases of Life Insurance--Determining the Amount That Could
Be Realized in Accordance with FASB Technical Bulletin No. 85-4, Accounting for
Purchases of Life Insurance" ("EITF 06-5"). EITF 06-5 states that a policyholder
should consider any additional amounts included in the contractual terms of the
insurance policy other than the cash surrender value in determining the amount
that could be realized under the insurance contract. EITF 06-5 also states that
a policyhrolder should determine the amount that could be realized under the life
insurance contract assuming the surrender of an individual-life by
individual-life policy (or certificate by certificate in a group policy). EITF
06-5 is effective for the Company on January 1, 2008. The Company does not
believe the adoption of EITF 06-5 will have a material impact on its financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.
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In March 2007, <cthe FASB ratified the consensus reached on EITF 06-10,
"Accounting for Collateral Assignment Split-Dollar Life Insurarce Arrangements"
("EITF 06-10"). The postretirement aspect of this EITF is substantially similar
to EITF 06-4 discussed above and requires that an employer recognize a liability
for the postretirement benefit related to a collateral assignment split-dollar
life insurance arrangement in accordance with either FASB Statement No. 106 or
APB Opinion No. 12, as appropriate, if the employer has agreed to maintain a
life insurance policy during the employee's retirement or provide the emplcyee
with a death benefit based on the substantive agreement with the employee. In
addition, a consensus was reached that an employer should recognize and measure
an asset based on the nature and substance of the collateral assignment
split-dollar life insurance arrangement. EITF 06-10 is effective for the Company
on January 1, 2008. The Company does not believe the adoption of EITF 06-10 will
have a material impact on its financial position, results of operations or cash
flows.

Accounting for Income Tax Benefits of Dividends on Share-Based Payment Awards -
In June 2007, the FASB ratified the consensus reached by the BITF with respect
to EITF 06-11, "Accounting for Income Tax Benefits of Dividenés on Share-Based
Payment Awards" ("EITF 06-11"). Under EITF 06-11, a realized ircome tax benefit
from dividends or dividend equivalents that are charged to retained earnings and
are paid to employees for equity-classified nonvested equity shares, nonvested
equity share units and outstanding equity share options should be recognized as
an increase in additional paid-in capital. This EITF is to be applied
prospectively tc the income tax benefits that result £rom dividends on
equity-classified employee share-based payment awards that are declared
beginning in 2008, and interim pericds within those fiscal years. Early
application 1is permitted. The Company does not believe the adoption of EITF
06-11 will have a material impact on its financial position, results of
operaticns or cash flows.

Business Combinations - In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141(R),
"Business Combinations," ("SFAS 141(R)") which replaces SFAS 141. SFAS 141 (R)
establishes principles and requirements for how an acquirer 1in a business
combination recognizes and measures in its financial statements the identifiable
assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, and any controlling interest;
recognizes and measures goodwill acquired in the business combination or a gain
from a bargain purchase; and determines what information to disclose to enable
users of the financial statements to evaluate the nature and financial effects
of the business combination. FAS 141(R) is effective for acquisitions by the
Company taking place on or after January 1, 2009. Early adoption is prohibited.
Accordingly, a calendar year-end company is required to record and disclose
business combinations following existing accounting guidance until January 1,
2009, The Company will assess the impact of SFAS 141(R) if and when a future
acquisition occurs.
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NOTE 19 - GRANDSOUTH BANCCRPORATION (PARENT COMPANY CMLY)
December 31,

(Dollars in thousands)
Condensed Balance Sheets

Assets
[ 07 =) 2 $ 343 S 350
Investment in banking subsidiary ................ 28,447 25,799
Due from subsidiary ......civviiiiiriinineiinniaa, 968 848
Investment in capital trust ..................... 247 247
Deferred tax @SSe€L .........iiiennincnonnennennaan 787 549
Total @SSeLsS ...ttt ittt i i e, $30,792 $27,793
Liabilities
Other liabilities ..........iviiiiniiinennennnnn. $ 78 $ 76
Junior subordinated debt ..........iiiiiiiiaan 8,247 8,247
Shareholders!' equity ..........0.iiiieiiiiniinannn 22,467 19,470
Tctal liabilities and shareholders' equity ... $30,792 $27,793
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005

Condensed Statements of Income

Income
<S> <C> <C> <C>
Dividends received from banking subsidiary ............ ... ... 0 .. $ 900 $ - $ -
Other IMCOME ...ttt ittt aa e e 18 12 -
TOLAl AMCOME ..ttt i et i ettt it it i e e s 918 12 -
Expenses
INCEreSt EXPENEE ..ttt i iatrtenonsnennnnoneeneneaseseaonaeensoneneess 599 455 320
OLheY EXPeNSES ...ttt ittt i et tiaae ittt e e B4 76 67
TOLALl @XPEMSES . ittt it teintaie i tae e ctiea s iiaen e e 683 571 387
Income befcre income taxes and equity in
undistributed earnings of banking subsidiary .................. . ..., 235 (559) (387)
Income tax benefit ................... e e i e e e (238) (188} (142)
Equity in undistributed earnings of banking subsidiary .................. 2,326 3,631 2,806
0= 5 o o o] 1= $ 2,799 $ 3,260 $ 2,361
</TABLE>
47
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<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

2007

Condensed Statements of Cash Flows
Operating activities
<S> <C>
Net income ........... O I $ 2
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net
cash preovided {(used) by operating activities

Deferred income taxes ........... et eararsenteat e cce e s (238)
Other liabilities .................... . ... e e e -
Share-based compensation ............. ittt 121
Increase in due from subsidiary ......... . ..ttt {120)
Equity in undistributed net income of
banking subsidiary . ...ttt i e e e e, N (2,326)
Net cash provided provided by (used for)
operating activities ........ .. ... . i i i i e 236
Investing activities
Investment in banking subsidiary ........ .. ... i i i e i e -
Investment in capital BrUSE .. ...ttt iiiiaiiiae i it e e -
Net cash used for investing activities ....................... . -
Financing activities
Proceeds of issuance of junior subcordinated debentures ....................... -
Proceeds from other borrowings .......... .. i it -
Repayments of other borrowings ........c.iiiiiiiiiin ittt ioeenuieereneennnnannn -
Exercise OF StOCK OPLIONS .ttt vttt ittt itetieinaaaeeenenennnnennes 25
Cash dividends DI ...ttt ittt ittt ettt et e et e (268)
Cash paid in lieu of fractional shares .............. it iiierernuinnnnnaan -
Net cash {used for) provided by financing activities ............ (243)
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents ......................... RSN . (7)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning ......... ...t iiitinernnnnnnnnnnnnn 350
Cash and cash equivalents, ending ......... ...ttt nnnnanannn .. $ 343
Supplemental Schedule of Non-Cash Investing and Financing Activities
Dividends declared DUL UNPAIA ..t i ittt ittt et tiis i taet it e e e S 69
Subordinated debentures converted into common StOCK ....... ...t $ -
Stock Aividend . ... e e e e e e e e S -
</TABLE>
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(175)
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{111)

Years Ended December 31,

{Dollars in thousands)

<C>
$ 2,361

(132)
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PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATICN
Item 1. Financial Statements
GRANDSCUTH BANCORPORATICN
Consolidated Balance Sheets
<TABLE>
<CAPTICN>
(Unaudited)
March 31, December 31,
2008 2007
{(Dollars in thousands)
Assets
<S> <C> <C>
Cash and AUe FrOM DamKE . ittt ittt it ettt ettt ettt te et aensanenseeaeneesonaennns $ 5,648 $ 4,585
Federal funds sold ......... ..t nnns et i e e i e e s 8,861 4,420
Cash and cash equivalents ...ttt itiir ettt et e anaa i aa e 14,509 9,005
Securities available-for-8aLe . ...ttt ittt ittt e e e e e e e 56,530 59,567
Other investments, at cost ...... e e e e e et e e e e e e e 1,071 765
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses $3,071 for 2008 and
$2,943 for 2007 ........ T 265,568 259,786
Premises and equipment, MeL . .... .. ...t i i i e T 4,880 4,896
Bank owned life IMSUTEmCE ...ttt i it i i i i e et et e e, 4,799 4,753
Assets acquired in settlement of loans ..................... e e e e e 107 1,752
Interest receivable ........ et e et e e e e 2,235 2,313
Deferred InCOME LAXES .. ...ttt inenn i inennenneneensnns et e e i e s 472 544
[ 1m T Yo L 5 T 0 737 737
Other assets e e e ettt e ettt e e e, 598 1,008
Total assets ....... e T $351,706 $345,124
Liabilities
Deposits
Noninterest bearing .......... e et e e ettt e, $ 16,327 $ 15,037
Interest bearing ... . i i e e e ettt e e e 290,318 290,602
e o= B e 1= o T - N 306,645 305,639
[ ool o i o = 1 <o B o e & I <X £~ P 5,000 5,000
Long-term Federal Home Loan Bank advances .................... e e e s 5,000 -
Junior subordinated debenLULES . ...ttt i i i s et e 8,247 8,247
INCEYeSE PaYADY e . it e i e e e e e i i e e e e e 651 754
Other liabilities ............. .. iiieen..n e e e e e e e e 2,972 3,017
Total liabilaties ...t i i i e e i e e e e e e e s 328,515 322,657
Shareholders' equity
Commen stock - no par value; 20,000,000 shares authorized; issued and
ocutstanding - 3,381,488 at March 31, 2008 and
3,381,488 at December 31, 2007 ...t tti ittt e e e et e e 19,234 19,200
RELAINEEA BAYTIIMGS + v ittt ittt s ettt e et et ottt taea st ettt ettt 3,627 3,083
Accumulated other comprehensive income ........ P e e 330 184
Total shareholders’' equUItY ... ...ttt i it ittt e s et it 23,191 22,487
Total liabilities and shareholders' equUity . ...ttt ittt iinn ittt enneennnn $351,706 $345,124

</TABLE>

The accompanying

statements.

UST Seqg. No.

327

notes are an integral part of these consolidated £financial
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GRANDSOUTH BANCORPCRATION
Consolidated Statements of Income
<TABLE>

<CAPTION>

Interest income
<S>
Loans, including fees .......... .0t e e
Investment securities
5 Y < U
o o= B -1 o 3 OO .
Dividends ....... ...ttt e e e e e e e
Other, principally federal funds s0ld ...........i it iiironeneneenroneannnnns

Total interest income .............. e e e e et e e e
Interest expense
DT T - 1o = I e

Federal Home Loan Bank AGVANCES .ttt uu it it inen ittt ettt atenesaneaannenenss
Junior subordinated debt ....... ... i e e e e

Noninterest income

Service charges on deposit aCCOUNES ... ... ittt ittt e e ieaeaaaans
Other income ............cciivenvnnnns e e et
Total noninterest INCOME ... itii i iiie i ens . e te i

Noninterest expenses
Salaries and employee DeMELIES .ttt ennn ittt e e i e
Occupancy and equUiPmMent ... ... ...ttt et e
Data ProCcesSing .....ieeeneneenneeeiennnn
Insurance expense ......
Professional services
Other expense .........civvieunnnes

Total noninterest eXpenses ................ et e etae et aae e

Income befcre income taxes .........
INCOME LAX EXPEIISE . ottt ittt ttee et tan e tieasananoseiaee s ieeeeieteeeeeesnnnnnnnnnens

D 1 VT T T e

Per share
Net income ...........cciiiininiiiinennnnn. e m et ettt e
Net income, assuming GilULiOm ...ttt it ettt ettt ettt e tee et
Cash dividends GeClared ... ...ttt ittt ettt e ettt et
</TABLE>

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.
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(Unaudited)

Three Months Ended

March 31,

2007

(Dollars in thousands,

<Cn
S5,

771

617

except per share)

<C>
$5,640

457
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GRANDSOUTH BANCORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Changes in
Income

Shareholders'

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

«8>

Balance, January 1, 2007 ......etinninrinnenannn

Comprehensive income:
Net income .

Unrealized holding gains and losses
on available-for-sale securities
arising during the period, net of
income taxes of $24

Total other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Share-based compensation
Cash dividend declared, $.02 per share ..........

Balance, March 31, 2007

Balance, January 1, 2008 .......cevieivunrmeennn.
Comprehensive income:
Net InCOME . i\t iii i ittt ettt eanns
Unrealized hclding gains and losses
on available-for-sale securities
arising during the period, net of
income taxes of $76

Total other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Share-based compensation ...............c...unnnn

Cash dividend declared, $.02 per share ..........
Balance, March 31, 2008 ............ ..ot
</TABLE>

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these

statements.
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Equity and Comprehensive

(Unaudited)

Common Stack

------------ Accumulated
Number of Retained Other Comprehensive
Shares Amount Earnings Income (Loss) Total
(Dollars in thousands, except per share)
<C> <C> <C> <C> <C>
3,373,846 $ 19,054 $ 554 $ (138) $ 19,470
- - 698 - 698
- - - 47 47
- - - - 17
- - - - 745
- 26 - - 26
- - (67) - (67)
3,373,846 $ 19,080 $ 1,185 $ (31) $ 20,174
3,381,488 $ 19,200 $ 3,083 $ 184 $ 22,467
- - 612 - 612
- - - 146 146
- - - - 146
- - - - 758
- 34 - - 34
- - (68) - (68)
S 31,627 $ 310 $ 23,191

consolidated financial
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GRANDSOUTH BANCORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
<TABLE>

<CAPTION>

{Unaudited)

Three Months Ended

March 31,

2007

{Dollars in thousands)

Operating activities

<S> <C>
DY I o o 11 s 612
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net
cash provided by operating activities
Provision fOr 10an lOSSeS ...ttt tin ettt ettt e e PR 255
Depreciation .......... N S 82
Securities accretion and premium amortization (7)
Gain on sale of premises and €QUIPMENL ... ..ottt ittt tneeeraeneeeranraneeanns (14)
Loss on sale of assets acquired in settlement of loans ...............ciiiiuinann. 53
Increase in cash surrender value of bank owned life insurance ................... . (46)
DECrease iN OLNEY @SSEES . et i ettt ettt ittt ees ittt iiianaiiaaeeeenanns 486
(Decrease) increase in other liabilities .......... .. . i, (216)
Increase in deferred taxX a@SSELS ... ...ttt e e e e e (4)
Share-based COMPENSALION . .ttt i e vttt e ittt tanetaeannennnas 34
Net cash provided by operating activities ........ ... .. i, 1,235
Investing activities
Purchases of securities available-for-sale ......... ... . .. . . . i e (959)
Principal paydcwns of available-for-sale mortgage-backed
investment SE@CUKILIES ... ...ttt ittt ettt et i e P P P 1,225
Maturities and calls of securities available-for-sale ..........ci i iiiiiieninnnnn 3,000
Purchases of other inveszments .......... e e et e e e e (306)
Net increase in loans made LO CUSLOMEYS . ...ttt ittt eonnneoneennnsonanan e (6,037)
Purchases of premises and EQUIPMENEL ...ttt vt im e ittt e et aeaeaneene e aanennn (71)
Proceeds from sales of premises and equipment ........... ... ...ttt 19
Proceeds from sale of assets acquired in settlement of loans ....................... e 1,392
Net cash used by investing aCtivities . ... ...ttt it (1,737)
Financing activities
Net increase in deposits ... ..ot i i i e i e e e i e, e 1,006
Increase in long-term Federal Home Loan Bank GAVANCES . ... .uit it tiennineionanaansonenas 5,000
Cash dividends Paid ... .. ...ttt ittt i it i et i e e et e -
Net cash provided by financing activities ............ .. 0ot TN e 6,006
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ......... .ttt ittt nnnirninrnnnenanenns 5,504
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of pericd ...... ... . . i i i i i 2,005
Cash and cash equivalents, end of pericd .. .... ..t e i e $ 14,509
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information
Cash paid during the period for
8 2 o = o $ 3,458
INCOME LAKES .ottt it inenninnnintoeeoneneesnenenns e e s e 737
Noncash investing and financing activities:
Other comprehensSive INCOME . ...ttt i i i ittt ettt ettt et e et e e 146
Transfers of lcans to assets acquired in settlement of loans ........................ -
Cash dividends declared and unpaid . ...... ... ...ttt e i e 68
</TABLE>
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consclidated financial
statements.
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255
59
(2)

(8,128)
832
3,015
(36)
(16,774)
(94)
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GRANDSOUTH BANCORPORATION
NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION

GrandSouth Bancorpecration (the ‘"Company") is a South Carolina corporation
organized in 2000 for the purpose cof being a holding company for GrandScuth Bank
(the "Bank"). On October 2, 2000, pursuant to a Plan of Exchange approved by the
shareholders, all of the outstanding shares of $2.50 par value common stock of
the Bank were exchanged for shares of noc par value common stock of the Company.
The Company presently engages in nc business other than that of owning the Bank,
has no employees and operates as one business segment. The Company is regulated
by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (the "Federal Reserve").
The unaudited consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the
Company and the Bank. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions
have been eliminated in consclidation.

The Bank was incorporated in 1998 and operates as a South Carolina chartered
bank providing full banking services to its customers. The Bank is subject to
regulation by the South Carolina State Board of Financial Institutions and the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATICN

A summary of significant accounting policies and the audited financial
statements for 2007 are included in GrandSouth Bancorporation's Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007 filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission.

The accompanying interim financial statements in this report are unaudited. In
the opinion of management, all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring
adjustments) necessary to present a fair statement of the results for the
interim period have been made. The results of operations for any interim pericd
are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for an entire year.
These interim financial statements should be read in conjunction with the annual
financial statements and notes thereto included in the 2007 Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current
presentatiocn. These reclassifications have no effect on previously reported
shareholders' equity or net income.

NOTE 3 - NON-PERFORMING LOANS

As of March 31, 2008, there were $3,620 in nonaccrual lcans, no loans 90 or more
days past due and still accruing interest and no restructured loans.

NOTE 4 - LONG-TERM DEBT

Late in the first quarter of 2008, the Bank borrowed $5,000 from the Federal
Home Loan Bank of Atlanta at a fixed rate of 3.42%. The debt matures on March
26, 2013.

NOTE 5 - NET INCOME PER SHARE

Net income per share is computed on the basis of the weighted average number of
commen shares outstanding in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 128, “Earnings per Share." Diluted net inccme per share is
computed by dividing net income by the sum of the weighted average number of
shares of commecn stock outstanding during each period plus the assumed exercise
of dilutive stock options using the treasury stock method.

7
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Following is a reconciliation of basic net income per share to diluted net
income per share for the three months ended March 31, 2008 and 2007.

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

Net inccme per share, basic
<S>

NUmerator - NETL IMCOME . ..t ut ittt ittt ettt eettnentnees e anasasneanensas

Denominator

Weighted average common shares issued and outstanding ...........eceeiinneneenn..

Net income per share, basic ......... . . ittt

Net income per share, assuming dilution

Numerabtor - Meb InCOmME .. ...t i ittt et ettt et i

Denominator

Weighted average common shares issued and outstanding ...........coviiiieennnn..
Effect of dilutive stock opticns ..... P e e e

ToLal ShATES ..ttt it i i i e it e e e i e s

Net income per share, assuming dilution .............cceiiiiiinnnnnns

</TABLE>

NOTE 6 -FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Company implemented Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157,
"Fair Value Measurements," ("SFAS No. 157") as required on January 1, 2008. SFAS
No. 157 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid tec transfer a liability in an orderly fashion between wmarket
participants at the measurement date (an exit price), and establishes a
framework for measuring fair value. It also establishes a three-level hierarchy
for fair wvalue measurements based wupon the transparency of inputs to the
valuation of an asset or liability as of the measurement date, eliminates the
consideration of large position discounts for financial instruments quoted in
active markets, requires consideration of the Company's creditworthiness when
valuing its liabilities, and expands disclosures about instruments measured at
fair value.

The following is a summary of the measurement attributes applicable to financial
assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

Three Months Ended

2007

(Dollars in thousands,
except per share amounts)

3,381,488
186,440

<TABLE>
<CAPTICN>
Fair Value Measurement at Reporting Date Using
Quoted Prices
in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Cbservable Unobservable
Assets Inputs
Description March 31, 2008 (Level 1) {Level 2) {Level 3)
(Dollars in thousands)
<8»> <C> <C>
Securities available-for-sale $ - $ 56,530
</TABLE>

Pricing for the Ccmpany's securities available-for-sale is obtained from an
independent third-party that uses a process that may incorporate current market
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prices, benchmark yields, broker/dealer quotes, issuer spreads, two-sided
markets, benchmark securities, bids, offers, other reference data and industry
and eccnomic events that a market participant would be expected to use in
valuing the securities. Not all of the inputs listed apply to each individual
security at each measurement date. The independent third party assigns specific
securities 1into an "asset class" for the purpose of assigning the applicable
level of the fair value hierarchy used to value the securities. The techniques
used after adoption of SFAS No. 157 are consistent with the methods used
previously.

No cumulative effect adjustments were required upon initial application of SFAS
No. 157. Available-for-sale securities continue to be measured at fair value
with unrealized gains and losses recorded in other comprehensive income.

The following is a summary of the measurement attributes applicable to assets
and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Fair Value Measurement at Reporting Date Using
Quoted Prices
in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
Descripticn March 31, 2008 {Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(Dollars in thousands)
<S> <C> <C> <C>
Collateral dependent impaired loans $ - $ - $ 2,626
</TABLE>

Collateral dependent impaired loans consist of nonaccrual 1loans and potential
problem lcans for which the underlying collateral provides the sole repayment
source. The Company measures the amount of the impairment fecr such loans by
determining the difference between the fair value of the underlying collateral
and the recorded amount of the loan. The fair value of the underlying collateral
generally 1is based on appraisals performed in accordance with applicable
appraisal standards by independent appraisers engaged by the Ccmpany. In many
cases, management updates values reflected in older appraisals obtained at the
time of loan origination and already in the Company's possessicn using its own
knowledge, judgments and assumptions about current market and cther conditions
in lieu of obtaining a new independent appraisal. If the fair value of the
collateral is less than the recorded amount of the loan, a valuation allowance
is established for the difference; otherwise, no valuation allowance is
established. The valuation allowance for impaired 1loans is a component of the
allowance for loan lcsses. Periodically, management reevaluates the fair value
of the collateral and makes adjustments to the wvaluation allowance as
appropriate. However, if the fair value of the collateral subsequently recovers
in value such that it exceeds the recorded loan amount, no adjustment is made in
the loan's value for the excess. The amount of the valuation allowance for the
Company's collateral dependent impaired loans was $1,179 as of March 31, 2008.

In February 2008, the Financial Accounting Standards Board Staff issued FASB
Staff Position No. FAS 157-2 ("FSP 157-2") which delays for cne year the
effective date of the application of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 157 "Fair Value Measurements" ("SFAS No. 157") to nonfinancial assets and
liabilities, except for items that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in
the financial statements on a recurring basis (at least annually). In acccrdance
with FSP 157-2, the Company has only partially applied SFAS No. 157. The major
categories of assets or liabilities disclosed at fair value in the financial
statements for which the Company has not applied the provisions of SFAS No. 157
under the provisions of FSP 157-2 are goodwill and assets acquired in settlement
of loans.

The Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 159 "The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities," ("SFAS No. 159" or the "Statement") which was effective
for the Company as of January 1, 2008. Under the provisions of SFAS No. 159,
entities may choose, but are not required, to measure many financial instruments
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and certain other items at their fair values, with changes in the fair values of
those instruments reported in earnings. The Company has not elected to measure
at fair value any financial instruments under the provisions of SFAS No. 159.
The adoption of the Statement had no effect on the Company's financial
statements.

NOTE 7 - VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITY

On May 3, 2006, the Company sponsored the creation of a Delaware statutory
trust, GrandSouth Capital Trust I (the "Trust"), and is the sole owner of the
$247 in common securities issued by the Trust. On May 10, 2006, the Trust issued
$8,000 in floating rate capital securities. The proceeds of this issuance, and
the amount of the Company's investment in the common securities, were used tc
acquire $8,247 principal amount of the Company's floating rate Jjunior
subordinated debt securities due 2036 ("Debentures"), which securities, and the
accrued interest thereon, now constitute the Trust's sole assets. The interest
rate associated with the debt securities, and the distribution rate on the
common securities of the Trust, :Is adjustable quarterly at 3 month LIBOR plus
185 basis points, and was 4.54% as of March 31, 2008. The Company may defer
interest payments on the Debentures for up to twenty consecutive quarters, but
not beyond the stated maturity date of the Debentures. In the event that such
interest payments are deferred by the Company, the Trust may defer distributions
on the capital and common securities. In such an event, the Company would be
restricted in its ability to pay dividends on its common stock and perform under
other obligations that are not senior to the Debentures.

The Debentures are redeemable at par at the cption of the Company, in whole or
in part, on any interest payment date on or after June 23, 2011. Prior to that
date, the Debentures are redeemable at par plus a premium of up to 4.40% of par
upon the occurrence of certain events that would have a negative tax effect on
the Trust or that would cause it to be required to be registered as an
investment company under the Investment Company Act of 1940 or that would cause
trust preferred securities not to be eligible to be treated as Tier 1 capital by
the Federal Reserve Board. Upon repayment or redempticn of the Dzbentures, the
Trust will use the proceeds of the transaction tc redeem an equivalent amount of
capital securities and common securities. The Trust's cbligations under the
capital securities are unconditicnally guaranteed by the Company. In accordance
with Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation 46(R), the Trust is not
consolidated in the Company's financial statements.

NCTE 8 -NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 160 “"Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements, an
amendment of ARB No. 51" ("SFAS No. 160"). SFAS No. 160 is effective for years
beginning after December 31, 2008, is to be applied prospectively with
retrospective presentation and disclosure requirements for comparative financial
statements. Early adoption is prohibited. SFAS No. 160 seeks to improve the
relevance, comparability and transparency of financial information that a
reporting entity provides in its consolidated financial statements by separately
identifying and reporting several financial statement components into amounts
that are attributable to the reporting entity or that are attributable to
noncontrolling interests. SFAS No. 160 also specifies the conditions under which
an entity is required to deconsolidate its interest in a subsidiary. The Company
currently has no consolidated subsidiaries that are not wholly owned nor are any
transactions contemplated that would result in such a condition. Therefore, it
is expected that the adoption of SFAS No. 160 in January 2009 will have no
effect on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

10
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PART 1 - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Financial Statements

GRANDSOUTH BANCORPORATION
Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31,
2007

(Docllars in thousands)

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
(Unaudited)
June 30,
2008
Assets
<S> <C»>
Cash and due £rom banKs ...ttt ittt ineeteneroeenneaaanss FS Y $ 10,647
Federal funds SOLd ... .ttt ittt ittt ittt ittt e e it e e 500
Cash and cash eqQUIVAlentS ... ...ttt tnitet et ittt iriiateateeeeroennnnnnas 11,147
Securities available fOr SAle ...t iite ettt ittt eeeneeenoseentoeeotoaeeeensttoneeennsss 53,345
Other investments, &L COSL ... irein it innnnennnnernns et ece e e .. 1,926
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses of $3,246 for 2008 and
$2,943 FOT 2007 .t ittt ittt e e e et e e et e e 284,632
Premises and equipment, net ............... e e e e e e [N 4,897
Bank owned life insurance ...... ... ... i i i e e i e i e e, 4,846
Assets acquired in settlement Of LOANS ... ..ttt ittt ittt iiienennineer ot einnnnan 347
Interest receivable ......uii ittt e e e e e e 2,159
Deferred InmCOmME LaAXES ...ttt ittt eet ittt ittt i ea ettt enneeeennennsonns 704
[T T Yo 5 T e PN e 737
Other assets ................ e e e e e e e e e 559
TOLAL @SSEES .ttt ittt sttt e eeaaoan e saaanraeaesssnnns e $ 365,299
Liabilities
Deposits
NONIinteresT DeATIMg ...ttt ittt ittt it st et tesnesnsneonennaennenennn PR $ 17,511
INterest DEATING Lttt ittt ittt ettt ettt e e e e e, 283,531
e o= 0 = o o - B 1 o = 301,042
Short-term borYoWings ... ...ttt ittt it ettt iiein e onnes e 39
Long-term Federal Home Loan Bank adVamCesS . ...ttt ittt ineeteeeeeeeneenenennaneananes 29,000
Junior subordinated GeDENtUIES ... .. ... .iitetittiinttnenneeeeenmaneesaneeseennnnnnnannns 8,247
Interest payable ... ... .. . ittt i e e e e T 635
Other 1iabilities ...ttt i i et ettt ettt et e e e 3,018
Total liabilities ...ttt i e e e e e e e 341,981
Shareholders' equity
Common stock - no par value; 20,000,000 shares authorized; issued and
outstanding - 3,381,488 at June 30, 2008 and
3,381,488 at December 31, 2007 ............. I 19,253
Retained @arnings . .u.titiiiiiiiii ittt ittt et e e e e [P 4,187
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) ............. erettsenesanoasasasanaransas (122)
Total shareholders' equity .................... e e e e e 23,318
Total liabilities and shareholders' EQUILY ... iviiiinnn i iene e tieeeeeeein e $ 365,299
</TABLE>
The accompanying nctes are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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GRANDSOUTH BANCORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Income

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

Interest income

<85

Loans, including fees ...............

Investment securities

Taxable

NOontaxable . ...ttt e i e

Dividends

Other, principally federal funds sold

Total

interest INCOME ... ... ittt i it

Interest expense

Deposits

Federal Home Loan Bank advances ............ocoviinienveennnennns
Junior subordinated debt ....... ... i e

Noninterest income
Service charges on deposit accounts ............c..iiiirenanenn
Gain on sale of securities available for sale .............. PN

Other income ......... e e

Noninterest expense
Salaries and employee benefits ............. ...ttt
Occupancy and equipment ..................... e e e e
Data processing ......... PP

Insurance

EXPEIISE & ittt e,

Postage and supplies ............cciieenunnn I
Professional services ....... e e e e e i e e e,
Real estate and 1oan ... ...ttt eennnnneitneernoneennanenn

Other ...

Income before income taxes ....... T
INCOME LAX @XDEIMSE ... ittt ittt ittt ieet it tteneeaneneeaeaneaoaaanas

Net income ...

Per share

Net inCOme ... ..ttt ittt ettt ee e e
Net income, assuming dilution ........ e e e e e
Cash dividends declared .......... ...ttt nennnninnn

</TABLE>

The accompanying notes are an integral

statements.

part of these
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consclidated

{(Unaudited)
Period Ended June 30,

2008 2007 2008 2007
(Dollars in thousands, except per share)

<C=> <C> <C> <C>
$ 5,437 $ 5,924 $11,208 $11,

574 467 1,121

143 68 284

23 10 37

79 167 127
6,256 6,636 12,847 12,
2,726 3,303 5,864 6,

187 - 267

93 147 230
3,006 3,450 6,361 6,
3,250 3,186 6,486 6,

460 170 715
2,790 3,016 5,771 S,

125 110 235

16 - 16

67 70 143

208 180 394
1,296 1,308 2,652 2,

197 240 407

127 132 271

134 140 200

43 70 116

114 178 237

31 38 133

80 63 201
2,022 2,169 4,237 4,
976 1,027 1,928 2,

349 372 689
$ 627 $ 655 $ 1,239 $1,
$ 0.19 $ 0.19 $ 0.37 $ O
0.18 0.18 0.35 ¢]
0.02 0.02 0.04 0

financial

564
964

117
17
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GRANDSOUTE BANCORPORATICN

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders' Equity and Comprehensive
Income
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
(Unaudited)
Common Stock
Number of Retained
Shares Amount Earnings
(Dollars in thousands,
<S> <C> <C» <Cx
Balance, January 1, 2007 .....iieinrinennnnennn 3,373,846 $ 19,054 $ 554
Comprehensive income:
Net Income ........ .ttt innenennnn - - 1,353
Unrealized holding gains and losses
on available feor sale securities
arising during the period, net of
income taxes of $138 ....... e e - - -

Total comprehensive income ........... - - -
Share-based compensation ............... .. ..., - 55 -
Cash dividends declared, $.04 per share ........ - - (134)
Balance, June 30, 2007 .. ...ttt eenrorronens 3,373,846 $ 19,1098 $ 1,773
Balance, January 1, 2008 .......cciiininnvnnnnnens 3,381,488 $ 19,200 S 3,083
Comprehensive income:

Net IinCOME ......iiiiiin et nannees - - 1,239
Unrealized helding gains and losses

on available for sale securities

arising during the period, net of

income taxes of $151 ............. .. ... - - -
Less: Reclassification adjustment

for gain on sale of securities

available for sale, net of

income taxes of §5 .......... e e . - - -

Other comprehensive income .............

Total comprehensive income ........... - - -
Share-based compensation ..........c.cuoveuvesns . - 53 -
Cash dividends declared, $.04 per share ........ - - {(135)
Balance, June 30, 2008 .....c.iiiiinnrnrnnnnrnnnn 3,381,488 $ 19,253 S 4,187
</TABLE>
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consclicdated financial

statements.
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«C>
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{268)

s (406)
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(295)
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GRANDSOUTH BANCORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
<TABLE>

<CAPTION>

{Unaudited)

Six Months Ended

2008

June 30,

2007

(Dollars in thousands)

Operating activities
<S> <C»>
Net INCOME . ... ienenenenans FS P $ 1,239
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net
cash provided by operating activities

Provision fOr 108N 1OSSES .ttt un ittt ittt ettt et e e e e e 715
DT o o =T o - o 1 + LN 166
Net securities acCrefiCn .........iviineiiiinnennnnneann e e et (31)
Gain on sale of securities available for sale ............iiniiiiiiiiiinennnnnnnnnnn (16)
Gain on sale of premises and equipment .......... . G et tes e (26)
Loss (gain) on sale of assets acquired in settlemenc of loans .......iiiiiiiniannn 53
Increase in cash surrender value of bank owned life insurance .................... (93)
Decrease (increase) in oOther assets .. .... .. ... iiiitintinneteeennnneeeeaannnennns 601
Decrease in other liabilities ... ...u.eutininiietiieneenrininneenenas e (186)
Increase in deferred tax assets .................... e e e e (4)
Share-based compensation ....... P b et e e e ettt e e e 53

Net cash provided by operating acrivities ....... e e et e e e 2,471

Investing activities

Purchases of securities available for sale ........ ... iiiiirireiiiiienanneeiinnnnns (3,199)

Principal paydowns of available for sale mortgage- backed
Investment SeCUrities ... ... .. i e e et e 2,976
Maturities and calls of securities available fOr SAle .. .....'eteiiiitetmneeeee e 5,000
Proceeds of sales of securities available fOr Sale . .........'iiuiiteeennnneernnnnnnnneenn 1,030
Purchases ©f Other InVesStmMentS . ..., ... ..ottt ittt ettt ettt te e (1,161)
Net increase in loans made £O CUSLOMELS . ...ttt e tetne st iemaeeee e (25,601)
Purchases of premises and equipment .. ...ttt ittt ittt it e e (182)
Proceeds from sales of premises and equipment ..............cccioiuian.. S 41
Proceeds frcm sale of assets acquired in settlement OFf lOANS . ... vvrimnnnenesnnnnnennn 1,392
Net cash used by investing activities .........citinireiiiiininnennteennnnnn (19,704)

Financing activities

Net (decrease) increase in depoSits . .........c.iviiiiiinnnnnnn. ettt ne et atoannn (4,597)
Decrease in SHOYCL-Lerm DOrIOWINgS ..ttt ettt ittt et ettt e et e e e et e e (4,961)
Increase in long-term Federal Home Loan Bank advances ............ e e e 25,000
Cash dividends paid ................ e e ettt e et e e e (67)
Net cash provided by financing activities .............c.iiiriiiniinenn.. [N 19,375
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ............c.cviiiiimnennnmeenaneann. e 2,142
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of Period .. ... ..uuiiuintinettene e ine e 9,005
Cash and cash equivalents, end Of Period .. .. ..tuuttitint it it et e e e $ 11,147

</TABLE>

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.
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GRANDSOUTH BANCORPORATION

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (continued)
<TABLE>

<CAPTION>

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Informaticn
Cash paid during the period for
<S>
Interest
Income taxes
Noncash investing and financing activities
Other comprehensive income {loss)
Transfers of loans to assets acquired in settlement of loans
Dividends declared but unpaid
</TABLE>

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated

statements.

GRANDSOUTH BANCORPORATION
NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION

GrandScuth Bancorporation (the "Company") 1is a South Carolina

(Unaudited)
Six Months Ended
June 30,
2008

(Dollars in thousands)

2007

<C> <C>
........................ $ 6,480 $ 6,584
........................ 1,077 655
........................ (306) (268)
........................ 40 335
........................ 68 67

financial

corporazion

organized in 2000 for the purpose cof being a holding company for GrandSouth Bank

(the "Bank") .
sharehclders,
the Bank were

On Cctober 2,
all of the outstanding

2000, pursuant to a Plan of Exchange approved by the
shares of $2.50 par value common stock of
exchanged for shares of no par value commcn stock of the Company.

The Company presently engages in no business other than that of owning the Bank,

has no employees and operates as one business segment.

The Company is regulated

by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (the "Federal Reserve").

statements
intercompany

The unaudited consolidated financial
Company and the Bank. All significant
have been eliminated in consclidation.

The Bank was incorporated in 19598 and operates as a South Carolina
bank providing full banking services to its custcomers.
regulation by the South Carolina State Board of Financial
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATICON

A summary of significant accounting policies and the audited

include the accounts of the
accounts and transactions

chartered

The Bank is subject tc
Instizutions

and the

financial

statements for 2007 are included in GrandSouth Bancorporation's Annual Report on

Form 10-K for the year ended December
Exchange Commission.

31,

The accompanying interim financial
the opinion of management, all adjustments
adjustments) necessary *to present a fair

(consisting of normal
statement of the

2007 filed with the Securities

statements in this report are unaudited.

results

and

In
recurring
for the

interim period have been made. The results of operations for any interim period
are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for an entire year.
These interim financial statements should be read in conjunction with the annual

financial statements and notes thereto

Form 10-K.

Certain pricr period amounts have been reclassified
presentation. These reclassifications
shareholders' equity or net income.

UST Seqg. No. 327
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NOTE 3 - NON-PERFORMING LOANS

As of June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, there were $1,425 and $1,127 in
nonaccrual loans, respectively. There were no loans 90 or more days past due and
still accruing interest and no restructured loans as of either date.

NOTE 4 - LONG-TEZERM DEBT

During the first six months of 2008, the Bank borrowed 529,000 from the Federal
Home Loan Bank of Atlanta. These borrowings were fixed rate advances with a
weighted average interest rate of 3.62% and a weighted average maturity of 3.33
years.

NOTE 5 - NET INCOME PER SHARE

Net income per share is computed on the basis of the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 128, "EBarnings per Share." Diluted net income per share is
computed by dividing net income by the sum of the weighted average number of
shares of common stock outstanding during each pericd plus the assumed exercise
of dilutive stock options using the treasury steck method.

Following 1is a reconciliation of basic net income per share to diluted net
income per share for the three and six months periods ended June 30, 2008 and

2007.
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
(Unaudited)
Period Ended June 30,
Three Months Six Months
2008 2007 2008 2007
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)
<S> <C> <C> <C> <C>
Net income per share, basic
Numerator - net income ...........iveriiniiinennnnaan $ 627 $ 655 $ 1,239
Denominator
Weighted average common shares
issued and cutstanding ........ .0t 3,381,488 3,373,848 3,381,488 3,373,846
Net income per share, basic ......... ..o S .19 $ .19 S .37 $ .40

Net income per share, assuming dilution

NUmMerator - NET INCOME ..t vt it ertnnonenssneeennnnssn $ 655 S 1,239 $ 1,353
Denominator

Weighted average common shares

issued and outstanding ............ .. .. i 3,381,488 3,373,846 3,381,488 3,373,846

Effect of dilutive stock options ...........cocueeua.. 184,971 282,318 186,949 310,754

Total Shares ........ciiiiiininimeneennnns 3,566,459 3,656,164 3,566,437 3,684,600

Net income per share, assuming dilution .......... $ .18 $ .18 S .35 $ .37

</TABLE- T e e

-g8-
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NOTE & -FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Tne Company implemented Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157,
"Fair Value Measurements," ("SFAS No. 157") as required on January 1, 2008. SFAS
No. 157 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly fashion between market
participants at the measurement date (an exit price), and establishes a
framework for measuring fair value. It also establishes a three-level hierarchy
for fair wvalue measurements based upon the transparency of inputs to the
valuation of an asset cr liability as of the measurement date, eliminates the
consideration of large position discounts for Ffinancial instruments quoted in
active markets, reguires consideration of the Company's creditworthiness when
valuing its liabilities, and expands disclosures about instruments measured at
fair value.

The following is a summary of the measurement attributes applicable to financial
assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Fair Value Measurement at Reporting Date Using
Quoted Prices
in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
Description June 30, 2008 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(Dollars in thousands)
<S> <C> <C> <C>
Securities available for sale ............ e S - $ 53,345 $ -
</TABLE>

Pricing for the Company's securities available-for-sale is obtained from an
independent third-party that uses a process that may incorporate current market
prices, benchmark yields, broker/dealer quotes, issuer spreads, two-sided
markets, benchmark securities, bids, offers, other reference data and industry
and eccnomic events that a market participant would be expected to use in
valuing the securities. Not all of the inputs listed apply to each individual
security at each measurement date. The independent third party assigns specific
securities into an "asset class" for the purpose of assigning the applicable
level of the fair value hierarchy used to value the securities. The techniques
used after adoption of SFAS No. 157 are consistent with the methods used
previously.

No cumulative effect adjustments were required upon initial application of SFAS
No. 157. Available for sale securities continue to be measured at fair value
with unrealized gains and losses recorded in other comprehensive income.

The following is a summary of the measurement attributes applicable to assets
and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Fair Value Measurement at Reporting Date Using
Quoted Prices
in Active Significant
Markets for Cther Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
Description June 30, 2008 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(Dollars in thousands)
<S> <C> <C> <Cs>
Collateral dependent impaired loans ..........vevveuuenn $ - $ 677 $ -
</TABLE>

Collateral dependent impaired loans consist of nonaccrual loans and potential
problem loans for which the underlying collateral provides the sole repayment
source. The Company measures the amount of the impairment fecr such loans by

L
UST Seq. No. 327



{ Haynsworth Sinkler Boyd, P. A, is\private\sec-bank\09992\0001\gsb10¢2-08finstats.txt. 8
12/31/2008

determining the difference between the fair value of the underlying collateral
and the recorded amount of the loan. The fair value of the underlying collateral
generally is based on appraisals performed in accordance with applicable
appraisal standards by independent appraisers engaged by the Company. In many
cases, management updates values reflected in older appraisals obtained at the
time of loan originaticn and already in the Company's possession using its cwn
knowledge, judgments and assumptions about current market and other conditions
in lieu of obtaining a new independent appraisal. If the fair wvalue of the
collateral is less than the recorded amount of the loan, a valuation allowance
is established for the difference; otherwise, no wvaluation allowance is
established. The valuation allowance for impaired 1loans is a component of the
allowance for loan losses. Periodically, management reevaluates the fair value
of the collateral and wmakes adjustments to the valuation allowance as
appropriate. However, if the fair value of the collateral subsequently recovers
in value such that it exceeds the recorded loan amount, no adjustment is made in
the loan's value for the excess. The amount of the valuation allowance for the
Company's collateral dependent impaired loans was $285 as of June 30, 2008.

In February 2008, the Financial Accounting Standards Board Staff issued FASB

Staff Position No. FAS 157-2 ("FSP 157-2") which delays for one year the
effective date of the application of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 157 "Fair Value Measurements" ("SFAS No. 157") to nonfinancial assets and

liabilities, except for items that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in
the financial statements on a recurring basis {at least annually). In accordance
with FSP 157-2, the Company has only partially applied SFAS No. 157. The major
categories of assets cor liabilities disclosed at fair value in the financial
statements for which the Company has not applied the provisions of SFAS No. 157
under the provisions of FSP 157-2 are goodwill and assets acquired in settlement
of loans.

The Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 159 "The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities," ("SFAS No. 159" or the "Statement") which was effective
for the Company as of January 1, 2008. Under the provisicns of SFAS No. 159,
entities may choose, but are not required, to measure many financial instruments
and certain other items at their fair values, with changes in the fair values of
those instruments reported in earnings. The Company has not elected to measure
at fair value any firnancial instruments under the provisions of SFAS No. 159.
The adoption of the Statement had no effect on the Company's financial
statements.

NOTE 7 - VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITY

On May 3, 2006, the Company sponsored the creation of a Delaware statutory
trust, GrandSouth Capital Trust I (the "Trust"), and is the sole owner of the
$247 in common securities issued by the Trust. On May 10, 2006, the Trust issued
$8,000 in floating rate capital securities. The proceeds of this issuance, and
the amount of the Company's investment in the common securities, were used to
acquire $8,247 principal amount of the Company's floating rate junior
subordinated debt securities due 2036 ("Debentures"), which securities, and the
accrued interest thereon, now ccnstitute the Trust's sole assets. The interest
rate asscciated with the debt securities, and the distribution rate on the
common securities of the Trust, is adjustable quarterly at 3 month LIBOR plus
185 basis points, and was 4.65% as of June 30, 2008. The Company may defer
interest payments on the Debentures for up to twenty consecutive guarters, but
not beyond the stated maturity date of the Debentures. In the event that such
interest payments are deferred by the Company, the Trust may defer distributions
on the capital and common securities. In such an event, the Company would be
restricted in its ability to pay dividends on its common stock and perform under
other obligations that are not senior to the Debentures.

The Debentures are redeemable at par at the option of the Company, in whole or
in part, on any interest payment date on or after June 23, 2011. Prior to that
date, the Debentures are redeemable at par plus a premium of up to 4.40% cf par
upon the occurrence cf certain events that would have a negative tax effect on
the Trust or that would cause it to be required to be registered as an
investment company under the Investment Company Act of 1940 or that would cause

-10-
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trust preferred securities not to be eligible to be treated as Tier 1 capital by
the Federal Reserve Board. Upcn repayment or redemption of the Debentures, the
Trust will use the proceeds of the transaction to redeem an egquivalent amcunt of
capital securities and common securities. The Trust's obligations under the
capital securities are unconditionally guaranteed by the Company. In accordance
with Financial Acccunting Standards Board Interpretation 46 (R}, the Trust is not
consolidated in the Company's financial statements.

NOTEZ 8 -NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In May, 2008, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Statement
of Financial Accounting Standard ("SFAS") No. 162, "The Hierarchy of Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles," ("SFAS No. 162"). SFAS No. 162 identifies the
scurces of accounting principles and the framework for selecting the principles
used in the preparation of financial statements of nongovernmental entities that
are presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP)
in the United States (the GAAP hierarchy). SFAS No. 162 will ke effective 60
days following the SEC's approval of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Becard's amendments to AU Section 411, "The Meaning of Present Fairly in
Conformity With Generally Accepted Accounting Principles®. The application of
the Statement will have no effect on the Company's financial position, results
of operations or cash flows.

The FASB issued FASRBR Staff Position No. APB 14-1, "Accounting for Convertible
Debt Instruments That May Be Settled in Cash upon Conversion (Including Partial
Cash Settlement)," ("FSP No. APB 14-1"). The Staff Position specifies that
issuers of convertible debt instruments that may be settled in cash upon
conversion should separately account for the liability and equity components in
a manner that will reflect the entity's nonconvertible debt borrowing rate when
interest cost is recognized in subsequent periods. FSP No. AFB 14-1 provides
guidance for initial and subsequent measurement as well as derecognition
provisions. The Staff Position is effective for financial statements issued for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008, and interim pericds within those
fiscal years. Early adoption is not permitted. The adopticn of the Staff
Position will have no material effect on the Company's financial position,
results of operations or cash flows.

In June, 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No. EITF 03-6-1, "Determining
Whether Instruments Granted in Share-Based Payment Transactions are
Participating Securities," ("FSP EITF 03-6-1"). The Staff Positicn provides that
unvested share-based payment awards that contain nonforfeitable rights to
dividends or dividend equivalents are participating securities and must be
included in the earnings per share computation. FSP EITF 03-6-1 is effective for
financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008,
and interim periods within those years. All prior-period earnings per share data
presented must be adjusted retrospectively. Early application is not permitted.
The adoption of the Staff Position will have no material effect cn the Company's
financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In March 20038, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, "Disclosures akout Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities" ("SFAS 161"). SFAS 161 requires enhanced
disclosures about an entity's derivative and hedging activities and thereby
improving the transparency of financial reporting. It is intended to enhance the
current disclosure framework in SFAS 133 by requiring that objectives for using
derivative instruments be disclosed in terms of underlying risk and accounting
designation. This disclosure better conveys the purpose of derivative use in
terms of the risks that the entity is intending to manage. SFAS 161 is effective
for the Company on January 1, 2009. This pronouncement dces not impact
accounting measurements but will result in additional disclosures if the Company
is involved in material derivative and hedging activities at thkat time.

In February 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No. 140-3, "Accounting for
Transfers of Financial Assets and Repurchase Financing Transactions" ("FSP
140-3"). This FSP provides guidance on accounting for a transfer of a financial
asset and the transferor's repurchase financing of the asset. This FSP presumes
that an initial transfer of a financial asset and a repurchase financing are
considered part of the same arrangement (linked transaction) under SFAS No. 140.
However, if certain criteria are met, the initial transfer and repurchase
financing are not evaluated as a linked transaction and are evaluated separately
under Statement 140. FSP 140-3 will be effective for financial statements issued
for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2008, and interim periods within
those fiscal years and earlier application is not permitted. Accordingly, this

-11-
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FSP is effective for the Company on January 1, 2009. The Company is currently
evaluating the impact, if any, that the adoption of FSP 140-3 will have on its
financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

In April 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No. 142-3, ‘"Determination of
the Useful Life of Intangible Assets" ("FSP 142-3"). This FSP amends the factors
that should be considered in developing renewal or extension assumptions used to
determine the useful life of a recognized intangible asset under SFAS No. 142,
"Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets". The intent of this FSP is to improve the
consistency between the useful life of a recognized intangible asset under SFAS
No. 142 and the period of expected cash flows used to measure the fair value of
the asset under SFAS No. 141(R), "Business Combinations," and other U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles. This FSP is effective for financial
statements 1issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008, and
interim periods within those fiscal years and early adoption is prohibited.
Accordingly, this FSP is effective for the Company on January 1, 2009. The
Company does not believe the adoption of FSP 142-3 will have a material impact
on its financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Other accounting standards that have been issued or proposed by the FASB or

other standards-setting bodies are not expected to have a ma:zerial impact on the
Company's financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
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PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 1. Financial Statements

GRANDSOUTH BANCORPORATION
Consolidated Balance Sheets

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
(Unaudited) (Audited)
September 30, December 31,
2008 2007
(Dollars in thousands)
Assets
<8 <C»> <C>
Cash and non-interest bearing due from banks .......... .. .. . it $ 4,587 $ 4,287
Interest bearing transaction deposits with other banks ........ e e e 5,101 298
Federal funds SOLA ...t ie it ittt ittt it es ittt et e e e a,322 4,420
Cash and cash equUivalents . ...ttt ittt et ittt ettt st nanaann 18,010 9,005
Certificates of deposit with other banks ....... ... .. it 2,000 -
Securities available FOr SALlE ittt ittt it e e e e e 50,571 59,567
Other investments, at CoOSE . ... ...t e e e e e e i e, 1,926 765
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses - $3,553 fcr 2008 and
$2,943 for 2007 ...t A 290,236 259,786
Premises and eQUIpPMeNT, MEL . ...ttt eetinee et ie st iataean s an e ennnans 4,813 4,896
Bank owneqG life dmBUYAICE o vttt ie it ettt aeteetaeentee et terearaaeeeeaaaaeataenaan 4,892 4,753
Assets acgquired in settlement of 1CaNS ... ... ... i i i e e 605 1,752
Interest receivable ... ... i i e i e e et e e e e e e 2,184 2,313
Deferred income taxes .............. N 586 544
[ Tl 17t T 737 737
[0 3o 1= o ¥ =3 = o = 881 1,006
TOLAL ASSELS .. ittt ittt ittt e e e e e e e e $377,441 $345,124
Liabilities
Deposits
NONINterest bEArInNg ... ittt ittt e ettt e et e $ 18,030 $ 15,037
INTEerest beariNg vttt i tennoennenennneas e e e e 294,443 290,602
Total AePOSIES ittt i et e e e e et e 312,473 305,639
Short-term DOrrOwWingsS . ... ...ttt it ittt et e i - 5,000
Long-term Federal Home Loan Bank advamCes . ... .. ..ttt ittt neeaennn 29,000 -
Junior subordinated debentures ... .... ... ..t et i e e s 8,247 8,247
Interest PAYADLE ..t e e e e e et e 560 754
Other 1iabilities ..o i i i i e i i e e e e 2,580 3,017
Total liabilities ... i i it i e e s 352,860 322,657

Shareholders' equity
Common stock - no par value; 20,000,000 shares authorized; issued and
outstanding - 3,565,964 at September 30, 2008 and

3,381,488 at December 31, 2007 .......covveiiinnn. P 19,884 19,200
Retained BarMIMgS . ...ttt ittt it it it it e i et e e e e e e e 4,588 3,083
Accumulated other comprehensive income {loss) ............ T e 109 184

Tctal sharehclders' eqUIbY ...ttt it i ittt it iaee s 24,581 22,467
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity ....... ... ... $377,441 $345,124

</TABLE>

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.
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GRANDSQUTH BANCORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Income
<TABLE>

<CAPTION>

Interest income

<S>

Interest and fees on loans ............ .. .. i,

Investment securities
Taxable ... ... i e
NOontaxable . ...ttt it ittt ittt
Dividends ............. . i, et e
Cther, principally federal funds sold ..............
Total interest income ............coiiiiiiiinnn..

Interest expense

L= oY= o <
Federal Home Lecan Bank advances ....................
Junior subordinated debentures .....................
Total interest eXPeNSe .......veeernvennnoeennnns

Net interest Income ...........iiiiiii i innnneennn
Provisicn fOr loan loOSSES ....uviiviiiiin e innnenannn
Net interest income after provision for loan losses .....

Noninterest income
Service charges on deposit accounts

Gain (loss) on sale of securities available for sale

Gain (loss) cn sale of assets acquired in settlement

of loans e

Gain on sale of premises and equipment
Other income

Total noninterest income

Noninterest expense
Salaries and employee benefits .....................
Premises and eguipment
Data processing
Insurance
Postage and supplies
Professional fees
Real estate and lecan
Other

Total ncninteres: expenses

Income before income taxes
Income tax expense

Net income .........oveneunn

Per share
Net income
Net income, assuming dilution
Dividends declared
< /TABLE>

The accompanying
statements.

notes are an integral part of these
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(Unaudited)
Period Ended September 30,

2008 2007 2008 2007
{Dollars in thousands, except per share)
<C> <C> <C»> <C»>
............ $ 5,394 S 5,946 $ 16,602 $ 17,510
............ 510 527 1,701 1,491
............ 143 97 427 214
............ 14 7 51 24
............ 74 190 201 506
............ 6,135 6,767 18,982 19,745
............ 2,695 3,508 8,559 9,874
............ 264 - 531 -
............ 99 155 328 456
............ 3,058 3,663 9,415 10,330
............ 3,077 3,104 9,563 9,415
............ 670 255 1,385 680
..... e 2,407 2,849 8,178 8,735
............ 139 114 374 318
........... - (24) 16 (24)
............ 29 - (24) 6
............ 16 - 43 -
............ 77 76 153 199
............ 261 166 §02 499
............ 1,189 1,066 3,841 3,592
............ 30 168 457 507
120 103 391 365
96 140 296 400
73 72 189 214
........... 113 138 370 374
............ 44 51 124 154
............ 206 143 407 409
............ 1,931 1,911 6,115 6,015
e 737 1,104 2,665 3,219
............ 265 398 954 1,160
............ $ 472 $ 706 $ 1,711 $ 2,059
............ $ 0.14 $ 0.21 $ Q.50 $ 0.61
............ 0.13 0.20 Q.48 0.57
............ 0.02 0.02 0.06 0.06
consolidated financial
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GRANDSOUTH BANCORPORATION

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders'
Income

<TABLE>

<CAPTION>

<8>

Balance, 2007

January 1,

Comprehensive income:
Net inCome .. ...ttt i e e taerannnas

Net unrealized holding gains and losses

on available for sale securities

arising during the period, net of

income taxes of $68
Reclassification adjustment,

net of income taxes of $8

Total other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Share-based ccmpensation
Cash dividends declared, $.06 per share

Balance, September 30, 2007

Balance, January 1, 2008 ... ...ciiieintirennininnnannns
Comprehensive income:
Net INCOME .ot itien it i iaee i ianne e

Net unrealized holding gains and losses

on available for sale securities

arising during the pericd, net of

income taxes of $33
Reclassificacion adjustment,

net of income taxes of $5

Total other comprehensive income (loss)

Tctal ccmprehensive income

Exercise of stock opticns

Share-based compensation ............ .0
Cash dividends declared, $.06 per share ..............
Balance, September 30, 2008 ..........c.iiiiiiniannnns
</TABLE>

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these

statements.

UST Seq. No. 327

Bquity and Comprehensive

(Unaudited)

Common Stock

Number of
Shares Amount
(Dollars in
<C> <C»
3,373,846 $ 19,054
- 85
3,373,846 $ 19,139
3,381,488 $ 19,200
184,476 599
- 85
3,565,964 $ 19,884
consolidated financial

Accumulated
Retained Other Comprehensive
Earnings Income (Loss)

thousands, except per share)

<C»> <C>
$ 554 $ (138)
2,059 -
- 132
- 16
{201) -
$ 2,412 $ 10
$ 31,083 $ 184
1,711 -
- (64)
- (11)
(206) -
$ 4,588 $ 109

<C>
$ 19,470
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GRANDSOUTH BANCORFPORATION
Consclidated Statements cf Cash Flows
<TABLE>

<CAPTION>

(Unaudited)

Nine Months Ended
September 30,

2008

2007

(Dollars in thousands)

Operating activities
<S> <C>
L= o B o e 11N $ 1,711
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net
cash provided by operating activities

Provision fOr 1loAn lOSSES ...ttt titinteneneneensenaeaneeaanns e e e 1,385
Depreciation .........ccoiiiiiiiniineinnnn. e e e e e e e e e, 252
Net securities (discount accretion) and premium amortization .............. e (35)
(Gain) or loss on sale of securities available for sale ....... e NP (16)
Gain on sale of premises and eqQUIPMENT . .. ... ...ttt ittt e e e (43)
Loss (gain) on sale of assets acquired in settlement of loans .................... 24
Increase in cash surrender value of bank owned life insurance ........ e (139)
Decrease (increase) in OLher @SSeLS ... ... .iiitiiiun i annneanaaneeennnnnns 250
(Decrease) increase in other liabilities ........ ... .iiuiiuoniiinteannnneennn . (633)
Share-based compensation ..............c.o0cuuun. ettt e e 85

Net cash provided by operating activities ...........c..cuuiiiiiinnnnnnnnnnn 2,841

Investing activities

Purchases of certificates of deposit in Other banks .......c.iuniiiiinnriieenneneennens (2,000)
Purchases of securities available fOr sale ...........iiiiiiineennnennnnanenennnnennnns .. (3,199)

Principal paydowns of available for sale mortgage-backed
investment SeCUXILies ...t et e e e e 4,104
Maturities, calls and paydowns of securities available for sale .................. e 7,000
Proceeds of sale of securities available £0r sale ...........ceiiiiititinonnennaneeennnns 1,029
Purchases Cf OfLher InVeSEmMENES ... ..ttt ittt ittt ettt ittt ttee e e (1,161)
Net increase in loans made to customers ............... P r et erat e (32,445)
Purchases of premises and equipment ........ .. ...ttt nneennnn e e (183)
Proceeds from sale of premises and equipment .................... e e e e, 57
Proceeds from sale of assets acquired in settlement Of 1OANS ...t erneeennennnn. 1,733
Net cash used by investing activities ................. e e e (25,065)

Financing activities

Net increase in deposSifs ... ...t ittt e e e e e 6,834
Decrease in short-term bOrrowings .............ceeeeuueneneennrnnnnnn e e (5,000}
Increase in long-term Federal Home Loan Bank @GVANCES . ..t nnnnneneeenennnnnnneeens 29,000

Cash dividends paid ....... bttt et e e e e e e e P, (204}
Exercise of stock Options ..........c.ociuiiiiiiiieaaiaan. f s e e it et ee st 592

Net cash provided by financing activities ....... et e e e 31,228

Increase {decrease) in cash and cash eQUIVAlenES . ... vttt ittt entttt et e 9,005
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period ........ ... it iiieii it 9,005
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period ......... .. ..ttt iiiiniiiaee i, $ 18,010

</TABLE >

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.

UST Seq. No. 327

<C>
$ 2,059

680

(29,207)

2,613

10,015

2,448
(386)
(34,005)
(147)




12/31/2008

<PAGE>

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

Cash paid during the period for
<S> .

Interest ........ .., R T NN F T ..
8 2T L - B

Noncash investing and financing activities:

Other comprehensive income (lOSS) ...ttt ie ittt eiienaenerennnss
Transfers of loans to assets acquired in settlement of loans ......... N
Dividends declared but unpaid ........ .ottt e

</TABLE>

GRANDSOUTH BANCORPORATION
NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION

GrandSouth Bancorporation (the "Company") is a South Carolina corporation
organized in 2000 for the purpose of being a holding company for GrandSouth Bank
(the "Bank"). On Octcber 2, 2000, pursuant to a Plan of Exchange apprcved by the
shareholders, all of the outstanding shares of $2.50 par value commcn stock of
the Bank were exchanged for shares of no par value common stock of the Company.
The Company presently engages in no business other than that of owning the Bank,
has no employees and operates as one business segment. The Company is regulated
by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (the "Federal Reserve").
The unaudited consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the
Company and the Bank. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions
have been eliminated in consolidation.

The Bank was incorporated in 1998 and operates as a South Carolina chartered
bank providing full banking services to its customers. The Bank is subject to
regulation by the South Carolina State Board of Financial Institutions and the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Accounting Principles - A summary of significant accounting policies and the
audited financial statements for 2007 are included in GrandSouth
Bancorporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission. The accompanying financial
statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America and the instructions to Form 10-Q.

The accompanying interim financial statements in this report are unaudited. 1In
the opinion of management, all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring
adjustments) necessary to present a fair statement of the results for the
interim period have been made. The results of operations for any interim period
are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for an entire year.
These interim financial statements should be read in conjunction with the annual
financial statements and notes thereto included in the 2007 Annual Report cn
Form 10-K.

Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified tc conferm to the current
presentation. These reclassifications have no effect on previously reported
shareholders' equity or net income. All dollar amounts are in thousands, except
per share data.
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(Unaudited)
Nine Months Ended
September 30,

2008 2007

(Dollars in thousands)

<C> <C>
$ 9,614 $10,
1,444 1,

(75)

610

71

333
082

148
335
67
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NOTE 3 - NON-PERFORMIKG LOANS

As of September 30, 2008, there were $6,081 in nonaccrual 1loans, %348 in loans
90 or more days past due and still accruing interest and no restructured loans.
As of December 31, 2007, there were $1,127 in nonaccrual loans, no loans 90 or
more days past due and still accruing interest and no restructured loans.

NOTE 4 - LONG-TERM DEBT

During the first nine months of 2008, the Bank borrowed $2%,000 from the Federal
Home Loan Bank of Atlanta. These borrowings were fixed rate advances with a
weighted average interest rate of 3.62% and a weighted average maturity of 3.33
years.

NOTE 5 - NET INCOME PER SHARE

Net income per share is computed on the basis of the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 128, "Earnings per Share." Diluted net income per share is
computed by dividing net income by the sum of the weighted average number of
shares of common stock outstanding during each period plus the assumed exercise
of dilutive stock options using the treasury stock method.

Following is a reccnciliation of basic net income per share to diluted net
income per share for the three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2008
and 2007.

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

2008

(Dollars in thousands,

Net income per share, basic

<S> <C>
Numerator - net INCOME .........cuiiiitirennneeeennneeaannsnans S 472
Denominator
Weighted average common shares
issued and outstanding ......c.iiiiii i i i i e e 3,481,747
Net income per share, basic .........c.iiiiiiiiniinnannn S .14

Net inccme per share, assuming dilution

Numerator - net Income ............ ..t iiiiintinniinennnanan $ 472
Denominator
Weighted average common shares
issued and outsStanding . .....iuiiiiii it it e e 3,481,747
Bffect of dilutive stock options ......... e 63,267
Total Shares ........iiiiiiniiieieneinneeninnnss
Net income per share, assuming dilution ................. $ .13

</TABLE>
NOTE 6 -FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Company implemented Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157,
"Fair Value Measurements," ("SFAS No. 157"} as required on January 1, 2008. SFAS
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Pericd Ended September 30,

2007

3,373,846
210,207

2008

except per share amounts)

3,415,152

3,373,846
264,730
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No. 157 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly fashion between market
participants at the measurement date (an exit price), and establishes a
framework for measuring fair value. It also establishes a three-level hierarchy
for fair value measurements based upon the transparency of inputs to the
valuation of an asset or liability as of the measurement date, eliminates the
consideration of large position discounts for financial instruments quoted in
active markets, reguires consideration of the Company's c¢reditworthiness when
valuing its liabilities, and expands disclosures about instruments measured at
fair value.

The following is a summary of the measurement attributes applicable to financial
assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION
Fair Value Measurement at Reporting Date Using
Qucted Prices
in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
Description September 30, 2008 (Level 1) (Level 2) {Level 3}
(Dellars in thousands)
<S> <C> <C> <C>
Securities available for sale ....... oo $ - $50,571 $ -
< /TABLE>

Pricing for the Company's securities available-for-sale is obtained from an
independent third-party that uses a process that may incorporate current market
prices, benchmark yields, broker/dealer quotes, issuer spreads, two-sided
markets, benchmark securities, bids, offers, other reference data and industry
and economic events that a market participant would be expected to use in
valuing the securities. Not all of the inputs listed apply to each individual
security at each measurement date. The independent third party assigns specific
securities into an "asset «class" for the purpose of assigning the applicable
level of the fair value hierarchy used to value the securities. The techniques
used after adoption of SFAS No. 157 are consistent with the methods used
previously.

No cumulative effect adjustments were required upon initial application of SFAS
No. 157. Available for sale securities continue to be measured at fair value
with unrealized gains and losses recorded in other comprehensive income.

The following is a summary of the measurement attributes applicable to financial
assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION=
Fair Value Measurement at Reporting Date Using
Quoted Prices
in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Uncbservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
Description September 30, 2008 (Level 1) {Level 2) (Level 3)
{Dollars in thousands)
<S> <C> <C> <C>
Collateral dependent impaired loans ................. $ - $ 4,784 $ -
</TABLE>

Collateral dependent impaired loans consist of nonaccrual 1loans and potential
problem loans for which the underlying collateral provides the sole repayment
source. The Company measures the amount of the impairment for such loans by
determining the difference between the fair value of the underlying collateral
and the recorded amount of the loan. The fair value of the underlying collateral
generally is based on appraisals performed in accordance with applicable
appraisal standards by independent appraisers engaged by the Company. In many
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cases, management updates values reflected in older appraisals obtained at the
time of loan origination and already in the Company's possession using its own
knowledge, judgments and assumptions about current market and other conditions
in lieu of obtaining a new independent appraisal. If the fair wvalue of the
collateral is less than the recorded amount of the loan, a valuation allowance
is established for the difference; otherwise, no valuation allowance is
established. The valuation allowance for impaired 1loans is a component of the
allowance for loan losses. Periodically, management reevaluates the fair value
of the collazeral and makes adjustments to the valuation allowance as
appropriate. However, if the fair value of the collateral subsequently recovers
in value such that it exceeds the recorded loan amount, no adjustment is made in
the loan's value for the excess. The amount of the valuation allowance for the
Company's collateral dependent impaired loans was $1,503 as of September 30,
2008.

In February 2008, the Financial Accounting Standards Board Statf issued FASB
staff Position No. FAS 157-2 ("FSP 157-2") which delays for one year the
effective date cf the application of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 157 "Fair Value Measurements" ("SFAS No. 157") tc nonfinancial assets and
liabilities, except for items that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in
the financial statements on a recurring basis (at least annually). In accordance
with FSP 157-2, the Company has only partially applied SFAS No. 157. The major
categories of assets or liabilities disclosed at fair value in the financial
statements for which the Company has not applied the provisions of SFAS No. 157
under the provisions of FSP 157-2 are goodwill and assets acquired in settlement
of loans.

The Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 159 "The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities," ("SFAS No. 159" or the "Statement") which was effective
for the Company as of January 1, 2008, Under the provisions of SFAS No. 159,
entities may choose, but are not required, to measure many financial instruments
and certain other items at their fair values, with changes in the fair wvalues of
those instruments reported in earnings. The Company has not elected to measure
at fair value any financial instruments under the provisions of SFAS No. 159.
The adoption of the Statement had no effect on the Company's financial
statements.

The Securities and Exchange Commission's {("SEC") Office of the Chief Accountant
and the staff of the FASB issued press release 2008-234 on September 30, 2008
("Press Release") tc provide clarifications on fair value accounting. The press
release includes guidance on the use of management's internal assumptions and
the use of "market" quotes. It also reiterates the factors in SEC Staff
Accounting Bulletin Topic SM which should be considered when determining
other-than-temporary impairment: the 1length of time and extent to which the
market value has been 1less than cost; financial condition and near-term
prospects of the issuer; and the intent and ability of the holder to retain its
investment for a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery
in market value.

On October 10, 2008, the FASB issued FSP SFAS 157-3, "Determining the Fair Value
of a Financial Asset When the Market for That Asset Is Not Active" ("FSP SFAS
157-3"). This FSP clarifies the application of SFAS No. 157, "Fair Value
Measurements" in a market that is not active and provides an example to
illustrate key considerations in determining the fair value of a financial asset
when the market for that asset is not active. The FSP is effective wupcn
issuance, including prior periods for which financial statements have not been
issued. For the Company, this FSP is effective for the quarter ended September
30, 2008.

The Company considered the guidance in the Press Release and in FSP SFAS 157-3
when conducting its review for other-than-temporary impairment as of September
30, 2008 and determined that it did not result in a change to its impairment
estimation techniques.

NOTE 7 - VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITY

On May 3, 2006, the Company sponsored the creation of a Delaware statutory
trust, GrandSouth Capital Trust I (the "Trust"), and is the sole owner of the
$247 in common securities issued by the Trust. On May 10, 2006, the Trust issued
$8,000 in floating rate capital securities. The proceeds of this issuance, and
the amount of the Company's investment in the common securities, were used to
acquire $8,247 principal amount of the Company's floating rate junior
subordinated debt securities due 2036 ("Debentures"), which securities, and the
accrued interest thereon, ncow constitute the Trust's scle assets. The interest
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rate associated with the debt securities, and the distribution rate on the
common securities of the Trust, is adjustable quarterly at 3 month LIBOR plus
185 basis points, and was 5.06% as of September 30, 2008. The Company may defer
interest payments on the Debentures for up to twenty consecutive quarters, but
not beyond the stated maturity date of the Debentures. 1In the event that such
interest payments are deferred by the Company, the Trust may defer distributions
on the capital and common securities. 1In such an event, the Company would be
restricted in its ability to pay dividends on its common stock and perform under
other obligations that are not senior to the Debentures.

The Debentures are redeemable at par at the option of the Company, in whole or
in part, on any interest payment date on or after June 23, 2011. Priocr to that
date, the Debentures are redeemable at par plus a premium of up to 4.40% of par
upon the occurrence of certain events that would have a negative tax effect on
the Trust or that would cause it to be required to be registered as an
investment company under the Investment Company Act of 1940 or that would cause
trust preferred securities not to be eligible to be treated as Tier 1 capital by
the Federal Reserve Board. Upon repayment or redemption of the Debentures, the
Trust will use the proceeds of the transaction tc redeem an equivalent amount of
capital securities and common securities. The Trust's obligations under the
capital securities are unconditionally guaranteed by the Company. In accordance
with Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation 46 (R), the Trust is not
consolidated in the Company's financial statements.

NOTE 8 -NEW ACCOUNTING PRCNOUNCEMENTS

In February 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No. 140-3, "Accounting for
Transfers of Financial Assets and Repurchase Financing Transacticns" ("FSP
140-3"). This FSP provides guidance on accounting for a transfer of a financial
asset and the transferor's repurchase financing of the asset. This FSP presumes
that an initial transfer of a financial asset and a repurchase financing are
considered part of the same arrangement (linked transaction) under SFAS No. 140.
However, 1if certain criteria are met, the initial transfer and repurchase
financing are not evaluated as a linked transaction and are evaluated separately
under Statement 140. FSP 140-3 will be effective for financial statements issued
for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2008, and interim periods within
those fiscal years and earlier application is not permitted. Accordingly, this
FSP is effective for the Company on January 1, 2005. The Company is currently
evaluating the impact, if any, that the adoption of FSP 140-3 will have on its
financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

In April 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No. 142-3, '"Determination of
the Useful Life of Intangible Assets" ("FSP 142-3"). This FSP amends the factors
that should be considered in developing renewal or extension assumptions used to
determine the useful life of a recognized intangible asset under SFAS No. 142,
"Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets." The intent of this FSP is to improve the
consistency between the useful life cf a recognized intangible asset under SFAS
No. 142 and the pericd of expected cash flows used to measure the fair wvalue of
the asset wunder SFAS No. 141(R), "Business Combinations," and other U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles. This FSP is effective for financial
statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008, and
interim periods within those fiscal years and early adoption is prohibited.
Accordingly, this FSP is effective for the Company on January 1, 2009. The
Company does not believe the adoption of FSP 142-3 will have a material impact
on its financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In June, 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No. EITF 03-6-1, "Determining
Whether Instruments Granted in Share-Based Payment Transactions are
Participating Securities," ("FSP EITF 03-6-1"). The Staff Position provides that
unvested share-based payment awards that contain nonforfeitable rights to
dividends or dividend equivalents are participating securities and must be
included in the earnings per share computation. FSP EITF 03-6-1 is effective for
financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008,
and interim periods within those years. All pricr-period earnings per share data
presented must pe adjusted retrospectively. Early application is not permitted.
The adoption of this Staff Position will have no material effect on the
Company's financial position, results of operaticns or cash flows.
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FSP SFAS 133-1 and FIN 45-4, "Disclosures about Credit Derivatrives and Certain
Guarantees: An Amendment of FASE Statement No. 133 and FASB Interpretation No.
45; and Clarification of the Effective Date of FASB Statement Nc. 161," ("FSP
SFAS 133-1 and FIN 45-4") was issued September 2008, effective for reporting
periods (annual or interim) ending after November 15, 2008. FSP SFAS 133-1 and
FIN 45-4 amends SFAS 133 to require a seller of credit derivatives to disclose
the nature of the credit derivative, the maximum potential amount of future
payments, fair value of the derivative, and the nature of any recourse
provisions. Disclosures must be made for entire hybrid instruments that have
embedded credit derivatives.

The staff position also amends FIN 45 to require disclosure of the current
status of the payment/performance risk of the credit derivative guarantee. If an
entity utilizes internal groupings as a basis for the risk, how the groupings
are determined must be disclosed as well as how the risk is managed.

The staff position encourages that the amendments be applied in periods earlier
than the effective date to facilitate comparisons at initial adoption. After
initial adoption, comparative disclosures are required only for subsequent
periods.

FSP SFAS 133-1 and FIN 45-4 clarifies the effective date of SFAS 161 such that
required disclosures should be provided for any reporting period (annual or
quarterly interim) beginning after November 15, 2008. The adoption of this Staff
Position will have no material effect on the Company's financial position,
results of cperations or cash flows.

Other accounting standards that have been 1issued or propesed by the FASB or

other standards-setting bodies are not expected to have a material impact on the
Company's financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
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